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PART |
Item 1. Business
GENERAL

Ares Capital Corporation, a Maryland cogimm (together with its subsidiaries, where aggtlle, "Ares Capital" or the "Company,"
which may also be referred to as "we," "us" or "dUs a specialty finance company that is a clesed, non-diversified management
investment company. We have elected to be regugedbusiness development company, or a "BDC &ruthe Investment Company Act
1940, as amended, and the rules and regulationsytgated thereunder or the "Investment Company'Aée were founded on April 16,
2004, were initially funded on June 23, 2004 anahgleted our initial public offering on October &0. We are one of the largest BDCs
with approximately $8.1 billion of total assetsciecember 31, 2013.

We are externally managed by our investradntser, Ares Capital Management LLC ("Ares Cdpitanagement” or our "investment
adviser"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Managat LLC ("Ares Management"), a global alternatagset manager and a Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") registered investmenwisar with approximately $74 billion of assets anchanagement ("AUM"{) as of
December 31, 2013. Ares Operations LLC ("Ares Ogana" or our "administrator"), our administratarywholly owned subsidiary of Ares
Management, provides administrative services nacgs$sr us to operate.

Our investment objective is to generaténlmoirrent income and capital appreciation througiht @nd equity investments. We invest
primarily in U.S. middle-market companies, wherehedieve the supply of primary capital is limiteadathe investment opportunities are
most attractive. However, we may from time to tiimeest in larger or smaller (in particular, for @stments in early-stage and/or venture
capital-backed) companies. We generally use time teriddle-market” to refer to companies with annEBITDA between $10 million and
$250 million. As used herein, EBITDA representsinebme before net interest expense, income tagresq) depreciation and amortization.

We invest primarily in first lien seniorcsged loans (including "unitranche” loans, which lrans that combine both senior and
mezzanine debt, generally in a first lien positj@®cond lien senior secured loans and mezzanbtewleich in some cases includes an eg
component. First and second lien senior securatslganerally are senior debt instruments that sdnalad of subordinated debt of a given
portfolio company. Mezzanine debt is subordinatesenior loans and is generally unsecured. Oussinvents in corporate borrowers
generally range between $30 million and $400 millkach, investments in project finance/power geier@rojects generally range between
$10 million and $200 million each and investmentgarly-stage and/or venture capital-backed conegagenerally range between $1 million
and $25 million each. However, the investment simag be more or less than these ranges and maypaaed on, among other things, our
capital availability, the composition of our pottébpand general micro- and macro-economic factors.

To a lesser extent, we also make prefanetdor common equity investments, which have gélgdyaen non-control equity investments
of less than $20 million (usually in conjunctiontive. concurrent debt investment). However, we mayease the size or change the nature of
these investments.

(1) AUM refers to the assets of the funds, alternadisset companies and other entities and accountarthenanaged or co-managed by
Ares Management. It also includes funds managedehbiill Asset Management, L.P., a wholly owned fiolio company of Ares
Capital, and a registered investment adviser cluigtes drawn and undrawn amounts, including cegaiounts that are subject to
regulatory leverage restrictions and/or borrowiagérestrictions. AUM amounts are as of DecembgP@13 and are unaudited.
Certain amounts are preliminary and remain sultgechange, and differences may arise due to rogndin
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The proportion of these types of investrmemitl change over time given our views on, amotigeothings, the economic and credit
environment in which we are operating. In connectigth our investing activities, we may make commants with respect to indebtednes
securities of a potential portfolio company subtédly in excess of our final investment. In sudtuations, while we may initially agree to
fund up to a certain dollar amount of an investmesmt may subsequently syndicate or sell a portfiauoh amount (including, without
limitation, to vehicles managed by our portfolioqmany, vy Hill Asset Management, L.P. ("IHAM")ush that we are left with a smaller
investment than what was reflected in our origgc@hmitment. In addition to originating investmem& may also acquire investments in the
secondary market (including purchases of a podfoliinvestments).

The first and second lien senior securadd$an which we invest generally have stated terhtlsree to 10 years and the mezzanine debt
investments in which we invest generally have stétems of up to 10 years, but the expected avdifegef such first and second lien loans
and mezzanine debt is generally between threearehs/ears. However, we may invest in loans andrg@s with any maturity or duration.
The instruments in which we invest typically aré raded by any rating agency, but we believe thstich instruments were rated, they would
be below investment grade (rated lower than "Bédg3Vioody's Investors Service, lower than "BBB-"Hiych Ratings or lower than "BBB-"
by Standard & Poor's Rating Services), which, utiderguidelines established by these entities; im@ication of having predominantly
speculative characteristics with respect to theess capacity to pay interest and repay principahds that are rated below investment grade
are sometimes referred to as "high yield bondsjumk bonds." We may invest without limit in dehtather securities of any rating, as well
as debt or other securities that have not beed tany nationally recognized statistical ratimgamization.

We believe that our investment adviser,sACapital Management, is able to leverage the sumgestment platform, resources and
existing relationships of Ares Management with ficial sponsors, financial institutions, hedge fuadd other investment firms to provide us
with attractive investment opportunities. For puag® of this document, we refer to Ares Managemmeahita affiliated companies (other than
portfolio companies of its affiliated funds) as &&t" In addition to deal flow, the Ares investmplattform assists our investment adviser in
analyzing, structuring and monitoring investmeAi®s has been in existence for more than 16 yewrstssenior partners have an averag
over 26 years of experience in leveraged finangeaie equity, distressed debt, commercial reatedinance, investment banking and ca,
markets. The Company has access to Ares' invespnefessionals and administrative professionalsy piovide assistance in accounting,
finance, legal, compliance, operations, informatechnology and investor relations. As of Decen8iger2013, Ares had 307 investment
professionals and 430 administrative professionals.

We and General Electric Capital Corporatiod GE Global Sponsor Finance LLC (collectivef$E") also co-invest in first lien senior
secured loans of middle market companies througlmaonsolidated vehicle, the Senior Secured Loamd ElL.C, which operates using the
name "Senior Secured Loan Program” (the "SSLP"pfA3ecember 31, 2013, the SSLP had available aagfit$11.0 billion of which
approximately $8.7 billion in aggregate principai@unt was funded at December 31, 2013. As of Deee®b, 2013, we had agreed to make
available to the SSLP approximately $2.3 billiohwhich approximately $1.7 billion was funded. TBSLP is capitalized as transactions are
completed and all portfolio decisions and generalllpther decisions in respect of the SSLP musigoved by an investment committee of
the SSLP consisting of representatives of the Compad GE (with approval from a representativeasferequired). As of December 31,
2013, our investment in the SSLP was approxima&#Ig billion at fair value (including unrealizedppciation of $26.2 million), which
represented approximately 23% of our total portfali fair value. For more information on the SS&& "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems—Portfolio and Investment Activity—Senior 8ed Loan Program.”
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While our primary focus is to generate eatrincome and capital appreciation through investsiin first and second lien senior secured
loans and mezzanine debt and, to a lesser extgrity securities of eligible portfolio companiese wlso may invest up to 30% of our
portfolio in non-qualifying assets, as permittedtbg Investment Company Act. Specifically, as pathis 30% basket, we may invest in
entities that are not considered "eligible pordabmpanies” (as defined in the Investment Compent), including companies located
outside of the United States, entities that areatjpg pursuant to certain exceptions under thestment Company Act, and publicly traded
entities whose public equity market capitalizatixeceeds the levels provided for under the Investr@empany Act.

In the first quarter of 2011, the stafftloé SEC (the "Staff") informally communicated tota@gh BDCs the Staff's belief that certain
entities, which would be classified as an "investhtompany" under the Investment Company Act buttfe exception from the definition
"investment company" set forth in Rule 3a-7 pronatdgl under the Investment Company Act, could ndtdsted as eligible portfolio
companies (as defined in Section 2(a)(46) undehthestment Company Act) (i.e., in a BDC's 70% leasK "qualifying assets").
Subsequently, in August 2011 the SEC issued a ppmekease (the "Concept Release™) which stated'filis a general matter, the
Commission presently does not believe that Rul& Bssuers are the type of small, developing arahiiially troubled businesses in which
U.S. Congress intended BDCs primarily to invest] eequested comment on whether or not a 3a-7 isieeld be considered an "eligible
portfolio company.” We provided a comment letteréspect of the Concept Release and continue ieveehat the language of Section 2(a)
(46) of the Investment Company Act permits a BD@¢at as "eligible portfolio companies” entitibat rely on the 3&-exception. Howeve
given the current uncertainty in this area (inahgdihe language in the Concept Release), we halay $or purposes of calculating the
composition of our portfolio pursuant to Sectior{@%f the Investment Company Act, identified sedilities, which include the SSLP, as
"non-qualifying assets" should the Staff ultimattlite an official view that 3a-7 issuers are ntigfiele portfolio companies.”

As of December 31, 2013, our portfolio camp, IHAM, which became an SEC registered investradmiser effective March 30, 2012,
managed 13 vehicles and served as the sub-managsegsricer for three other vehicles (these vebiokanaged or sub-managed/saivicet
by IHAM are collectively referred to as the "IHAMelicles"). See Note 4 to our consolidated finarstialements for the year ended
December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2013, IHAMSets under management ("IHAM AUMP)was approximately $2.8 billion. As of
December 31, 2013, Ares Capital had invested appedrly $171 million (at amortized cost) in IHAM Eonnection with IHAM's
registration as a registered investment adviseMarch 30, 2012, we received exemptive relief fithe SEC allowing us to, subject to cert
conditions, own directly or indirectly up to 100%IBIAM's outstanding equity interests and make #ddal investments in IHAM once
IHAM became an SEC registered investment advisemRime to time, IHAM or certain IHAM Vehicles magurchase investments from us
or sell investments to us, in each case for a migel to the fair market value of such investmeetermined at the time of such transactions.

About Ares

Founded in 1997, Ares is a global altersatisset manager and an SEC registered investohdaeawith approximately $74 billion of
total AUM and 737 employees as of December 31, 2013

(2) IHAM AUM refers to the assets of the vehicles madgub-managed and sub-serviced by IHAM. It inetudrawn and undrawn
amounts, including amounts that are subject taaerestrictions. IHAM AUM amounts are as of DecamB1, 2013 and are
unaudited. Certain amounts are preliminary and meswbject to change, and differences may ariseauveunding.
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Ares specializes in originating and mangginsets in the leveraged finance, commercialesate and private equity markets. Ares'
leveraged finance activities include the originatiacquisition and management of senior loans, Yigld bonds, mezzanine debt and special
situation investments. Ares' commercial real esdatwities generally focus on lending to U.S. niédoharket real estate projects. Ares' pri\
equity activities generally focus on control-orieghtequity investments in under-capitalized comawigh capital structure issues. Ares has
the ability to invest across a capital structurent senior debt to common equity. This flexibiliggmbined with Ares' "buy and hold"
philosophy, enables Ares to structure an investi@enieet the specific needs of a company rather ttheless flexible demands of the public
markets.

The following chart shows the structure &adous investment strategies of Ares as of Deezrlh, 2013:

7) ARES

A lending participunt in the Che of the Ialrge_dl: i SHS AELERERN ] eoimic) One of the largest real estate
R o et originating direct lenders 1o perorming privale equity e T e
ade ':.-1 I-Il:urrn.lc crclii'ﬂn:lrhns i e b sERTRgnIR i (het LS WRRL X ﬂdl:m :ll'Ti;rI:r}'n“:liml::ll I::ﬁj;:r
gratlc com mighdbe murkets growing imtermational presence ging
ALUMID £28 hillion 527 hillion 10 hillion 59 billion
Siratenlis Long-Cnly LS. Direct Lending U5,/ Europe Flemible Capital  Real Estote Dl
WAL Alleriative Crecie Euripe Ditect Lending China Growth Cupital Real Estate Eguity

(1) AUM refers to the assets of the funds, altéveaasset companies and other entities and acedat are managed or co-
managed by Ares Management. It also includes famaisaged by IHAM. It includes drawn and undrawn antsu
including certain amounts that are subject to raguy leverage restrictions and/or borrowing ba&strictions. AUM
amounts are as of December 31, 2013 and are uadu@iértain amounts are preliminary and remainestithp change,
and differences may arise due to round

Ares is organized around four primary irweent platforms: Tradable Credit, Direct LendingyBte Equity and Real Estate. Ares' se
partners have been working together as a groumémy years and have an average of over 26 yeagefience in leveraged finance,
private equity, distressed debt, real estate, invexst banking and capital markets. They are bablgesiteam of 307 highly disciplined
investment professionals which as of December 8132 overed investments in more than 1,000 compamd more than 300 properties
across over 30 industries. Ares' rigorous investrapproach is based upon an intensive, indepeffitamcial analysis, with a focus on
preservation of capital, diversification and actpartfolio management. These fundamentals undarks' investment strategy and have
resulted in large pension funds, banks, insuranogpanies, endowments and high net worth individimsasting in Ares' funds.

Ares Capital Management

Ares Capital Management, our investmenisadyis served by an origination, investment aodfplio management team of 82 U.S.-
based investment professionals as of December03B &nd led by the senior partners of the Ares lgament Direct Lending Group:
Michael Arougheti, Kipp deVeer, Mitchell Goldsteand Michael Smith. Ares Capital Management levesageof Ares' investment platform
and benefits from the significant capital markésding and research expertise of Ares' investipeasfessionals. Ares Capital Management's
investment committee has seven members,




including the senior partners of the Ares Managdriarect Lending Group, senior partners in the Avinagement Private Equity Group
and a senior adviser to the Ares Management Tradaigdit Group.

MARKET OPPORTUNITY
We believe that current market conditiorsspnt attractive opportunities for us to inveghiddle-market companies, specifically:

. We believe that the disruption and volatility iretbredit markets between 2008 and 2009 reducethtagailable to certain
specialty finance companies and other capital plerg, causing a reduction in competition. Theseetaronditions may
continue to create opportunities to achieve aitractsk-adjusted returns.

. We believe that many commercial and investmankb have, in recent years, de-emphasized theiceaand product
offerings to middle-market businesses in favoreofding to large corporate clients and managingalmiarkets transactions.
In addition, these lenders may be constrainedeair #bility to underwrite and hold bank loans aighhyield securities for
middle-market issuers as they seek to meet existitigfuture regulatory capital requirements. THastrs may result in
opportunities for alternative funding sources tadfe-market companies and therefore more reswe market opportunities -
us.

. We believe that there is a lack of bank marketigigeints that are willing to hold meaningful amaiof certain middle-market
loans. As a result, we believe our ability to mifiensyndication risk for a company seeking finagday being able to hold o
loans without having to syndicate them is a contipetadvantage.

. We believe there is a large pool of un-invegigdate equity capital for middle-market busines$&e expect private equity
firms will seek to leverage their investments byndxining equity capital with senior secured loand arezzanine debt from
other sources such as us.

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES
We believe that we have the following cotitpe advantages over other capital providers tddie-market companies:
The Ares Platform

As of December 31, 2013, Ares had approtetga74 billion of total AUM in the related ass#asses of nosyndicated first and seco
lien senior secured corporate and commercial igateloans, syndicated corporate and commerabéestate loans, high yield bonds,
corporate and commercial real estate mezzanineatiebprivate equity. We believe Ares' current itwvesnt platform provides a competitive
advantage in terms of access to origination andetiaug activities and diligence for us. In part@uylwe believe that the Ares platform
provides us with an advantage through its deal fieweration and investment evaluation process.' Assgt management platform also
provides additional market information, company Wierige and industry insight that benefit our inwestt and due diligence process. Ares'
professionals maintain extensive financial spomasat intermediary relationships, which provide valedansight and access to transactions
and information.

Seasoned Management Team

The investment professionals in the Aresdgement Direct Lending Group and members of atgstiment adviser's investment
committee also have significant experience invgsdicross market cycles. This experience also pesvi with a competitive advantage in
identifying, originating, investing in and managiagportfolio of investments in middle-market comiean
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Broad Origination Strategy

We focus on self-originating most of ouvéstments by pursuing a broad array of investmppodunities in middle-market companies
across multiple channels. We also leverage offiefextensive relationships of the broader Aresgiat, including relationships with the
portfolio companies in the IHAM Vehicles, to iddgtinvestment opportunities. We believe that thHievas for asset selectivity and that there
is a significant relationship between proprietaggldorigination and credit performance. We belithat our focus on generating proprietary
deal flow and lead investing also gives us greztatrol over capital structure, deal terms, pricamgl documentation and enables us to
actively manage our portfolio investments. Moreowsrleading the investment process, we are oféanta secure controlling positions in
credit tranches, thereby providing additional cohitn investment outcomes. We also have originatdabtantial proprietary deal flow from
middle-market intermediaries, which often allowst@sct as the sole or principal source of insbhnal capital to the borrower.

Scale and Flexible Transaction Structuring

We believe that being one of the largesCBnakes us a more desirable and flexible capitaligher, especially in competitive markets.
We are flexible and have significant experiencstincturing investments, including the types ofeisiments and the terms associated with
such investments. We believe this approach andriexppe enables our investment adviser to identifactive investment opportunities
throughout economic cycles and across a compaapltat structure so we can make investments camistith our stated investment
objective and preserve principal while seeking appate risk adjusted returns. In addition, we hiéne=ability to provide "one stop" financi
with the ability to invest capital across the bakusheet and syndicate and hold larger investntieaitsmany of our competitors. We believe
that the ability to underwrite, syndicate and Haldjer investments benefits our stockholders by @ntially increasing net income and
earnings through syndication, (b) increasing oggga deal flow flexibility, (c) broadening marketationships and deal flow, (d) allowing us
to optimize our portfolio composition and (e) aliog us to provide capital to a broader spectrummifdle-market companies, which we
believe currently have limited access to capitafrfitraditional lending sources. In addition, weidngd that the ability to provide capital at
every level of the balance sheet provides a stvaige proposition to middle-market borrowers andsmnior debt capabilities provide
superior deal origination and relative value analgapabilities compared to traditional "mezzarong/" lenders.

Experience with and Focus on Middle-Market Companis

Ares has historically focused on investragéntmiddle-market companies and we benefit frois éiperience. In sourcing and analyzing
deals, our investment adviser benefits from Are&resive network of relationships focused on mieudkrket companies, including
management teams, members of the investment bao&mgunity, private equity groups and other invesitfirms with whom Ares has h
long-term relationships. We believe this networkldas us to identify well-positioned prospectivetfmlio company investments. The Ares
Management Direct Lending Group works closely wtles' other investment professionals. As of Decemtie 2013, Ares oversaw a
portfolio of investments in over 1,000 companied arore than 300 properties across over 30 indgstrikich provides access to an exten
network of relationships and insights into indugtgnds and the state of the capital markets.

Disciplined Investment Philosophy

In making its investment decisions, oureisiment adviser has adopted Ares' long-standimgistent, credit-based investment approach
that was developed over 16 years ago by its foundgrecifically, our investment adviser's investhpilosophy, portfolio construction and
portfolio




management involve an assessment of the overatiom@anomic environment and financial markets amdgany-specific research and
analysis. Its investment approach emphasizes t@péservation, low volatility and minimization dbwnside risk. In addition to engaging in
extensive due diligence from the perspective afingiterm investor, our investment adviser's apgraaeks to reduce risk in investments by
focusing on:

. businesses with strong franchises and susta&rtaphpetitive advantages;

. industries with positive long-term dynamics;

. businesses and industries with cash flows thatlependable and predictable;

. management teams with demonstrated track recodiagpropriate economic incentives;
. rates of return commensurate with the perceivégris

. securities or investments that are structured sjijpropriate terms and covenants; and

. businesses backed by experienced private equityssps.

Extensive Industry Focus

We seek to concentrate our investing aaiwin industries with a history of predictablelatependable cash flows and in which the /
investment professionals have had extensive invagtexperience. Ares investment professionals Haveloped long-term relationships
with management teams and management consultaot®irB0 industries, and have accumulated subatamtbrmation and identified
potential trends within these industries. In tume, benefit from these relationships, informatiod aentification of potential trends in maki
investments.

OPERATING AND REGULATORY STRUCTURE

Our investment activities are managed hyimeestment adviser Ares Capital Management, whgahholly owned by Ares, and
supervised by our board of directors, a majoritywbbm are independent of Ares and its affiliatesesACapital Management is registered
under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or thdvisers Act.” Under our Amended and Restated ltment Advisory and Management
Agreement with Ares Capital Management, referredeiein as our "investment advisory and manageagneement,” we have agreed to
Ares Capital Management an annual base manageeehtted on our total assets, as defined undenbstment Company Act (other than
cash and cash equivalents, but including assethased with borrowed funds), and an incentive = on our performance. See
"Investment Advisory and Management Agreement."sADperations provides us with administrative s&wicecessary for us to operate
pursuant to an Amended and Restated Administr&greement, referred to herein as our "administratigreement.” See "Administration
Agreement."




As a BDC, we are required to comply withtam regulatory requirements. For example, wenategenerally permitted to invest in any
portfolio company in which a fund managed by Aresuay of its downstream affiliates (other than nd aur downstream affiliates) currently
has an investment. However, we may co-invest anawrent basis with funds managed by Ares or dritg downstream affiliates, subject
to compliance with existing regulatory guidanceplagable regulations and our allocation procedu@stain types of co-investment
transactions would only be permitted pursuant texamptive order from the SEC, for which we havgligd. Any such order will be subject
to certain terms and conditions. Further thereisgsurance that this application for exemptiviefralill be granted by the SEC.

Also, while we may borrow funds to makedstments, our ability to use debt is limited intair significant aspects. In particular, BD
must have at least 200% asset coverage calculatedgnt to the Investment Company Act in ordentwi debt or issue preferred stock
(which we refer to collectively as "senior secestl), which requires us to finance our investmeuitis at least as much equity as senior
securities in the aggregate. Certain of our crieditities also require that we maintain asset cage of at least 200%.

In addition, as a consequence of our bairggulated investment company ("RIC") for U.S efedl income tax purposes, as well as our
status as a BDC, our asset growth is dependentioalility to raise equity capital through the i@sae of common stock. RICs generally r
distribute substantially all of their earnings tockholders as dividends in order to preserve #taitus as a RIC and avoid additional
corporate-level income taxes. This requirementyin, generally prevents us from using earningsugport our operations including making
new investments.

MARKET CONDITIONS

From time to time, capital markets may eigree periods of disruption and instability. Feample, between 2008 and 2009, the global
financial markets experienced stress, volatiligtability, illiquidity and disruption, and as atdt, during this time the availability of capital
and access to capital markets was limited. Whileketaconditions have experienced relative stabitityecent years, there have been
continuing periods of volatility and there can lmeassurances that adverse market conditions willepeat themselves or worsen in the
future. If they do, we could face difficulty raigimew capital on attractive terms. Consequently operating strategy could be materially and
adversely affected. As the global liquidity siteatiand market conditions evolve, we will continaertonitor and adjust our approach to
funding accordingly. See "Risk Factors—Risks Ratato Our Business—The capital markets may expeei@eriods of disruption and
instability. Such market conditions may materiatyd adversely affect debt and equity capital markethe United States, which may have a
negative impact on our business and operations.”

In connection with the prior depressed reaidonditions of the general economy during théopidoetween 2008 and 2009, the stocks of
BDCs as an industry traded at near historic lowa gesult of concerns over liquidity, credit quaglieverage restrictions and distribution
requirements. In some cases, certain BDCs becawmeelf sellers” of assets, defaulted on their irehiess, decreased their distributions to
stockholders or announced share repurchase progfdinsugh we believe that we currently have sudiit capital to fund our investments
and operations, if such adverse market conditiepsat themselves, we cannot assure you that tHeh@messures we may face in the future
will not have a material adverse effect on our bess, financial condition and results of operations

INVESTMENTS
Ares Capital Corporation Portfolio

We have built an investment portfolio ofinparily first and second lien senior secured loamszzanine debt and, to a lesser extent, €
investments in private middle-market companies. Our




portfolio is well diversified by industry sectorits concentration to any single issuer is limit@dr largest investment as of December 31,
2013 was in the subordinated certificates of theFSS'he SSLP consists of a diverse portfolio dftflren senior secured loans to 47 different
borrowers as of December 31, 2013 and the portéaginpanies in the SSLP are in industries similahéocompanies in Ares Capital's
portfolio. Our investment in the SSLP represenigaraximately 23% of our portfolio fair value as@écember 31, 2013.

Our debt investments in corporate borrovgerserally range between $30 million and $400 omlkeach, investments in project
finance/power generation projects generally raregfevben $10 million and $200 million each and inpesits in early-stage and/or venture
capitalbacked companies generally range between $1 malmh$25 million each. However, the sizes of ouegiments may be more or |
than these ranges and may vary based on, amongthithgs, our capital availability, the compositiohour portfolio and general micro- and
macro-economic factors.

Our preferred and/or common equity investis&ave generally been non-control equity investmef less than $20 million (usually in
conjunction with a concurrent debt investment). ldger, we may increase the size or change the nattihese investments.

In addition, the proportion of these typéivestments will change over time given our vdean, among other things, the economic and
credit environment in which we are operating. Inmection with our investing activities, we may maloemitments with respect to
indebtedness or securities of a potential portfoimpany substantially in excess of our expectea fiold size. In such situations, while we
may initially agree to fund up to a certain dobanount of an investment, we may subsequently sgtele@ portion of such amount such that
we are left with a smaller investment than what vediected in our original commitment. We may atyadicate a "first out" tranche of a loan
to an investor and retain a "last out" trancheughsloan, in which case the "first out” trancheso€h loan will generally receive priority with
respect to payments of principal, interest andahgr amounts due thereunder. In addition to oaiiig investments, we may also acquire
investments in the secondary market (including pases of a portfolio of investments).

We make senior secured loans primariljhanform of first lien loans (including unitrancteahs) and second lien loans. Our senior
secured loans generally have terms of three teed@sy In connection with our senior secured loamg@nerally receive a security interest in
certain of the assets of the borrower and conselyuguch assets serve as collateral in suppotiefépayment of such senior secured loans.
Senior secured loans are generally exposed te#st dmount of credit risk because they typicailg la senior position with respect to
scheduled interest and principal payments and ggdoterests in assets of the borrower. Howevalike mezzanine debt, senior secured
loans typically do not receive any stock, warrdatpurchase stock or other yield enhancementsoSsacured loans may include both
revolving lines of credit and term loans.

Structurally, mezzanine debt usually rasikisordinate in priority of payment to senior sedudmans and is often unsecured. However,
mezzanine debt ranks senior to common and prefeqatty in a borrowers' capital structure. Mezzardebt investments generally offer
lenders fixed returns in the form of interest papteeand will often provide lenders an opportunityarticipate in the capital appreciation
borrower, if any, through an equity interest. Tédglity interest typically takes the form of an eguio-investment and/or warrants. Due to its
higher risk profile and often less restrictive coapts as compared to senior secured loans, meezaeln generally bears a higher stated
interest rate than senior secured loans. The eqaitpvestment and warrants (if any) associatetl wimezzanine debt investment typically
allow lenders to receive repayment of their priatipn an agreed amortization schedule while retgittieir equity interest in the borrower.
Equity issued in connection with mezzanine dels atgly include a "put” feature, which permits thédkoto sell its equity interest back to
the borrower at a price determined through an aljieenula.




In making an equity investment, in addittorconsidering the factors discussed below unddnVestment Selection," we also consider
the anticipated timing of a liquidity event, suchaapublic offering, sale of the company or redéompdf our equity securities.

We generally seek to invest in companigindustries in which Ares' investment profesale have direct expertise. The following is
a representative list of the industries in whichhaee invested:

. Aerospace and Defense

. Automotive Services

. Business Services

. Consumer Products

. Containers and Packaging
. Education

. Energy

. Environmental Services

. Financial Services

. Food and Beverage

. Healthcare Services

. Investment Funds and Vehicles
. Manufacturing

. Oil and Gas

. Other Services

. Restaurant and Food Services
. Retalil

. Telecommunications

However, we may invest in other industifage are presented with attractive opportunities.
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The industrial and geographic compositiohsur portfolio at fair value as of December 3@12 and 2012 were as follows:

As of December 31

2013 2012

Industry
Investment Funds and Vehicles 23.6% 21.7%
Healthcare Service 15.4 12.¢€
Business Service 9.2 6.4
Education 7.5 7.8
Other Service: 6.7 6.7
Energy 5.4 3.7
Restaurants and Food Servi 5.2 7.1
Financial Service 5.1 7.3
Consumer Produc 3.t 6.€
Containers and Packagi 3.3 5.1
Manufacturing 3.3 2.4
Automotive Service 2.9 34
Retail 1.6 0.1
Chemicals 1.4 —
Aerospace and Defen 1.4 2.C
Other 4.5 6.8

Total 100.(% 100.(%

(1) Includes our investment in the SSLP, which had nfasielien senior secured loans to 47 and 36 diffié borrowers as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Th#qgdio companies in the SSLP are in industriesilsinio the
companies in the Company's portfol

As of December 31

2013 2012
Geographic Region
West(1) 50.(% 49.1%
Mid Atlantic 15.¢ 12.€
Midwest 15.€ 19.2
Southeas 13.€ 14.7
Internationa 3.7 1.¢
Northeas 1.C 2.3
Total 100.(% 100.(%

(1) Includes our investment in the SSLP, whichrespnted 23.2% and 21.3% of the total investmerttgbio at fair value
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respecti
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Since our initial public offering on Octalf 2004 through December 31, 2013, our exitedsiments resulted in an aggregate cash
realized internal rate of return (as discusseddnendetail in footnote 1 to the table below) toofigpproximately 13% (based on original cash
invested, net of syndications, of approximately7#illion and total proceeds from such exited itrrents of approximately $9.4 billion).
Approximately 72% of these exited investments ftesLin an aggregate cash flow realized internal oatreturn to us of 10% or greater.

The aggregate cash flow realized interatd of return, original cash invested, net of sgations, and total proceeds, in each case from
exited investments, are listed below from our @igublic offering on October 8, 2004 through the ef each fiscal year shown below.

Exited Investments
IPO through December 31

(dollar amounts in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 200<
Realized internal rate c

return(1) 13% 13% 14% 15% 14% 19% 21% 26% 41% 17%
Original cash invested,

net of syndication  $7,717 $6,817 $4,63¢ $2,69¢ $1,22( $ 92: $684 $424 $11¢ $28
Total proceed $9,44F $8,26¢ $5,627 $3,25¢ $1,40f $1,10¢ $81€ $511 $14C $32

(1) Internal rate of return is the discount rate thakes the net present value of all cash flows rélete particular
investment equal to zero. Internal rate of retsrgross of expenses related to investments as élxps@ses are not
allocable to specific investments. Investmentscaresidered to be exited when the original investrobjective has bes
achieved through the receipt of cash and/or noh-cassideration upon the repayment of a debt invest or sale of an
investment or through the determination that nthierr consideration was collectible and, thus, a toay have been
realized.

Additionally, since our initial public offeag on October 8, 2004 through December 31, 20UBrealized gains exceeded our realized
losses by approximately $258 million (excludingreedime gain on the acquisition of Allied Capitarforation ("Allied Capital”) and
realized gains/losses from the extinguishment bt dad other assets). For the same time periodavenage annualized net realized gain rate
was approximately 1.1% (excluding a one-time gairilee acquisition of Allied Capital and realizedrgdlosses from the extinguishment of
debt and from other assets). Net realized gainfites for a particular period are the amount ¢fealized gains/losses during such period
divided by the average quarterly investments atrtimeal cost in such period.

Information included herein regarding imi@rrates of return, realized gains and lossesaandalized net realized gain rates since our
initial public offering are historical results réfeg to our past performance and are not necegsadicative of future results, the achievement
of which cannot be assured.

INVESTMENT SELECTION
Ares' investment philosophy was developest the past 16 years and has remained consistdmebevant throughout a number of

economic cycles. We are managed using a similasiimvent philosophy used by the investment profaatsmf Ares in Ares' investment
funds.

This investment philosophy involves, amaottiger things:

. an assessment of the overall macroeconomic@mvient and financial markets and how such assessnanimpact industry
and asset selection;

. company-specific research and analysis; and

. with respect to each individual company, an emghasicapital preservation, low volatility and mintation of downside risk.
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The foundation of Ares' investment phildspfs intensive credit investment analysis, a plidfmanagement discipline based on both
market technicals and fundamental value-orientedarch, and diversification strategy. We followgmrous investment process based on:

. a comprehensive analysis of issuer creditworthirieskiding a quantitative and qualitative assesdroéthe issuer's business;
. an evaluation of management and its economic inest

. an analysis of business strategy and indusgnds; and

. an in-depth examination of capital structureaficial results and projections.

We seek to identify those companies exhi@isuperior fundamental risk-reward profiles atvdrsg defensible business franchises while
focusing on the relative value of the investmembss the industry as well as for the specific comypa

Intensive Due Diligence

The process through which an investmenisé®tis made involves extensive research intddhget company, its industry, its growth
prospects and its ability to withstand adverse @, If the senior investment professional resgble for the transaction determines tha
investment opportunity should be pursued, we wiflage in an intensive due diligence process. Apprately 30-40% of the investments
initially reviewed by us proceed to this phase. Ogitoeach transaction will involve a somewhat défgrapproach, the regular due diligence
steps generally undertaken include:

. meeting with the target company's management tamgéisider's view of the business, and to prob@dtential weaknesses in
business prospects;

. checking management's backgrounds and references;

. performing a detailed review of historical finarigi@rformance, including performance through vasieaonomic cycles, and
the quality of earnings;

. visiting headquarters and company operationsna@eting with top and middle-level executives;
. contacting customers and vendors to assessbsthess prospects and standard practices;
. conducting a competitive analysis, and compatiirggissuer to its main competitors on an operafingncial, market share and

valuation basis;

. researching the industry for historic growth treads future prospects as well as to identify fueexi alternatives (including
available Wall Street research, industry assogidtterature and general news);

. assessing asset value and the ability of phlyifrastructure and information systems to haraiiécipated growth; and

. investigating legal risks and financial and againg systems.
Selective Investment Process

After an investment has been identified preliminary diligence has been completed, a crediéarch and analysis report is prepared.
This report is reviewed by the senior investmenfgssional in charge of the potential investmerguth senior and other investment
professionals are in favor of the potential investinthen it is first presented to an underwritiognmittee, which is comprised of senior
members of the Ares Direct Lending Group.

After the investment is approved by theamditing committee, a more extensive due diligepess is employed by the transaction
team. Additional due diligence with respect to angestment may be conducted on our behalf by agi@nindependent accountants, and
other third party consultants and research firniar po the closing of the investment, as approprit a case-by-case basis. Approximately 7-
10% of all investments initially reviewed by us Mike presented to the
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investment committee. Approval of an investmentffording requires the approval of the majority led investment committee of Ares
Capital Management, although unanimous conseoigls.

Issuance of Formal Commitment

Once we have determined that a prospeptivifolio company is suitable for investment, werkvavith the management and/or sponsor
of that company and its other capital providersluding senior, junior and equity capital providefsany, to finalize the structure of the
investment. Approximately 5-7% of the investmenisally reviewed by us eventually result in theudance of formal commitments and the
closing of such transactions.

Debt Investments

We invest in portfolio companies primaiiythe form of first lien senior secured loans [iiing unitranche loans), second lien senior
secured loans and mezzanine debt. The first armhddien senior secured loans generally have tefrttsree to 10 years. In connection with
our first and second lien senior secured loanseveiglly receive security interests in certain @sskour portfolio companies that will serve
as collateral in support of the repayment of sweims$. First and second lien senior secured loamsrgky have floating interest rates, which
may have LIBOR floors, and also may provide for samortization of principal and excess cash floynpants, with the remaining principal
balance due at maturity.

We structure our mezzanine investments gmilgnas unsecured subordinated loans that prdeideslatively high fixed interest rates that
provide us with significant current interest incaoriibe mezzanine debt investments generally hawestef up to 10 years. These loans
typically have interest-only payments, with amatian of principal, if any, deferred to the laterays of the mezzanine investment. In some
cases, we may enter into loans that, by their tecorsvert into equity or additional debt or defayments of interest (or at least cash interest)
for the first few years after our investment. Alsosome cases our mezzanine debt will be secyredsoibordinated lien on some or all of the
assets of the borrower.

In some cases, our debt investments mayigedor a portion of the interest payable to bgmant-inkind ("PIK") interest. To the exte
interest is PIK, it will be payable through therease of the principal amount of the loan by thewamh of interest due on the then-outstanding
aggregate principal amount of such loan.

In the case of our first and second liam@esecured loans and mezzanine debt, we taitoteims of the investment to the facts and
circumstances of the transaction and the prospeptivtfolio company, negotiating a structure thatsato protect our rights and manage our
risk while creating incentives for the portfoliomapany to achieve its business plan and improverdgtability. For example, in addition to
seeking a senior position in the capital structfreur portfolio companies, we will seek, where eypiate, to limit the downside potential of
our investments by:

. targeting a total return on our investments (inclgdoth interest and potential equity apprecigtibiat compensates us for
credit risk;

. incorporating "put"” rights, call protection ahtBOR floors for floating rate loans, into the irstenent structure; and

. negotiating covenants in connection with oureistiments that afford our portfolio companies ashflexibility in managing

their businesses as possible, consistent with pratsen of our capital. Such restrictions may imtgwaffirmative and negative
covenants, default penalties, lien protection, geaof control provisions and board rights, inclg&ither observation or
participation rights.

We generally require financial covenantd terms that require an issuer to reduce levethgegby enhancing credit quality. These
methods include: (a) maintenance leverage covemeqgtsring
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a decreasing ratio of indebtedness to cash flow tiwe, (b) maintenance cash flow covenants reggian increasing ratio of cash flow to the
sum of interest expense and capital expenditurég@rindebtedness incurrence prohibitions, lingittncompany's ability to take on additic
indebtedness. In addition, by including limitatimrsasset sales and capital expenditures we maplbdo prevent a company from changing
the nature of its business or capitalization withmur consent.

Our debt investments may include equityuess, such as warrants or options to buy a minarierest in the portfolio company.
Warrants we receive with our debt investments neayire only a nominal cost to exercise, and thsig, portfolio company appreciates in
value, we may achieve additional investment reftom this equity interest. We may structure thenamats to provide provisions protecting
our rights as a minority-interest holder, as wslpats, or rights to sell such securities backéoportfolio company, upon the occurrence of
specified events. In many cases, we also obtaistration rights in connection with these equitieests, which may include demand and
"piggyback" registration rights.

Equity Investments

To a lesser extent, we also make prefeangtlor common equity investments, which have gdligdraen non-control equity investments
of less than $20 million (usually in conjunctiontive. concurrent debt investment). However, we mayeiase the size or change the nature of
these investments.

ON-GOING RELATIONSHIPS WITH AND MONITORING OF PORTF OLIO COMPANIES

We closely monitor each investment we makaintain a regular dialogue with both the managsgrteam and other stakeholders and
seek specifically tailored financial reporting.dddition, senior investment professionals may tada@rd seats or obtain board observation
rights in connection with our portfolio companiés. of December 31, 2013, of our 193 portfolio comipa, we were entitled to board seat
board observation rights on 42% of these compamidshese companies represented approximately 64Ur portfolio at fair value.

We seek to exert significant influence gasestment, in addition to covenants and othetremtual rights and through board
participation, when appropriate, by actively workiwith management on strategic initiatives. Wemftearoduce managers of companies in
which we have invested to other portfolio compamiesapitalize on complementary business activiied best practices.

Our investment adviser employs an investreging system to categorize our investmentsdutitaon to various risk management and
monitoring tools, our investment adviser gradesctieglit risk of all investments on a scale of B two less frequently than quarterly. This
system is intended primarily to reflect the undiedyrisk of a portfolio investment relative to aunitial cost basis in respect of such portfolio
investment (i.e., at the time of origination or aisifion), although it may also take into accountler certain circumstances the performance
of the portfolio company's business, the collatecaferage of the investment and other relevanbfact/nder this system, investments with a
grade of 4 involve the least amount of risk to imitfal cost basis. The trends and risk factorstifis investment since origination or
acquisition are generally favorable, which may e the performance of the portfolio company ootemptial exit. Investments graded 3
involve a level of risk to our initial cost basksat is similar to the risk to our initial cost b&sit the time of origination or acquisition. This
portfolio company is generally performing as expdcind the risk factors to our ability to ultimgtetcoup the cost of our investment are
neutral to favorable. All investments or acquireddstments in new portfolio companies are initiabgessed a grade of 3. Investments gt
2 indicate that the risk to our ability to recoiwe initial cost basis of such investment has irsgdanaterially since origination or acquisition,
including as a result of factors such as declimagormance and non-compliance with debt coven&imisever, payments are generally not
more than 120 days past
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due. An investment grade of 1 indicates that tble 10 our ability to recoup the initial cost basfsuch investment has substantially increased
since origination or acquisition, and the portfalmmpany likely has materially declining performanEor debt investments with an
investment grade of 1, most or all of the debt oawds are out of compliance and payments are sulahadelinquent. For investments
graded 1, it is anticipated that we will not recaup initial cost basis and may realize a substhtass of our initial cost basis upon exit. For
investments graded 1 or 2, our investment advisearces its level of scrutiny over the monitorifiguach portfolio company. The grade of a
portfolio investment may be reduced or increaseat time.

As of December 31, 2013, the weighted ayegrade of our portfolio was 3.0. For more infotiora see "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems—Portfolio and Investment Activity."

MANAGERIAL ASSISTANCE

As a BDC, we must offer, and must provigemrequest, significant managerial assistancertmio of our portfolio companies. This
assistance could involve, among other things, mani the operations of our portfolio companiestipgating in board and management
meetings, consulting with and advising officergoftfolio companies and providing other organizagiicand financial guidance. Ares
Operations may provide all or a portion of thisistssice pursuant to our administration agreembatcosts of which will be reimbursed by
us. We may receive fees for these services.

COMPETITION

Our primary competitors include public grivate funds, commercial and investment banks,meergial finance companies, other BC
and private equity funds, each of which we competi for financing opportunities. Many of our contipers are substantially larger and h
considerably greater financial and marketing resesithan we do. For example, some competitors rmag access to funding sources thal
not available to us. In addition, some of our cotitpes may have higher risk tolerances or diffenésit assessments, which could allow them
to consider more investments and establish moatioakhips than we do. Furthermore, many of ourpeetitors are not subject to the
regulatory restrictions that the Investment Compaat/imposes on us as a BDC. For additional infdfamaconcerning the competitive risks
we face, see "Risk Factors—Risks Relating to OwilBass—We operate in a highly competitive marketrfeestment opportunities.”

We believe that the relationships of themhers of our investment adviser's investment cotemind of the senior partners of Ares
enable us to learn about, and compete effectiwlyfihancing opportunities with attractive middtearket companies in the industries in
which we seek to invest. We believe that Ares'gssionals’ deep and long-standing direct sponsaiarships and the resulting proprietary
transaction opportunities that these relationsbffEn present, provide valuable insight and actessnsactions and information. We use the
industry information of Ares' investment professitsnto which we have access to assess investns&atand determine appropriate pricing
for our investments in portfolio companies.

STAFFING

We do not currently have any employeesdmdot expect to have any employees. Services sagefor our business are provided by
individuals who are employees or affiliates of owestment adviser, Ares Capital Management, améidministrator, Ares Operations, each
of which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Mapatent, pursuant to the terms of our investmentsadyiand management agreement and
our administration agreement, respectively, eaatheasribed below. Each of our executive officerigemployee or affiliate of Ares Capital
Management or Ares Operations. Our day-to-day imvest activities are managed by our investmentsaiviMost of the services necessary
for the origination of our investment portfolio gyeovided by investment professionals
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employed by Ares Capital Management. Ares Capitahdfement had 82 U.S.-based investment professiasaif December 31, 2013 who
focus on origination, transaction development, stwent and the ongoing monitoring of our investrae8te "Investment Advisory and
Management Agreement" below. We reimburse bothruastment adviser and our administrator for aagenportion of expenses incurred in
connection with such staffing, as described in nutm&il below. Because we have no employees, Aapit&l does not have a formal
employee relations policy.

INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
Management Service

Ares Capital Management serves as our imass adviser and is registered as an investmesigexdunder the Advisers Act. Subject to
the overall supervision of our board of directang; investment adviser manages the day-to-day tipesaof, and provides investment
advisory and management services to, Ares Capltaler the terms of the investment advisory and mameent agreement, Ares Capital
Management:

. determines the composition of our portfolio, tiegure and timing of the changes to our portfalid the manner of
implementing such changes;

. identifies, evaluates and negotiates the straaifithe investments we make (including perforrdng diligence on our
prospective portfolio companies);

. closes and monitors the investments we make;

. determines the investments and other assets thatirgbase, retain or sell; and

. provides us with such other investment advisory@seéarch and related services as we may fromttirtime reasonably
require.

Ares Capital Management's services to ueuthe investment advisory and management agraeareenot exclusive, and it is free to
furnish similar services to other entities. Sinilagffiliates of our investment adviser may difgar indirectly manage funds or other
investment vehicles with investment objectives Ento ours. Accordingly, we may compete with thAses funds or other investment
vehicles managed by our investment adviser araffitates for capital and investment opportunitidses Capital Management endeavors to
allocate investment opportunities in a fair anditdple manner, and in any event consistent withfatuciary duties owed to Ares Capital.
Nevertheless, it is possible that we may not bermgihe opportunity to participate in certain inveshts made by investment funds or of
investment vehicles managed by Ares Capital Manageor its affiliates.

The sole member of Ares Capital ManageriseAtes Management, a global alternative asset garend an SEC-registered investment
adviser. As of December 31, 2013, Ares had appratdéin $74 billion of total AUM.

Management Fe¢

Pursuant to the investment advisory andagament agreement and subject to the overall sisgpEmof our board of directors, our
investment adviser provides investment advisoryraadagement services to us. For providing thesecsst our investment adviser receives
a fee from us consisting of two components—a baaeagement fee and an incentive fee.

The base management fee is calculated anamal rate of 1.5% based on the average valoardbtal assets (other than cash or cash
equivalents but including assets purchased witholagrd funds) at the end of the two most recentipgleted calendar quarters. The base
management fee is payable quarterly in arrears.
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Incentive Fee

The incentive fee has two parts. The fiestt is calculated and payable quarterly in arrbasgd on our pre-incentive fee net investment
income for the quarter. Pre-incentive fee net ibment income means interest income, dividend incantkany other income (including any
other fees such as commitment, origination, stmiredy) diligence and consulting fees or other féed tve receive from portfolio companies
but excluding fees for providing managerial assistd accrued during the calendar quarter, minusatipg expenses for the quarter
(including the base management fee, any expengablpaunder the administration agreement, and rteydst expense and dividends paic
any outstanding preferred stock, but excludingiticentive fee). Pre-incentive fee net investmeobine includes, in the case of investments
with a deferred interest feature such as markebdist, debt instruments with PIK interest, prefdrsgock with PIK dividends and zero
coupon securities, accrued income that we havgeatatceived in cash. Our investment adviser isunder any obligation to reimburse us
any part of the incentive fee it received that Wwased on accrued interest that we never actualbive. See "Risk Factors—Risks Relating to
Our Business—There are significant potential cotlbf interest that could impact our investmenines" and "Risk FactorsRisks Relating
to Our Business—We may be obligated to pay ourstmaent adviser incentive compensation even if wari@ loss."

Preincentive fee net investment income does not irelaidly realized capital gains, realized capitaldessnrealized capital appreciati
unrealized capital depreciation or income tax espaelated to realized gains. Because of the smeictf the incentive fee, it is possible that
we may pay an incentive fee in a quarter wherengaria loss. For example, if we receive preentive fee net investment income in exce:
the hurdle rate (as defined below) for a quarterwill pay the applicable incentive fee even if mave incurred a loss in that quarter due to
realized and/or unrealized capital losses.

Pre-incentive fee net investment incomeyressed as a rate of return on the value of ouasssts (defined as total assets less
indebtedness and before taking into account argniinge fees payable during the period) at the dnideoimmediately preceding calendar
quarter, is compared to a fixed "hurdle rate" 6% per quarter. If market credit spreads risemag be able to invest our funds in debt
instruments that provide for a higher return, whicély increase our pre-incentive fee net investrimzuime and make it easier for our
investment adviser to surpass the fixed hurdleaatkreceive an incentive fee based on such nesiment income. To the extent we have
retained pre-incentive fee net investment incora¢ ltlas been used to calculate this part of thenthaefee, it is also included in the amount
of our total assets (other than cash and cash @&euis but including assets purchased with borrdiweds) used to calculate the 1.5% base
management fee.

We pay our investment adviser an incerfiswith respect to our pre-incentive fee net itmesnt income in each calendar quarter as
follows:

. no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in whiah mre-incentive fee net investment income doe€roted the hurdle rate;

. 100% of our pre-incentive fee net investment incavite respect to that portion of such pre-incenfige net investment
income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle rate blasis than 2.1875% in any calendar quarter. We tefghis portion of our pre-
incentive fee net investment income (which excabddurdle rate but is less than 2.1875%) as theHeup” provision. The
"catch-up" is meant to provide our investment aglvigith 20% of the pre-incentive fee net investrirobme as if a hurdle
rate did not apply if this net investment incomeeeded 2.1875% in any calendar quarter; and

. 20% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee net gtreent income, if any, that exceeds 2.1875% incatgndar quarter.
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The following is a graphical representatidithe calculation of the income-related portidrite incentive fee:

Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on Net Investment Irame

Pre-incentive fee net investment income return
(expressed as a percentage of the value of net dsye
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Percentage of pre-incentive fee net investment inocee
allocated to income-related portion of incentive fe

These calculations will be appropriatelg pated for any period of less than three monthsaafjusted for any share issuances or
repurchases during the calendar quarter.

The second part of the incentive fee (thagital Gains Fee"), is determined and payablergass as of the end of each calendar yea
upon termination of our investment advisory and aggment agreement, as of the termination datejsacalculated at the end of each
applicable year by subtracting (a) the sum of auimulative aggregate realized capital losses anteggte unrealized capital depreciation
from (b) our cumulative aggregate realized cagjtahs, in each case calculated from October 8, .2R64lized capital gains and losses
include gains and losses on investments and foigencies, as well as gains and losses on exsimgient of debt and other assets. If such
amount is positive at the end of such year, therCpital Gains Fee for such year is equal to 2D8uch amount, less the aggregate amount
of Capital Gains Fees paid in all prior years.uiéls amount is negative, then there is no Capitat$aee for such year.

The cumulative aggregate realized capaaigare calculated as the sum of the differentpesitive, between (a) the net sales price of
each investment in our portfolio when sold andtfig) accreted or amortized cost basis of such imest

The cumulative aggregate realized capitsdés are calculated as the sum of the amount$ilch (&) the net sales price of each
investment in our portfolio when sold is less tiflanthe accreted or amortized cost basis of suedsiment.

The aggregate unrealized capital deprecias calculated as the sum of the differencasegfative, between (a) the valuation of each
investment in our portfolio as of the applicablega Gains Fee calculation date and (b) the aedret amortized cost basis of such
investment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, as a restiitn amendment to the capital gains portion ofitleentive fee under the investment advisory
and management agreement (the "Capital Gains Amemitijrthat was approved on June 6, 2011, if waegaired by generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP") to record an investrhat its fair value as of the time of acquisitinstead of at the actual amount paid for
such investment by us (including, for example, assallt of the application of the acquisition methud accounting), then solely for the
purposes of calculating the Capital Gains Fee\dhereted or amortized cost basis" of an investrakall be an amount (the "Contractual
Cost Basis") equal to (1) (x) the actual amountl figi us for such investment plus (y) any amountenged in our financial statements as
required by GAAP that are attributable to the atioreof such investment plus (z) any other adjustimenade to the cost basis included in
financial statements, including PIK interest oritiddal amounts funded (net of repayments) minQsa(® amounts recorded in our financial
statements as required by GAAP that are attribatadothe amortization of such investment, whethiehsalculated Contractual Cost Basis is
higher or lower than the fair value of such investin(as determined in accordance with GAAP) atithe of acquisition.
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We defer cash payment of any incentiveotberwise earned by our investment adviser if dutire most recent four full calendar qué
period ending on or prior to the date such payrietd be made the sum of (a) the aggregate disioisito our stockholders and (b) the
change in net assets (defined as total assetmbdstedness and before taking into account argnimee fees payable during the period) is
less than 7.0% of our net assets (defined asdetats less indebtedness) at the beginning ofpmrabd. Any deferred incentive fees are
carried over for payment in subsequent calculgtiemods to the extent such payment is payable umgleinvestment advisory and
management agreement.

Payment of Our Expense

The services of all investment professisraaid staff of our investment adviser, when antiecextent engaged in providing investment
advisory and management services to us and roov@dead expenses of such personnel allocablectosarvices, are provided and paid for
by our investment adviser. We bear all other castsexpenses of our operations and transactioclading, but not limited to, those relating
to: rent; organization; calculation of our net assdue (including, but not limited to, the costdaxpenses of any independent valuation fi
expenses incurred by our investment adviser payalilerd parties, including agents, consultantstber advisers, in monitoring our finant
and legal affairs and in monitoring our investmeantd performing due diligence on our prospectivefplio companies; interest payable on
indebtedness, if any, incurred to finance our itmests; offerings of our common stock and otheustes; investment advisory and
management fees; administration fees; fees payalhérd parties, including agents, consultantstber advisers, relating to, or associated
with, evaluating and making investments; transémrd and custodial fees; registration fees; liste®s; taxes; independent directors' fees and
expenses; costs of preparing and filing reporiatioer documents with the SEC; the costs of anyrtepproxy statements or other notices to
stockholders, including printing costs; to the extee are covered by any joint insurance poliaies,allocable portion of the insurance
premiums for such policies; direct costs and exgeid administration, including auditor and legadts; and all other expenses incurred b
or our administrator in connection with administgriour business as described in more detail urdministration Agreement" below.

Duration, Termination and Amendmer

At an in-person meeting of our board o&diors on March 16, 2011, the form of our curremestment advisory and management
agreement, including two proposed amendments ttheur existing investment advisory and managengnetanent, was approved by our
board of directors with the recommendation thatldtolders of the Company vote to approve the pregg@nendments. On June 6, 2011,
stockholders approved the proposed amendments amhtgred into a restated investment advisory athgement agreement, reflecting
such amendments on June 6, 2011. At an in-persetingeof our board of directors on May 2, 2013, baard of directors, including a
majority of the directors who are not "interestetgons” of the Company as defined in the Investi@emipany Act, voted to approve the
continuation of the investment advisory and managgragreement to June 6, 2014.

Unless terminated earlier, the investmerisory and management agreement will automaticatgw for successive annual periods if
approved annually by our board of directors orlmydffirmative vote of the holders of a majorityonfr outstanding voting securities,
including, in either case, approval by a majorityor directors who are not "interested personghefCompany (as defined in the Investment
Company Act).

In voting to approve the current investmahitisory and management agreement, the indepeduleotors had the opportunity to consult
in executive session with counsel to the Compaggnding the approval of such agreement. In reachidgcision to approve the current
investment advisory and
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management agreement, our board of directors redewnsignificant amount of information and consedelamong other things:
(i) the nature, extent and quality af erdvisory and other services to be provided tc€Cin@pany by our investment adviser;
(ii) the long and short-term investmeatfprmance of the Company and our investment advise

(i) the costs of the services to be fpded by our investment adviser (including the bas@magement fee, the incentive fee
(including hurdle rates) and expense ratios) amdparative data;

(iv) the limited potential for economiefssgale in investment management associated wéltgar capital base for investments
first and second lien senior loans and mezzanibeated whether such limited economies of scale dvbehefit our stockholders;

(v) our investment adviser's estimatemfprma profitability with respect to managing us;

(vi) the limited potential for additionbénefits to be derived by our investment adviseritmaffiliates as a result of our
relationship with our investment adviser; and

(vii) various other matters.

In voting to approve the current investmahitisory and management agreement, our boardesftdrs, including all of the directors w
are not "interested persons," of the Company, nfaeléollowing conclusions:

. Nature, Extent and Quality of Services Our board of directors considered the naturesrexand quality of the investment
selection process employed by our investment aghiiseluding the flow of transaction opportunitiesulting from Ares
Capital Management's investment professionalsifgignt capital markets, trading and research eigeerthe employment of
Ares Capital Management's investment philosopHigetice procedures, credit recommendation progessstment
structuring, and ongoing relationships with and itwsing of portfolio companies, in light of the iastment objective of the
Company. Our board of directors also consideredraugstment adviser's personnel and their prioeggpce in connection
with the types of investments made by us, includingh personnel's network of relationships witkrmtediaries focused on
middle-market companies. Our board of directors atnsidered the benefit and increasing costs oinvestment adviser
continuing to be able to recruit and retain toprial In addition, our board of directors considdtezlother terms and conditic
of the investment advisory and management agreei®entboard of directors determined that the sulbstaterms of the
investment advisory and management agreement (iththerthe fees payable thereunder, which our bofdiectors reviewed
separately), including the services to be provided,generally the same as those of comparable Ble&sibed in the
available market data and that it would be difficalobtain similar services of similar quality artomparable basis from other
third party services providers or through an indignmanaged structure. In addition, our boardicéators considered the fact
that we have the ability to terminate the investhaslvisory and management agreement without peopliy 60 days' written
notice to our investment adviser. Our board ofaoes further determined that our investment adviseerved by a dedicated
origination, transaction development and investntesitn of investment professionals, and that thegestment professionals
have historically focused on investments in middbarket companies and have developed an investmehiagion process a
an extensive network of relationships with finahsjonsors and intermediaries focused on middleetaompanies, which
experience and relationships coincide with our stwent objective and generally equal or exceecetbbthe management
teams or investment advisers of other comparabl€Bfescribed in the available market data.
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Investment Performance. Our board of directors reviewed the long-term ahdrt-term investment performance of the
Company and our investment adviser, as well as eoatipe data with respect to the long-term andtsteom investment
performance of other externally managed BDCs aeit thvestment advisers. Our board of directorgeined that our
investment adviser was delivering results consistéth the investment objective of the Company #rat the Company's
investment performance was generally above averaga compared to comparable BDCs. Our board otttire further
determined that in light of the performance histofyhe Company, our investment adviser's extensiperience with our
particular investment objectives and policies andinvestment adviser's commitment to the Comp#rg/jnvestment
performance of the Company was likely to remainststent with the approval of the investment adyisorxd management
agreement.

Costs of the Services Provided to the Compan Our board of directors considered (i) comparatisata based on publicly
available information with respect to services emed and the advisory fees (including the base gemant fee and incentive
fees (including hurdle rates)) of other BDCs wiinigar investment objectives, our operating expsresgd expense ratios
compared to other BDCs of similar size and withilsiminvestment objectives and (ii) the administratservices that our
administrator will provide to us at cost. Basedmie review, our board of directors determined tha fees to be paid under
the investment advisory and management agreemegeaerally equal to or less than those payablenagteements of
comparable BDCs described in the available mar&tt.dn addition, after examining market data, infation prepared by
management and a detailed discussion with managemerboard of directors determined that while tmtial expenses
(adjusted for certain non-recurring items and ideilg interest expense and credit facility feesy agrcentage of assets for the
year ended December 31, 2012 were slightly aboeeage as compared to those disclosed in markebglatamparable
externally managed BDCs, our total expenses (agtjustr certain nomecurring items and excluding interest expensecaedit
facility fees) as a percentage of assets for tlae¢ gpded December 31, 2012 were similar to or |dihan those disclosed by
comparable externally managed BDCs. Our boardrettbrs noted that the slightly above average tpenses as a
percentage of assets were attributable to increasemst expense as a result of our strategy @edsing our balance sheet
by extending debt maturities and refinancing shemta borrowings under floating rate secured deltt Veing-term fixed rate
unsecured debt. Our board of directors furtherchtitat many of our BDC competitors have been untbéecess such
unsecured debt.

Economies of Scale Our board of directors considered informationwahibe potential for our stockholders to experience
economies of scale as the Company grows in sizeb@ard of directors considered that the directileg business is one of
the least scalable businesses because it reqdidémaal resources as it grows and also considdraicbecause there are no
break points in our investment adviser's fees,lmmefits resulting from the growth in the Compamgsets where the
Company's fixed costs did not increase proportegatould not inure to the benefit of the stockteskl Taking into account
such information, our board of directors determitiext the advisory fee structure with respect itivestment advisory and
management agreement was reasonable and that mgeshaere currently necessary to reflect econoafissale.
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. Estimated Pro Forma Profitability of the Investment Adviser. Our board of directors considered informationuahmur
investment adviser's budget and determined thagdan the information available to our board oédtors, our investment
adviser's estimated pro forma profitability witlspect to managing the Company was generally equaless than the
profitability of investment advisers managing comgtde BDCs. Our board of directors noted that noketadata was available
for such advisers and that such determination \eaedy in particular, on the fact that the managéfeerpayable to our
investment adviser is 1.50% (compared to 2.00%éotain of the Company's competitors) and is nat pa cash or cash
equivalents held by the Company (unlike severdhefCompany's competitors).

. Limited Potential for Additional Benefits Derived by the Investment Adviser. Our board of directors considered whether
there was potential for additional benefits, suslseaft dollar arrangements with brokers, to bevéerby our investment
adviser and its affiliates as a result of our iefeghip with our investment adviser and noted thia¢lieved any such potential
was limited.

In view of the wide variety of factors thair board of directors considered in connectiothits evaluation of the investment advisory
and management agreement, it is not practical émtify, rank or otherwise assign relative weigltshe specific factors it considered in
reaching its decision. Our board of directors ditlumdertake to make any specific determinatioto aghether any particular factor, or any
aspect of any particular factor, was favorablerdauorable to the ultimate determination of ourrloaf directors. Rather, our board of
directors based its approval on the totality obiniation presented to, and the investigation cotedlby, it. In considering the factors
discussed above, individual directors may havergdiéferent weights to different factors.

Based on the information reviewed and #wdrs discussed above, our directors (includingetdirectors who are not "interested
persons" of the Company) concluded that the terfnisecinvestment advisory and management agreenmehiding the fee rates thereunder,
are fair and reasonable in relation to the seryizesided and approved the continuation of the strwent advisory and management
agreement with our investment adviser as beingéarbest interests of the Company and its stockislde

The investment advisory and managemeneaggat will automatically terminate in the evenitsfassignment. The investment advisory
and management agreement may be terminated by pahg without penalty upon 60 days' written netio the other party.

Conflicts of interest may arise if our istent adviser seeks to change the terms of oesiment advisory and management agreet
including, for example, the amount of the base rganeent fee, the incentive fee or other compensé#dions. Material amendments to our
investment advisory and management agreement rewsgtfroved by the affirmative vote of the holddra majority of our outstanding
voting securities and by a majority of our indepemicdirectors, and we may from time to time dedide appropriate to seek the requisite
approval to change the terms of the agreement.

Indemnification

The investment advisory and managementaugat provides that, absent willful misfeasancd,faith or gross negligence in the
performance of its duties or by reason of the meskidisregard of its duties and obligations, ouestment adviser, its members and their
respective officers, managers, partners, agentslogees, controlling persons and members and drer person or entity affiliated with it a
entitled to indemnification from us for any damadesbilities, costs and expenses (including reabtmattorneys' fees and amounts
reasonably paid in settlement) arising from thelezimg of our investment adviser's services urngeilitvestment advisory and management
agreement or otherwise as our investment adviser.

23




Organization of our Investment Advise

Our investment adviser is a Delaware lichitability company that is registered as an inesit adviser under the Advisers Act. The
principal executive offices of Ares Capital Managenare located at 2000 Avenue of the Stars, 1@ibrH.os Angeles, California 90067.

ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT

We are also party to a separate administraigreement with Ares Operations, an affiliat®@wf investment adviser and a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ares Management. Our board of dinecépproved the continuation of our administraagneement on May 2, 2013, which
extended the term of the agreement to June 1, Zirduant to the administration agreement, Areg&@ipas furnishes us with office
equipment and clerical, bookkeeping and record ikeegervices at our office facilities. Under theradistration agreement, Ares Operations
also performs, or oversees the performance oftemuired administrative services, which includepamother things, providing assistance in
accounting, legal, compliance, operations, techmgland investor relations, being responsible fierfinancial records that we are required to
maintain and preparing reports to our stockholdesreports filed with the SEC. In addition, Arggetations assists us in determining and
publishing our net asset value, assists us in giogimanagerial assistance to our portfolio comgmroversees the preparation and filing of
our tax returns and the printing and disseminatioreports to our stockholders, and generally cesgthe payment of our expenses and the
performance of administrative and professionalises/rendered to us by others. Payments undedthetration agreement are equal to an
amount based upon our allocable portion of Aresr@tfmns' overhead and other expenses (includimgltexpenses) incurred by Ares
Operations in performing its obligations under daeinistration agreement, including our allocalietipn of the compensation of certain of
our officers (including our chief compliance officehief financial officer, chief accounting officegeneral counsel, treasurer and assistant
treasurer) and their respective staffs. The admnétien agreement may be terminated by either paittyout penalty upon 60 days' written
notice to the other party.

Indemnification

The administration agreement provides thlagent willful misfeasance, bad faith or negligeimcthe performance of its duties or by
reason of the reckless disregard of its dutiesadnligations, Ares Operations, its members and tlesipective officers, managers, partners,
agents, employees, controlling persons and menaperany other person or entity affiliated withrié @ntitled to indemnification from us for
any damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (imdureasonable attorneys' fees and amounts realggread in settlement) arising from the
rendering of Ares Operations' services under tmeimdtration agreement or otherwise as our adnnatist.

LEVERAGE

We may from time to time borrow funds tokmanvestments, a practice known as "leveragegttempt to increase returns to our
stockholders. With certain limited exceptions, we anly allowed to borrow amounts such that ouetssverage, as calculated in accordz
with the Investment Company Act, equals at leaS@2@fter such borrowing. The amount of leveragéweemploy at any particular time
will depend on our investment adviser's and ourdoé directors' assessments of market and otlogoriat the time of any proposed
borrowing. As of February 20, 2014, we had $3.0dpilof total principal debt outstanding under ttagious debt instruments described
below. See "Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Our Beiss—We borrow money, which magnifies the poteftiagjain or loss on amounts
invested and may increase the risk of investing wg."
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We may from time to time seek to retirgepurchase our common stock through cash purchasegll as retire, cancel or purchase our
outstanding debt through cash purchases and/oaagels, in open market purchases, privately negdtiaainsactions or otherwise. Such
repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend ewngiling market conditions, our liquidity requirentg, contractual and regulatory
restrictions and other factors. The amounts invibiviay be material.

We are party to a revolving credit facilityhich allows us to borrow up to $1.06 billionaaty one time outstanding (the "Revolving
Credit Facility"). The Revolving Credit Facilitysa includes an "accordion" feature that allowsunsler certain circumstances, to increase
size of the facility to a maximum of $1.4 billiohhe Revolving Credit Facility matures on May 4, 80%ubject to certain exceptions, the
interest rate charged on the Revolving Credit kgd8 based on LIBOR plus an applicable spread.00% or a "base rate" (as defined in the
agreements governing the Revolving Credit Facilifyls an applicable spread of 1.00%.

Our consolidated subsidiary, Ares Capitalflinding LLC ("Ares Capital CP"), is party to aeokving funding facility, which allows us
to borrow up to $620 million at any one time outstiag (the "Revolving Funding Facility"). The Revislg Funding Facility provides for a
feature that allows, under certain circumstana@saf increase in the size of the facility to a mmaxn of $865 million. The Revolving
Funding Facility provides for a three-year reinwesnt period until April 18, 2015 and has a statedurity of April 18, 2017. Subject to
certain exceptions, the interest rate charged emR#volving Funding Facility is based on applicagesads ranging from 2.25% to 2.50%
over LIBOR and ranging from 1.25% to 1.50% overstbaate" (as defined in the agreements governim@révolving Funding Facility) in
each case, determined monthly based on the conguositthe borrowing base relative to outstandingtwings under the Revolving
Funding Facility.

Our consolidated subsidiary, Ares CapiBaFlinding LLC ("ACJB LLC") is party to a revolvifgnding facility with Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation ("SMBC"), which allows us torbmw up to $400 million at any one time outstandftiee "SMBC Funding Facility" and
together with the Revolving Credit Facility and fRevolving Funding Facility, the "Facilities"). TIBMBC Funding Facility provides for a
three-year reinvestment period until Septembef046 and has a stated maturity of September 14.,. 20 reinvestment period and the
stated maturity date are both subject to two yem- extensions by mutual agreement. Subject tainezxceptions, the interest rate charge
the SMBC Funding Facility is based on one month@MBplus an applicable spread of 2.00% or a "bas# (as defined in the agreements
governing the SMBC Funding Facility) plus an apglite spread of 1.00%.

The Company currently has approximatelhp $illlion aggregate principal amount of convertib&ior unsecured notes outstanding
comprised of $575.0 million aggregate principal amoof convertible senior unsecured notes that readn February 1, 2016 and bear
interest at a rate of 5.75% (the "February 2016v€dible Notes"), $230.0 million aggregate prindipmount of convertible senior unsecured
notes that mature on June 1, 2016 and bear inrastate of 5.125% (the "June 2016 Convertibleebl), $162.5 million aggregate principal
amount of convertible senior unsecured notes tlstira on March 15, 2017 and bear interest at fa4e835% (the "2017 Convertible
Notes"), $270.0 million aggregate principal amooihtonvertible senior unsecured notes that matordamuary 15, 2018 and bear interesi
rate of 4.75% (the "2018 Convertible Notes"), aBA&0 million aggregate principal amount of conixetsenior unsecured notes that ma
on January 15, 2019 and bear interest at a rate8@6% (the "2019 Convertible Notes", and togethign the February 2016 Convertible
Notes, the June 2016 Convertible Notes, the 20w €&xtible Notes and the 2018 Convertible Notes;'@envertible Unsecured Notes

The Company also currently has approxirgek&l5 billion aggregate principal amount of seninsecured notes outstanding comprised
of $750.0 million aggregate principal amount ofisemnsecured notes that mature on November 38 268 bear interest at a rate of 4.8’
(the "2018
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Notes"), $143.8 million aggregate principal amoois$enior unsecured notes that mature on Febrigrg2 and bear interest at a rat
7.00% (the "February 2022 Notes"), $182.5 milliggreegate principal amount of senior unsecured rth@smature on October 1, 2022 and
bear interest at a rate of 5.875% (the "Octobe20@tes"), $200.0 million aggregate principal amtoafrsenior unsecured notes that mature
on October 15, 2040 and bear interest at a rafe7éPo (the "2040 Notes") and $229.6 million aggtegaincipal amount of senior unsecured
notes that mature on April 15, 2047 and bear istaata rate of 6.875% (the "2047 Notes" and tagethith the 2018 Notes, the February
2022 Notes, the October 2022 Notes and the 2048d\tte "Unsecured Notes"). The Unsecured Notefyding the 2018 Notes, are listed
on The New York Stock Exchange.

We intend to continue borrowing under tlagikties in the future and we may increase the sizthe Facilities, add additional credit
facilities or otherwise issue additional debt séms or other evidences of indebtedness in therétalthough there can be no assurance that
we will be able to do so.

For more information on the Company's dség "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Eiah@ondition and Results of
Operations—Financial Condition, Liquidity and CapiResources."

REGULATION

We have elected to be regulated as a Bienthe Investment Company Act and have electée toeated as a RIC under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").ithsother companies regulated by the Investment @2om Act, a BDC must adhere to
certain substantive regulatory requirements. TRedtment Company Act contains prohibitions andriagins relating to certain transactions
between BDCs and certain affiliates (including amngestment advisers or sub-advisers), principakmvdters and certain affiliates of those
affiliates or underwriters. Among other things, generally cannot invest in any portfolio companwinich a fund managed by Ares or an
its downstream affiliates other than us and ourrtkiveam affiliates) currently has an investmenh@algh we may co-invest on a concurrent
basis with funds managed by Ares or any of its ckiream affiliates, subject to compliance with @rigtregulatory guidance, applicable
regulations and our allocation procedures). Cetigies of canvestment transactions would only be permittedspant to an exemptive orc
from the SEC, for which we have applied. Any suotheo will be subject to certain terms and condsidrurther, there is no assurance tha
application for exemptive relief will be granted thye SEC.

The Investment Company Act contains centagtrictions on certain types of investments wg make. Specifically, we may only inve
up to 30% of our portfolio in entities that are rohsidered "eligible portfolio companies” (as dedl in the Investment Company Act),
including companies located outside of the Uniteates, entities that are operating pursuant t@ieexceptions under the Investment
Company Act, and publicly traded entities whoselipuruity market capitalization exceeds the leyetsvided for under the Investment
Company Act.

The Investment Company Act also requires shmajority of our directors be persons othen thiaterested persons,” as that term is
defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the Investment ConypAct, referred to herein as "independent directdn addition, the Investment Comp:
Act provides that we may not change the natureuoboisiness so as to cease to be, or to withdrawleation as, a BDC unless that chan
approved by holders of at least a majority of auistanding voting securities. Under the Investn@minpany Act, the vote of holders of at
least a "majority of outstanding voting securitie®®ans the vote of the holders of the lesser pB{& or more of the outstanding shares of
our common stock present at a meeting or represddayt@roxy if holders of more than 50% of the skayEour common stock are present or
represented by proxy or (b) more than 50% of thtstanding shares of our common stock.
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We may invest up to 100% of our asset®austies acquired directly from issuers in prilateegotiated transactions. With respect to
such securities, we may, for the purpose of pukliale, be deemed an "underwriter” as that tedefised in the Securities Act of 1933 (the
"Securities Act"). Our intention is to not writee{§ or buy put or call options to manage risksoassed with the publicly traded securities of
our portfolio companies. We may enter into heddgmgsactions to manage the risks associated witheist rate and currency fluctuations.
We may purchase or otherwise receive warrants oregpto purchase the common stock of our portfoimpanies in connection with
acquisition financings or other investments. Inreeetion with such an acquisition, we may acquigats to require the issuers of acquired
securities or their affiliates to repurchase therdar certain circumstances.

We also do not intend to acquire securisesed by any investment company that exceedrtties imposed by the Investment Company
Act. Under these limits, we generally cannot acgjuiiore than 3% of the voting stock of any investneempany (as defined in the
Investment Company Act), invest more than 5% ofuilee of our total assets in the securities ofiomestment company or invest more t|
10% of the value of our total assets in the sdesritf investment companies in the aggregate. Yigard to that portion of our portfolio
invested in securities issued by investment congsati should be noted that such investments nsighject our stockholders to additional
expenses.

PRIVACY PRINCIPLES

We are committed to maintaining the privatpur stockholders and to safeguarding their poblic personal information. The
following information is provided to help you und&and what personal information we collect, howpaaect that information and why, in
certain cases, we may share information with seirr parties.

Generally, we do not receive any non-pupéicsonal information relating to our stockholdatthough certain non-public personal
information of our stockholders may become availablus. The non-public personal information thatmay receive falls into the following
categories:

. information we receive from stockholders, whetherraceive it orally, in writing or electronicallyhis includes stockholders'
communications to us concerning their investment;

. information about stockholders' transactions laistbry with us; or

. other general information that we may obtainwtstockholders, such as demographic and contistiation such as a
person's address.

We do not disclose any non-public persamfakrmation about our stockholders or former stamklers to anyone, except:

. to our affiliates (such as our investment advisel administrator) and their employees that hawegdiinate business need for
the information;

. to our service providers (such as our accoustattorneys, custodians, transfer agent, undemgrénd proxy solicitors) and
their employees, as is necessary to service reotafelhaccounts or otherwise provide the applicablwices;

. to comply with court orders, subpoenas, lawful oi&ry requests or other legal or regulatory reauinets; or

. as allowed or required by applicable law or redatat

When the Company shares non-public stoddrgbersonal information referred to above, therimfation is made available for limited
business purposes and under controlled circumstatesigned to protect our stockholders' privace Tbmpany does not permit use of
stockholder
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information for any non-business or marketing psmamor does the Company permit third partiesrg gell, trade or otherwise release or
disclose information to any other party.

The Company's service providers, suchsagiestment adviser, administrator and transfenggre required to maintain physical,
electronic, and procedural safeguards to proteckbblder non-public personal information to pravemauthorized access or use and to
dispose of such information when it is no longejuiead.

Personnel of our affiliates may accesskstoltier information only for business purposes. @agree of access is based on the sensitivity
of the information and on personnel need for tHiermation to service a stockholder's account orggrwith legal requirements.

If a stockholder ceases to be a stockhpldewill adhere to the privacy policies and preesi as described above. We may choose to
modify our privacy policies at any time. Before de so, we will notify stockholders and provide achiption of our privacy policy.

In the event of a corporate change in @bmésulting from, for example, a sale to, or mengih, another entity, or in the event of a sale
of assets, we reserve the right to transfer stddkin® nonpublic personal information to the new party in ttohor the party acquiring asse

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We file with or submit to the SEC annualagerly and current periodic reports, proxy staeta and other information meeting the
informational requirements of the Securities ExgfeaAct of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"). This infornmattiis available free of charge by
calling us collect at (310) 201-4200 or on our wiehatwww.arescapitalcorp.coninformation contained on our website is not incogted
into this Annual Report and you should not consglerh information to be part of this Annual Rep¥idu also may inspect and copy these
reports, proxy statements and other informationyalsas the Annual Report and related exhibits seftedules, at the Public Reference R
of the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, R@549, the SEC's Northeast Regional Office at 3lEMeinancial Center, Suite 400, New
York, NY 10281 and the SEC's Midwest Regional Gffat 175 W. Jackson Blvd., Suite 900, Chicago,d&@!. Such information is also
available from the EDGAR database on the SEC'ssitefathttp://www.sec.gov You also can obtain copies of such informatidtgrgaying
a duplicating fee, by sending a request by e-nogilublicinfo@sec.gov or by writing the SEC's Pulitieference Branch, Office of Consumer
Affairs and Information Services, Securities anafiange Commission, Washington, D.C. 20549. You afdgin information on the
operation of the SEC's Public Reference Room hingahe SEC at (202) 551-8090 or (800) SEC-0330.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors
RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risk factors diesal below, together with all of the other infortiaa included in this Annual Report,
including our consolidated financial statements éinel related notes thereto, before you decide vengthmake an investment in our
securities. The risks set out below are not thg osks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties currently known to us or that we
currently deem to be immaterial also may materialliyersely affect our business, financial condito/or operating results. If any of the
following events occur, our business, financialditian and results of operations could be mateyiativersely affected. In such case, the
asset value of our common stock and the tradingepof our securities could decline, and you mag ksor part of your investment.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

The capital markets may experience periods of disqtion and instability. Such market conditions may naterially and adversely affect
debt and equity capital markets in the United Stats, which may have a negative impact on our busineasd operations.

From time to time, capital markets may eigrece periods of disruption and instability. Feample, between 2008 and 2009, the global
capital markets were unstable as evidenced by gierdisruptions in liquidity in the debt capital rRats, significant write-offs in the financial
services sector, the re-pricing of credit riskhie broadly syndicated credit market and the faiifrmajor financial institutions. Despite
actions of the U.S. federal government and forgigvernments, these events contributed to worsegengral economic conditions that
materially and adversely impacted the broader firrand credit markets and reduced the availghilitdebt and equity capital for the mai
as a whole and financial services firms in paracuWWhile market conditions have experienced nedagtability in recent years, there have
been continuing periods of volatility and there t@mno assurance that adverse market conditiohgetitepeat themselves or worsen in the
future.

Equity capital may be difficult to raiserthg periods of adverse or volatile market condiidoecause, subject to some limited excep!
as a BDC, we are generally not able to issue aahditishares of our common stock at a price lessrirasset value without first obtaining
approval for such issuance from our stockholdedsamr independent directors. We generally seekauabfrom our stockholders so that we
have the flexibility to issue up to 25% of our thautstanding shares of our common stock at a jpedawv net asset value. Pursuant to
approval granted at our 2013 annual stockholdeetings we currently are permitted to sell or othisenssue shares of our common stock at
a price below net asset value, subject to ceriaitations and determinations that must be madeunboard of directors. Such stockholder
approval expires the earlier of June 4, 2014 aaditie of our 2014 annual stockholders meeting.

At times, volatility and dislocation in tleapital markets can also create a challenging@mwient in which to raise or access debt
capital. The re-appearance of market conditiondlairto those experienced from 2008 through 200%fty substantial length of time could
make it difficult to extend the maturity of or nefince our existing indebtedness or obtain new tedeless with similar terms and any failure
to do so could have a material adverse effect obosiness. The debt capital that will be availdblas in the future, if at all, may be at a
higher cost and on less favorable terms and camditihan what we currently experience. If we am@blmto raise or refinance debt, then our
equity investors may not benefit from the poterfalincreased returns on equity resulting fromelage and we may be limited in our ability
to make new commitments or to fund existing comraitts to our portfolio companies.

Significant changes or volatility in thep@ial markets may also have a negative effect ervétiuations of our investments. While mos
our investments are not publicly traded, applicable
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accounting standards require us to assume asfpaut @aluation process that our investments ale isca principal market to market
participants (even if we plan on holding an investirthrough its maturity). Significant changesha tapital markets may also affect the
of our investment activity and the potential faqidity events involving our investments. Thus, ithquidity of our investments may make it
difficult for us to sell such investments to acceapital if required, and as a result, we couldizeasignificantly less than the value at which
we have recorded our investments if we were redumesell them for liquidity purposes. An inabiliy raise or access capital could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finaratition or results of operations.

Uncertainty about the financial stability of the United States and of several countries in the Europ@aJnion (EU) could have a
significant adverse effect on our business, finaral condition and results of operations.

Due to federal budget deficit concerns, Sfngraded the federal government's credit rdtimgp AAA to AA+ for the first time in
history on August 5, 2011. Further, Moody's andlrtiave warned that they may downgrade the federsrnment's credit rating. Further
downgrades or warnings by S&P or other rating agsnand the United States government's creditlefidit concerns in general, including
issues around the federal debt ceiling, could causeest rates and borrowing costs to rise, whiely negatively impact both the perception
of credit risk associated with our debt portfolimaour ability to access the debt markets on faserterms. In addition, a decreased credit
rating could create broader financial turmoil amgertainty, which may weigh heavily on our finamgarformance and the value of our
common stock.

In 2010, a financial crisis emerged in Eagotriggered by high budget deficits and risinggdi and contingent sovereign debt in Greece,
Ireland, Italy, Portugal and Spain, which createdoerns about the ability of these nations to comito service their sovereign debt
obligations. While the financial stability of sucbuntries has improved significantly, risks reswtirom any future debt crisis in Europe or
any similar crisis could have a detrimental imp@tthe global economic recovery, sovereign andsavereign debt in these countries and
the financial condition of European financial ihstions. Market and economic disruptions have afgcand may in the future affect,
consumer confidence levels and spending, persamkrbptcy rates, levels of incurrence and defaukk@ansumer debt and home prices,
among other factors. We cannot assure you thatehdr&ruptions in Europe, including the increasest of funding for certain governments
and financial institutions, will not impact the gl economy, and we cannot assure you that assésgatkages will be available, or if
available, be sufficient to stabilize countries amarkets in Europe or elsewhere affected by a &iguerisis. To the extent uncertainty
regarding any economic recovery in Europe negativepacts consumer confidence and consumer cractivfs, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be sigaiftly and adversely affected.

On December 18, 2013, the Federal Resenvewsnced that it would scale back its bond-buyirggpam, or quantitative easing, which is
designed to stimulate the economy and expand ter&keReserve's holdings of lotgrm securities until key economic indicators, sashhe
unemployment rate, show signs of improvement. TédeFal Reserve signaled it would reduce its pueshaglong-term Treasury bonds and
would scale back on its purchases of mortgage-lshskeurities. It is unclear what effect, if anyg thcremental reduction in the rate of the
Federal Reserve's monthly purchases will have ewafue of our investments. However, it is possibé absent continued quantitative
easing by the Federal Reserve, these developnadortg, with the United States government's fedeght deiling issues and the European
sovereign debt crisis, could cause interest ratdsarrowing costs to rise, which may negativelpatt our ability to access the debt markets
on favorable terms.
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A failure on our part to maintain our status as a BDC would significantly reduce our operating flexiblity.

If we fail to maintain our status as a BOX& might be regulated as a clost} investment company that is required to registeler the
Investment Company Act, which would subject usdditional regulatory restrictions and significantlgcrease our operating flexibility. In
addition, any such failure could cause an evedefdult under our outstanding indebtedness, whichidchave a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results ofragiens.

We are dependent upon certain key personnel of Arder our future success and upon their access tolwtr Ares investment
professionals.

We depend on the diligence, skill and neknaf business contacts of certain key personnéi@fires Management Direct Lending
Group. We also depend, to a significant extenta@oess to the investment professionals of othemgravithin Ares and the information and
deal flow generated by Ares' investment profesdsomeathe course of their investment and portfalianagement activities. Our future succ
depends on the continued service of the key pegdaithe Ares Management Direct Lending Group. d@ibparture of any of these
individuals, or of a significant number of the istment professionals or partners of Ares, coulclmmnaterial adverse effect on our busir
financial condition or results of operations. Irdaibn, we cannot assure you that Ares Capital Man@ent will remain our investment advi
or that we will continue to have access to Aregestment professionals or its information and dleal. Further, there can be no assurance
that Ares Capital will replicate Ares' historicalcgess, and we caution you that our investmentrrettould be substantially lower than the
returns achieved by other Ares-managed funds.

Our financial condition and results of operations @&pend on our ability to manage future growth effedtvely.

Our ability to achieve our investment olijgz depends on our ability to acquire suitableegtments and monitor and administer those
investments, which depends, in turn, on our invesiradviser's ability to identify, invest in and mitor companies that meet our investment
criteria.

Accomplishing this result on a cost-effeetbasis is largely a function of the structurirfigpor investment process and the ability of our
investment adviser to provide competent, atterdaive efficient services to us. Our executive oficand the members of our investment
adviser's investment committee have substantipbresbilities in connection with their roles at Arand with the other Ares funds, as well as
responsibilities under the investment advisory @rahagement agreement. They may also be calledtopgmovide significant managerial
assistance to certain of our portfolio companid®ese demands on their time, which will increasthasiumber of investments grow, may
distract them or slow the rate of investment. ldeorto grow, Ares will need to hire, train, supsgyimanage and retain new employees.
However, we cannot assure you that we will be &blio so effectively. Any failure to manage ouwit growth effectively could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

In addition, as we grow, we may open up offices in new geographic regions that may inceeas direct operating expenses without
corresponding revenue growth.

Our ability to grow depends on our ability to raisecapital.

We will need to periodically access theidpnarkets to raise cash to fund new investmianéxcess of our repayments and, beginning
in 2016, we may also need to access the capitdatsato refinance existing debt obligations toekeent such maturing obligations are not
repaid with cash flows from operations. We havetelg to be treated as a RIC and operate in a maores to qualify for the U.S. federal
income tax treatment applicable to RICs. Among othmmgs, in order to
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maintain our RIC status, we must distribute to giockholders on a timely basis generally an ameqguoal to at least 90% of our investment
company taxable income, and, as a result, suchidigons will not be available to fund investmemiginations or repay maturing debt. We
must continue to borrow from financial institutioasd issue additional securities to fund our growthfavorable economic or capital market
conditions may increase our funding costs or limoit access to the capital markets, or could rés@tdecision by lenders not to extend credit
to us. An inability to successfully access the pnarkets could limit our ability to grow our biess and fully execute our business strategy
and could decrease our earnings, if any.

In addition, with certain limited except®rwe are only allowed to borrow amounts or issela decurities or preferred stock, which we
refer to collectively as "senior securities," sticht our asset coverage, as calculated pursudim tmvestment Company Act, equals at least
200% immediately after such borrowing, which, imtam circumstances, may restrict our ability tarbav or issue debt securities or prefer
stock. The amount of leverage that we employ vépehd on our investment adviser's and our boaditedtors’' assessments of market and
other factors at the time of any proposed borrovangsuance of senior securities. We cannot aggurehat we will be able to maintain our
current Facilities, obtain other lines of creditgsue senior securities at all or on terms actépta us.

Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affeaiur ability to, and the way in which we, raise addional capital.

We may issue senior securities or borromaydrom banks or other financial institutions,toghe maximum amount permitted by the
Investment Company Act. Under the provisions ofltheestment Company Act, we are permitted, as a BD@cur indebtedness or issue
senior securities only in amounts such that ouetassverage, as calculated pursuant to the Invegt@@mpany Act, equals at least 200%
after each such incurrence or issuance. If theevafour assets declines, we may be unable tdys#iis test, which may prohibit us from
paying dividends and could prevent us from mainmgour status as a RIC or may prohibit us fronurepasing shares of our common st
In addition, our inability to satisfy this test ddicause an event of default under our existingliteldness. If we cannot satisfy this test, we
may be required to sell a portion of our investraeaita time when such sales may be disadvantageosiepending on the nature of our
leverage, repay a portion of our indebtedness. Atiggly, any failure to satisfy this test could eaar material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations. Adadcember 31, 2013, our asset coverage calculataccordance with the Investment
Company Act was 264%. Also, to generate cash fodif\g new investments, we may in the future seeékswe additional debt or to securil
certain of our loans. The Investment Company Acy mgose restrictions on the structure of any segturitization.

We are not generally able to issue andosglcommon stock at a price below net asset yadueshare. We may, however, sell our
common stock, or warrants, options or rights tauregqour common stock, at a price below the curnetitasset value per share of our
common stock if our board of directors determirred such sale is in our best interests and theimtesests of our stockholders, and our
stockholders approve such sale. Any such sale wmildilutive to the net asset value per share oEommon stock. In any such case, the
price at which our securities are to be issuedsahd may not be less than a price that, in therdatation of our board of directors, closely
approximates the market value of such securitesss(hny commission or discount). If our commonlkstaades at a discount to net asset vi
this restriction could adversely affect our abilityraise capital.

At our 2013 annual stockholders meetingjestt to certain determinations required to be madeur board of directors, our stockholc
approved our ability to sell or otherwise issuerehaf our common stock, in an amount not excee@ii¥g of our then outstanding common
stock, at a price below the then current net asdat per share during a period that began on 4up@13 and expires the earlier of June 4,
2014 and the date of our 2014 annual stockholderting.
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We borrow money, which magnifies the potential foigain or loss on amounts invested and may increadeet risk of investing with us.

Borrowings, also known as leverage, magthé/potential for gain or loss on amounts invested, therefore, increase the risks
associated with investing in our securities. Weanity borrow under our Facilities and have issaedssumed other senior securities, and in
the future may borrow from, or issue additionalisesecurities to, banks, insurance companies,duimdtitutional investors and other lenc
and investors. Lenders and holders of such seamirities have fixed dollar claims on our consdhkdbassets that are superior to the clair
our common stockholders or any preferred stockmsldéthe value of our consolidated assets in@gathen leveraging would cause the net
asset value per share of our common stock to isergere sharply than it would have had we not ieclieverage.

Conversely, if the value of our consolidbéssets decreases, leveraging would cause netvvakseto decline more sharply than it
otherwise would have had we not incurred lever&gailarly, any increase in our consolidated incamexcess of consolidated interest
payable on the borrowed funds would cause oumueinie to increase more than it would had we natried leverage, while any decrease in
our consolidated income would cause net incomettirte more sharply than it would have had we notiired leverage. Such a decline
could negatively affect our ability to make comnstack dividend payments. There can be no assuthata leveraging strategy will be
successful.

As of December 31, 2013, we had approxim#&#85.0 million of outstanding borrowings undee t~acilities, approximately
$1,537.5 million in aggregate principal amount tarsgling of the Convertible Unsecured Notes and@pprately $1,356.3 million in
aggregate principal amount outstanding of the UmsetNotes. In order for us to cover our annua&riggt payments on our outstanding
indebtedness at December 31, 2013, we must achieugl returns on our December 31, 2013 total asdett least 2.0%. The weighted
average stated interest rate charged on our pahaipount of outstanding indebtedness as of Decefihe013 was 5.3%. We intend to
continue borrowing under the Facilities in the fetand we may increase the size of the Facilitiessoie additional debt securities or other
evidences of indebtedness (although there can beswance that we will be successful in doing®ay.ability to service our debt depends
largely on our financial performance and is subfeqirevailing economic conditions and competifivessures. The amount of leverage that
we employ at any particular time will depend on mwestment adviser's and our board of direct@®ssments of market and other factors at
the time of any proposed borrowing.

The Facilities, the Convertible Unsecuramtdd and the Unsecured Notes impose financial padcating covenants that restrict our
business activities, including limitations that twbhinder our ability to finance additional loansdanvestments or to make the distributions
required to maintain our status as a RIC. A failoreenew the Facilities or to add new or replaaetndebt facilities or to issue additional debt
securities or other evidences of indebtedness dwaxNd a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results of operations.

The following table illustrates the effext return to a holder of our common stock of theetage created by our use of borrowing at the
weighted average stated interest rate of 5.3% &goémber 31, 2013, together with (a) our totaligalf net assets as of December 31, 2013;
(b) approximately $3,078.8 million in aggregatenpipal amount of indebtedness outstanding as oéDeer 31, 2013 and (c) hypothetical
annual returns on our portfolio of minus 15% tosplis%.

Assumed Return on Portfolio (Net of

Expenses)(1 -15%  -10% -5% 0% 5% 1% 1%
Corresponding Return to Common
Stockholders(2 28%  -20% -12% 3% 5% 13% 22%

(1)  The assumed portfolio return is required by SEQil@gpns and is not a prediction of, and does aptesent, our
projected or actual performance. Actual returns imagreater or less thi
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those appearing in the table. Pursuant to SECatigns, this table is calculated as of DecembeRB13. As a result, it
has not been updated to take into account any elsangssets or leverage since December 31, 2013.

(2 In order to compute the "Corresponding Return tm@mn Stockholders," the "Assumed Return on Podfa$
multiplied by the total value of our assets at Deber 31, 2013 to obtain an assumed return to asn fnis amount, the
interest expense (calculated by multiplying thegh&gd average stated interest rate of 5.3% bypgheoaimately
$3,078.8 million of principal debt outstanding)isbtracted to determine the return available tok$tolders. The return
available to stockholders is then divided by thaltealue of our net assets as of December 31, gD@i8termine the
"Corresponding Return to Common Stockholde

In addition to regulatory requirements that restrict our ability to raise capital, the Facilities, theConvertible Unsecured Notes and the
Unsecured Notes contain various covenants that, bt complied with, could accelerate repayment undethe Facilities, the Convertible
Unsecured Notes and the Unsecured Notes, thereby teaally and adversely affecting our liquidity, financial condition and results of
operations.

The agreements governing the Facilities,Gbnvertible Unsecured Notes and the UnsecureegsNetjuire us to comply with certain
financial and operational covenants. These coverraay include, among other things:

. restrictions on the level of indebtedness thatane permitted to incur in relation to the valfieur assets;
. restrictions on our ability to incur liens; and
. maintenance of a minimum level of stockholdersityqu

As of the date of this Annual Report, we &r compliance in all material respects with tbeenants of the Facilities, the Convertible
Unsecured Notes and the Unsecured Notes. Howewecontinued compliance with these covenants dependnany factors, some of whi
are beyond our control. For example, dependindiercondition of the public debt and equity marlatd pricing levels, unrealized
depreciation in our portfolio may increase in th&ufe. Any such increase could result in our irgbib comply with our obligation to restrict
the level of indebtedness that we are able to imctelation to the value of our assets or to nama minimum level of stockholders' equity.

Accordingly, although we believe we willrdmue to be in compliance, there are no assurahegsve will continue to comply with the
covenants in the Facilities, the Convertible UnsedWNotes and the Unsecured Notes. Failure to comiph these covenants could result in a
default under the Facilities, the Convertible Unsed Notes or the Unsecured Notes that, if we wasble to obtain a waiver from the
lenders or holders of such indebtedness, as apfdicsuch lenders or holders could accelerate repayunder such indebtedness and thereby
have a material adverse impact on our businesmdial condition and results of operations.

We operate in a highly competitive market for invement opportunities.

A number of entities compete with us to m#ke types of investments that we make in midadeket companies. We compete with o
BDCs, public and private funds, commercial and streent banks, commercial financing companies, arste companies, hedge funds, and,
to the extent they provide an alternative formio&fcing, private equity funds. Many of our comfmet are substantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and mtémgeresources than we do. Some competitors mag hdower cost of funds and access to
funding sources that are not available to us. biitawh, some of our competitors may have highek tiderances or different risk
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assessments, which could allow them to considedarwariety of investments and establish moretieahips than us. Furthermore, man
our competitors are not subject to the regulatesjrictions that the Investment Company Act impasess as a BDC and that the Code
imposes on us as a RIC. We cannot assure youhnabmpetitive pressures we face will not have teried adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Alas a result of this competition, we may not ble &b pursue attractive investment
opportunities from time to time.

We do not seek to compete primarily bagethe interest rates we offer and we believe thatesof our competitors may make loans
with interest rates that are comparable to or Icven the rates we offer. Rather, we compete withcompetitors based on our existing
investment platform, seasoned investment profeatpexperience and focus on middle-market compadisciplined investment
philosophy, extensive industry focus and flexilbnsaction structuring. For a more detailed disonssf these competitive advantages, see
"Business—Competitive Advantages."

We may lose investment opportunities ifdeenot match our competitors' pricing, terms amndcstire. If we match our competitors'
pricing, terms and structure, we may experienceadsed net interest income and increased riskeditdoss. As a result of operating in such
a competitive environment, we may make investmtrasare on less favorable terms than what we raag briginally anticipated, which
may impact our return on these investments.

We may be subject to additional corporate-level ineme taxes if we fail to maintain our status as a Rl.

We have elected to be treated as a RICriuhdeCode and operate in a manner so as to qdatithe U.S. federal income tax treatment
applicable to RICs. As a RIC, we generally will paty U.S. federal corporate-level income taxeswnmcome and net capital gains that we
distribute to our stockholders as dividends omreely basis. We will be subject to U.S. federal cogpelevel income tax on any undistribut
income and/or gains. To maintain our status asi Re must meet certain source of income, assetdlfication and annual distribution
requirements. We may also be subject to certain fdderal excise taxes, as well as state, locafamrign taxes.

To satisfy the annual distribution requiegthapplicable to RICs, we must distribute to daclkholders on a timely basis generally an
amount equal to at least 90% of our investment @nppaxable income for each year. We have thetphilipay a large portion of our
dividends in shares of our stock, and as long@@#on of such dividend is paid in cash and otleguirements are met, such stock dividends
will be taxable as a dividend for U.S. federal imeotax purposes. This may result in our U.S. stoldédrs having to pay tax on such
dividends, even if no cash is received, and mayltré@sour non-U.S. stockholders being subject tthiolding tax in respect of amounts
distributed in our stock. Because we use debt &imayy we are subject to certain asset coverage magjuirements under the Investment
Company Act and financial covenants under our itetiiess that could, under certain circumstancssijateus from making distributions
necessary to qualify as a RIC. If we are unablebtain cash from other sources, we may fail to sa&inour status as a RIC and, thus, may be
subject to corporate-level income tax on all of me#ome and/or gains.

To maintain our status as a RIC, in additmthe annual distribution requirement applicabl®ICs, we must also meet certain annual
source of income requirements at the end of eactbta year and asset diversification requirementiseaend of each calendar quarter. Fa
to meet these requirements may result in our haarfg) dispose of certain investments quicklylrraise additional capital to prevent the
loss of RIC status. Because most of our investmemetén private companies and are generally ilgany such dispositions may be at
disadvantageous prices and may result in lossas, le rules applicable to our qualification &l@ are complex with many areas of
uncertainty. Accordingly, no assurance can be gitiahwe have qualified or will continue to qualdg a RIC. If we fail to maintain our sta
as a RIC for any reason and become subject toaet!
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corporation income tax, the resulting corporiatesl income taxes could substantially reduce @trassets, the amount of income available
distribution and the amount of our distributionscB a failure would have a material adverse effecis and on any investment in us. The
"Regulated Investment Company Modernization AR®I0," which is effective for 2011 and later tavage provides some relief from RIC
disqualification due to failures of the sourcercdfame and asset diversification requirements, atthahere may be additional taxes due in
such cases. We cannot assure you that we wouldhgfealany such relief should we fail the sourddrcome or asset diversification
requirements.

We may have difficulty paying our required distributions under applicable tax rules if we recognize icome before or without receiving
cash representing such income.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, weegadly are required to include in income certaitoants that we have not yet received in
cash, such as original issue discount, which meg afor example, if we receive warrants in conioectvith the making of a loan or payment-
in-kind ("PIK") interest representing contractuaterest added to the loan principal balance andatlitlee end of the loan term. Such original
issue discount or PIK interest is included in inedbefore we receive any corresponding cash paymafgslso may be required to include
income certain other amounts that we will not reeén cash, including, for example, amounts attdbie to hedging and foreign currency
transactions or cancellation of indebtedness incaselting from a restructuring of an investmend@bt securities.

Since, in certain cases, we may recogmieerne before or without receiving cash in respéstioh income, we may have difficulty
meeting the U.S. federal income tax requiremeudigtribute generally an amount equal to at lea%b @0 our investment company taxable
income to maintain our status as a RIC. Accordingly may have to sell some of our investmentsragiwe would not consider
advantageous, raise additional debt or equity abpitreduce new investment originations to meesédistribution requirements. If we are
not able to obtain cash from other sources, we faiajo qualify as a RIC and thus be subject toithldal corporate-level income taxes. Such
a failure would have a material adverse effect®and on any investment in us.

We are exposed to risks associated with changesiierest rates.

General interest rate fluctuations may hagebstantial negative impact on our investmemtsi@/estment opportunities and,
accordingly, may have a material adverse effeaiwrinvestment objective and rate of return on &teé capital. Because we borrow money
and may issue debt securities or preferred stochkatice investments, our net investment income iguaidgnt upon the difference between the
rate at which we borrow funds or pay interest oid#inds on such debt securities or preferred sdockthe rate at which we invest these
funds. As a result, there can be no assurancatsighificant change in market interest rates moll have a material adverse effect on our net
investment income.

Trading prices for debt that pays a fixatérof return tend to fall as interest rates fisading prices tend to fluctuate more for fixederat
securities that have longer maturities. In the ,pasthave entered into certain hedging transactgunsh as interest rate swap agreements, to
mitigate our exposure to adverse fluctuations farest rates, and we may do so again in the futnr@ddition, we may increase our floating
rate investments to position the portfolio for retereases. However, we cannot assure you thattsarcsactions will be successful in
mitigating our exposure to interest rate risk. Haggransactions may also limit our ability to peigiate in the benefits of lower interest rates
with respect to our portfolio investments.
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Although we have no policy governing thetumisies of our investments, under current marketditions we expect that we will invest in
a portfolio of debt generally having maturitiesupfto 10 years. This means that we are subjeaetatey risk (other things being equal) than a
fund invested solely in shorter-term securitiesie&line in the prices of the debt we own could askly affect the trading price of our
common stock. Also, an increase in interest ratafiable to investors could make an investmentunammon stock less attractive if we are
not able to increase our dividend rate, which coattlice the value of our common stock.

Most of our portfolio investments are not publiclytraded and, as a result, the fair value of these irestments may not be readily
determinable.

A large percentage of our portfolio investits are not publicly traded. The fair value ofeistments that are not publicly traded may not
be readily determinable. We value these investnmumsterly at fair value as determined in goodhfliy our board of directors based on,
among other things, the input of our managementaanit committee and independent valuation firnad tave been engaged at the direction
of our board of directors to assist in the valuatib each portfolio investment without a readilyadable market quotation at least once during
a trailing 12-month period (with certain de mininsieceptions). The valuation process is conductdidea¢nd of each fiscal quarter, with a
minimum of 50% (based on value) of our valuatiohpartfolio companies without readily available rkeir quotations subject to review by
independent valuation firm each quarter. Howevermay use these independent valuation firms t@vette value of our investments more
frequently, including in connection with the ocamce of significant events or changes in valuectiffg a particular investment. In addition,
our independent registered public accounting fibtams an understanding of, and performs selectgglares relating to, our investment
valuation process within the context of performihg integrated audit.

The types of factors that may be consid@regluing our investments include the enterpvigkie of the portfolio company (the entire
value of the portfolio company to a market par@eip including the sum of the values of debt andtgecurities used to capitalize the
enterprise at a point in time), the nature andzehle value of any collateral, the portfolio compa ability to make payments and its earn
and discounted cash flows, the markets in whichptiéfolio company does business, a comparisohepbrtfolio company's securities to
similar publicly traded securities, changes inititerest rate environment and the credit marketegdly that may affect the price at which
similar investments would trade in their principarkets and other relevant factors. When an exXtexremt such as a purchase transaction,
public offering or subsequent equity sale occuescansider the pricing indicated by the externainé¥o corroborate our valuation. Because
such valuations, and particularly valuations of’até investments and private companies, are intignemcertain, may fluctuate over short
periods of time and may be based on estimatesjeiarminations of fair value may differ materiailgm the values that would have been
used if a ready market for these investments ekistel may differ materially from the values thatway ultimately realize. Our net asset
value per share could be adversely affected ideterminations regarding the fair value of these@tments are materially higher than the
values that we realize upon disposition of suclegtments.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business.

As we generally make investments in privampanies, substantially all of these investmargssubject to legal and other restriction:
resale or are otherwise less liquid than publicgéd securities. The illiquidity of our investme&ntay make it difficult for us to sell such
investments if the need arises. In addition, ifake required to liquidate all or a portion of owortfolio quickly, we could realize significantly
less than the value at which we have recordednwaistments. In addition, we may face other restriston our ability to liquidate an
investment in a portfolio company to the
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extent that we or an affiliated manager of Aresmaserial non-public information regarding suchtfdio company.
We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly reslts.

We could experience fluctuations in ourrterdy operating results due to a number of factmrduding the interest rates payable on the
debt investments we make, the default rates on iswelstments, the level of our expenses, variatiorssd the timing of the recognition of
realized and unrealized gains or losses, the degnebich we encounter competition in our marketd general economic conditions. As a
result of these factors, results for any periocdudhaot be relied upon as being indicative of perfance in future periods.

Our financial condition and results of operations ould be negatively affected if a significant investent fails to perform as expected.

Our investment portfolio includes investrisetihat may be significant individually or in thggeegate. If a significant investment in on
more companies fails to perform as expected, sdahuase could have a material adverse effect anfimancial condition and results of
operations, and the magnitude of such effect cbalthore significant than if we had further divaesifour portfolio.

Our investment portfolio includes our intrasnt in the SSLP, which as of December 31, 204 esented approximately 23% of our
total portfolio at fair value. In addition, for tlyear ended December 31, 2013, approximately 336tiofotal investment income was earned
from our investment in the SSLP. The income eafrmd the SSLP is derived from the interest andifieeme earned by the SSLP from its
investments in first lien senior secured loans afdie market companies. We provide capital to tB&RSin the form of subordinated
certificates (the "SSLP Certificates"), which hatl4a8% yield at fair value as of December 31, 2848 are junior in right of payment to the
senior notes held by GE in the SSLP. For more médion on the SSLP, see "Management's Discussidiaalysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Portfolio and Investmativity—Senior Secured Loan Program.” Our retumamd repayment of our
investment in the SSLP Certificates depends op#nrmance of the loans in the SSLP's portfolithmaggregate. Accordingly, any
material degradation in the performance of theddarthe SSLP's portfolio in the aggregate wouldeha negative effect on the yield on our
SSLP Certificates and could ultimately result ia thss of some or all of our investment in the SE&ldptificates.

There are significant potential conflicts of interest that could impact our investment returns.

Certain of our executive officers and diogs, and members of the investment committee pfraiestment adviser, serve or may serv
officers, directors or principals of other entitersd affiliates of our investment adviser and itwvesnt funds managed by our affiliates.
Accordingly, they may have obligations to investorshose entities, the fulfillment of which mighot be in our or our stockholders' best
interests or may require them to devote time twises for other entities, which could interferelwihe time available to provide services to
us. Certain members of our investment adviser'sstment committee have significant responsibilitiesother Ares funds. For example,

Mr. Rosenthal is required to devote a substantabnity of his business time to the affairs of thes Management Private Equity Group.
Similarly, although the professional staff of onvéstment adviser will devote as much time to tlamagement of the Company as approp

to enable our investment adviser to perform itseduin accordance with the investment advisoryraadagement agreement, the investment
professionals of our investment adviser may hawvdlicts in allocating their time and services amahg Company, on the one hand, and
investment vehicles managed by Ares or one or mobits affiliates, on the other hand. These ad#sgitould be viewed as creating a conflict
of interest insofar as the time and effort of thef@ssional staff of our investment adviser anaffeers and employees will not be devoted
exclusively to the business of the Company but witead
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be allocated between the business of the Compahthermanagement of these other investment vehid®msever, Ares believes that the
efforts of such individuals are synergistic withddreneficial to the affairs of Ares Capital andsthether investment vehicles managed by
Ares or its affiliates.

In addition, certain Ares funds may haweestment objectives that compete or overlap witld, may from time to time invest in asset
classes similar to those targeted by, Ares Ca@lmhsequently, we, on the one hand, and these etitigies, on the other hand, may from t
to time pursue the same or similar capital andstment opportunities. Ares and our investment ahésdeavor to allocate investment
opportunities in a fair and equitable manner, anany event consistent with any fiduciary dutiesedwo Ares Capital. Nevertheless, it is
possible that we may not be given the opportunityarticipate in certain investments made by innesit funds managed by investment
managers affiliated with Ares. In addition, theraynie conflicts in the allocation of investment ogipnities among us and the funds
managed by investment managers affiliated with Aresne or more of our controlled affiliates or argdhe funds they manage.

We have from time to time sold assets ttage of the vehicles managed by IHAM and, as padur investment strategy, we may offer
to sell additional assets to vehicles managed leyoosrmore of our controlled affiliates (includingAM) or we may purchase assets from
vehicles managed by one or more of our controlfélisées. In addition, vehicles managed by onermre of our controlled affiliates
(including IHAM) may offer assets to or may purchassets from one another. While assets may besgplagrchased at prices that are
consistent with those that could be obtained frbimdtparties in the marketplace, and although thgses of transactions generally require
approval of one or more independent parties, threxg be an inherent conflict of interest in sucmsections between us and funds managed
by one of our controlled affiliates.

We pay management and incentive fees tonmestment adviser, and reimburse our investmevisar for certain expenses it incurs. In
addition, investors in our common stock will investa gross basis and receive distributions ort bams after expenses, resulting in, among
other things, a lower rate of return than one magtitieve if distributions were made on a grossshasi

Our investment adviser's base managemeris teased on a percentage of our total assetsr (iihin cash or cash equivalents but
including assets purchased with borrowed funds) emlsequently, our investment adviser may havéictmof interest in connection with
decisions that could affect our total assets, sisctlecisions as to whether to incur indebtednessmoake future investments.

The part of the incentive fee payable byousur investment adviser that relates to ouripcentive fee net investment income is
computed and paid on income that may include istahat is accrued but not yet received in casa.dbrtfolio company defaults on a loan
that is structured to provide accrued interess, [fossible that accrued interest previously usdtie calculation of the incentive fee will
become uncollectible. Our investment adviser isumater any obligation to reimburse us for any pathe incentive fee it received that was
based on accrued interest that we never actuagive.

Our investment advisory and managementeageat renews for successive annual periods if agprby our board of directors or by the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority ofrautstanding voting securities, including, in eitltase, approval by a majority of our
directors who are not "interested persons" of tomfany as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the Inmesit Company Act. However, both we
and our investment adviser have the right to teateithe agreement without penalty upon 60 day#temrnotice to the other party. Moreover,
conflicts of interest may arise if our investmedviaer seeks to change the terms of our investadrisory and management agreement,
including, for example, the terms for compensatidihile any material change to the investment adyisad management agreement mus
submitted to stockholders for approval under thestiment Company Act, we may from time to time dedt is appropriate to seek
stockholder approval to change the terms of theeagent.
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We are party to an administration agreemétht our administrator, Ares Operations, a whallyned subsidiary of Ares Management,
pursuant to which our administrator furnishes uwadministrative services and we pay our admiuistrat cost our allocable portion of
overhead and other expenses (including travel esggrincurred by our administrator in performirggabligations under our administration
agreement, including our allocable portion of thetof certain of our officers (including our chmpliance officer, chief financial officer,
chief accounting officer, general counsel, secyedaud treasurer) and their respective staffs, btitnvestment professionals.

Our portfolio company, IHAM, is party to administration agreement, referred to herein astHAM administration agreement,” with
Ares Operations. Pursuant to the IHAM administratgreement, our administrator provides IHAM witimanistrative services and IHAM
reimburses our administrator for all of the ac@dts associated with such services, includingliteable portion of our administrator's
overhead and the cost of our administrator's afieed respective staff in performing its obligaaunder the IHAM administration
agreement. Prior to entering into the IHAM admiraibn agreement, IHAM was party to a services exgent with our investment adviser,
pursuant to which our investment adviser providetlar services.

As a result of the arrangements descritbede, there may be times when the management teAne® (including those members of
management focused primarily on managing Ares @Bpits interests that differ from those of yogising rise to a conflict.

Our stockholders may have conflicting irtw@ant, tax and other objectives with respect tir theestments in us. The conflicting
interests of individual stockholders may relatet@rise from, among other things, the nature ofimuestments, the structure or the
acquisition of our investments, and the timing ispdsitions of our investments. As a consequermd]icts of interest may arise in
connection with decisions made by our investmenmnisad, including with respect to the nature or ctiting of our investments, that may be
more beneficial for one stockholder than for anoiteckholder, especially with respect to stockkeadtindividual tax situations. In selecting
and structuring investments appropriate for us,imuestment adviser will consider the investment tax objectives of the Company and our
stockholders, as a whole, not the investment, tather objectives of any stockholder individually.

We are dependent on information systems and systerfalures could significantly disrupt our businesswhich may, in turn, negatively
affect our liquidity, financial condition or result s of operations.

Our business is dependent on our and gartles' communications and information systemsy faflure or interruption of those syster
including as a result of the termination of an agnent with any third-party service providers, cotdadise delays or other problems in our
activities. Our financial, accounting, data pro@egsbackup or other operating systems and fagslithay fail to operate properly or become
disabled or damaged as a result of a number ajraaticluding events that are wholly or partialgybnd our control and adversely affect our
business. There could be:

. sudden electrical or telecommunications outages;

. natural disasters such as earthquakes, tornashaelsurricanes;

. disease pandemics;

. events arising from local or larger scale politisakocial matters, including terrorist acts; and
. cyber-attacks.

These events, in turn, could have a mdtatieerse effect on our operating results and megjgataffect the market price of our common
stock and our ability to pay dividends to our stoalklers.
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Changes in laws or regulations governing our oper&ns or the operations of our portfolio companiesgchanges in the interpretation
thereof or newly enacted laws or regulations, suchas the Dodd-Frank Act, and any failure by us or ourportfolio companies to comply
with these laws or regulations, could require changs to certain business practices of us or our podfio companies, negatively impact
the operations, cash flows or financial condition fous or our portfolio companies, impose additionatosts on us or our portfolio
companies or otherwise adversely affect our busine®r the business of our portfolio companies.

We and our portfolio companies are suljiecegulation by laws and regulations at the lostie, federal and, in some cases, foreign
levels. These laws and regulations, as well as thigrpretation, may be changed from time to tiared new laws and regulations may be
enacted. Accordingly, any change in these lawggulations, changes in their interpretation, orlgeamacted laws or regulations and any
failure by us or our portfolio companies to compligh these laws or regulations, could require clesng certain business practices of us or
our portfolio companies, negatively impact the apiens, cash flows or financial condition of usoor portfolio companies, impose additio
costs on us or our portfolio companies or othenaideersely affect our business or the businessiioportfolio companies.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signedi@w the Dodd-Frank Act. Many of the provisiorigtee Dodd-Frank Act have had
extended implementation periods and delayed effectates and have required extensive rulemakimgdpylatory authorities. While many of
the rules required to be written have been prontatiasome have not yet been implemented. Althohgliull impact of the Dodd-Frank Act
on us and our portfolio companies may not be knfwran extended period of time, the Dodd-Frank Awtluding the rules implementing its
provisions and the interpretation of those rulém@with other legislative and regulatory propssdirected at the financial services industry
or affecting taxation that are proposed or pendirtfpe U.S. Congress, may negatively impact theatjpns, cash flows or financial conditi
of us or our portfolio companies, impose additior@dts on us or our portfolio companies, intengi& regulatory supervision of us or our
portfolio companies or otherwise adversely affaatlousiness or the business of our portfolio corgsgan

Over the last several years, there alsdbas an increase in regulatory attention to thension of credit outside of the traditional
banking sector, raising the possibility that sorogiipn of the non-bank financial sector will be gdi to new regulation. While it cannot be
known at this time whether any regulation will bgpiemented or what form it will take, increasedulation of non-bank credit extension
could negatively impact our operations, cash flawEnancial condition, impose additional costsum intensify the regulatory supervision of
us or otherwise adversely affect our business.

Our investment adviser's liability is limited under the investment advisory and management agreemerand we are required to
indemnify our investment adviser against certain kbilities, which may lead our investment adviser t@ct in a riskier manner on our
behalf than it would when acting for its own accouh

Our investment adviser has not assumedesponsibility to us other than to render the sewvidescribed in the investment advisory and
management agreement, and it will not be respanéillany action of our board of directors in deiclg to follow our investment adviser's
advice or recommendations. Pursuant to the invedtadyvisory and management agreement, our investaerser and its members and tl
respective officers, managers, partners, agentslogees, controlling persons and members and drer gerson or entity affiliated with it
will not be liable to us for their acts under theéstment advisory and management agreement, abiifult misfeasance, bad faith, gross
negligence or reckless disregard in the performaffitieeir duties. We have agreed to indemnify, ddfand protect our investment adviser
and its members and their respective officers, mearsa partners, agents, employees, controllingoppsrand members and any other person ot
entity affiliated
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with it with respect to all damages, liabilitie®sts and expenses resulting from acts of our imest adviser not arising out of willful
misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or resklissegard in the performance of their duties utite investment advisory and
management agreement. These protections may leadvestment adviser to act in a riskier mannermaeting on our behalf than it would
when acting for its own account. See "Risk FactdRisks Relating to Our Investments—Our investmentsat's incentive fee may induce it
to make certain investments, including speculativestments."

We may be obligated to pay our investment advisencentive compensation even if we incur a loss.

Our investment adviser is entitled to intcencompensation for each fiscal quarter in an@ambequal to a percentage of the excess ¢
pre-incentive fee net investment income for thatrtgr (before deducting incentive compensationcanthin other items) above a threshold
return for that quarter. Our pre-incentive feeingestment income for incentive compensation pugpa@xcludes realized and unrealized
capital losses or depreciation and income taxese@lto realized gains that we may incur in theafigjuarter, even if such capital losses or
depreciation and income taxes related to realiz@asgesult in a net loss on our statement of ajpamfor that quarter. Thus, we may be
required to pay our investment adviser incentive@pensation for a fiscal quarter even if there dgeline in the value of our portfolio or we
incur a net loss for that quarter.

Under the investment advisory and managéemgneement, we will defer cash payment of anyritige fee otherwise earned by our
investment adviser if, during the most recent folircalendar quarter periods ending on or priothe date such payment is to be made, the
sum of (a) our aggregate distributions to our stottters and (b) our change in net assets (defia¢odtal assets less indebtedness and before
taking into account any incentive fees payablerduthe period) is less than 7.0% of our net agsgleffined as total assets less indebtedne:
the beginning of such period. These calculatiorheiadjusted for any share issuances or repuesh#@gy deferred incentive fees will be
carried over for payment in subsequent calculgtiemods to the extent such payment can then be onadkr the investment advisory and
management agreement.

If a portfolio company defaults on a loaattis structured to provide accrued interest iassible that accrued interest previously us
the calculation of the incentive fee will becomealiectible. Our investment adviser is not undey abligation to reimburse us for any par
the incentive fee it received that was based oruadcincome that we never receive as a resuldefault on the obligation that resulted in
accrual of such income.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR INVESTMENTS

Declines in market prices and liquidity in the corprate debt markets can result in significant net urealized depreciation of our
portfolio, which in turn would reduce our net assetvalue.

As a BDC, we are required to carry our siweents at market value or, if no market valuesteeainable, at fair value as determined in
good faith by or under the direction of our boafdlicectors. We may take into account the followtgiges of factors, if relevant, in
determining the fair value of our investments: éméerprise value of a portfolio company (the entaiie of the portfolio company to a mai
participant, including the sum of the values oftdemid equity securities used to capitalize therpnige at a point in time), the nature and
realizable value of any collateral, the portfolangpany's ability to make payments and its earnamgsdiscounted cash flow, the markets in
which the portfolio company does business, a coispaiof the portfolio company's securities to sampublicly traded securities, changes in
the interest rate environment and the credit margenerally that may affect the price at which Eiminvestments would trade in their
principal markets and other relevant factors. Waemxternal event such as a purchase transactibli¢ pffering or subsequent equity sale
occurs, we use the pricing indicated by the exteement to corroborate our
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valuation. While most of our investments are ndiljply traded, applicable accounting standards irequs to assume as part of our valuation
process that our investments are sold in a prihoiaaket to market participants (even if we planhaitding an investment through its
maturity). As a result, volatility in the capitalamkets can also adversely affect our investmentatans. Decreases in the market values or
fair values of our investments are recorded asalimexl depreciation. The effect of all of thesedas on our portfolio can reduce our net a
value by increasing net unrealized depreciatioouinportfolio. Depending on market conditions, veelld incur substantial realized losses
may suffer unrealized losses, which could have gz adverse effect on our business, financiab@won or results of operations.

Economic recessions or downturns could impair our prtfolio companies and harm our operating results.

Many of our portfolio companies may be smible to economic downturns or recessions (irinwithe economic downturn that
occurred from 2008 through 2009) and may be unablepay our loans during these periods. Thereflugng these periods our non-
performing assets may increase and the value gbantfolio may decrease if we are required to waitevn the values of our investments.
Adverse economic conditions may also decreaseah wf collateral securing some of our loans &edvalue of our equity investments.
Economic slowdowns or recessions could lead tanfired losses in our portfolio and a decrease iemees, net income and assets.
Unfavorable economic conditions also could increagefunding costs, limit our access to the capitalkets or result in a decision by lenc
not to extend credit to us. These events couldgmews from increasing investments and harm ourabipg results. We experienced to some
extent such effects as a result of the economimtaw that occurred from 2008 through 2009 and maerience such effects again in any
future downturn or recession.

A portfolio company's failure to satisfypéincial or operating covenants imposed by us @ardémders could lead to defaults and,
potentially, acceleration of the time when the are due and foreclosure on its assets repregertilateral for its obligations, which could
trigger cross defaults under other agreementseoqhjdize our portfolio company's ability to mestabligations under the debt that we hold
and the value of any equity securities we own. V&g imcur expenses to the extent necessary to seekeary upon default or to negotiate
new terms with a defaulting portfolio company.

Investments in privately held middle-market companes involve significant risks.

We primarily invest in privately held U.®iddle-market companies. Investments in privatelg imiddle-market companies involve a
number of significant risks, including the follovgn

. these companies may have limited financial res@uacel may be unable to meet their obligations, whiay be accompanied
by a deterioration in the value of any collaterad @ reduction in the likelihood of us realizingsguarantees we may have
obtained in connection with our investment;

. they typically have shorter operating historigarower product lines and smaller market shdras targer businesses, which
tend to render them more vulnerable to competitmi$ons and market conditions, as well as gerem@homic downturns;

. they typically depend on the management talentseeffiods of a small group of persons; therefore,drath, disability,
resignation or termination of one or more of thesesons could have a material adverse effect opafolio company and, i
turn, on us;

. there is generally little public information alidhese companies. These companies and theircfadlanformation are not

subject to the Exchange Act and other regulatibasgovern public companies, and we may be unahl@atover all material
information about these
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companies, which may prevent us from making a finlfgrmed investment decision and cause us tortoseey on our
investments;

. they generally have less predictable operatinglteand may require substantial additional capdgadupport their operations,
finance expansion or maintain their competitiveifims,

. our executive officers, directors and our inueestit adviser may, in the ordinary course of businkes named as defendants in
litigation arising from our investments in our golio companies;

. changes in laws and regulations, as well as th&@rpretations, may adversely affect their busini@sancial structure or
prospects; and

. they may have difficulty accessing the capital negskto meet future capital needs.
Our debt investments may be risky and we could losall or part of our investment.

The debt that we invest in is typically idtially rated by any rating agency, but we bedig¢hat if such investments were rated, they
would be below investment grade (rated lower tiBa3" by Moody's Investors Service, lower than "BBIBy Fitch Ratings or lower than
"BBB-" by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services), ihimder the guidelines established by these entgian indication of having
predominantly speculative characteristics with eespo the issuer's capacity to pay interest apdy@rincipal. Bonds that are rated below
investment grade are sometimes referred to as $het bonds" or "junk bonds." Therefore, our inweents may result in an above average
amount of risk and volatility or loss of princip&l/hile the debt we invest in is often secured, sseturity does not guarantee that we will
receive principal and interest payments accordintyé¢ terms of the loan, or that the value of asliateral will be sufficient to allow us to
recover all or a portion of the outstanding amafrihe loan should we be forced to enforce our diese

We also may invest in assets other thah dind second lien and mezzanine debt investmantsding high-yield securities, U.S.
government securities, credit derivatives and ostreictured securities and certain direct equitggtments. These investments entalil
additional risks that could adversely affect oweistment returns.

Investments in equity securities, many of which ardliquid with no readily available market, involve a substantial degree of risk.

We may purchase common and other equityrgis. Although common stock has historically gexted higher average total returns
than fixed income securities over the long-ternmamn stock also has experienced significantly nvotatility in those returns. The equity
securities we acquire may fail to appreciate ang deline in value or become worthless and ouitghié recover our investment will
depend on our portfolio company's success. Invagsriie equity securities involve a number of sigaift risks, including:

. any equity investment we make in a portfolio compenuld be subject to further dilution as a resfithe issuance of
additional equity interests and to serious riska psior security that will be subordinate toiatiebtedness (including trade
creditors) or senior securities in the event thatissuer is unable to meet its obligations or bexosubject to a bankruptcy

process;

. to the extent that the portfolio company requirdgitional capital and is unable to obtain it, weymat recover our investme!
and

. in some cases, equity securities in which we inwéishot pay current dividends, and our abilityrealize a return on our

investment, as well as to recover our investmeititpe dependent on the success of the portfolimgany. Even if the
portfolio company is successful, our ability to
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realize the value of our investment may be depemdiethe occurrence of a liquidity event, such asilalic offering or the sale
of the portfolio company. It is likely to take aygificant amount of time before a liquidity evemtcars or we can otherwise sell
our investment. In addition, the equity securiti@sreceive or invest in may be subject to restigion resale during periods
which it could be advantageous to sell them.

There are special risks associated witksting in preferred securities, including:

. preferred securities may include provisions fiexmit the issuer, at its discretion, to defetrdistions for a stated period
without any adverse consequences to the issuee twn a preferred security that is deferring isdributions, we may be
required to report income for tax purposes befoee@eceive such distributions;

. preferred securities are subordinated to debtrmgaef priority to income and liquidation paymeraad therefore will be
subject to greater credit risk than debt;

. preferred securities may be substantially l&gsd than many other securities, such as commaekgir U.S. government
securities; and

. generally, preferred security holders have no gptights with respect to the issuing company, sttt limited exceptions.

Additionally, when we invest in first liesenior secured loans (including unitranche loasexond lien senior secured loans or mezzanine
debt, we may acquire warrants or other equity seesiias well. Our goal is ultimately to disposesath equity interests and realize gains
upon our disposition of such interests. Howeves,dhuity interests we receive may not appreciat@line and, in fact, may decline in value.
Accordingly, we may not be able to realize gaimsrfrour equity interests and any gains that we dbizeon the disposition of any equity
interests may not be sufficient to offset any otbeses we experience.

We may invest, to the extent permitteddwy,lin the equity securities of investment funds tire operating pursuant to certain
exceptions to the Investment Company Act and ins&ds to similar investment funds and, to the edxtenso invest, will bear our ratable
share of any such company's expenses, includinggesment and performance fees. We will also remigligated to pay base management
and incentive fees to Ares Capital Management miipect to the assets invested in the securit@génatruments of such companies. With
respect to each of these investments, each ofaomon stockholders will bear his or her share eflithse management and incentive fee due
to Ares Capital Management as well as indirectlgrivgy the management and performance fees and@tpenses of any such investment
funds or advisers.

There may be circumstances in which our debt investents could be subordinated to claims of other cretbrs or we could be subject ti
lender liability claims.

If one of our portfolio companies were wlgankrupt, even though we may have structurednbeirest as senior debt, depending on the
facts and circumstances, a bankruptcy court miegtiaracterize our debt holding as an equity investrand subordinate all or a portion of
our claim to that of other creditors. In addititenders can be subject to lender liability claimsdctions taken by them where they become
too involved in the borrower's business or exerca#rol over the borrower. For example, we cowdddime subject to a lender's liability
claim, if, among other things, we actually rendgngicant managerial assistance.
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Our portfolio companies may incur debt or issue eqitly securities that rank equally with, or senior tg our investments in suck
companies.

Our portfolio companies may have, or mayéesnitted to incur, other debt, or issue othelitgagecurities, that rank equally with, or
senior to, our investments. By their terms, susitrilments may provide that the holders are entideeceive payment of dividends, interest
or principal on or before the dates on which weeantitled to receive payments in respect of ouestments. These debt instruments would
usually prohibit the portfolio companies from payimterest on or repaying our investments in thenéand during the continuance of a
default under such debt. Also, in the event of Iwesacy, liquidation, dissolution, reorganizationb@mkruptcy of a portfolio company, holders
of securities ranking senior to our investmentiat tportfolio company typically are entitled to ea@ payment in full before we receive any
distribution in respect of our investment. Aftepaging such holders, the portfolio company mayhate any remaining assets to use for
repaying its obligation to us. In the case of s#iesrranking equally with our investments, we wibbhve to share on an equal basis any
distributions with other security holders in theevof an insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, mganization or bankruptcy of the relevant
portfolio company.

The rights we may have with respect todbiéateral securing any junior priority loans wekado our portfolio companies may also be
limited pursuant to the terms of one or more imedlitor agreements (including agreements goverfirgg out" and "last out" structures) that
we enter into with the holders of senior debt. Urglech an intercreditor agreement, at any timegbaior obligations are outstanding, we
may forfeit certain rights with respect to the atdral to the holders of the senior obligationseSehrights may include the right to commence
enforcement proceedings against the collateral;i¢iiit to control the conduct of such enforcemantpedings, the right to approve
amendments to collateral documents, the rightlemse liens on the collateral and the right to watast defaults under collateral documents.
We may not have the ability to control or directisactions, even if as a result our rights as juleioders are adversely affected.

When we are a debt or minority equity investor in aportfolio company, we are often not in a positiorio exert influence on the entity,
and other equity holders and management of the congmy may make decisions that could decrease the valof our portfolio holdings.

When we make debt or minority equity inveshts, we are subject to the risk that a portfotimpany may make business decisions with
which we disagree and the other equity holdersmaadagement of such company may take risks or otberct in ways that do not serve
interests. As a result, a portfolio company may endécisions that could decrease the value of m@siment.

Our portfolio companies may be highly leveraged.

Some of our portfolio companies may be lyidéveraged, which may have adverse consequendbsse companies and to us as an
investor. These companies may be subject to réggiinancial and operating covenants and therlaye may impair these companies' ability
to finance their future operations and capital seéd a result, these companies' flexibility tgoesd to changing business and economic
conditions and to take advantage of business appities may be limited. Further, a leveraged comgfsaimcome and net assets will tend to
increase or decrease at a greater rate than dwed money were not used.

Our investment adviser's incentive fee may induce to make certain investments, including speculate investments.

The incentive fee payable by us to Aresitaaplanagement may create an incentive for Aregit@hManagement to make investments
on our behalf that are risky or more speculatiantivould be the case in the absence of such com@marrangement. The way in which
incentive fee
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payable to our investment adviser is determinedchvis calculated as a percentage of the returimegsted capital, may encourage our
investment adviser to use leverage to increasestiien on our investments. Under certain circunmstanthe use of leverage may increase the
likelihood of default, which would disfavor the ldeks of our common stock and the holders of seesritonvertible into our common stock.

In addition, our investment adviser will receive ihcentive fee based, in part, upon net capitimsgaalized on our investments. Unlike the
portion of the incentive fee based on income, tier® hurdle rate applicable to the portion of itteentive fee based on net capital gains. As
a result, our investment adviser may have a tendninivest more in investments that are likelydsult in capital gains as compared to
income producing securities. Such a practice coegdlt in our investing in more speculative se@sithan would otherwise be the case,
which could result in higher investment lossestipaliarly during economic downturns.

The part of the incentive fee payable byhag relates to our pre-incentive fee net investimecome will be computed and paid on
income that may include interest that is accruacdbtiyet received in cash. If a portfolio compalefaults on a loan that is structured to
provide accrued interest, it is possible that aedrimterest previously used in the calculatiorhefincentive fee will become uncollectible.
Our investment adviser is not under any obligatmreimburse us for any part of the incentive feeg¢eived that was based on such accrued
interest that we never actually receive.

Because of the structure of the incentae ft is possible that we may have to pay an iteeffee in a quarter during which we incur a
loss. For example, if we receive pre-incentiverfeeinvestment income in excess of the hurdlefaata quarter, we will pay the applicable
incentive fee even if we have incurred a loss at tfuarter due to realized and/or unrealized cidpiaes. In addition, if market interest rates
rise, we may be able to invest our funds in destrinments that provide for a higher return, whiadulg increase our pre-incentive fee net
investment income and make it easier for our imaest adviser to surpass the fixed hurdle rate aodive an incentive fee based on such net
investment income.

Our investments in foreign companies may involve ghificant risks in addition to the risks inherent in U.S. investments.

Our investment strategy contemplates p@teintvestments in foreign companies. Investindpireign companies may expose us to
additional risks not typically associated with isting in U.S. companies. These risks include chammgexchange control regulations, polit
and social instability, expropriation, impositiohforeign taxes (potentially at confiscatory leyelsss liquid markets, less available
information than is generally the case in the UhB¢ates, higher transaction costs, less governsugrrvision of exchanges, brokers and
issuers, less developed bankruptcy laws, difficuitgnforcing contractual obligations, lack of wmifi accounting and auditing standards and
greater price volatility.

Although most of our investments will beSUdollar denominated, our investments that aremdémated in a foreign currency will be
subject to the risk that the value of a particalarency will change in relation to one or moreestburrencies. Among the factors that may
affect currency values are trade balances, thé ¢tdahort-term interest rates, differences intietavalues of similar assets in different
currencies, long-term opportunities for investmamd capital appreciation and political developmewis may employ hedging techniques to
minimize these risks, but we cannot assure yousthett strategies will be effective or without riskus.

We may expose ourselves to risks if we engage indgéng transactions.

We have and may in the future enter infibglimey transactions, which may expose us to riske@ated with such transactions. We may
utilize instruments such as forward contracts,angy options and interest rate swaps, caps, catat<loors to seek to hedge against
fluctuations in the relative values of our portéopositions from changes in currency exchange matdsnarket interest rates. Use of these
hedging instruments may include counter-party ¢nesk.
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Hedging against a decline in the valuesuwfportfolio positions does not eliminate the foitity of fluctuations in the values of such
positions or prevent losses if the values of surditipns decline. However, such hedging can estaldiher positions designed to gain from
those same developments, thereby offsetting thinddan the value of such portfolio positions. Su@dging transactions may also limit the
opportunity for gain if the values of the underlyiportfolio positions should increase. Moreovemdy not be possible to hedge against an
exchange rate or interest rate fluctuation thabigenerally anticipated that we are not able terento a hedging transaction at an acceptable
price.

The success of our hedging transactionsdepend on our ability to correctly predict movertsein currencies and interest rates.
Therefore, while we may enter into such transastiorseek to reduce currency exchange rate angght&te risks, unanticipated changes in
currency exchange rates or interest rates maytiieguborer overall investment performance thaméfhad not engaged in any such hedging
transactions. In addition, the degree of corretalietween price movements of the instruments usachiedging strategy and price movem
in the portfolio positions being hedged may vanarbbver, for a variety of reasons, we may not sedkr be able to) establish a perfect
correlation between such hedging instruments amgdhtfolio holdings being hedged. Any such imperf®rrelation may prevent us from
achieving the intended hedge and expose us tofilgss. In addition, it may not be possible to dedully or perfectly against currency
fluctuations affecting the value of securities daimated in non-U.S. currencies because the valtieose securities is likely to fluctuate as a
result of factors not related to currency fluctaai. See also "Risk Factors—Risk Relating to Owsillzss—We are exposed to risks
associated with changes in interest rates."

RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMMON STOCK AND PUBLICLY TRA DED NOTES

Our shares of common stock have traded at a discoufrom net asset value and may do so again in thattire, which could limit our
ability to raise additional equity capital.

Shares of closed-end investment companéegiéntly trade at a market price that is less thamet asset value that is attributable to
those shares. This characteristic of closad-investment companies is separate and distimt the risk that our net asset value per share
decline. It is not possible to predict whether ahgres of our common stock will trade at, abovdyedow net asset value. In the recent past,
including during much of 2009, the stocks of BDGsaa industry, including at times shares of our mam stock, traded below net asset vi
and at near historic lows as a result of concewes liquidity, leverage restrictions and distritmtirequirements. When our common stock is
trading below its net asset value per share, wiegeilerally not be able to issue additional shafesir common stock at its market price
without first obtaining approval for such issuafficen our stockholders and our independent direc@ussuant to approval granted at our
2013 annual stockholders meeting, we currenthparenitted to sell or otherwise issue shares ofconmmon stock at a price below net asset
value, subject to certain limitations and deterriores that must be made by our board of direct®ueh stockholder approval expires the
earlier of June 4, 2014 and the date of our 20hialnstockholders meeting.

There is a risk that investors in our common stocknay not receive dividends or that our dividends mayot grow over time and that
investors in our debt securities may not receive bbf the interest income to which they are entitled

We intend to make distributions on a quéyrtieasis to our stockholders out of assets legaligilable for distribution. We cannot assure
you that we will achieve investment results thdt allow us to make a specified level of cash disttions or yee-to-year increases in cash
distributions. If we declare a dividend and if msteckholders opt to receive cash distributionseathan participate in our dividend
reinvestment plan, we may be forced to sell sonmmuoinvestments in order to make cash dividendrmts.
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In addition, due to the asset coverageayeglicable to us as a BDC, we may be limited inahility to make distributions. Certain of the
Facilities may also limit our ability to declareviiends if we default under certain provisions.tker, if we invest a greater amount of assets
in equity securities that do not pay current divide, it could reduce the amount available for itigtion. See "Dividend/Distribution Policy."

The above-referenced restrictions on digtions may also inhibit our ability to make reeairinterest payments to holders of our debt,
which may cause a default under the terms of oot @lgreements. Such a default could materiallyei®e our cost of raising capital, as well
as cause us to incur penalties under the termaralebt agreements.

Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Lawand of our charter and bylaws could deter takeoveattempts and have an
adverse effect on the price of our common stock.

The Maryland General Corporation Law, duarter and our bylaws contain provisions that miagalirage, delay or make more difficult
a change in control of Ares Capital or the rem@falur directors. We are subject to the MarylandiBass Combination Act (the "Business
Combination Act"), subject to any applicable regmients of the Investment Company Act. Our boamdirectors has adopted a resolution
exempting from the Business Combination Act anyiess combination between us and any other pessiiject to prior approval of such
business combination by our board, including aparby a majority of our disinterested directorsthié resolution exempting business
combinations is repealed or our board or disinteckdirectors do not approve a business combinati@Business Combination Act may
discourage third parties from trying to acquiretcolnof us and may increase the difficulty of comsnating such an offer. Our bylaws exer
from the Maryland Control Share Acquisition ActétfControl Share Acquisition Act") acquisitionsafr stock by any person. If we amend
our bylaws to repeal the exemption from the Corfiiohre Acquisition Act, subject to any applicaldgquirements of the Investment Comp
Act, the Control Share Acquisition Act also may makmore difficult for a third party to obtain doal of us and may increase the difficulty
of consummating such an offer.

We have also adopted measures that may inditgcult for a third party to obtain controfas, including provisions of our charter
classifying our board of directors into three céssserving staggered three-year terms, and progisibour charter authorizing our board of
directors to classify or reclassify shares of dacl into one or more classes or series, to cdwesassuance of additional shares of our stock,
and to amend our charter from time to time, with&totkholder approval, to increase or decreasadgesgate number of shares of stock or
the number of shares of stock of any class or séhmgt we have authority to issue. These provisiassvell as other provisions of our charter
and bylaws, may discourage, delay, defer, make wiffieult or prevent a transaction or a changeantrol that might otherwise be in your
best interest.

Investing in our common stock may involve an abovaverage degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance auithinvestment objective may result in a higher am®f risk than alternative investment
options and volatility or loss of principal. Ouvgstments in portfolio companies may be highly sfstve and aggressive and, therefore, an
investment in our securities may not be suitabteséaneone with lower risk tolerance.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuatesignificantly.

The capital and credit markets have expegd periods of extreme volatility and disruptioreothe past several years. The market price
and liquidity of the market for shares of our conmstock
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may be significantly affected by numerous factemsme of which are beyond our control and may natitestly related to our operating
performance. These factors include:

. significant volatility in the market price and tiad volume of securities of publicly traded RICE)8s or other companies in
our sector, which are not necessarily related ecoherating performance of these companies;

. price and volume fluctuations in the overallcktonarket from time to time;

. changes in law, regulatory policies or tax gliftss, or interpretations thereof, particularlylmiespect to RICs or BDCs;

. loss of our RIC status;

. changes in our earnings or variations in our opegaesults;

. changes in the value of our portfolio of investnsent

. any shortfall in revenue or net income or any iaseein losses from levels expected by investosecourities analysts;

. departure of Ares Capital Management's key perdpnne

. operating performance of companies comparable;to us

. short-selling pressure with respect to shares pEommon stock or BDCs generally;

. future sales of our securities convertible int@wrchangeable or exercisable for our common stotkeoconversion of such

securities, including the Convertible Unsecureddspt

. uncertainty surrounding the strength of the &&nomic recovery;
. concerns regarding European sovereign debt;

. general economic trends and other external facaon;

. loss of a major funding source.

In the past, following periods of volatliin the market price of a company's securitiesygtes class action litigation has often been
brought against that company. If our stock pricetiiates significantly, we may be the target ofiséies litigation in the future. Securities
litigation could result in substantial costs andedi management's attention and resources frorbusiness.

We may in the future determine to issue preferredteck, which could adversely affect the market valuef our common stock.

The issuance of shares of preferred stattkdividend or conversion rights, liquidation peegnces or other economic terms favorable to
the holders of preferred stock could adverselycafftee market price for our common stock by makingnvestment in the common stock |
attractive. In addition, the dividends on any prefé@ stock we issue must be cumulative. Paymedividends and repayment of the
liquidation preference of preferred stock must tpieference over any dividends or other paymentsitaommon stockholders, and holders
of preferred stock are not subject to any of oyregses or losses and are not entitled to parteipadny income or appreciation in excess of
their stated preference (other than convertibléepred stock that converts into common stock).ddition, under the Investment Company
Act, preferred stock constitutes a "senior secufity purposes of the 200% asset coverage test.
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Our stockholders will experience dilution in their ownership percentage if they opt out of our divided reinvestment plan.

All dividends declared in cash payabletazkholders that are participants in our dividegishvestment plan are automatically reinvested
in shares of our common stock. As a result, ourks$tolders that opt out of our dividend reinvestmaan will experience dilution in their
ownership percentage of our common stock over time.

Our stockholders may experience dilution upon the@anversion of the Convertible Unsecured Notes.

The February 2016 Convertible Notes arevedible into shares of our common stock beginfigust 15, 2015 or, under certain
circumstances, earlier. The June 2016 ConvertibliedNare convertible into shares of our commorkdbeginning on December 15, 2015 or,
under certain circumstances, earlier. The 2017 €xitle Notes are convertible into shares of oungmn stock beginning on September 15,
2016 or, under certain circumstances, earlier. 2013 Convertible Notes are convertible into shafesur common stock beginning on
July 15, 2017 or, under certain circumstancesiezailhe 2019 Convertible Notes are convertible stiares of our common stock beginning
on July 15, 2018 or, under certain circumstancadiee. Upon conversion of the Convertible Unseduxmtes, we have the choice to pay or
deliver, as the case may be, at our election, clmres of our common stock or a combination adf el shares of our common stock. As of
December 31, 2013, the conversion price of the llr2016 Convertible Notes was effectively $18&@i share of common stock, the
conversion price of the June 2016 Convertible Natas effectively $18.62 per share, the conversiaemf the 2017 Convertible Notes was
effectively $19.11 per share, the conversion poictne 2018 Convertible Notes was effectively $89@r share and the conversion price of
the 2019 Convertible Notes was effectively $20.&0ghare, in each case taking into account cedaiminimis adjustments that will be me
on the conversion date and subject to further aaljeist in certain circumstances. If we elect towdglishares of common stock upon a
conversion at the time our tangible book valuegh@re exceeds the conversion price in effect &t 8oe, our stockholders may incur
dilution. In addition, our stockholders will expenice dilution in their ownership percentage of canrstock upon our issuance of common
stock in connection with the conversion of the Gantible Unsecured Notes and any dividends paidusrcommon stock will also be paid on
shares issued in connection with such conversitem afich issuance.

Our stockholders may receive shares of our commonaek as dividends, which could result in adverse taconsequences to them.

In order to satisfy the annual distributregquirement applicable to RICs, we have the gttititdeclare a large portion of a dividend in
shares of our common stock instead of in cashoAg &s a portion of such dividend is paid in caghi¢h portion could be as low as 20%)
and certain requirements are met, the entire digtan would be treated as a dividend for U.S. fabimcome tax purposes. As a result, a
stockholder would be taxed on 100% of the fair reailalue of the shares received as part of theleind on the date a stockholder received it
in the same manner as a cash dividend, even thooghof the dividend was paid in shares of our comstock.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock the public market may have an adverse effect on éhmarket price of our common
stock.

Sales of substantial amounts of our comstook, or the availability of such common stockgate (including as a result of the
conversion of our Convertible Unsecured Notes aoimmon stock), could adversely affect the prevgilimarket prices for our common sta
If this occurs and continues, it could impair obility to raise additional capital through the safesecurities should we desire to do so.
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The trading market or market value of our publicly issued debt securities may fluctuate

Our publicly issued debt securities maynary not have an established trading market. Weataassure holders of our debt securities
that a trading market for our publicly issued dedaturities will ever develop or be maintained We&leped. In addition to our creditworthine
many factors may materially adversely affect tlagling market for, and market value of, our publisued debt securities. These factors
include, but are not limited to, the following:

. the time remaining to the maturity of these dsdturities;

. the outstanding principal amount of debt semsitvith terms identical to these debt securities;
. the ratings assigned by national statistical ratiagencies;

. the general economic environment;

. the supply of debt securities trading in the seaopndnarket, if any;

. the redemption or repayment features, if any, eé¢hdebt securities;

. the level, direction and volatility of market inést rates generally; and

. market rates of interest higher or lower than ratase by the debt securities.

Holders of our debt securities should dls@aware that there may be a limited number of tsuiy@and when they decide to sell their debt
securities. This too may materially adversely dffae market value of the debt securities or thditrg market for the debt securities.

Terms relating to redemption may materially adverséy affect our noteholders' return on any debt secuties that we may issue.

If our noteholders' debt securities areeezdable at our option, we may choose to redeemdhbbt securities at times when prevailing
interest rates are lower than the interest raté paitheir debt securities. In addition, if ouretotlders' debt securities are subject to mand
redemption, we may be required to redeem their sietuirities also at times when prevailing interats are lower than the interest rate paid
on their debt securities. In this circumstance,mteholders may not be able to reinvest the retliemproceeds in a comparable security at
an effective interest rate as high as their detiirstes being redeemed.

Our credit ratings may not reflect all risks of aninvestment in our debt securities.

Our credit ratings are an assessment by farties of our ability to pay our obligationsor@equently, real or anticipated changes in our
credit ratings will generally affect the marketwalof our debt securities. Our credit ratings, havemay not reflect the potential impact of
risks related to market conditions generally oreottactors discussed above on the market value wading market for the publicly issued
debt securities.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other jghyproperties materially important to our opevatiOur headquarters are currently located at
245 Park Avenue, 44th Floor, New York, New York &@1We are party to an office lease pursuant takviie are leasing New York office
facilities from a third party (the "48/44™ Floor Space"). We have entered into separate aséewith Ares Management and IHAM,
pursuant to which Ares Management and IHAM subléaggproximately 35% and 18%,
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respectively, of the 4% /44™ Floor Space for a rent equal to 35% and 18%, atispady, of the base annual rent payable by us uodeleas
for the 43'9/44™ Floor Space, plus certain additional costs anaeses.

We are also party to an office lease purstawhich we began leasing additional New Y orficef space in early 2013 (the "42nd Floor
Space"). We have entered into a sublease with Mesggement to sublease 100% of the 42nd Floor Spakes Management for a rent
equal to 100% of the base annual rent payable lmnder our lease for the 42nd Floor Space, plusiceadditional costs and expenses.

We are also party to an office lease withial party for office space in Washington D.C. &fgered into an office sublease with Ares
Management, pursuant to which Ares Management asbseapproximately 54% of the Washington, D.Cceffipace leased by us for a rent
equal to 54% of the base annual rent payable lmnder our office lease, plus certain additionatzasd expenses.

We have also entered into two office sutdsavith Ares Management, pursuant to which (ipuldease approximately 42% of Ares
Management's Chicago office space for a rent egué2% of the base annual rent payable by Ares Femant under its office lease, plus
certain additional costs and expenses and (ii)uéease approximately 7% of certain of Ares Managygta Los Angeles office space for a
rent equal to 7% of the base annual rent payabkerby Management under such office lease, plugiceatiditional costs and expenses.

The current allocations are as of Decer8fie2013. The allocations in connection with ousleases described above are subject to
change and future review. These percentages ajecstd change depending on the composition of fandtions performed by, the staff in
each of these offices.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are party to certain lawsuits in themmalrcourse of business. In addition, Allied Capitak involved in various legal proceedings
that we assumed in connection with the acquisitioallied Capital ("Allied Acquisition"). Furthermre, third parties may try to seek to
impose liability on us in connection with our adiis or the activities of our portfolio compani&ghile the outcome of any such legal
proceedings cannot at this time be predicted wéttainty, we do not expect that these legal proogsdvill materially affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

On May 20, 2013, we were named as onewraédefendants in an action filed in the Unitéat& District Court for the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania by the bankruptcy trusté®SI Renal Holdings LLC and two related companidse complaint in the action alleges,
among other things, that each of the named defésganticipated in a purported "fraudulent trarisiievolving the restructuring of a
subsidiary of DSI Renal Holdings LLC. Among othleings, the complaint seeks, jointly and severathyf all defendants, (1) damages of
approximately $425 million, of which the complastates our individual share is approximately $11ian, and (2) punitive damages. We
are currently unable to assess with any certaititgtiaer we may have any exposure in this actionbglfeve the claims are without merit and
intend to vigorously defend ourselves in this attio

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases CEquity Securities
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on The NASDA®@Kal Select Market under the symbol "ARCC." Our owon stock has historically
traded at prices both above and below our net aafgt per share. It is not possible to predicttwbeour common stock will trade at, above
or below net asset value. See "Risk Factors—RigtatiRg to our Common Stock and Publicly TradededetOur shares of common stock
have traded at a discount from net asset valuerayddo so again in the future, which could limit ability to raise additional equity capite

The following table sets forth the net assdue per share of our common stock, the randeghf and low closing sales prices of our
common stock as reported on The NASDAQ Global $&tecket and the dividends declared and payablesbipr each fiscal quarter for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013. On Felda014, the last reported closing sales pricguofcommon stock on The NASDA
Global Select Market was $18.49 per share, whiphesented a premium of approximately 12.3% to #teasset value per share reported by
us as of December 31, 2013.

Net Asset Price Range Cash Dividend
Value(1) High Low Per Share(2)
Fiscal 2012
First Quarte! $ 1547 $ 16.7C $ 1551 $ 0.37
Second Quarte $ 1551 $ 1658 $ 1467 $ 0.37
Third Quartel $ 157¢ $ 17.6¢ $ 16.0¢ $ 0.4%(3)
Fourth Quarte $ 16.0¢ $ 17.7¢ $ 16.0¢ $ 0.4%(3)
Fiscal 2013
First Quartel $ 159¢ $ 185¢ $ 17.6¢ $ 0.3¢
Second Quarte $ 16.27 $ 1827 $ 16.4:z $ 0.3¢
Third Quartel $ 16.3t $ 1812 $ 17.02 $ 0.3¢
Fourth Quarte $ 16.4€ $ 183t $ 17.0¢ $ 0.45(3)

(1) Net asset value per share is determined as oast@ay in the relevant quarter and therefore noayetilect the net ass
value per share on the date of the high and losimipsales prices. The net asset values showraaegllon outstanding
shares at the end of the relevant quarter.

(2) Represents the dividends declared and payableiretevant quarter. Does not include an additiohatiend of $0.05
per share, payable, subject to the satisfactiaegain Maryland law requirements, on March 28,2t stockholders «
record as of March 14, 2014, which was previousiglared on November 5, 2013.

(3) Consists of a quarterly dividend of $0.38 per slzene an additional dividend of $0.05 per sh

HOLDERS
As of February 24, 2014, there were 1,78i@ldrs of record of our common stock (including €&dCo.).
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DIVIDEND/DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We currently intend to distribute dividermtsmake distributions to our stockholders on artguily basis out of assets legally available for
distribution. We may also distribute additionalidends or make additional distributions to our ktmtders from time to time. Our quarterly
and additional dividends or distributions, if amyll be determined by our board of directors.

The following table summarizes our dividemgclared and payable for 2012 and 2013:

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Amount
February 28, 201 March 15, 201 March 30,201 $ 0.37
May 8, 201z June 15, 201 June 29,201 $ 0.37
August 7, 201: September 14, 20 September 28,20 $ 0.3¢
August 7, 201: September 14, 20 September 28,20 $ 0.0%5(1)
November 5, 201 December 14, 20: December 28, 20: $ 0.3¢
November 5, 201 December 14, 20: December 28,20 $ 0.051)
Total declared and payable for 2C $ 1.6C
February 27, 201 March 15, 201 March 29,201 $ 0.3¢
May 7, 2012 June 14, 201 June 28,201 $ 0.3¢
August 6, 201! September 16, 20 September 30,20 $ 0.3¢
November 5, 201 December 16, 20: December 31, 20: $ 0.3¢
November 5, 201 December 16, 20: December 31,20 $ 0.051)
Total declared and payable for 2C $ 1.572)

(1) Represents an additional dividend.

(2)  Does not include an additional dividend of $0.06gfeare, payable, subject to the satisfaction dazeMaryland law
requirements, on March 28, 2014 to stockholdereodrd as of March 14, 2014, which was previouslglared on
November 5, 201:

Of the $1.57 per share in dividends dedared payable during the year ended December 3B, 20e entire $1.57 per share was
comprised of ordinary income. Of the $1.60 per shiadividends declared and payable during the gaded December 31, 2012, the entire
$1.60 per share was comprised of ordinary income.

To maintain our RIC status, we must timdistribute an amount equal to at least 90% of puestment company taxable income (as
defined by the Code, which generally includes mdinary income and net short term capital gainguostockholders. In addition, the
Company generally will be required to pay an extiseequal to 4% on certain undistributed incomiessmwe distribute in a timely manner
an amount at least equal to the sum of (i) 98%hefGompany's ordinary income recognized duringendar year and (ii) 98.2% of the
Company's capital gain net income, as defined byQbde, recognized for the one year period endictgli@r 315t in that calendar year and
(iif) any income recognized, but not distributéd preceding years. The taxable income on whiclpayeexcise tax is generally distributed to
our stockholders in the next tax year. Dependingherievel of taxable income earned in a tax y@armay choose to carry forward taxable
income for distribution in the following year, apdy any applicable excise tax. For the years ebwsmgmber 31, 2013 and 2012, we reco
a net excise tax expense of $10.3 million and $lBon, respectively. We cannot assure you thawileachieve results that will permit the
payment of any cash distributions. We maintain@ut dut" dividend reinvestment plan for our comnstockholders. As a result, if we
declare a cash dividend, stockholders' cash didiglerill be automatically reinvested in additionahses of our common stock, unless they
specifically opt out of the dividend reinvestmelarmso as to receive cash dividends.
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RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED EQUITY SECURITIES

We have reported all sales of our unreggstequity securities that occurred during thequkdovered by this report in our Reports on
Form 10-Q or Form 8-K, as applicable.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

For the year ended December 31, 2013, di@ali purchase any shares of our common stock.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG ARES CA PITAL
CORPORATION, S&P 500 INDEX, SNL US INVESTMENT COMPANY INDEX AND S&P
SPECIALIZED FINANCE INDEX
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S&P Specialized Finance Index. Assumes all dividesn@ reinvested on the respective dividend paynees without

commissions
Dec08 Dec09 Decl0 Decll Dec12 Dec13
Ares Capita 100.0C 251.2: 365.3: 374.7¢ 466.7. 517.6:
S&P 500 Inde» 100.0C 126.4¢ 14557 148.5¢ 172.37 228.1¢
SNL US Investment Company
Index 100.0C 128.27 134.11 123.1¢ 145.3¢ 237.7¢
S&P Specialized Finance Ind 100.0C 128.9: 171.6¢ 165.4f 204.7¢ 213.6:
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For the graph and chart above, the Compasyincluded the SNL US Investment Company Indexeabelieve the companies included
in such index are more representative of the Collpdine-of-business than the companies includatiénS&P Specialized Finance Index.
Given this is the first year that the SNL US Inwesht Company Index is being presented, we haveirmttaded the S&P Specialized Finance
Index, which was presented in the preceding y&ars 10-K.

The graph and other information furnisheder this Part Il Item 5(d) of this Form X0shall not be deemed to be "soliciting material
to be "filed" with the SEC or subject to RegulatibdA or 14C, or to the liabilities of Section 18thé Exchange Act, as amended.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected financial and otlata for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, 2010 and 2009 are derived from our
consolidated financial statements which have beelited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered puaticounting firm whose report
thereon is included elsewhere in this Annual Regdre data should be read in conjunction with aursolidated financial statements and
notes thereto and "Management's Discussion andysisadf Financial Condition and Results of Operadid which are included elsewhere in
this Annual Report.

ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(dollar amounts in millions, except per share data)

As of and For the Year Ended December 3.

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Total Investment Incom $ 8817 $ 748.C $ 634 $ 483« $ 245:
Total Expense 437 .2 387.¢ 344.¢ 262.2 111.%
Net Investment Income Before Incol
Taxes 444k 360.1 289.¢ 221.: 134.(
Income Tax Expense, Including Excise
Tax 14.1 11.2 7.5 5.4 0.€
Net Investment Incom 430.¢ 348.¢ 282.¢ 215.¢ 133.¢
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains
Investments, Foreign Currencies,
Extinguishment of Debt and Other
Assets 58.1 159.: 37.1 280.] 69.2
Gain on the Allied Acquisitiol — — — 195.¢ —
Net Increase in Stockholders' EqL
Resulting from Operatior $ 488.f $ 508.2 $ 3195 $ 691.f $ 202.7
Per Share Dat:
Net Increase in Stockholders' Equity
Resulting from Operation:
Basic $ 18: $ 221 $ 156 $ 391 $ 1.9¢
Diluted $ 18 % 221 $ 156 $ 391 & 1.9¢
Cash Dividends Declared and
Payable $ 157 $ 16C $ 141 $ 14C $ 143
Net Asset Value $ 16.4¢ $ 16.0¢ $ 1532 $ 149: $ 11.4
Total Asset: $8,141.! $6,401.. $5,387.. $4,562.! $2,313.!
Total Debt (Carrying Value $2,986.0 $2,195.¢ $2,073.¢ $1,378.! $ 969.t
Total Debt (Principal Value $3,078.6 $2,293.¢ $2,170.F $1,435.. $ 969.f
Total Stockholders' Equit $4,904.. $3,988.0 $3,147.0 $3,050.! $1,257.¢
Other Data
Number of Portfolio Companies at
Period End(1 19¢ 152 141 17¢ 95
Principal Amount of Investments
Purchase: $3,493.. $3,161.¢ $3,239.C $1,583.¢ $ 575.(
Principal Amount of Investments
Acquired as part of the Allied
Acquisition $ — $ — $ — $1,833.¢ $ —
Principal Amount of Investments Soli
and Repaymen $1,801.c $2,482.¢ $2,468.. $1,555.¢ $ 515.2

Total Return Based on Market Value
10.5% 23.6% 2.3% 43.6% 119.%%

Total Return Based on Net Asset Va
3) 11.%% 14.2% 10.5% 31.6% 17.8%

Weighted Average Yield of Debt and

Other Income Producing Securities
Fair Value(4) 10.%% 11.2% 12.(% 12.% 12.7%

Weighted Average Yield of Debt and

Other Income Producing Securities
Amortized Cost(4 10.%% 11.%% 12.1% 13.2% 12.1%

(1) Includes commitments to portfolio companies for ethiunding had yet to occur.



2) For the year ended December 31, 2013, the totairdiased on market value equaled the increageartding market
value at December 31, 2013 of $17.77 per share thenending market value
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3)

(4)

December 31, 2012 of $17.50 per share plus thed=thnd payable dividends of $1.57 per sharéhtoyear ended
December 31, 2013, divided by the market valueestdiinber 31, 2012. For the year ended Decembe022, the total
return based on market value equaled the increabe ending market value at December 31, 20121L3f30 per share
from the ending market value at December 31, 20811 6.45 per share plus the declared and payabiéetids of $1.6
per share for the year ended December 31, 2012ledivoy the market value at December 31, 2011 k@year ended
December 31, 2011, the total return based on maetee equaled the decrease of the ending market ah
December 30, 2011 of $15.45 per share from thengrmiarket value at December 31, 2010 of $16.4&lpare plus the
declared and payable dividends of $1.41 per stwaréné year ended December 31, 2011, divided bynidudet value at
December 31, 2010. For the year ended Decemb@030, the total return based on market value equbkincrease
of the ending market value at December 31, 20141648 per share from the ending market value aeBer 31,
2009 of $12.45 per share plus the declared andomgévidends of $1.40 per share for the year emdlecember 31,
2010, divided by the market value at December B092For the year ended December 31, 2009, therédtan based
on market value equaled the increase of the endemiget value at December 31, 2009 of $12.45 paednam the
ending market value at December 31, 2008 of $6e33Ipare plus the declared and payable dividengi&.df7 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2009, divided bynhrket value at December 31, 2008. Total retaseth on market
value is not annualized. The Company's sharesufietin value. The Company's performance changestione and
currently may be different than that shown. Pasfiopmance is no guarantee of future results.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the totaiiréiased on net asset value equaled the chamge &sset value
during the period plus the declared and payablieleinds of $1.57 per share for the year ended Deeefith 2013,
divided by the beginning net asset value. For e ¥nded December 31, 2012, the total return haseet asset value
equaled the change in net asset value during tfiedpglus the declared and payable dividends dd@per share for the
year ended December 31, 2012 divided by the baginmét asset value for the period. For the yeae@mkcember 31,
2011, the total return based on net asset valualedjthe change in net asset value during the ghetics the declared
and payable dividends of $1.41 per share for tlae gaded December 31, 2011 divided by the beginmétgsset value
for the period. For the year ended December 31020k total return based on net asset value edjtiadechange in net
asset value during the period plus the declaredbagdble dividends of $1.40 per share for the geded December 31,
2010, divided by the beginning net asset value ti@rear ended December 31, 2009, the total ré@sad on net asset
value equaled the change in net asset value dtitengeriod plus the declared and payable dividen®d.47 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2009, divided byb#ginning net asset value. These calculationadjusted for
shares issued in connection with the dividend mstment plan and the issuance of common stockrninemiion with

any equity offerings and the equity componentsngf@nvertible notes issued during the period. Metarn based on
net asset value is not annualized. The Companyfsrpeance changes over time and currently may fferdnt than that
shown. Past performance is no guarantee of fuaselts.

Weighted average yield of debt and other ine@roducing securities at fair value is computethashe annual stated
interest rate or yield earned plus the net annualrization of original issue discount and markistdunt or premium
earned on accruing debt and other income prodwsangrities, divided by (b) total accruing debt attter income
producing securities at fair value and other inc@malucing securities. Weighted average yield &t ded other
income producing securities at amortized cost mpated as (a) annual stated interest rate or g&ided plus the net
annual amortization of original issue discount amatket discount or premium earned on accruing detitother incom
producing securities, divided by (b) total accrudgtebt and other income producing securities at tngar cost
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ltem 7. Management's Discussion And Analysis (Financial Condition And Results Of Operations

The information contained in this section shoulddeed in conjunction with the Selected Financiat®and our financial statements
and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this AhRegort. In addition, some of the statements ismport (including in the following
discussion) constitute forward- looking statemewtsich relate to future events or the future pariance or financial condition of Ares
Capital Corporation (the "Company,” "ARCC," "Aregydital,” "we," "us," or "our"). The forward-lookingtatements contained in this report
involve a number of risks and uncertainties, inalgdstatements concerning:

. our, or our portfolio companies’, future busineggerations, operating results or prospects;

. the return or impact of current and future invesitag

. the impact of a protracted decline in the liquidifycredit markets on our business;

. the impact of fluctuations in interest rates on lousiness;

. the impact of changes in laws or regulations (iditig the interpretation thereof) governing our @piens or the operations of

our portfolio companies or the operations of ounpetitors;

. the valuation of our investments in portfoliongeanies, particularly those having no liquid tradmarket;

. our ability to recover unrealized losses;

. market conditions and our ability to accessralive debt markets and additional debt and eaquaipital;

. our contractual arrangements and relationshigisthird parties;

. the general economy and its impact on the indwssimievhich we invest;

. uncertainty surrounding the financial stabilitytbé U.S. and the EU;

. Middle East turmoil and the potential for risingeegy prices and its impact on the industries inclvhwe invest;

. the financial condition of and ability of our cunteand prospective portfolio companies to achiéndrtobjectives;
. our expected financings and investments;

. our ability to successfully complete and integiatg acquisitions;

. the adequacy of our cash resources and workingatapi

. the timing, form and amount of any dividend disitions;

. the timing of cash flows, if any, from the optimas of our portfolio companies; and

. the ability of our investment adviser to locatétable investments for us and to monitor and adstar our investments.

We use words such as "anticipates,” "bekgV'expects,” "intends," "will," "should," "mayhd similar expressions to identify forward-
looking statements, although not all forward-loakstatements include these words. Our actual sesautl condition could differ materially
from those implied or expressed in the forward-lagkstatements for any reason, including the facset forth in "Risk Factors" and
elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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We have based the forward-looking statemerdiuded in this Annual Report on information iadale to us on the date of this Annual
Report, and we assume no obligation to update acly ®rward-looking statements. Although we undestao obligation to revise or update
any forward-looking statements, whether as a reguiew information, future events or otherwisey e advised to consult any additional
disclosures that we may make directly to you ootigh reports that we have filed or in the futureyfile with the SEC, including annual
reports on Form 10-K, registration statements amAd-2, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and currepbrts on Form 8-K.

OVERVIEW

We are a specialty finance company thatdksed-end, non-diversified management investw@mnipany incorporated in Maryland. We
have elected to be regulated as a BDC under thestment Company Act of 1940, as amended (togetitlerthre rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, the "Investment Company)Act

We are externally managed by Ares Capitah&yement, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Mamsagd, a global alternative asset
manager and a SEC-registered investment advisesyait to our investment advisory and managemesteatent. Ares Operations, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Ares Management, provides athtnative services necessary for us to operate.

Our investment objective is to generaténlmoirrent income and capital appreciation througiht @nd equity investments. We invest
primarily in first lien senior secured loans (inding unitranche loans), second lien senior seclo@us and mezzanine debt, which in some
cases includes an equity component like warrants.

To a lesser extent, we also make prefaangtlor common equity investments, which have gdigdraen non-control equity investments,
of less than $20 million (usually in conjunctiontive concurrent debt investment). However, we mayeiase the size or change the nature of
these investments.

Since our initial public offering on Octatf 2004 through December 31, 2013, our exitedstments resulted in an aggregate cash
realized internal rate of return (as discussedadnendetail in footnote 1 to the last table in "Biesis—Investments") to us of approximately
13% (based on original cash invested, net of swtidias, of approximately $7.7 billion and total peeds from such exited investments of
approximately $9.4 billion). Approximately 72% dtieise exited investments resulted in an aggregatefleaw realized internal rate of return
to us of 10% or greater.

Additionally, since our initial public offing on October 8, 2004 through December 31, 26Brealized gains have exceeded our
realized losses by approximately $258 million (edahg a ongime gain on the acquisition of Allied Capital amdlized gains/losses from
extinguishment of debt and other assets). Forstnise time period, our average annualized net eshjain rate was approximately 1.1%
(excluding a one-time gain on the acquisition dfel Capital and realized gains/losses from thanggishment of debt and other assets). Net
realized gain/loss rates for a particular pericalthe amount of net realized gains/losses duriof period divided by the average quarterly
investments at amortized cost in such period.

Information included herein regarding imi@rrates of return, realized gains and lossesaandalized net realized gain rates since our
initial public offering are historical results réleg to our past performance and are not necegsadicative of future results, the achievement
of which cannot be assured.

As a BDC, we are required to comply withtaim regulatory requirements. For instance, weegaty have to invest at least 70% of our
total assets in "qualifying assets," including s#&ms and indebtedness of private U.S. compamescartain public U.S. companies, cash,
cash equivalents, U.S. government securities agtu-dpiiality debt investments that mature in one pedess. We also may
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invest up to 30% of our portfolio in non-qualifyirgsets, as permitted by the Investment CompanySheicifically, as part of this 30%
basket, we may invest in entities that are noticiemed "eligible portfolio companies” (as definedfie Investment Company Act), including
companies located outside of the United Statestjemnthat are operating pursuant to certain exeeptunder the Investment Company Act,
and publicly traded entities whose public equitykeacapitalization exceeds the levels providedufnder the Investment Company Act.

We have elected to be treated as a RICruhdeCode, and operate in a manner so as to gdatithe tax treatment applicable to RICs.
To qualify as a RIC, we must, among other thingsettertain source-of-income and asset diversificaequirements and timely distribute
to our stockholders generally at least 90% of auestment company taxable income, as defined bZdue, for each year. Pursuant to this
election, we generally will not have to pay U.Sldel corporatdevel taxes on any income that we distribute tostackholders provided th
we satisfy those requirements.

PORTFOLIO AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

The Company's investment activity for tleass ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ismeesbelow (information presented
herein is at amortized cost unless otherwise india

For the Year Ended December 31

(dollar amounts in millions) 2013 2012 2011
New investment commitments(1)
New portfolio companie $ 2,148 $ 1,794 $ 1,778.
Existing portfolio companies(: 1,854 1,402.: 1,896.
Total new investment commitmer 4,002.¢ 3,197.( 3,674.:
Less:
Investment commitments exit 1,840.( 2,614.! 2,603..
Net investment commitmen $ 2,162.¢ $ 582Ff $ 1,071.

Principal amount of investments funded:

First lien senior secured loa $ 2,011.0 $ 1,953.¢ $ 1,973.:
Second lien senior secured lo: 602.¢ 733.1 511.1
Subordinated certificates of the SSLF 652.k 270.( 496.¢
Senior subordinated de 181.C 101.: 51.¢
Preferred equity securiti 1.6 — 164.1
Other equity securitie 44.C 103.¢ 41.2
Commercial real esta — — 0.€
Total $ 3,493 $ 3,161.¢ $ 3,239.(

Principal amount of investments sold or repaid:

First lien senior secured loa $ 885.¢ $ 1,455.¢ $ 1,320.¢
Second lien senior secured loi 526.1 331.( 286.¢
Subordinated certificates of the SS 145.2 66.2 —
Senior subordinated de 201.( 409.( 463.2
Collateralized loan obligatior — 55.t 166.:
Preferred equity securiti 26.2 26.2 43.F
Other equity securitie 16.¢ 126.( 166.]
Commercial real esta 0.2 13.C 21.€
Total $ 1,801.: $ 2,482.¢ $ 2,468..
Number of new investment commitments(4 95 82 72
Average new investment commitment amour $ 421 $ 39.C $ 51.C
Weighted average term for new investment commitmeist
(in months) 74 66 63
Percentage of new investment commitments at floatir
rates 8% 88% 94%
Percentage of new investment commitments at fixedites 1C% 8% 5%
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(dollar amounts in millions)

Weighted average yield of debt and other income
producing securities(5):
Funded during the period at amortized ¢
Funded during the period at fair value
Exited or repaid during the period at amortized
Exited or repaid during the period at fair value

(1)
(2)

For the Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
9.8% 9.8% 10.%
9.8% 9.8% 10.9%
9.&% 9.7% 10.2%
9.7% 9.€% 10.1%

New investment commitments include new agregs® fund revolving credit facilities or delaydchw loans.

Includes investment commitments to the SSLR&ke co-investments with GE in first lien seniecsred loans of

middle market companies of $736.6 million, $270i0iom and $496.8 million for the years ended Debem31, 2013,

2012 and 2011, respectively.

(3)

See "Senior Secured Loan Program" below and Ntteodir consolidated financial statements for tharysnded

December 31, 2013 for more information on the SSLP.

(4)

Number of new investment commitments represeath commitment to a particular portfolio compang

commitment to multiple companies as part of anviitial transaction (e.g., the purchase of a paafof investments).

()

"Weighted average yield of debt and other imegroducing securities at amortized cost” is caegbas the (a) annual

stated interest rate or yield earned plus the metia amortization of original issue discount aratket discount or
premium earned on accruing debt and other incoméuaing securities, divided by (b) total accruirgptiand other
income producing securities at amortized cost. 'gihEd average yield of debt and other income priogusecurities at
fair value" is computed as the (a) annual statetést rate or yield earned plus the net annuatt@aton of original
issue discount and market discount or premium eboneaccruing debt and other income producing #éesirdivided
by (b) total accruing debt and other income prodgcecurities at fair value.

(6)

Represents fair value for investments in the pbaotfas of the most recent prior quarter end, iflejble.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, our itments consisted of the following:

As of December 31

2013 2012
(in millions) Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
First lien senior secured loa $ 3,461.¢ $ 3,433.t $ 2,329.¢ $ 2,321.:
Second lien senior secured lo: 1,335.¢ 1,319.: 1,257.¢ 1,233.¢
Subordinated certificates of the SSLF 1,745.: 1,771.- 1,237.¢ 1,263.¢
Senior subordinated de 308.1 267.: 321.c 259.¢
Preferred equity securitit 226.( 229.( 238.¢ 250.1
Other equity securitie 453.7 600.2 430.¢ 584.1
Commercial real esta 7.C 12.: 7.3 11.¢
Total $ 7537.. $ 7,632¢ $ 5,823.! $ 5,924.¢
(1) The proceeds from these certificates were appliembtinvestments with GE to fund first lien sersecured loans to 47

and 36 different borrowers as of December 31, 204B2012, respectivel
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The weighted average yields at amortizest and fair value of the following portions of quortfolio as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
were as follows:

As of December 31

2013 2012
Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
Debt and other income producing
securities(1 10.4% 10.£% 11.4% 11.5%
Total portfolio(2) 9.4% 9.2% 10.1% 10.(%
First lien senior secured loans 7.8% 7.€% 9.C% 9.C%
Second lien senior secured loans 9.4% 9.5% 10.5% 10.7%
Subordinated certificates of the SSLP
3) 15.(% 14.€% 15.€% 15.2%
Senior subordinated debt( 10.2% 12.(% 11.7% 14.5%
Income producing equity securities | 10.1% 9.1% 9.€% 8.8%

(1) "Weighted average yield of debt and other inconwelpcing securities at amortized cost" is computetha (a) annual
stated interest rate or yield earned plus the metia amortization of original issue discount aratket discount or
premium earned on accruing debt and other incom@uaing securities, divided by (b) total accruirgptiand other
income producing securities at amortized cost. 'ghfeid average yield of debt and other income priodusecurities at
fair value" is computed as the (a) annual stateztést rate or yield earned plus the net annuali@ation of original
issue discount and market discount or premium eboneaccruing debt and other income producing #éesirdivided
by (b) total accruing debt and other income prodgcecurities at fair value.

(2 "Weighted average yields at amortized cost" areprded as the (a) annual stated interest rate to gagned plus the
net annual amortization of original issue discaamd market discount or premium earned on the rateacruing debt
and other income producing securities, dividedtjytife total relevant investments at amortized.cdgeighted averag
yields at fair value" are computed as the (a) ahstaged interest rate or yield earned plus theanatial amortization of
original issue discount and market discount or puemearned on the relevant accruing debt and atisceme producing
securities, divided by (b) the total relevant inwesnts at fair value.

(3)  The proceeds from these certificates were applied-investments with GE to fund first lien senior sexlitoans

Ares Capital Management, our investmentsatyemploys an investment rating system to categour investments. In addition to
various risk management and monitoring tools, ouestment adviser grades the credit risk of akéstments on a scale of 1 to 4 no less
frequently than quarterly. This system is intengecharily to reflect the underlying risk of a pantib investment relative to our initial cost
basis in respect of such portfolio investment,(a¢the time of origination or acquisition), altlgh it may also take into account under certain
circumstances the performance of the portfolio canyfs business, the collateral coverage of thesinvent and other relevant factors. Under
this system, investments with a grade of 4 invehesleast amount of risk to our initial cost ba3ise trends and risk factors for this
investment since origination or acquisition areagaily favorable, which may include the performantéhe portfolio company or a potential
exit. Investments graded 3 involve a level of tslour initial cost basis that is similar to thekrto our initial cost basis at the time of
origination or acquisition. This portfolio compaisygenerally performing as expected and the ristofa to our ability to ultimately recoup
the cost of our investment are neutral to favorablieinvestments or acquired investments in newtfpio companies are initially assessed a
grade of 3. Investments graded 2 indicate thatiiketo our ability to recoup the initial cost basif such investment has increased materially
since origination or acquisition, including as aui¢ of factors such as declining performance asecompliance with debt covenants;
however, payments are
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generally not more than 120 days past due. An tmest grade of 1 indicates that the risk to oulitgtib recoup the initial cost basis of such
investment has substantially increased since @igin or acquisition, and the portfolio companyelikhas materially declining performance.
For debt investments with an investment grade aidst or all of the debt covenants are out of céempk and payments are substantially
delinquent. For investments graded 1, it is anditgd that we will not recoup our initial cost baes may realize a substantial loss of our
initial cost basis upon exit. For investments gaatler 2, our investment adviser enhances its lefvstrutiny over the monitoring of such
portfolio company. The grade of a portfolio investthmay be reduced or increased over time.

Set forth below is the grade distributidroor portfolio companies as of December 31, 2013 2012:

As of December 31

2013 2012
Number of Number of

(dollar amounts in millions) Fair Value % Companies % Fair Value % Companies %
Grade 1 $ 54.€ 0.7% 7 3.6%% 75.1 1.2% 9 5.%
Grade z 256.% 3.4% 12 6.2% 136.7 2.3% 9 5.9%
Grade & 6,636.: 86.% 16z 84.(% 5,108.( 86.2% 121 79.7%
Grade 4 685.¢ 9.C% 12 6.2% 604.C 10.2% 13 8.5%

Total $7,632.¢ 100.(% 192 100.(%%$5,924.¢ 100.(% 152z 100.(%

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the wethhverage grade of the investments in our pdaotédlfair value was 3.0 and 3.1,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, loans on non-ad@tatus represented 3.1% and 2.1% of the totabiments at amortized cost and at fair
value, respectively. As of December 31, 2012, laansonaccrual status represented 2.3% and 0.6% of theitetestments at amortized c

and at fair value, respectively.

Senior Secured Loan Prograr

The Company co-invests in first lien sersecured loans of middle market companies with I@&ugh an unconsolidated Delaware
limited liability company, the Senior Secured Ldamd LLC (d/b/a "The Senior Secured Loan Programn'the SSLP. The SSLP is
capitalized as transactions are completed anddfigtio decisions and generally all other decisiamrespect of the SSLP must be approved
by an investment committee of the SSLP consistimgpresentatives of the Company and GE (with apgdrivom a representative of each
required). The Company provides capital to the SiLtRe form of SSLP Certificates.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the S&idPavailable capital of $11.0 billion and $9.0idil, respectively, of which approximately
$8.7 billion and $6.3 billion in aggregate prindipanount, respectively, was funded. As of Decen®ier2013 and 2012, the Company had
agreed to make available to the SSLP approxim&2Iy billion and $1.8 billion, respectively, of whiapproximately $1.7 billion and
$1.2 billion in aggregate principal amount, respety, was funded. Investment of any unfunded anmousst be approved by the investment
committee of the SSLP as described above.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the S&idPtotal assets of $8.7 billion and $6.3 billimspectively. As of December 31, 2013 and
2012, GE's investment in the SSLP consisted obsentes of $6.7 billion and $4.8 billion, respeety, and SSLP Certificates of
$249.3 million and $177.9 million, respectively.eTBSLP Certificates are junior in right of paymenthe senior notes held by GE. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company and GEb8h&% and 12.5%, respectively, of the outstan&i8gP Certificates.
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As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the SSirfolio was comprised of all first lien seniorcseed loans to U.S. middle-market
companies. As of December 31, 2013, one loan wamomccrual status, representing 1.0% of the totald@amrincipal amount in the SSI
As of December 31, 2012, no loans were on non-atstatus. The portfolio companies in the SSLAramdustries similar to the companies
in the Company's portfolio. Additionally, as of asber 31, 2013 and 2012, the SSLP had commitmentsd various delayed draw
investments to certain of its portfolio compani€$910.4 million and $157.5 million, respectivelyhich had been approved by the SSLP
investment committee. As of December 31, 2013 &1 2the Company had commitments to co-investeénBLP for its portion of the
SSLP's commitments to fund such delayed draw invessts of up to $85.1 million and $26.4 million, pestively.

Below is a summary of the SSLP portfolm|dwed by a listing of the individual first lieresior secured loans in the SSLP portfolio ¢
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

As of December 31

(dollar amounts in millions) 2013 2012
Total first lien senior secured loans $ 8,664.. $ 5,998.:
Weighted average yield on first lien senior secuoaths(2) 7.1% 8.C%
Number of borrowers in the SSI 47 36
Largest loan to a single borrower! $ 3217 $ 330«
Total of five largest loans to borrowers $ 1,510.7 $ 1,441

(1) At principal amount.

(2) Computed as the (a) annual stated interestoragccruing first lien senior secured loans, ddidiby (b) total first lien
senior secured loans at principal amol
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SSLP Loan Portfolio as of December 31, 201

Stated
Interest  Principal  Fair

(dollar amounts in millions) Maturity Value

Portfolio Company Business Descriptior Date Rate(l) Amount (2)

Access CIG, LLC(3) Records and information management 10/201° 7.%%$ 186.¢ $ 186.¢
services provide

ADG, LLC Dental service 9/201¢ 8.1% 217.f 217F

AMZ Products Merger Corporatic Specialty chemicals manufactu 12/201¢ 6.6% 237.€ 237.€

Argon Medical Devices, Inc. Manufacturer and marketer of single-use  4/201¢ 6.5% 239.2 239.
specialty medical device

BECO Holding Company, Inc.(5) Wholesale distributor of first response { 12/201° 8.2% 143.¢ 143
protection equipment and related pi

Brewer Holdings Corp. and Zywave, Inc. Provider of software and technologpablec 11/201¢ 7.% 175.8 175%
content and analytical solutions to insurau
brokers

Cambridge International, Inc. Manufacturer of custom designed and 4/201¢ 8.C% 86.C 86.C
engineered metal produc

CCS Group Holdings, LLC(E Correctional facility healthcare opera 4/201¢ 8.C% 1345 134F%

CH Hold Corp. Collision repair compan 11/201¢ 5.5% 270.C 270.C

Chariot Acquisition, LLC Distributor and designer of aftermarket g¢ ~ 1/201¢ 7.€% 142 142
cart parts and accessor

CIBT Holdings, Inc.(5) Expedited travel document processing 12/201¢ 6.6% 178.¢ 178.
services

CWD, LLC Supplier of automotive aftermarket brake ~ 6/201¢ 10.% 130.f 130t
parts

Drayer Physical Therapy Institute, LL Outpatient physical therapy provic 7/201¢ 7.5% 136.7 136.7

Driven Holdings, LLC(5; Automotive aftermarket car care franchi 3/201% 7.C% 159.1 159.1

ECI Purchaser Company, LLC Manufacturer of equipment to safely cont 12/201¢ 6.C% 209.C 209.(
pressurized gast

Excelligence Learning Corporation(5) Developer, manufacturer and retailer of 8/201¢ 7.€% 174.C  174.(
educational produc!

Fleischmann's Vinegar Company, Inc. Manufacturer and marketer of industrial 5/201¢ 8.C% 74 74.7
vinegar product

Fox Hill Holdings, LLC(3) Third party claims administrator on behal  6/201¢ 6.6% 289.f 289t
insurance carriet

Il US Holdings, LLC Provider of library automation software ai  3/201¢ 7.€% 194.f 194t
systems

Implus Footcare, LLC(5 Provider of footwear and other accesso 10/201¢ 9.(% 210.2 210.:

Instituto de Banca y Comercio, Inc. & Lee Private school operator 6/201¢ 82.4 74.%(6)

IV Advisors, Inc.(3)(5)

Intermedix Corporation(4) Revenue cycle management provider to1 12/201¢ 6.5% 3217 321
emergency healthcare indus

iParadigms, LLC Provider of anti-plagiarism software to the ~ 4/201¢ 6.5% 164.2 164.
education industr

JHP Pharmaceuticals, LLC(5) Manufacturer of specialty pharmaceutical 12/201¢ 6.£% 1822 182.

products



Laborie Medical Technologies Corp(5)

LJSS Acquisition, Inc.
MWI Holdings, Inc.(3)

Developer and manufacturer of medical ~ 10/201¢
equipmen

Fluid power distributo 10/201°
Provider of engineered springs, fasteners ~ 3/201¢
and other precision compone!
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SSLP Loan Portfolio as of December 31, 2013

(dollar amounts in millions)
Portfolio Company
Noranco Manufacturing (USA) Ltd

Nordco, Inc.

Oak Parent, Inc.(Z
Penn Detroit Diesel Allison, LLC

PetroChoice Holdings, LL¢

PODS Funding Corp. lI(z

Pregis Corporation, Pregis Intellipack Col
and Pregis Innovative Packaging Inc.

Protective Industries, Inc. dba Caplugs(3

PSSI Holdings, LLC(3)

Restaurant Technologies, Inc.

Selig Sealing Products, Inc.

Singer Sewing Compar
Strategic Partners, Inc.(5)

Talent Partners G.P. and Print Payroll
Services, G.P
TecoStar Acquisition Company

The Teaching Company, LLC and The
Teaching Company Holdings, Inc.(3)(
Towne Holdings, Inc.

U.S. Anesthesia Partners, Inc.
Universal Services of America, LP

WB Merger Sub, Inc.

Stated
Maturity Interest Principal  Fair

Business Descriptior Date Rate(l) Amount Value(2)
Supplier of complex machined and sheet ~ 4/201¢ 6.6% 161.1 161.1
metal components for the aerospace indt
Designer and manufacturer of railroad 8/201¢ 7.C% 2245 224
maintenanc-of-way machiner
Manufacturer of athletic appar 4/201¢ 7.5% 307.1 307.1
Distributor of new equipment and 12/201¢ 9.C% 59.t 59.t
aftermarket parts to the heavy-duty truck
industry
Provider of lubrication solutior 1/2017 10.% 158.% 158.%
Storage and warehousi 12/201¢ 7.C% 314.1 314.1
Provider of highly-customized, tailored 3/2017 7.8% 152.( 152.(
protective packaging solutiol
Plastic protection produc 10/201¢ 6.8% 278.% 278.%
Provider of mission-critical outsourced 6/201¢ 6.C% 224.¢ 224.¢
cleaning and sanitation services to the fo
processing industr
Provider of bulk cooking oil management ~ 6/201¢ 7.C% 202.7 202.7
services to the restaurant and fast food
service industrie
Manufacturer of container sealing produc  10/201¢ 6.8% 209.( 209.(
for rigid packaging applicatior
Manufacturer of consumer sewing machi ~ 6/201 7.2% 197.( 197.(
Supplier of medical uniforms, specialized  8/201¢ 7.8% 232.] 232.1
medical footwear and accessor
Provider of technology-enabled payroll to  10/201° 8.C% 62.( 62.(
the advertising industr
Manufacturer of precision components fo  12/201¢ 6.4% 118.( 118.(
orthopedic medical device
Education publications provider 3/201% 9.C% 111.t 109.:
Provider of contracted hospitality service: 12/201¢ 6.8% 154.( 154.(
and parking systerr
Anesthesiology service provid 12/201¢ 6.C% 210.( 210.C
Provider of security officer and guard 7/201¢ 6.C% 253.¢ 253.¢
services
Importer, distributor and developer of 12/201¢ 9.C% 159.2 159.2

premium wine and spirit

$ 8,664.« $8,654.(

(1) Represents the weighted average annual statedshtate as of December 31, 2013. All interessrate payable in cash. For loans on non-accruaisstde
stated interest rate is not shown as there is memyield on such loans.

) Represents the fair value in accordance with ASGB2 The determination of such fair value is mafuded in the Company's board of directors vatumati
process described elsewhere herein.

?3) The Company also holds a portion of this compaimgslien senior secured loan.

4) The Company also holds this company's second éirivssecured loan.

(5) The Company holds an equity investment in this camyp

(6) Loan was on non-accrual status, as determined bi? S& of December 31, 2013.
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SSLP Loan Portfolio as of December 31, 201

Stated
Interest  Principal
(dollar amounts in millions) Maturity Fair
Portfolio Company Business Descriptior Date  Rate(l) Amount Value(2)
Access CIG, LLC(3) Records and information 10/201°  7.C%$%$ 152.¢ $152.¢
management services provic
ADG, LLC Dental service 10/201¢ 8.€% 199./ 199./
AMZ Products Merger Specialty chemicals manufactu 12/201¢ 6.8% 240.C 240.(
Corporation
BECO Holding Company, Inc.( Wholesale distributor of first 12/201° 8.2% 160.C 160.(
response fire protection
equipment and related pa
Cambridge International, Inc. Manufacturer of custom design 4/201¢ 8.C% 88.2 83.C

and engineered metal produ



CCS Group Holdings, LLC(5) Correctional facility healthcare  4/201¢ 8.C% 142.& 142.¢
operatol
Chariot Acquisition, LLC Distributor and designer of 1/201¢ 8.8% 146.¢ 146.¢
aftermarket golf cart parts and
accessorie
CIBT Holdings, Inc.(5) Expedited travel document 12/2017 8.5% 146.. 146.
processing service
CT Technologies Intermediate Healthcare analysis services 3/2017 7.8% 284.¢ 273.t
Holdings, Inc. and CT provider
Technologies Holdings LLC(¢
(5)
CWD, LLC Supplier of automotive 3/201¢ 8.&€% 119.t 110.Z
aftermarket brake par
Drayer Physical Therapy Outpatient physical therapy 7/201¢ 7.E% 138.1 138.]
Institute, LLC provider
Driven Holdings, LLC(5) Automotive aftermarket car car 3/2017 7.C% 160.Z 160.<
franchisor
Excelligence Learning Developer, manufacturer and 8/201¢ 8.C% 115.¢ 115.¢
Corporation(5; retailer of educational produc
Fleischmann's Vinegar Manufacturer and marketer of  5/201¢ 8.€% 59.€ 59.€
Company, Inc. industrial vinegar produc
Fox Hill Holdings, LLC Third party claims administratol 12/2017 8.C% 292.t 292.t
on behalf of insurance carrie
Il US Holdings, LLC Provider of library automation ~ 3/201¢ 7.€% 202.¢ 202.¢
software and systen
Implus Footcare, LLC(5) Provider of footwear and other 10/201¢ 9.5% 178.C 178.(
accessorie
Instituto de Banca y Private school operator 6/201t 10.5% 165.¢ 165.¢
Comercio, Inc. & Leeds IV
Advisors, Inc.(5
Intermedix Corporation(4) Revenue cycle management  12/201¢ 6.2% 330.C 330.(
provider to the emergency
healthcare industr
LJSS Acquisition, Inc. Fluid power distributo 9/2017 6.8% 163.¢ 163.¢
MWI Holdings, Inc.(3) Highly engineered springs, 6/2017 8.C% 251.z 251..
fasteners, and other precision
component:
Nordco, Inc. Designer and manufacturer of  6/201¢ 7.C% 113.z2 113.Z
railroad maintenance-of-way
machinery
Oak Parent, Inc.(z Manufacturer of athletic appar  4/201¢ 8.C% 282.¢ 282.¢
Opinionology, LLC and Survey Provider of outsourced data 7/2017 8.5% 152.Z 152.
Sampling International LLC collection to the market researc
industry
Penn Detroit Diesel Allison, LL( Distributor of new equipment ai 12/201¢ 9.C% 65.2 65.2
aftermarket parts to the heavy-
duty truck industry
PetroChoice Holdings, LL! Provider of lubrication solutior ~ 1/2017 10.(% 162.Z 162.
Power Buyer, LLC Provider of emergency 12/201¢ 7.€% 208.C 208.(
maintenance services for powe
transmission, distribution, and
substation infrastructul
Powersport Auctioneer Powersport vehicle auction 12/201¢ 8.5% 40.7 40.7
Holdings, LLC(5) operatol
69
SSLP Loan Portfolio as of December 31, 2012
Stated
Interest
(dollar amounts in millions) Maturity Principal Fair
Portfolio Company Business Descriptior Date Rate(l) Amount Value(2)
Pregis Corporation, Pregis  Provider of highly-customized 3/2017 7.8% 125.¢ 125.¢



Intellipack Corp. and Pregis and tailored protective
Innovative Packaging Inc.(: packaging solution
PSSI Holdings, LLC Provider of mission-critical 6/2017 6.8% 161.7 161.7
outsourced cleaning and
sanitation services to the food
processing industr
Selig Sealing Products, Inc. Manufacturer of container 7/201¢ 7.8% 169.6 169.¢
sealing products for rigid
packaging applicatior
Singer Sewing Company Manufacturer of consumer 6/2017 7.3% 199.C 199.(
sewing machine
Strategic Partners, Inc. Supplier of medical uniforms, 8/201¢ 7.8% 234.2 234.
specialized medical footwear
and accessorie
Talent Partners G.P. and Prin Provider of technology-enable 10/201° 8.(%  65.F 65.5
Payroll Services, G.P. payroll to the advertising
industry
The Teaching Company, LLC Education publications provide 3/2017 9.C% 113.¢ 113
and The Teaching Company
Holdings, Inc.(3)(5
WB Merger Sub, Inc. Importer, distributor and 12/201¢ 9.C% 164.z 164.:
developer of premium wine ar
spirits

$5,998.:$5,972.

Q) Represents the weighted average annual statedshtate as of December 31, 2012. All interestrate payable in
cash.

(2) Represents the fair value in accordance wiBiC820-10. The determination of such fair valueaincluded in the
Company's board of directors valuation processriest elsewhere herein.

(3) The Company also holds a portion of this compdaiingslien senior secured loan.
(4)  The Company also holds this company's second éiemiossecured loan.

(5) The Company holds an equity investment in this camyg

The amortized cost and fair value of th& B&ertificates held by the Company was $1.7 billkmd $1.8 billion, respectively, as of
December 31, 2013, and $1.2 billion and $1.3 hilli@spectively, as of December 31, 2012. The SS¢fficates pay a weighted average
contractual coupon of three month LIBOR plus apprately 8.0% and also entitle the holders thereggteive a portion of the excess cash
flow from the underlying loan portfolio, which magsult in a return to the holders of the SSLP @Gesties that is greater than both the
contractual coupon on the SSLP Certificates as agelhe weighted average yield on the SSLP's piortfd7.1% and 8.0% at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company's yieldsoimvestment in the SSLP at amortized cost airdvilue was 15.0% and 14.8%,
respectively, as of December 31, 2013, and 15.894.8mM%, respectively, as of December 31, 2012th@years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, the Company earned interest incé$224.9 million, $184.7 million and $118.4 milliprespectively, from its investment in
the SSLP Certificates.

The Company is also entitled to certairs fimeconnection with the SSLP. For the years efdistember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, in
connection with the SSLP, the Company earned dagbitecturing service, sourcing and other feedlittda566.6 million, $58.2 million and
$54.9 million respectively.
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Effective March 30, 2012, Ares Capital Mgement assumed from the Company the role of co-gaarad the SSLP. However, this
change did not impact the Company's economicssipe@ of its participation in the SSLP and Aresi@dManagement does not receive any
remuneration in respect of its co-manager role.

Selected financial information for the SSa$Pof and for the years ended December 31, 204 2@? is as follows:

As of and For the
Years Ended
December 31,
(in millions) 2013 2012
Selected Balance Sheet Informatior

Investments in loans receivable, $ 8,601.¢ $ 5,952.
Cash and other ass:t $ 142 $ 369.;
Total asset $ 8,743.¢ $ 6,321.
Senior note: $ 6,699.! $ 4,840.
Other liabilities $ 64.z $ 46.¢
Total liabilities $ 6,763.7 $ 4,887.:
Subordinated certificates and members' intel $ 1,980.. $ 1,434..
Total liabilities and members' capi $ 8,743.¢ $ 6,321.!
Selected Statement of Operations Information:

Total revenue: $ 5542 $ 479.
Total expense $ 296.7 $ 258.7
Net income $ 257t $ 220.7

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and. 201
Operating results for the years ended Déegr81, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Total investment incom $ 8817 $ 748.C $ 634.
Total expense 437.2 387.¢ 344.¢
Net investment income before income ta 444 360.1 289.¢
Income tax expense, including excise 14.1 11.2 7.5
Net investment incom 430.2 348.¢ 282.¢
Net realized gains on investme 63.7 46.7 96.¢€
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investm (5.6 115.: (40.2)
Realized losses on extinquishment of ¢ — (2.7) (19.9)
Net increase in stockholders' equity resulting fromerations $ 488.E $ 508.2 $ 319.
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Investment Income

For the Years Ended
December 31

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Interest income from investmer $ 647.¢ $ 571t $ 473.C
Capital structuring service fe 91.7 102.1 97.4
Dividend income 99.¢€ 39.7 38.4
Management and other fe 20.2 18.¢ 16.7
Other income 22.c 15.€ 8.8

Total investment incom $ 8817 $ 748.C $ 634.

The increase in interest income from inwvesits for the year ended December 31, 2013 froradheparable period in 2012 was
primarily due to the increase in the size of thefptio, which increased from an average of $515ds at amortized cost for the year ended
December 31, 2012 to an average of $6.7 billicemadrtized cost for the comparable period in 203&rE&hough new investment
commitments increased from $3.2 billion for theryeaded December 31, 2012 to $4.0 billion for tomparable period in 2013, capital
structuring service fees decreased for the yeagdebecember 31, 2013 from the comparable peri@di? primarily due to the decrease in
the average capital structuring service fees reckdn new investments, which decreased from 3.22012 to 2.3% in 2013. The increase in
dividend income for the year ended December 313 2in the comparable period in 2012 was primatilg to $72.4 million in dividend
payments from IHAM for the year ended December2B1,3 as compared to $19.9 million for the compag@ielriod in 2012. The dividend
income from IHAM for the year ended December 311, 2Mcluded additional dividends of $32.4 millidrat were paid in addition to the
quarterly dividends generally paid by IHAM. IHAM igathe additional dividends out of accumulated &ays that had previously been
retained by IHAM. Also during the year ended Decentfil, 2013, we received $9.0 million in other meaurring dividends from non-
income producing equity securities compared to $#lRon for the comparable period in 2012. Thergase in other income for the year
ended December 31, 2013 from the comparable paria@12 was primarily attributable to higher amemdifees.

The increase in interest income from inwvesits for the year ended December 31, 2012 frorodheparable period in 2011 was
primarily due to the increase in the size of thefptio, which increased from an average of $416ds at amortized cost for the year ended
December 31, 2011 to an average of $5.5 billicemadrtized cost for the comparable period in 2032rE&hough new investment
commitments decreased from $3.7 billion for therysaled December 31, 2011 to $3.2 billion for thmparable period in 2012, capital
structuring service fees increased for the yeaeémkcember 31, 2012 from the comparable peri@did primarily due to the increase in
the average capital structuring service fees reckdn new investments, which increased from 2.7201itl to 3.2% in 2012. For the year
ended December 31, 2012, dividend income includ€d%million from the Company's investment in IHAdd compared to $19.0 million for
the comparable period in 2011. Also during the yerated December 31, 2012, we received $2.2 milfiarther nonrecurring dividends froi
nonincome producing equity securities compared toS$flllion for the comparable period in 2011. Thergmse in other income for the y
ended December 31, 2012 from the comparable parig@11 was primarily attributable to higher ameahtn letter of credit and agency fe

72




Operating Expenses

For the Years Ended
December 31

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Interest and credit facility fee $ 1715 $ 143.( $ 122¢
Incentive fees related to -incentive fee net investment incol 110.t 95.2 79.C
Incentive fees related to capital gains per G# 11.€ 31.¢€ 33.8
Base management fe 104.¢ 86.2 71.€
Professional fee 13.€ 12.C 16.7
Administrative fee: 12.c 9.3 9.t
Other general and administrati 12.¢ 10.2 12.C
Total operating expens $ 437.2 $ 387.¢ $ 344.

Interest and credit facility fees for theays ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, wemgrised of the following:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Stated interest expen $ 136.5 $ 1131 $ 92.2
Facility fees 8.2 5.5 6.1
Amortization of debt issuance co: 13.2 13.1 13.2
Accretion of discount on notes paya 13.¢ 11.2 11.C
Total interest and credit facility fe $ 1718 $ 143.( $ 122t

Stated interest expense for the year eDdmeémber 31, 2013 increased from the comparabiedoer 2012 primarily due to the increase
in the average principal amount of debt outstandimg) an increase in our weighted average statetksitrate of our debt outstanding. For
year ended December 31, 2013, our average prindgizloutstanding was $2.6 billion as comparedt@ $illion for the comparable peric
in 2012, and the weighted average stated inteagston our outstanding debt was 5.3% for the yede@ December 31, 2013 as compared to
5.2% for the comparable period in 2012. The higheighted average stated interest rate for the eneded December 31, 2013 relates to
having borrowed, on a relative basis, less fromlower-cost floating rate revolving debt facilitiead having more fixed- rate term debt
outstanding.

Stated interest expense for the year eDdm@émber 31, 2012 increased from the comparabiedoer 2011 primarily due to the increase
in the average principal amount of debt outstandimg) an increase in our weighted average statetksttrate of our debt outstanding. For
year ended December 31, 2012, our average prindgi#loutstanding was $2.2 billion as comparedLt8 $illion for the comparable peric
in 2011, and the weighted average stated inteagston our debt outstanding was 5.2% for the yede@ December 31, 2012 as compared to
5.1% for the comparable period in 2011. The higheighted average stated interest rate for the eneded December 31, 2012 relates to
having borrowed, on a relative basis, less fromlawer-cost floating rate revolving debt facilitiesd having more fixed-rate term debt
outstanding.

The increase in base management fees aadtine fees related to pre-incentive fee net imaest income for the year ended
December 31, 2013 from the comparable period ir2 201 for the year ended December 31, 2012 fromdhgarable period in 2011 were
both primarily due to the increase in the sizehefportfolio and in the case of incentive fees,riated increase in pre-incentive fee net
investment income.
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For the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2011 the capital gains incentive fee expeoseial calculated in accordance with
GAAP was $11.6 million, $31.9 million and $33.3 loih, respectively. As a result of the Capital Gakmendment to our investment
advisory and management agreement during 2011cevaeed $26.0 million of capital gains incentivesée accordance with GAAP for the
year ended December 31, 2011 as a result of tHeeatypn of the Capital Gains Amendment with resgedhe assets purchased in the All
Acquisition. The capital gains incentive fee accruader GAAP includes an accrual related to urzedlcapital appreciation, whereas the
capital gains incentive fee actually payable uraerinvestment advisory and management agreemestrat. There can be no assurance
such unrealized capital appreciation will be resdiin the future. The accrual for any capital géitentive fee under GAAP in a given per
may result in an additional expense if such cundaamount is greater than in the prior period ee@uction of previously recorded expense
if such cumulative amount is less than in the ppierod. If such cumulative amount is negativenttieere is no accrual. As of December 31,
2013 and 2012, the total capital gains incentieedecrual calculated in accordance with GAAP was$aillion and $80.8 million,
respectively (included in management and incerfées payable in the consolidated balance sheetyekier, the Capital Gains Fee actually
payable under our investment advisory and manageageeement for the years ended December 31, 204 2@12 was $17.4 million and
$11.5 million, respectively. For the year ended &@eber 31, 2011 there was no Capital Gains Fee fmyalder our investment advisory and
management agreement.

See Note 3 to our consolidated financiafeshents for the year ended December 31, 2013doe imformation on the base management
and incentive fees.

Professional fees include legal, accountuaduation and other professional fees incurréated to the management of the Company.
decrease in professional fees for the year endedrleer 31, 2012 from the comparable period in Ziirharily resulted from declines in
professional fees related to the Allied Acquisitfotiowing its completion in 2010 and having sulmstally completed the integration of Allic
Capital by early 2011. Administrative fees repreédeas paid to Ares Operations for our allocabldipo of overhead and other expenses
incurred by Ares Operations in performing its oatigns under the administration agreement, inclydiar allocable portion of the cost of
certain of our executive officers and their respecstaffs. Other general and administrative expemsclude rent, insurance, depreciation,
director's fees and other costs.

Income Tax Expense, Including Excise Tax

The Company has elected to be treatedRA€ ainder the Code and operates in a manner soqgtify for the tax treatment applicable
to RICs. To qualify as a RIC, the Company must, mgnather things, timely distribute to its stockheisl generally at least 90% of its
investment company taxable income, as defined &yCibde, for each year. In order to maintain its Bi@us, the Company, among other
things, has made and intends to continue to makeetijuisite distributions to its stockholders whigh generally relieve the Company from
U.S. federal corporate-level income taxes.

Depending on the level of taxable incommed in a tax year, we may choose to carry forviaxdble income in excess of current year
dividend distributions from such current year tdeahcome into the next tax year and pay a 4% exgis on such income, as required. Tc
extent that the Company determines that its estichatirrent year annual taxable income will be icess of estimated current year dividend
distributions from such income, the Company accex&ise tax on estimated excess taxable incomechstaxable income is earned. For the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,oeedesl a net expense of $10.3 million, $7.9 milkow $6.6 million, respectively, fi
U.S. federal excise tax.
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Certain of our consolidated subsidiariessrbject to U.S. federal and state income tax@sthieé years ended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, we recorded a tax expense of approxiyndge8 million, $3.2 million and $0.9 million, resgtively, for these subsidiaries.

Net Realized Gains/Losses

During the year ended December 31, 20ECihmpany had $1.8 billion of sales, repaymenexis of investments resulting in
$63.7 million of net realized gains. These salegayments or exits included $442.3 million of inwesnts sold to IHAM and certain vehicles
managed by IHAM. A net realized loss of $0.1 miiliwas recorded on these transactions. See Noteur monsolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2013 for more ldatdHAM and its managed vehicles. Net realizethgaf $63.7 million on investments
were comprised of $112.9 million of gross realigaihs and $49.2 million of gross realized losses.

The realized gains and losses on invessrauning the year ended December 31, 2013 consi$tibe following:

(in millions) Net Realized
Portfolio Company Gains (Losses
Passport Health Communications, Ir $ 19.¢
Financial Pacific Compan 17.7
Component Hardware Group, In 17.2
Tradesmen International, In 10.C
AWTP, LLC 8.7
Performant Financial Corporatic 8.€
Senior Secured Loan Fund L1 7.1
Performance Food Group, In 4.1
elnstruction Corporatio (40.9)
Other, ne 10.€
Total $ 63.7

During the year ended December 31, 20BChmpany had $2.5 billion of sales, repaymenexis of investments resulting in
$46.7 million of net realized gains. These salegayments or exits included $256.9 million of inwesnts sold to IHAM and certain vehicles
managed by IHAM. A net realized gain of $2.3 millivas recorded on these transactions. Net reajjaers of $46.7 million on investments
were comprised of $172.0 million of gross realipaths and $125.3 million of gross realized losgellitionally, during the year ended
December 31, 2012, in connection with the repayrrefutll of the $60 million aggregate principal aomt of the Company's asset-backed
notes (the "CLO Notes") issued under its 2006 deburitization (the "Debt Securitization") aheadtair scheduled maturities, $2.7 million
of unamortized debt issuance costs were expenskrbaarded as a realized loss on the extinguishofedbt.
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The realized gains and losses on invessrauning the year ended December 31, 2012 consi$tibe following:

(in millions) Net Realized
Portfolio Company Gains (Losses
Reed Group, Ltd $ 41k
Stac-Parkway, Inc. 30.C
R3 Education, Inc. and EIC Acquisitions Col 18.:
Savers, Inc. and SAIl Acquisition Corporati 15.2
BenefitMall Holdings Inc. 12.t
Things Remembered Inc. and TRM Holdings Corpore 9.€
Sunquest Information Systems, Ir 9.1
Norwescc 5.7
OTG Management, Inc 4.C
Crescent Hotels & Resorts, LLC and affilia (5.5
LVCG Holdings LLC (6.€)
Direct Buy Holdings, Inc. and Direct Buy Investoks (8.3
Aquila Binks Forest Development, LL (9.5
Making Memories Wholesale, In (12.9)
Firstlight Financial Corporatio (26.0
Prommis Solutions, LL( (46.¢)
Other, ne 15.¢
Total $ 46.7

During the year ended December 31, 20ELChmpany had $2.5 billion of sales, repaymenexis of investments resulting in
$96.6 million of net realized gains. These salegayments or exits included $261.3 million of irwesnts sold to IHAM or certain vehicles
managed by IHAM. A net realized gain of $0.1 miflivas recorded on these transactions. Net reajae of $96.6 million on investments
were comprised of $249.1 million of gross realipaths and $152.5 million of gross realized losgellitionally, during the year ended
December 31, 2011, in connection with the redemptiaf all of the Company's outstanding 6.00% ndteson April 1, 2012 and all the
Company's outstanding 6.625% notes due on JuldHl, the Company recognized a realized loss omittieguishment of debt of
$19.3 million.
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The realized gains and losses on investsrauning the year ended December 31, 2011 consi$tise following:

(in millions) Net Realized
Portfolio Company Gains (Losses
Reflexite Corporatiol $ 40.¢
DSI Renal, Inc. 27.5
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund VI, Lt 23.¢
Industrial Container Services, LL 19.¢
Dryden XVIII Leveraged Loan 2007 Limite 19.:
Penn Detroit Diesel Allison, LL¢ 18.4
Callidus MAPS CLO Fund I LLC 15.C
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund VII, Lt 10.¢
Callidus MAPS CLO Fund I, Ltd 8.2
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund IV, Lt 8.C
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund V, Lt 5.7
Border Foods, Inc 5.2
Driven Brands, Inc. 4.5
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund IlI, Lt 4.4
Sigma International Group, Inc 4.3
AWTP, LLC (7.€)
Universal Trailer Corporatio (7.9
HB&G Building Products, Inc. (9.2
Summit Business Media, LL (20.7)
Wastequip, Inc. (10.2)
Coverall North America, Inc (12.9)
Primis Marketing Group, Inc (14.7
Cook Inlet Alternative Risk, LL( (15.9)
Direct Buy Holdings, Inc. (17.9)
MPBP Holdings, Inc. (27.9)
Other, ne 21.€
Total $ 96.¢€
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Net Unrealized Gains/Losse

We value our portfolio investments quastenhd the changes in value are recorded as uredalains or losses. Net unrealized gains anc
losses for the Company's portfolio for the yeaideehDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, were cordpoisthe following:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(in millions) 2013 2012 2011
Unrealized appreciatic $ 1065 $ 151.C $ 144.1
Unrealized depreciatic (105.7) (126.%) (205.7)

Net unrealized (appreciation) depreciat
reversed related to net realized gains or

losses(1 (7.0 91.C 20.€
Total net unrealized gains (losses) from
investments $ (6 $ 1157 $ (40.2

(1)  The net unrealized (appreciation) depreciationngaerelated to net realized gains or losses repteshe
unrealized appreciation or depreciation recordethernrelated asset at the end of the prior pe

The changes in unrealized appreciationdamateciation during the year ended December 313 26fsisted of the following:

Net Unrealized

(in millions) Appreciation
Portfolio Company (Depreciation)
Senior Secured Loan Fund LL $ 9.€
Orion Foods, LLC 7.C
10th Street, LLC 6.€
American Broadband Communications, L 6.€
Imperial Capital Private Opportunities, | 5.7
OTG Management, LL( 4.t
The Dwyer Groug 4.2
Ciena Capital LLC (7.7)
Competitor Group, Inc (9.5
Instituto de Banca y Comercio, In (12.6)
UL Holding Co., LLC (13.2)
CitiPostal Inc. (13.9)
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.F (23.9
Other, ne’ 27.5
Total (net) $ 1.4
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The changes in unrealized appreciationdmpdeciation during the year ended December 312 26fisisted of the following:

Net Unrealized

(in millions) Appreciation
Portfolio Company (Depreciation)
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.F $ 41.€
ADF Restaurant Group, LL 12.2
R3 Education, Inc 6.¢
Performant Financial Corporatic 6.5
Tradesmen International, In 6.5
AWTP, LLC 6.2
Financial Pacific Compan 6.C
ELC Acquisition Corp. 5.1
The Dwyer Groug 5.C
Campus Management Cor (4.5
Community Education Centers, In (4.6)
Matrixx Initiatives, Inc. (4.8
HCP Acquisition Holdings, LL( (6.2)
UL Holding Co., LLC (7.0
RE Community Holdings I, Inc (7.9
American Broadband Communications, L (8.5
Orion Foods, LLC (10.9
elnstruction Corporatio (16.7)
MVL Group, Inc. (27.9)
Other, ne 26.2
Total (net) $ 24.2
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The changes in unrealized appreciationdmpdeciation during the year ended December 311 26fsisted of the following:

Net Unrealized

(in millions) Appreciation
Portfolio Company (Depreciation)
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.FP $ 48.¢
Firstlight Financial Corporatio 15.4
BenefitMall Holdings, Inc. 9.t
Things Remembered Inc 5.t
American Broadband Holding Compa Be
Insight Pharmaceuticals Corporati 4.€
Savers, Inc. 4.¢
The Step2 Company, LL (4.5
Direct Buy Holdings, Inc. (5.6)
VSS-Tranzact Holdings, LLC (6.3
Orion Foods, LLC (6.9
Making Memories Wholesale, In (7.0
Reed Group, Ltd. (8.3
CitiPostal Inc. (11.0
Pillar Processing, LL( (12.€)
Ciena Capital LLC (27.0)
elnstruction Corporatio (27.9)
Prommis Solutions, LL( (43.2)
Other, ne 4.€
Total (net) $ (61.0)

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCE S

The Company's liquidity and capital resesrare generated primarily from the net proceeqsiblic offerings of equity and debt
securities, advances from the Facilities, net prdsdrom the issuance of other securities, inclydionvertible unsecured notes, as well as
cash flows from operations.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company ha®®Lmillion in cash and cash equivalents and $8lidn in total debt outstanding at
carrying value ($3.1 billion at principal amourubject to leverage and borrowing base restrictidresCompany had approximately
$1.8 billion available for additional borrowingsder the Facilities as of December 31, 2013.

We may from time to time seek to retirgepurchase our common stock through cash purchasegll as retire, cancel or purchase our
outstanding debt through cash purchases and/oaegels, in open market purchases, privately negdtiasansactions or otherwise. Such
repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend ewngiling market conditions, our liquidity requirentg, contractual and regulatory
restrictions and other factors. The amounts inviblviay be material. In addition, we may from timeitee enter into additional debt facilitit
increase the size of existing facilities or issddigonal debt securities, including unsecured defat/or debt securities convertible into
common stock. Any such incurrence or issuance wbeldubject to prevailing market conditions, oquidity requirements, contractual and
regulatory restrictions and other factors. In adeoce with the Investment Company Act, with certianited exceptions, we are only allowed
to borrow amounts such that our asset coverageylesgd pursuant to the Investment Company Actt isast 200% after such borrowing.
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Equity Issuances

The following table summarizes the totarsls issued and proceeds we received in undemvptiblic offerings of our common stock
net of underwriting and offering costs for the yeanded December 31, 2013 and 2012. There werale®d our equity securities during the
year ended December 31, 20

Proceeds net o

Offering underwriting
Shares price per discounts and
(in millions, except per share data issued share(1) offering costs
2013
December 2013 public offerir 164 $ 1747 $ 286.(
October 2013 public offerin 127 $ 16.9¢ $ 214.:
April 2013 public offerinc 191 $ 17.4: $ 333.2
Total for the year ended December 31, 2 48.2 $ 833.¢
2012
August 2012 public offerin 25¢ $ 1658 $ 427.¢€
January 2012 public offerir 164 $ 1541 $ 252.¢
Total for the year ended December 31, 2 42.: $ 680.(

(1) The shares were sold to the underwriters fmi@e equal to the offering price per share, whidhunderwriters were
then permitted to sell at variable pric

As of December 31, 2013, total equity madepitalization for the Company was $5.3 billimmpared to $4.4 billion as of
December 31, 2012.
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Debt Capital Activities

Our debt obligations consisted of the feilog as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

As of December 31

2013 2012
Total Total
Aggregate Aggregate
Principal Principal
Amount Amount
Available/ Principal Carrying Available/ Principal Carrying
(in millions) QOutstanding(1) Amount Value Outstanding(1) Amount Value
Revolving
Credit
Facility $ 1,060.((2)$ — 3 — 3 900.C % — 3 —
Revolving
Funding
Facility 620.((3) 185.( 185.( 620.( 300.( 300.(
SMBC
Funding
Facility 400.( — — 400.( — —
February 201¢
Convertible
Notes 575.( 575.( 556.5(4) 575.( 575.( 548.5(4)
June 2016
Convertible
Notes 230.( 230.( 221.¢4) 230.( 230.( 218.¢(4)
2017
Convertible
Notes 162.5 162.5 159.2(4) 162.5 162.5 158.5(4)
2018
Convertible
Notes 270.( 270.( 264.1(4) 270.( 270.( 262.¢(4)
2019
Convertible
Notes 300.( 300.( 295.5(4) — — —
2018 Notes 600.( 600.( 596.7(5) — — —
February 2022
Notes 143.¢ 143.¢ 143.¢ 143.¢ 143.¢ 143.¢
October 2022
Notes 182.F 182.F 182.F 182.F 182.F 182.t

2040 Notes 200.( 200.( 200.( 200.( 200.( 200.(

2047 Notes 230.( 230.( 181.4(6) 230.( 230.( 181.%(6)

$ 4973.¢ $ 3,078.8 $ 2,986.. % 3,913.¢ $ 2,293.¢ $ 2,195.¢

(1) Subject to borrowing base and leverage restrictiBepresents the total aggregate amount committedtetanding, as
applicable, under such instrument.

(2) Provides for a feature that allows the Companygeumeértain circumstances, to increase the sizeeoRevolving Credit
Facility to a maximum of $1,400.0 million.

) Provides for a feature that allows the Compamy Ares Capital CP, under certain circumstartoescrease the size of
the Revolving Funding Facility to a maximum of $8&illion.

(4) Represents the aggregate principal amount outstgrdithe Convertible Unsecured Notes less the erased discount
initially recorded upon issuance of the Convertiblesecured Notes. The total unaccreted discourthéoFebruary 201
Convertible Notes, the June 2016 Convertible Ndtes2017 Convertible Notes, the 2018 ConvertilbdéeN and the
2019 Convertible Notes was $18.5 million, $8.2 imil| $3.3 million, $5.9 million and $4.7 millionespectively, as of
December 31, 2013. The total unaccreted discourthéoFebruary 2016 Convertible Notes, the Jun& Zdnvertible
Notes, the 2017 Convertible Notes and the 2018 Enitle Notes was $26.5 million, $11.2 million, $4nillion and
$7.2 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2012

(5) Represents the aggregate principal amountandsg less the unaccreted discount initially rded upon issuance of
the 2018 Notes. The total unaccreted discount®2018 Notes was $3.3 million as of December 8132

(6) Represents the aggregate principal amountangdmg less the unaccreted purchased discounttotfdéleunaccreted

purchased discount for the 2047 Notes was $48l6omind $48.8 million as of December 31, 2013 Bedember 31



2012, respectively
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The weighted average stated interest radengeighted average maturity, both on aggregateipél amount, of all our debt outstanding
as of December 31, 2013 were 5.3% and 7.9 yeasectvely, and as of December 31, 2012 were 55808 years, respectively.

The ratio of total principal amount of delttstanding to stockholders' equity as of Decer3tie2013 was 0.63:1.00 compared to
0.58:1.00 as of December 31, 2012. The ratio @f wdrrying value of debt outstanding to stockhrdtlequity as of December 31, 2013 was
0.61:1.00 compared to 0.55:1.00 as of Decembe2(@®12.

In accordance with the Investment Companly #ith certain limited exceptions, we are onlpwaded to borrow amounts such that our
asset coverage, calculated pursuant to the Invest@mmpany Act, is at least 200% after such bomgwiAs of December 31, 2013, our asset
coverage was 264%.

Revolving Credit Facility

We are party to a senior secured revoleiglit facility (as amended and restated, the "Révg Credit Facility"), which allows us to
borrow up to $1,060 million at any one time outstiag. The end of the revolving period and the stataturity date for the Revolving Credit
Facility are May 4, 2017 and May 4, 2018, respetyivThe Revolving Credit Facility also provides #ofeature that allows us, under certain
circumstances, to increase the size of the fadiity maximum of $1,400 million. The interest rel@rged on the Revolving Credit Facility is
based on LIBOR plus an applicable spread of 2.00%"base rate" (as defined in the agreements gogethe Revolving Credit Facility)
plus an applicable spread of 1.00%. Additionallg, ave required to pay a commitment fee of 0.375@peum on any unused portion of the
Revolving Credit Facility. As of December 31, 201i%re were no amounts outstanding under the Riegp®redit Facility and we were in
compliance in all material respects with the teahthe Revolving Credit Facility.

Revolving Funding Facility

Our consolidated subsidiary, Ares CapitalFlinding LLC ("Ares Capital CP"), is party to aobs/ing funding facility (as amended, the
"Revolving Funding Facility"), which allows Ares @igal CP to borrow up to $620 million at any omagi outstanding. The Revolving
Funding Facility is secured by all of the assetd bg, and its membership interest in, Ares Capital The end of the reinvestment period
the stated maturity date for the Revolving Fundtagility are April 18, 2015 and April 18, 2017, pestively. The Revolving Funding
Facility also provides for a feature that allowsdear certain circumstances, for an increase irsiteeof the facility to a maximum of
$865 million. The interest rate charged on the Remg Funding Facility is one month LIBOR plus gopéicable spread ranging from 2.25%
to 2.50% over LIBOR and ranging from 1.25% to 1.50%ér "base rate" (as defined in the agreementsrging the Revolving Funding
Facility) in each case, determined monthly basethercomposition of the borrowing base relativeutstanding borrowings under the
facility. Additionally, we are required to pay ansmitment fee of between 0.50% and 1.75% per anngemting on the size of the unused
portion of the Revolving Funding Facility. As of &amber 31, 2013, the principal amount outstandimdptthe Revolving Funding Facility
was $185.0 million and we and Ares Capital CP vireiompliance in all material respects with therteof the Revolving Funding Facility.

SMBC Funding Facility

Our consolidated subsidiary, Ares CapiBaFlinding LLC, ("ACJB"), is party to a revolvingriding facility (as amended, the "SMBC
Funding Facility"), which allows ACJB to borrow tip $400 million at any one time outstanding. TheBESMrunding Facility is secured by
all of the assets held by ACJB. The end of thevesiment period and the stated maturity date ®ISMBC Funding Facility are
September 14, 2016 and September 14, 2021, regggcilhe reinvestment period and the
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stated maturity date are both subject to two ore-g&tensions by mutual agreement. The interestatarged on the SMBC Funding Facility
is based on one month LIBOR plus an applicableaspod 2.00% or a "base rate" (as defined in theergents governing the SMBC Funding
Facility) plus an applicable spread of 1.00%. Tigfoivlarch 14, 2014, ACJB is required to pay a comnaitt fee of up to 0.75% per annum
depending on the size of the unused portion oBM8C Funding Facility. After March 14, 2014, ACJX8required to pay a commitment fee
of between 0.35% and 0.875% per annum dependitigeosize of the unused portion of the SMBC Fundhagility. As of December 31,
2013, there were no amounts outstanding underM&CSFunding Facility and we and ACJB were in coraptie in all material respects with
the terms of the SMBC Funding Facility.

Convertible Unsecured Notes

In January 2011, we issued $575 millionraggte principal amount of unsecured convertibléssenotes that mature on February 1,
2016 (the "February 2016 Convertible Notes"), unl@®viously converted or repurchased in accordasittetheir terms. In March 2011, we
issued $230 million aggregate principal amountrfacured convertible senior notes that mature pa 1u2016 (the "June 2016 Convertible
Notes"), unless previously converted or repurchasedcordance with their terms. In March 2012 isseied $162.5 million aggrege
principal amount of unsecured convertible senigesidhat mature on March 15, 2017 (the "2017 CadiblerNotes"), unless previously
converted or repurchased in accordance with teaing. In the fourth quarter of 2012, we issued $2#dllion aggregate principal amount of
unsecured convertible senior notes that matureounaly 15, 2018 (the "2018 Convertible Notes", ssigreviously converted or repurchased
in accordance with their terms. In July 2013, veaied $300.0 million aggregate principal amountrefacured convertible senior notes that
mature on January 15, 2019 (the "2019 Convertilgesl' and together with the February 2016 ConJertiotes, the June 2016 Convertible
Notes, the 2017 Convertible Notes, the 2018 CoiblerNotes, the "Convertible Unsecured Notes")eanlpreviously converted
repurchased in accordance with their terms. Weaddave the right to redeem the Convertible UnsetiNotes prior to maturity. The
February 2016 Convertible Notes, the June 2016 Exilme Notes, the 2017 Convertible Notes, the 20d8vertible Notes and the 2019
Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of 5.79%?5% , 4.875% , 4.750% and 4.375%, respectipalyyear, payable semi-annually.

In certain circumstances, the Convertibfesétured Notes will be convertible into cash, shafeour common stock or a combination of
cash and shares of our common stock, at our efectdheir respective conversion rates (listedWweds of December 31, 2013) subject to
customary antdilution adjustments and the requirements of thesspective indenture (the "Convertible UnsecureteBlindentures™). Prior
the close of business on the business day immédfateceding their respective conversion dategtidtelow), holders may convert their
Convertible Unsecured Notes only under certairuainstances set forth in the respective Convertiltisddured Notes Indenture. On or after
their respective conversion dates until the clddausiness on the scheduled trading day immedigtedgeding their respective maturity date,
holders may convert their Convertible UnsecuredeNatt any time. In addition, if we engage in cartarporate events as described in their
respective Convertible Unsecured Notes Indentwilglehns of the Convertible Unsecured Notes may requs to repurchase for cash all or
part of the Convertible Unsecured Notes at a rdpasge price equal to 100% of the principal amounthefConvertible Unsecured Notes to be
repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interestghrdaut excluding, the required repurchase date.

84




Certain key terms related to the convestibhtures for each of the Convertible Unsecuregdas of December 31, 2013 are listed
below.

February 2016 June 201€ 2017 2018 2019
Convertible Notes Convertible Notes Convertible Notes Convertible Notes  Convertible Notes

Conversion

premium 17.5% 17.5% 17.5% 17.5% 15.%
Closing stocl

price at

issuance $16.2¢ $16.2( $16.4¢ $16.9: $17.5:
Closing stocl

price date January 19, 20: March 22, 201 March 8, 201 October 3, 201 July 15, 201
Conversion

price(1) $18.7: $18.6: $19.1: $19.7¢ $20.1(
Conversion

rate (share

per one

thousand

dollar

principal

amount)(1 53.447 53.711¢ 52.328 50.616( 49.744¢
Conversion

dates August 15, 201 December 15, 20: September 15, 20 July 15, 201 July 15, 201
1) Represents conversion price and conversion ratpel&able, as of December 31, 2013, taking ictmant certain de minimis adjustments that wilhieede

on the conversion dat
Unsecured Notes
2018 Notes

In November 2013, we issued $600.0 millimaggregate principal amount of senior unsecucgds) which bear interest at a rate of
4.875% per year and mature on November 30, 20E8'2018 Notes"). The 2018 Notes require paymeintefest semi-annually, and all
principal is due upon maturity. These notes areeathble in whole or in part at any time at ouraptt a redemption price equal to par plus
a "make whole" premium, as determined in the ingengoverning the 2018 Notes, and any accrued apdid interest. See "Recent
Developments," as well as Note 16 to our consddidifinancial statements for the year ended DeceBibe2013 for more information on the
2018 Notes.

February 2022 Notes

In February 2012, we issued $143.8 miliioaggregate principal amount of senior unsecumds) which bear interest at a rate of 7.
per year and mature on February 15, 2022 (the Usepr2022 Notes"). The February 2022 Notes requasament of interest quarterly, and all
principal is due upon maturity. These notes aregathble in whole or in part at any time or fromeita time at our option on or after
February 15, 2015, at a par redemption price of82per security plus accrued and unpaid interest.

October 2022 Notes

In September 2012 and October 2012, weds$182.5 million in aggregate principal amounserior unsecured notes, which bear
interest at a rate of 5.875% per year and matui@ataber 1, 2022 (the "October 2022 Notes"). Theoler 2022 Notes require payment of
interest quarterly and all principal is due uportumity. These notes are redeemable in whole oaih gt any time or from time to time at our
option on or after October 1, 2015, at a par redemprice of $25.00 per security plus accrued amgiaid interest.

2040 Notes

In October 2010, we issued $200.0 millioaggregate principal amount of senior unsecur¢glsnshich bear interest at a rate of 7.75%
and mature on October 15, 2040 (the "2040 Notd&$1g. 2040 Notes require payment of interest quarstarid all principal is due upon
maturity. These notes are redeemable in whole paihat any time or from time to time at our optan or after October 15, 2015, at a par
redemption price of $25.00 per security plus actraed unpaid interest.
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2047 Notes

As part of the Allied Acquisition, we assedn$230.0 million aggregate principal amount ofi@eansecured notes which bear interest at
a rate of 6.875% and mature on April 15, 2047 (G217 Notes" and together with the 2018 NotesRbleruary 2022 Notes, the October 2
Notes and the 2040 Notes, the "Unsecured Notek§.2D47 Notes require payment of interest quartarig all principal is due upc
maturity. These notes are redeemable in whole paihat any time or from time to time at our optiat a par redemption price of $25.00 per
security plus accrued and unpaid interest.

As of December 31, 2013 we were in comiaim all material respects with the terms of tlomrtible Unsecured Notes Indentures
and the indentures governing the Unsecured Notes.

The Convertible Unsecured Notes and thestimed Notes are our senior unsecured obligatiodsank senior in right of payment to
our existing and future indebtedness that is egyesibordinated in right of payment to the ConbégtUnsecured Notes and the Unsecured
Notes; equal in right of payment to our existingl &mure unsecured indebtedness that is not eXgregisordinated; effectively junior in rigl
of payment to any of our secured indebtednessuirng existing unsecured indebtedness that we ateure) to the extent of the value of the
assets securing such indebtedness; and structjumaity to all existing and future indebtednesgl(iding trade payables) incurred by our
subsidiaries, financing vehicles or similar fagié

See Note 5 to our consolidated financiaieshents for the year ended December 31, 2013doz detail on the Company's debt
obligations.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

A summary of the maturities of our prindipanounts of debt and other contractual paymerngatibns as of December 31, 2013 are as
follows:

Payments Due by Perioc
Less than After

(in millions) Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Revolving Credit Facility $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Revolving Funding Facilit 185.( — — 185.( —
SMBC Funding Facility — — — — —
February 2016 Convertible Not 575.( — 575.( — —
June 2016 Convertible Not 230.( — 230.( — —
2017 Convertible Note 162. — — 162. —
2018 Convertible Note 270.( — — 270.( —
2019 Convertible Note 300.( — — — 300.(
2018 Notes 600.( — — 600.( —
February 2022 Note 143.¢ — — — 143.¢
October 2022 Note 182.% — — — 182.%
2040 Notes 200.( — — — 200.(
2047 Notes 230.( — — — 230.(
Operating lease obligatiol 72.C 7.2 12.C 12.5 40.:
$ 3,150.( $ 7.2 $ 817.C $ 1,230.C $ 1,096.¢
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has various commitments to fomdstments in its portfolio, as described below.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Caypad the following commitments to fund variougaleing and delayed draw senior
secured and subordinated loans, including commitsrtenfund which are at (or substantially at) tr@rany's discretion:

As of December 31

(in millions) 2013 2012
Total revolving and delayed draw commitme $ 834rf $ 441.¢
Less: funded commitmen (87.7) (82.1)
Total unfunded commitmen T47 .2 359.t
Less: commitments substantially at discretion ef th
Company (16.0 (6.0
Less: unavailable commitments due to borrowing loas:
other covenant restrictiol (1.7) (0.6)
Total net adjusted unfunded revolving and delayravd
commitments $ 729.7 $ 352«

Included within the total revolving and aigéd draw commitments as of December 31, 2013 em@renitments to issue up to
$39.9 million in letters of credit through a findaldntermediary on behalf of certain portfolio cpamies. As of December 31, 2013, the
Company had $16.3 million in letters of credit isdwand outstanding under these commitments onfoaftthle portfolio companies. In
addition to these letters of credit included asd pf the total revolving and delayed draw comneitrts to portfolio companies, as of
December 31, 2013 the Company also had $27.0 mitifdetters of credit issued and outstanding dmelfeof other portfolio companies. For
all these letters of credit issued and outstandimgCompany would be required to make paymentsitd parties if the portfolio companies
were to default on their related payment obligatiddone of these letters of credit issued and antlihg are recorded as a liability on the
Company's balance sheet as such letters of creditomsidered in the valuation of the investmemthié portfolio company. Of these letter:
credit, $42.5 million expire in 2014 and $0.8 nailiexpire in 2015.

The Company also has commitments to cosinivethe SSLP for the Company's portion of the BSlcommitments to fund delayed
draw investments to certain portfolio companiethef SSLP. See "Senior Secured Loan Program” abul/&late 4 to our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended Decembg2@113 for more information.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Cowypaas party to subscription agreements to fundtgiuwestments in private equity
investment partnerships as follows:

As of December 31

(in millions) 2013 2012
Total private equity commitmen $ 59.E $ 131.(
Less: funded private equity commitme (11.9) (66.5)
Total unfunded private equity commitme| 47.€ 64.5
Less: private equity commitments substantially at
discretion of the Compar (43.2) (53.7)
Total net adjusted unfunded private equity committs $ 44 $ 11«4

In the ordinary course of business, we s®lycertain of our investments to third party fhasers. In particular, in connection with the
sale of certain controlled portfolio company equiityestments (as well as certain other sales),ave hand may continue to do so in the
future, agreed
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to indemnify such purchasers for future liabilite$sing from the investments and the related satesaction. Such indemnification provisis
may give rise to future liabilities.

As of December 31, 2013, one of the Com|sapgrtfolio companies, Ciena Capital LLC ("Ciendiad one non-recourse securitization
Small Business Administration ("SBA") loan warehedacility, which has reached its maturity date tamhains outstanding. Ciena is work
with the providers of the SBA loan warehouse facilvith regard to the repayment of that facilityllidd Capital had previously issued a
performance guaranty (which Ares Capital succe¢ded a result of the Allied Acquisition) wherebye& Capital must indemnify the
warehouse providers for any damages, losses,ifiabiand related costs and expenses that theyimoayas a result of Ciena's failure to
perform any of its obligations as loan originatogn seller or loan servicer under the warehousiéitfa As of December 31, 2013, there were
no known issues or claims with respect to thisqrentince guaranty.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

In January 2014, we issued an addition&8D¥Lmillion aggregate principal amount of the 20idies (the "Additional 2018 Notes") at a
premium of 102.7% of their principal amount. Tqtabceeds from the issuance of the Additional 20085l net of underwriting discounts
and offering costs, were approximately $151.9 onilli

From January 1, 2014 through February 2@42we made new investment commitments of $23Bomjlof which $207 million were
funded. Of these new commitments, 69% were in liest senior secured loans, 20% were investmergsliordinated certificates of the S¢
to make co-investments with GE in first lien sersecured loans through the SSLP, 6% were in senlwordinated debt, 4% were in second
lien senior secured loans and 1% were in othetgquiestments. Of the $233 million of new investrheommitments, 93% were floating
rate, 6% were fixed rate and 1% were non-intereatibg. The weighted average yield of debt andratfttdome producing securities funded
during the period at amortized cost was 10.0%. Vslg seek to syndicate a portion of these new investrmommitments, although there can
be no assurance that we will be able to do so.

From January 1, 2014 through February 2@42we exited $409 million of investment commitrigeiOf these investment commitments,
75% were first lien senior secured loans, 23% weo®nd lien senior secured loans, 1% were prefeqaidy securities and 1% were other
equity securities. Of the $409 million of exitedr@stment commitments, 89% were floating rate, 108fteviixed rate and 1% were non-
interest bearing. The weighted average yield of dald other income producing securities exitecepaid during the period at amortized cost
was 8.9%. On the $409 million of investment comneitits exited from January 1, 2014 through Febru@r®Q14, we recognized total net
realized gains of approximately $5 million.

In addition, as of February 20, 2014, wd ha investment backlog and pipeline of approxitge#635 million and $145 million,
respectively. Investment backlog includes transastiapproved by our investment adviser's investm@mimittee and/or for which a formal
mandate, letter of intent or a signed commitmereHzeen issued, and therefore we believe are liketyose. Investment pipeline includes
transactions where due diligence and analysisngpeocess, but no formal mandate, letter of intersigned commitment have been issued.
The consummation of any of the investments inlthisklog and pipeline depends upon, among othegshione or more of the following:
satisfactory completion of our due diligence inigegion of the prospective portfolio company, oaceptance of the terms and structure of
such investment and the execution and deliverat$factory transaction documentation. In additiwa,may syndicate a portion of these
investments and certain of these investments maytria the repayment of existing investments. \&enot assure you that we will make any
of these investments or that we will syndicate postion of these investments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying consolidated financigkstents have been prepared on the accrual bascgofinting in conformity with GAAP,
and include the accounts of the Company and itsamated subsidiaries. The consolidated finarst@iements reflect all adjustments and
reclassifications that, in the opinion of managemare necessary for the fair presentation of éselts of the operations and financial
condition as of and for the periods presentedsigihificant intercompany balances and transacti@ve been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include funda fime to time deposited with financial institutand short-term, liquid investments in a
money market fund. Cash and cash equivalents atie¢at cost which approximates fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company places its cash and cash dgaigawith financial institutions and, at timesskdeld in money market accounts may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatsuréa limit.

Investments

Investment transactions are recorded otr#lue date. Realized gains or losses are meabyride difference between the net proceeds
from the repayment or sale and the amortized asshof the investment without regard to unrealigaiths or losses previously recognized,
and include investments charged off during thequemet of recoveries. Unrealized gains or lossesapily reflect the change in investment
values, including the reversal of previously reeafdinrealized gains or losses when gains or Iasse®alized.

Investments for which market quotationsragily available are typically valued at such keaiquotations. In order to validate market
guotations, we look at a number of factors to deiee if the quotations are representative of falue, including the source and nature of the
guotations. Debt and equity securities that arepnbticly traded or whose market prices are nadifgavailable (i.e., substantially all of our
investments) are valued at fair value as determimggod faith by our board of directors, basedamgng other things, the input of our
investment adviser, audit committee and indepenttiétt-party valuation firms that have been engagjetthe direction of our board of
directors to assist in the valuation of each ptidfmvestment without a readily available markabtption at least once during a trailing 12-
month period (with certain de minimis exceptionsdl ander a valuation policy and a consistently i@ppyaluation process. The valuation
process is conducted at the end of each fiscatepiand a minimum of 50% of our portfolio at faalue is subject to review by an
independent valuation firm each quarter. In addijtmur independent registered public accounting fbtains an understanding of, and
performs select procedures relating to, our investrmaluation process within the context of perfioigithe integrated audit.

As part of the valuation process, we m&g tato account the following types of factorsrafevant, in determining the fair value of our
investments: the enterprise value of a portfolimpany (the entire value of the portfolio companwtmarket participant, including the sun
the values of debt and equity securities used pitadize the enterprise at a point in time), theunaand realizable value of any collateral, the
portfolio company's ability to make payments aisceiirnings and discounted cash flow, the marketshioh the portfolio company does
business, a comparison of the portfolio comparecsisties to any similar publicly traded securitielsanges in the interest rate environment
and the credit markets generally that may affeetgtice at which similar investments would tradéhieir principal markets and other relevant
factors. When an external event such as a
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purchase transaction, public offering or subseqaquity sale occurs, we consider the pricing ingiddy the external event to corroborate
our valuation.

Because there is not a readily availableketavalue for most of the investments in our paitf, we value substantially all of our
portfolio investments at fair value as determinedaod faith by our board of directors, as describerein. Due to the inherent uncertainty of
determining the fair value of investments that dohmve a readily available market value, thevalue of our investments may fluctuate fr
period to period. Additionally, the fair value afiminvestments may differ significantly from thelwas that would have been used had a ready
market existed for such investments and may diffaterially from the values that we may ultimatedglize. Further, such investments are
generally subject to legal and other restrictiongasale or otherwise are less liquid than publicged securities. If we were required to
liquidate a portfolio investment in a forced ordidation sale, we could realize significantly I&san the value at which we have recorded it.

In addition, changes in the market envirentrand other events that may occur over the fith@minvestments may cause the gains or
losses ultimately realized on these investmenbetdifferent than the unrealized gains or lossisated in the valuations currently assigned.

Our board of directors undertakes a mutdtpvaluation process each quarter, as descridedbe

. Our quarterly valuation process begins with gaattfolio company or investment being initiallyluad by the investment
professionals responsible for the portfolio investitnin conjunction with our portfolio managemerarte

. Preliminary valuations are reviewed and discussi#ul our investment adviser's management and invegtprofessionals, ar
then valuation recommendations are presented tb@and of directors.

. The audit committee of our board of directors rexighese valuations, as well as the input of thadies, including
independent third-party valuation firms, with resip® the valuations of a minimum of 50% of ourtfalio at fair value.

. Our board of directors discusses valuations anchately determines the fair value of each investnireiour portfolio without
readily available market quotation in good faitlsdéh on, among other things, the input of our inwesit adviser, audit
committee and, where applicable, independent {héndy valuation firms.

Interest and Dividend Income Recognitic

Interest income is recorded on an accrasisband includes the accretion of discounts armttiration of premiums. Discounts from and
premiums to par value on securities purchasedamei@d/amortized into interest income over tredif the respective security using the
effective yield method. The amortized cost of irtm@nts represents the original cost adjusted ®atitretion of discounts and amortization
of premiums, if any.

Loans are generally placed on non-accta&lis when principal or interest payments are ¢ast30 days or more or when there is
reasonable doubt that principal or interest willdo#lected in full. Accrued and unpaid interesgénerally reversed when a loan is placed on
non-accrual status. Interest payments receivecoraacrual loans may be recognized as income dieap principal depending upon
management's judgment regarding collectability. fdoarual loans are restored to accrual status whendue principal and interest is paid
and, in management's judgment, are likely to remamment. The Company may make exceptions to thiiloan has sufficient collateral
value and is in the process of collection.

Dividend income on preferred equity sedesiis recorded as dividend income on an accrussélva the extent that such amounts are
payable by the portfolio company and are expeaidbtcollected. Dividend income on common equitusiéies is recorded on the record
date for private portfolio companies or on the @xebnd date for publicly traded portfolio compasie
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Paymen-in-Kind Interest

The Company has loans in its portfolio ttantain PIK provisions. The PIK interest, compus¢the contractual rate specified in each
loan agreement, is added to the principal balahtteedoan and recorded as interest income. To taiginthe Company's status as a RIC, this
non-cash source of income must be paid out to btadkrs in the form of dividends even though thenPpany has not yet collected the cash.

Capital Structuring Service Fees and Other Income

The Company's investment adviser seeksaige assistance to our portfolio companies innemtion with the Company's investments
and in return the Company may receive fees fortabgiructuring services. These fees are genenally available to the Company as a result
of the Company's underlying investments, are ndynpalid at the closing of the investments, are gahenon-recurring and are recognized
as revenue when earned upon closing of the investriibe services that the Company's investmensadwyrovides vary by investment, but
generally include reviewing existing credit fadééi, arranging bank financing, arranging equitgaficing, structuring financing from multiple
lenders, structuring financing from multiple equityestors, restructuring existing loans, raisiggity and debt capital, and providing general
financial advice, which concludes upon closinghaf investment. Any services of the above natursesgitent to the closing would generally
generate a separate fee payable to the Compaogrtain instances where the Company is invitecattiggpate as a co-lender in a transaction
and does not provide significant services in cotioeavith the investment, a portion of loan feegda the Company in such situations will
be deferred and amortized over the estimated fifeeloan. The Company's investment adviser mggy take a seat on the board of directors
of a portfolio company, or observe the meetingthefboard of directors without taking a formal seat

Other income includes fees for asset managé management and consulting services, loaragtees, commitments, amendments and
other services rendered by the Company to portfaimpanies. Such fees are recognized as income @drard or the services are rendered.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's books and records are maadan U.S. dollars. Any foreign currency amountsteanslated into U.S. dollars on the
following basis:

(1) Fair value of investment securities, other assedsliabilities—at the exchange rates prevailinthatend of the period.

(2 Purchases and sales of investment securities, e expenses—at the exchange rates prevailitigeaespective dates of
such transactions, income or expenses.

Results of operations based on changesrd@igih exchange rates are separately discloséwt isthtement of operations. Foreign security
and currency translations may involve certain abeisitions and risks not typically associated witkesting in U.S. companies and U.S.
government securities. These risks include, buhatdimited to, currency fluctuations and revaloas and future adverse political, social i
economic developments, which could cause invessriarforeign markets to be less liquid and pricesemolatile than those of comparable
U.S. companies or U.S. government securities.

Equity Offering Expense:
The Company's offering costs, excludingamditers' fees, are charged against the proceedsdquity offerings when received.
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Debt Issuance Cost

Debt issuance costs are amortized ovelifthef the related debt instrument using the gtialine method, which closely approximates
the effective yield method.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be treatedRi€ ainder the Code and operates in a manner soqgtify for the tax treatment applicable
to RICs. To qualify as a RIC, the Company must, mgnather things, meet certain sourcerafoeme and asset diversification requirements
timely distribute to its stockholders at least 96#4ts investment company taxable income, as ddftmethe Code, for each year. The
Company, among other things, has made and intenctsntinue to make the requisite distributiong$astockholders, which will generally
relieve the Company from U.S. federal corporatelévcome taxes.

Depending on the level of taxable incommed in a tax year, we may choose to carry forviaxdble income in excess of current year
dividend distributions from such current year tdeahcome into the next tax year and pay a 4% exgis on such income, as required. Tc
extent that the Company determines that its estichetirrent year annual taxable income will be icess of estimated current year dividend
distributions, the Company accrues excise taxpyf an estimated excess taxable income as suchléaixecome is earned.

Certain of our consolidated subsidiariessrbject to U.S. federal and state corporate-iaceime taxes.
Dividends to Common Stockholde

Dividends and distributions to common staulklers are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Tieuat to be paid out as a dividend is
determined by our board of directors each quandrigsgenerally based upon the earnings estimatedamagement. Net realized capital
gains, if any, are generally distributed, althomghmay decide to retain such capital gains for stwent.

We have adopted a dividend reinvestmemt filat provides for reinvestment of any distribotiave declare in cash on behalf of our
stockholders, unless a stockholder elects to reasagh. As a result, if our board of directors ariffes, and we declare, a cash dividend, then
our stockholders who have not "opted out" of owidéind reinvestment plan will have their cash davids automatically reinvested in
additional shares of our common stock, rather tkeapiving the cash dividend. We intend to use priignaewly issued shares to implement
the dividend reinvestment plan (so long as weradirig at a premium to net asset value). If oureshare trading at a significant enough
discount to net asset value and we are otherwisritied under applicable law to purchase such shave intend to purchase shares in the
open market in connection with our obligations uralér dividend reinvestment plan. However, we reséhe right to issue new shares of
common stock in connection with our obligations emnthe dividend reinvestment plan even if our share trading below net asset value.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financialé&@ements

The preparation of financial statementsanformity with GAAP requires management to makéretes and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of actual and contingent asseltfiabilities at the date of the financial statertseaind the reported amounts of income or
loss and expenses during the reporting period.&ctsults could differ from those estimates. Sigant estimates include the valuation of
investments.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In June 2013, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board issued Accounting Standards Updatel"A2013-08, Financial Services—
Investment Companies (Topic 946): Amendments t@itmpe, Measurement, and Disclosure Requiremeh&['2013-08"). ASU 2013-08
amends the criteria that define an investment compaarifies the measurement guidance and requedain additional disclosures. Public
companies are required to apply ASU 2013-08 prdspdy for interim and annual reporting periods imetng after December 15, 2013. We
have evaluated the impact of the adoption of ASW3208 on our financial statements and disclosunesdetermined the adoption of ASU
2013-08 did not have a material effect on our faiaihcondition and results of operations

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We are subject to financial market riskgJuding changes in interest rates and the valnsiid our investment portfolio.
Interest Rate Risl

Interest rate sensitivity refers to therggin our earnings that may result from changekarevel of interest rates. Because we fund a
portion of our investments with borrowings, our imetestment income is affected by the differencevieen the rate at which we invest and
the rate at which we borrow. As a result, therelmamo assurance that a significant change in rmartarest rates will not have a material
adverse effect on our net investment income. Séxk'IRactors—We are exposed to risks associatedoliinges in interest rates."

As of December 31, 2013, 81% of the investts at fair value in our portfolio bore interesvariable rates, 8% bore interest at fixed
rates, 9% were non-interest earning and 2% werearaccrual status. Additionally, for the varialdge investments, 71% of these
investments contained interest rate floors (reprtasg 57% of total investments at fair value). THeilities all bear interest at variable rates
with no interest rate floors, while the Unsecureatdd$ and the Convertible Unsecured Notes beaesitet fixed rates.

We regularly measure our exposure to istae risk. We assess interest rate risk and geaoar interest rate exposure on an ongoing
basis by comparing our interest rate sensitivetassaur interest rate sensitive liabilities. Bhsa that review, we determine whether or not
any hedging transactions are necessary to mitegqiesure to changes in interest rates.

While hedging activities may mitigate oupesure to adverse fluctuations in interest rategain hedging transactions that we may ¢
into in the future, such as interest rate swapegests, may also limit our ability to participatetihe benefits of lower interest rates with
respect to our portfolio investments. In addititrere can be no assurance that we will be abl&dotvely hedge our interest rate risk.
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Based on our December 31, 2013 balancé,ghedollowing table shows the annual impact ehincome of base rate changes in
interest rates (considering interest rate floors/émiable rate instruments) assuming no changesriinvestment and borrowing structure:

(in millions) Interest Interest Net
Basis Point Change Income Expense Income(1)

98z $ 56 $ 92¢
387 $ 37 $ 35C
(19.0 $ 12 $ (209
62 $ (03 $ 6.6
62 $ (03 $ 6.6
62 $ (03 $ 6.6

Up 300 basis poini
Up 200 basis poini
Up 100 basis poini
Down 100 basis point
Down 200 basis point
Down 300 basis point

@A BH PP P

Q) Excludes the impact of incentive fees based orirgrentive fee net investment income. See Notedito
consolidated financial statements for the year didlecember 31, 2013 for more information on theimive fee

Based on our December 31, 2012 balancd,shedollowing table shows the annual impact ehincome of base rate changes in
interest rates (considering interest rate floors/ériable rate instruments) assuming no changesriinvestment and borrowing structure:

(in millions) Interest Interest Net
Basis Point Change Income Expense Income(1)

Up 300 basis point 626 $ 9.C $ 53¢k
Up 200 basis point 221 $ 6. $ 161
Up 100 basis point (149 $ 3C $ (179
Down 100 basis point 58 $ (0.6) $ 6.4
Down 200 basis point 58 $ (0.6) $ 6.4
Down 300 basis point 5€6 $ (0.6) $ 6.2

& H PP PP

(1) Excludes the impact of incentive fees basegrerincentive fee net investment income. See Rdteour
consolidated financial statements for the year didlecember 31, 2013 for more information on theimive fee

Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Bta
See the Index to Consolidated FinanciaeBtants.

Item 9. Changes In And Disagreements With Accoudants On Accounting And Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls And Procedures

(8) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedwe The Company's management, with the participatfdche Company's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, hsluated the effectiveness of the Company's disoéocontrols and procedures (as defined
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchangg ascof the end of the period covered by this ref@ased upon such evaluation, the
Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finah@fficer concluded that our disclosure contraid arocedures were effective, as of
December 31, 2013, to provide assurance that irgftiom that is required to be disclosed by the Camgpa the reports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, suized, and reported, within the time periods dpetby the SEC's rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, withiouitation,
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controls and procedures designed to ensure thamation required to be disclosed by the Compartiigérreports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is accumulated and commiguida the Company's management, including itsf@&ecutive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, or persons performing similanétions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisioggarding required disclosure.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control overr@ncial Reporting. The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internalrotsover financial reporting (as defined in Rul8s-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange
Act). Under the supervision and with the participatof management, including the Chief Executivéidef and Chief Financial Officer, the
Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveioéshe Company's internal controls over finanmglorting based on the criteria
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framework (19985ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on the Company's evatuatider the framework imternal Control—Integrated Framework (1992)
management concluded that the Company's intermataise over financial reporting was effective aDafcember 31, 2013. The Company's
internal controls over financial reporting as ofd@mber 31, 2013, has been audited by our indepéngigistered public accounting firm,
KPMG LLP, as stated in its report titled "Reportiofiependent Registered Public Accounting Firmpage F-2.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrols over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the poligeprocedures may deteriorate.

(c) Audit Report of the Registered Public Accourgifrirm.  The Company's independent registered publiowting firm,
KPMG LLP, has issued an audit report on the effectess of the Company's internal control over firemeporting which is set forth under
the heading "Report of Independent Registered Péalcounting Firm" on page F-2.

(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repiing.  There have been no changes in our internat@omier financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 151 the Exchange Act) during our most recentiynpleted fiscal quarter, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

The information required by this item wik contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2014 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2013, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item wil contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2014 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2013, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Médrs

The information required by this item wil contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2014 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2013, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information required by this item wil contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2014 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2013, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item wil contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2014 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2013, and is incorporated hdrgireference.
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Item 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as pdrthis Annual Report:

1. Financial Statements—See the Index to Consolidaiteghcial Statements on Page F-1.
2. Financial Statement Schedules—None. We have onfittadcial statement schedules because they ameqotred or are not
applicable, or the required information is showrha financial statements or notes to the finarat@lements.
3. Exhibits.
Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement, as amenjl
3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amenc
4.1 Form of Stock Certificate(<
4.2 Indenture, dated June 16, 2006, between Allied @@b@orporation and The Bank of New York, as trag@
4.2 Form of Note under the Indenture, dated June 166 20etween Allied Capital Corporation and The Bahklew York, as trustee
(4)
4.4 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Marct2R8y, between Allied Capital Corporation and TlaamBof New York, as
trustee(5
4.5 Form of 6.875% Notes due 2047
4.€ Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of ApraQi,0, among Ares Capital Corporation, Allied Calp@orporation and The
Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee(
4.7 Indenture, dated as of October 21, 2010, betwees Sapital Corporation and U.S. Bank National Aggmm, as trustee(i
4.8 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of OctolheRQ10, relating to the 7.75% Senior Notes due€2bétween Ares Capital
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Associationtrastee(7
4.¢ Form of 7.75% Senior Notes due 204C
4.1C Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Febj@@12, relating to the 7.00% Senior Notes dug22Between Ares Capital
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Associationtrastee(8
4.11 Form of 7.00% Senior Notes due 202z
4.1z Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Septe@be?012, relating to the 5.875% Senior Notes202?, between Ares Capi
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Associationtrastee(9;
4.1 Form of 5.875% Senior Notes due 202z
4.14 Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Noverh®g?013, relating to the 4.875% Senior Notes2048, between Ares
Capital Corporation and U.S. Bank National Assaoigtas trustee(1(
4,15 Form of 4.875% Senior Notes due 2018(
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4.1€ Indenture, dated as of January 25, 2011, betwees Bapital Corporation and U.S. Bank National Aggam, as trustee(1:



4.17 Form of 5.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2016

4.1¢ Indenture, dated as of March 28, 2011, between Begstal Corporation and U.S. Bank National Assticrg as trustee(1:

4.1¢ Form of 5.125% Convertible Senior Notes due 2016

4.2C Indenture, dated as of March 14, 2012, between Begstal Corporation and U.S. Bank National Assticrg as trustee(1:

4.21 Form of 4.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 201)/

4.2z Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2012, betwees Sapital Corporation and U.S. Bank National Asgam, as trustee(1«

4.2% Form of 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2018

4.24 Indenture, dated as of July 19, 2013, between Bagstal Corporation and U.S. Bank National Assdorgtas trustee(1-

4.2% Form of 4.375% Convertible Senior Notes due 2010

10.1 Dividend Reinvestment Plan of Ares Capital CorporgtL6)

10.z Restated Investment Advisory and Management Agragrdated as of June 6, 2011, between Ares Capatigdoration and Ares
Capital Management LLC(1

10.2 Amended and Restated Custodian Agreement, datefd\ay 15, 2009, between Ares Capital Corporatind &.S. Bank National
Association(18

10.4 Amended and Restated Administration Agreement,ddaseof June 1, 2007, between Ares Capital Conporand Ares
Operations LLC(19

10.t Trademark License Agreement between Ares Capitgd@ation and Ares Management LLC(:

10.€ Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ares @dpLorporation and directors and certain offic2i$

10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ares @dZorporation and members of Ares Capital ManasgerhLC investment
committee(21

10.¢ Amended and Restated Purchase and Sale Agreermatsd, ab of January 22, 2010, among Ares CapitgldZation, as seller, and
Ares Capital CP Funding Holdings LLC, as purcha®x

10.€ Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Purchak8ala Agreement, dated as of June 7, 2012, amoag@apital
Corporation, as seller, and Ares Capital CP Fun#ialglings LLC, as purchaser(2

10.1C Second Tier Purchase and Sale Agreement, datddlaswary 22, 2010, among Ares Capital CP Fundiolgliigs LLC, as seller,
and Ares Capital CP Funding LLC, as purchaser

10.11 Amendment No. 1 to Second Tier Purchase and Saleefitent, dated as of June 7, 2012, among AresaC &t Funding
Holdings LLC, as seller, and Ares Capital CP FugdibC, as purchaser(2.
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10.12 Amended and Restated Sale and Servicing Agreematetd as of January 22, 2010, among Ares CdpRafunding LLC, as
borrower, Ares Capital Corporation, as servicerckidia Bank, National Association, as note purchddss. Bank National
Association, as trustee and collateral custodiad \Mells Fargo Securities, LLC, as agent(

10.12 Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated Sdl&arvicing Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2010,rajres Capital CP
Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Capital Corporatias servicer, Wells Fargo Bank, National Assocrgtas successor by merger
to Wachovia Bank as note purchaser, U.S. BankpoNaliAssociation, as trustee and collateral cuatgdind Wells Fargo
SecuritiesL LC, as agent(24

10.1¢ Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Sdl&arvicing Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2&hbng Ares Capital



10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2C

10.21

CP Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Capital Corparatias servicer, Wells Fargo Bank, National Asgamaas successor by
merger to Wachovia Bank as note purchaser, U.Sk Blational Association, as trustee and collateugtadian, and Wells Fargo
Securities, LLC, as agent(2

Amendment No. 3 to the Amended and Restated SdlSarvicing Agreement, dated as of October 13, 28dfbng Ares Capital
CP Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Capital Corporatias servicer and as transferor, Wells Fargo Bidational Association (as
successor by merger to Wachovia Bank, National éiasion), as note purchaser, U.S. Bank Nationabaisgion, as trustee,
collateral custodian and bank and Wells Fargo StesirLLC, as agent(2¢

Amendment No. 4 to the Amended and Restated Sdl&arvicing Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2@hdng Ares Capital
CP Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Capital Corporatias servicer and transferor, Wells Fargo Baratiddal Association (as
successor by merger to Wachovia Bank, National éiation), as note purchaser, Wells Fargo Secuyitie€, as agent, and U.S.
Bank National Association, as collateral custodtamstee and bank(2

Amendment No. 5 to the Amended and Restated Sdl&arvicing Agreement, dated as of June 7, 2012ngmires Capital CP
Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Capital Corporatias servicer and transferor, Wells Fargo Bank,dvati Association (as
successor by merger to Wachovia Bank, National éiation), as note purchaser, Wells Fargo Secuyitie€, as agent, and U.S.
Bank National Association, as collateral custodtamstee and bank(2:

Amendment No. 6 to Loan and Servicing Agreemertedias of January 25, 2013, among Ares Capital @RiRg LLC, as
borrower, Ares Capital Corporation, as servicer wadsferor, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as agéfdlls Fargo Bank, National
Association, as swingline lender, and the othedées party thereto(2¢

Third Amended and Restated Senior Secured Revoluiegit Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2013, betweaes Capital
Corporation, the lenders party thereto, and JPMofgjaase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent

Loan and Servicing Agreement, dated as of Januarg@12, among Ares Capital JB Funding LLC, asdwaer, Ares Capital
Corporation, as servicer and transferor, SumitonitsiMBanking Corporation, as administrative agentlateral agent and lender,
and U.S. Bank National Association, as collateustadian and bank(3!

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Janua2pP®, between Ares Capital JB Funding LLC, aslpaser, and Ares Capital
Corporation, as seller(3I
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Number

Description

10.2:Z

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

11.1

211

31.1

31.2

Omnibus Amendment No. 1, dated as of Septemhe2d®, among Ares Capital JB Funding LLC, as bheem Ares Capital
Corporation, as servicer and transferor, SumitonitsiWMBanking Corporation, as administrative agénider and collateral agent,
and U.S. Bank National Association, as collatemstadian and bank (amending the Loan and Servisgrgement, dated as of
January 20, 2012, and the Purchase and Sale Agngetlaged as of January 20, 2012)(

Omnibus Amendment No. 2, dated as of December@1B,2among Ares Capital JB Funding LLC, as borrowees Capital
Corporation, as servicer and transferor, SumitonitsiMBanking Corporation, as administrative agérider and collateral agent,
and U.S. Bank National Association, as collatemstadian and bank (amending the Loan and Servisgrgement, dated as of
January 20, 2012, and the Purchase and Sale Agnéettaged as of January 20, 2012)(

Custodian Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2009wben Allied Capital Corporation and U.S. Bank Na#éibAssociation(33
Form of Underwriting Agreement for Equity Secusiig4)

Form of Underwriting Agreement for Debt Securiti$Y

Statement of Computation of Per Share Earnings

Subsidiaries of Ares Capital Corporatic

Certification by President pursuant to ExchangeRute 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to SectioroBOfe Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002*

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuantExchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted purdaction 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002*



32.1 Certification by President and Chief Financial ©&fi pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adgpiesiiant to Section 906 of t
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002*

* Filed herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @any's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00663) for the qeraended September 30, 2012,
filed on November 5, 2012.

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the @any's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00663) for the geraeinded June 30, 2010, filed
on August 5, 2010.

3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (d) te tbompany's pre-effective Amendment No. 2 to thgifRetion Statement under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, on Form N-2 (§0. 333-114656), filed on September 28, 2004.

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit d.2 to Alli@dpital's Registration Statement under the Seear#ict of 1933, as amended, on
Form N-2/A (File No. 333-133755), filed on June 2006.

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits d.8 and ads9applicable, to Allied Capital's post-effectiven@ndment No. 3 to the Registration
Statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as datron Form N-2/A (File No. 333-133755), filed Miarch 28, 2007.

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1He €ompany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filedApril 7, 2010.

(7 Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1,ah@ 4.3, as applicable, to the Company's Form(Bilé No. 814-00663), filed on
October 22, 201(
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(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)
(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

(26)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 and ds2applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 8l01-00663), filed on February 2,
2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4rijy as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (NRibe 814-00663), filed on
September 25, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4r&] as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-ke(Rib. 814-00663), filed on
November 19, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 and ds2applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 8l1-00663), filed on January 28,
2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4rit] as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-ke(Rib. 814-00663), filed on March 28,
2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4r&] as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-ke(Rib. 814-00663), filed on March 14,
2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 and ds2applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 8l31-00663), filed on October 10,
2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4rfj as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-kKe(Rib. 814-00663), filed on July 19,
2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the® Company's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), fitedFebruary 27, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed on du) 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (j) to the Qamy's pre-effective Amendment No. 1 to the Regiigtn Statement under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, on Form N-2 (Fo. 333-158211), filed on May 28, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00663) for the teraended June 30, 2007, filed
on August 9, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (k)@)tte Company's pre-effective Amendment No. 1 éoRkgistration Statement under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, on Form N-& (§0. 333-114656), filed on September 17, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits (k)(3) and4k as applicable, to the Company's Registrafitaiement under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, on Form N-2 (File No. 333-I831filed on April 26, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.2 throght, as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-Ke(Rib. 814-00663), filed on
January 25, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10rbtigh 10.3, as applicable, to the Company's Foin(Bile No. 814-0663), filed on
June 8, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to thenpany's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00663) for the tgraended March 30, 2010,
filed on May 10, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed onuarry 19, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form -K (File No. 81--00663), filed on October 14, 201
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(27)
(28)
(29)

(30)

(31)
(32)

(33)

(34)

(35)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed onuarry 19, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed on Jany 28, 2013.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed on M&y2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 and 18applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 8i31-00663), filed on
January 24, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.th® Company's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filmdSeptember 17, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the® Company's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), fitmdDecember 23, 2013.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to Alli@éapital's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00138) for thmrter ended March 31, 2009,
filed on May 11, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits (h)(1) and2h as applicable, to the Company's Registrafitaiement under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, on Form N-2 (File No. 333-68)Filed on May 21, 2012.

Included in Note 9 to the Company's Notes to Cddat#d Financial Statements filed herew
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ares Capital Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying conselitlhlance sheet of Ares Capital Corporation (aihgidiaries) (the Company) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, including the consmiidachedules of investments as of December 3B a0d 2012, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgtsty, and cash flows, and the financial hightigy(included in Note 13), for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2013. These cdasedi financial statements are the responsibifith® Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementedas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on glasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. Our
procedures included confirmation of securities osvas of December 31, 2013 and 2012, by correspaedeith custodians, or by other
appropriate auditing procedures. An audit alsouides assessing the accounting principles usedigmifiGant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall fimshstatement presentation. We believe that oditeprovide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finan@tltements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of Ares
Capital Corporation (and subsidiaries) as of Decan3l, 2013 and 2012, and the results of theiraijmers and their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthet( 3, in conformity with U.S. generally accepéagdounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Ares Capital
Corporation's internal control over financial rejing as of December 31, 2013, based on criteribéished innternal Control—Integrated
Framework (1992issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrigeadway Commission (COSO), and our reportdiate
February 26, 2014 expressed an unqualified opioiothe effectiveness of Ares Capital Corporationtarnal control over financial reportin

As explained in Note 7 to the consoliddirdncial statements, the accompanying consolidfitedicial statements include investments
valued at $7.6 billion (156% of net assets), whHagevalues have been estimated by the Board afdbars and management in the absence of
readily determinable fair values. Such estimateshased on financial and other information providgdnanagement of its portfolio
companies, pertinent market and industry data,edlsas input from independent valuation firms. Tdhes/estments are valued in accordance
with FASB ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurasghich requires the Company to assume that thiégliorinvestments are
sold in a principal market to market participafiise Company has considered its principal markét@snarket in which the Company exits
its portfolio investments with the greatest voluamal level of activity. ASC 820 specifies a hieraroii valuation techniques based on whe
the inputs to these valuation techniques are obb&or unobservable. $7.6 billion of investment®acember 31, 2013 are valued based on
unobservable inputs. Because such valuations, aritydarly valuations of private investments amivgte companies, are inherently
uncertain, they may fluctuate significantly oveostperiods of time. These determinations of failue could differ materially from the valu
that would have been utilized had a ready markethiese investments existed.

}(PW(G, LLCP

Los Angeles, California
February 26, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ares Capital Corporation:

We have audited Ares Capital Corporati¢his Company) internal control over financial repay as of December 31, 2013, based on
criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framework (19985ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway
Commission (COSO). Ares Capital Corporation's manant is responsible for maintaining effective iingg control over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offriate&ontrol over financial reporting, includedtive accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our r@sgibility is to express an opinion on the Compsumternal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet andbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfaggreich other procedures as we considered necesghgycircumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fica reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @)ige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on theniizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Ares Capital Corporationintained, in all material respects, effective inedrcontrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishbdemal Control—Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtd8oard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheet of Ares Capital Corfmorgand subsidiaries) as of December 31, 201384@, including the consolidated
schedules of investments as of December 31, 20d 2@1h2, and the related consolidated statemerdparfations, stockholders' equity, and
cash flows, and the financial highlights (includedNote 13), for each of the years in the threeryegiod ended December 31, 2013, and our
report dated February 26, 2014 expressed an ufigdadpinion on those consolidated financial staats.

KP&V(@ LCP

Los Angeles, California
February 26, 2014
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(in thousands, except per share data)

As of December 31

2013 2012
ASSETS
Investments at fair valt
Non-controlled/noraffiliate investment: $ 5,136,61. $ 3,822,71!
Non-controlled affiliate company investmer 260,48: 323,05¢
Controlled affiliate company investmet 2,235,80 1,778,78
Total investments at fair value (amortized cos$66537,403 anc
$5,823,451, respectivel 7,632,89 5,924,55!
Cash and cash equivalel 149,62! 269,04.
Receivable for open trad 128,56t 131
Interest receivabl 123,98: 108,99
Other asset 106,43. 98,49’
Total asset $ 8,141,50- $ 6,401,22.
LIABILITIES
Debt $ 2,986,27. $ 2,195,87.
Management and incentive fees pay: 139,20t 131,58!
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 68,64 53,17¢
Interest and facility fees payat 42,82¢ 30,60:
Payable for open tradi 10C 1,64(
Total liabilities 3,237,06! 2,412,87:
Commitments and contingencies (Note
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share, 500,000mon share
authorized; 297,971 and 248,653 common sharesdssu®
outstanding, respective 29¢ 24¢
Capital in excess of par vall 4,982,47 4,117,51
Accumulated overdistributed net investment incc (8,78%) (27,910
Accumulated net realized loss on investments, §oreurrency
transactions, extinguishment of debt and otherntsa (165,040 (202,614)
Net unrealized gain on investme| 95,49 101,10«
Total stockholders' equit 4,904,44. 3,988,34
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 8,141,50- $ 6,401,22
NET ASSETS PER SHARE $ 16.4¢ $ 16.0<

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
INVESTMENT INCOME:
From nor-controlled/nor-affiliate company investment
Interest income from investmer $ 388,03« $ 328,34. $ 267,15
Capital structuring service fe 48,167 58,10¢ 55,01
Dividend income 17,96¢ 17,21¢ 12,43(
Management and other fe 94¢ 1,34: 1,31¢
Other income 17,05« 13,17( 6,13
Total investment income from n-controlled/no-affiliate company investmen 472,17: 418,17¢ 342,05
From nor-controlled affiliate company investmen
Interest income from investmer 19,53: 21,76% 30,56(
Capital structuring service fe 39t 3,682 73C
Dividend income 7,99¢ 1,32¢ 4,29¢
Management and other fe — 20C 502
Other income 218 52¢ 881
Total investment income from n-controlled affiliate company investmet 28,13 27,50: 36,96
From controlled affiliate company investmer
Interest income from investmer 240,36¢ 221,36 175,53«
Capital structuring service fe 43,11¢ 40,34¢ 41,59:
Dividend income 73,68: 21,19 21,64
Management and other fe 19,25 17,38: 14,92¢
Other income 4,99: 2,05¢ 1,771
Total investment income from controlled affiliatenspany investment 381,41} 302,34« 255,46!
Total investment incom 881,72: 748,02! 634,48
EXPENSES
Interest and credit facility fee 171,49! 142,97¢ 122,51:
Base management fe 104,85 86,22¢ 71,60:
Incentive fee 122,15: 127,04} 112,37
Professional fee 13,62¢ 12,04( 16,52¢
Administrative fee! 12,317 9,327 9,56°
Other general and administrati 12,76¢ 10,38: 12,02t
Total expense 437,210 387,99: 344,60
NET INVESTMENT INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXE! 444,51 360,03: 289,87
Income tax expense, including excise 14,10¢ 11,17: 7,474
NET INVESTMENT INCOME 430,40t 348,86: 282,40:.
REALIZED AND UNREALIZED NET GAINS (LOSSES) ON INVEBMENTS:
Net realized gains (losse!
Non-controlled/nor-affiliate company investmen 49,76: 61,857 24,61¢
Non-controlled affiliate company investmer (1,24%) (36,76¢) 13,64°
Controlled affiliate company investmer 15,20° 21,640 58,29¢
Net realized gain 63,72¢ 46,73¢ 96,56(
Net unrealized gains (losse
Non-controlled/nor-affiliate company investmen 22,11t 54,52 (29,43()
Non-controlled affiliate company investmer (1,129 49,38 (19,39Y)
Controlled affiliate company investmer (26,60:) 11,35¢ 8,63
Net unrealized gains (losse¢ (5,610 115,26: (40,197)
Net realized and unrealized gains on investm 58,11 161,99} 56,36¢
REALIZED LOSS ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEB” — (2,67¢) (19,319
NET INCREASE IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY RESULTING FRO
OPERATIONS $ 488,52. $ 508,17¢ $ 319,45.
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (see h09) $ 1.8 $ 221 $ 1.5¢€
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OUTSTANDIMBASIC
AND DILUTED (see Note 9 266,93¢ 230,15: 204,86(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2013
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Percentag:
Acquisition
Amortized of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Investment Funds and Vehicle:
CIC Flex, LP(9) Investment partnership Limitgattnership units (0.94 9/7/2007 $ 867 $ 2,851(2)
units)
Covestia Capital Partners, LP(¢ Investment partnership  Limited partnership interest 6/17/200i 82€ 1,177(2)
(47.00% interest
Dynamic India Fund 1V, LLC(9) Investment company Member interest (5.44% 4/1/201( 4,82 3,28t
interest)
HCI Equity, LLC(7)(8)(9) Investment company Member interest (100.00% 4/1/201( 112 334
interest)
Imperial Capital Private Investment partnership Limited partnershipriese 5/10/200° 3,31t 10,23:(2)
Opportunities, LP(9 (80.00% interest
Partnership Capital Growth Fur Investment partnership  Limited partnership interest 6/16/2001 1,411 3,93¢2)
I, L.P.(9) (25.00% interest
Partnership Capital Growth Investment partnership Limited partnershipriese 10/5/201: 2,80¢ 2,58¢(2)
Investors IlI, L.P.(9 (2.50% interest
Piper Jaffray Merchant Bankin¢ Investment partnership  Limited partnership interest 8/16/201: 632 563(2)
Fund |, L.P.(9; (2.00% interest
Senior Secured Loan Fund LLC Co-investment vehicle Subordinated certificates 8.24% (Libor + 10/30/200! 1,745,19; 1,771,36!
(7)(10) ($1,745,192 par due 12/20z 8.00%/Q)(26;
Membership interest (87.50% 10/30/200! — —
interest)
1,745,19. 1,771,36!
VSC Investors LLC(9) Investment company Membership interest (1.95% 1/24/200: 74t 1,211(2)
interest)
1,760,72 1,797,54 36.65%
Healthcare—Services
Alegeus Technologies Holdings Benefits administration Preferred stock (2,997 shares) 12/13/201: 3,081 3,081
Corp. and transaction process
provider
Common stock (3 share 12/13/201: 3 3
3,09( 3,09(
ATI Phyiscal Therapy Outpatient rehabilitation  Class C common stock (51,0( 12/13/201: 58 53
Holdings, LLC services provide shares’
AxelaCare Holdings, Inc. and Provider of home infusic  First lien senior secured loan 5.75% 4/12/201. 4,45¢ 4,45§2)
AxelaCare Investment services ($4,458 par due 4/2019) (Libor + 4.50%/Q) (25)
Holdings, L.P.
Preferred units (8,218,160 4/12/201: 822 855(2)
units)
Common units (83,010 unit 4/12/201: 8 9(2)
5,28¢ 5,322
F-6
Percentagt
Acquisition ~ Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
California Forensic Medical Correctional facility First lien senior secured loan 9.25% 11/16/201: 53,64( 53,64((3)
Group, Incorporate healthcare operat: ($53,640 par due 11/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (25)
CCS Group Holdings, LLC Correctional facility Class A units (601,937 units) 8/19/201( 60z 1,54€(2)
healthcare operat:
CT Technologies Intermediate  Healthcare analysis Class A common stock (9,67¢ 6/15/200° 2,54 4,0142)
Holdings, Inc. and CT services provider shares)
Technologies Holdings LLC(¢
Class C common stock (1,54t 6/15/200° — 641(2)
shares

2,54: 4,65¢



Dialysis Newco, Inc. Dialysis provider Firsti senior secured loan 5.25% 8/16/201. 15,50¢ 15,5042)
($15,509 par due 8/202 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (25)
Second lien senior secured loan 9.75% 8/16/201. 56,50( 56,50((2)
($56,500 par due 2/202 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (25)
72,00¢ 72,00¢
Genocea Biosciences, Inc. Vaccine discovery First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 9/30/201: 9,80¢ 10,00((2)
technology compan ($10,000 par due 4/201
Warrant to purchase up 9/30/201: — —(2)
689,655 shares of Series C
convertible preferred stoc
9,80¢ 10,00(
Gl Advo Opco, LLC Residential behavioral First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 12/13/201: 15,44¢ 15,45425)
treatment services ($15,005 par due 6/2017) (Libor + 4.75%/Q)
provider
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% (Base 12/13/201: 13 13(25)
($13 par due 6/201° Rate + 3.75%/Q
15,46: 15,46¢
INC Research, Inc. Pharmaceutical and Common stock (1,410,000 9/27/201( 1,517 1,75¢2)
biotechnology consulting  shares)
services
Intermedix Corporation Revenue cycle Second lien senior secured loan 10.25% 12/27/201. 112,00! 112,00((2)
management provider to  ($112,000 par due 6/2019) (Libor + 9.00%/Q) (25)
the emergency healthcare
industry
JHP Group Holdings, Inc. Manufacturer of speciali  Series A preferred stock 6.00% PIK 2/19/201: 27z 2,6742)
pharmaceutical produc (1,000,000 share:
LM Acquisition Holdings, LLC Developer and Class A units (426 units) 9/27/201: 1,00( 1,195(2)
(8) manufacturer of medical
equipmen
F-7
Percentag
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Magnacare Holdings, Inc., Healthcare professional  First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 9/15/2011 134,72: 135,45'(2)
Magnacare Administrative provider ($134,115 par due 3/2018) (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (25)
Services, LLC, and
Magnacare, LLC
First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 9/15/201( 56,13 56,69%(3)
($56,134 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 3/16/201: 4,66¢ 4,7154)
($4,668 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q), (25)
195,52: 196,86
Monte Nido Holdings, LLC Outpatient eating disord  First lien senior secured loan 7.75% 12/20/201: 44,75( 44,75((2)
treatment provider ($44,750 par due 12/2019) (Libor + 6.75%/Q) (19)
(25)
MW Dental Holding Corp. Dental services provider First lien senior secured 8.50% 4/12/201.: 4,50( 4,50((2)
revolving loan ($4,500 par du  (Libor + 7.00%/M) (25)
4/2017)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 4/12/201: 12,58: 12,58:(2)
($12,582 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 4/12/201: 12,46( 12,46((2)
($12,460 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 4/12/201: 48,757 48,75(3)
($48,757 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 4/12/201: 9,80( 9,80((4)
($9,800 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (25)
88,09¢ 88,09¢
Napa Management Servic Anesthesia management First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 4/15/201. 23,49¢ 23,49¢2)
Corporation services provide ($23,496 par due 4/201 (Libor + 5.25%/Q); (25)
First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 4/15/201.: 33,20 33,26(3)
($33,266 par due 4/201 (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (25)
Common units (5,000 unit 4/15/201.: 5,00( 8,89¢(2)
61,69¢ 65,65¢
National Healing Corporation a Wound care service at Second lien senior secured Ic 9.25% 12/13/201: 10,29 10,30%(25)
National Healing Holding Corf  equipment provide ($10,000 par due 2/202 (Libor + 8.00%/S;
Preferred stock (869,565 12/13/201: 1,29¢ 1,29¢
shares
11,59: 11,59:



Netsmart Technologies, Inc. a
NS Holdings, Inc

Healthcare technology
provider

First lien senior secured loan 7.25%
($2,833 par due 12/2017) (Libor + 6.00%/Q)
First lien senior secured loan 7.25%
($36,259 par due 12/2017) (Libor + 6.00%/Q)

Common stock (2,500,000
shares’

12/18/201:

12/18/201.

6/21/201(

2,83: 2,832)
17)
(25)
36,25¢ 36,25¢2)
17)
(25)
2,50( 2,71(2)
41,59: 41,80:



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
New Trident Holdcorp, Inc Outsourced mobile Second lien senior secured Ic 10.25% 8/6/201: 78,46 80,00((2)
diagnostic healthcare ($80,000 par due 7/2020) (Libor + 9.00%/Q) (25)
service provide
OmniSYS Acquisition Provider of technology-  First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 11/21/201: 21,00( 21,00((2)
Corporation, OmniSYS, LLC, enabled solutions to ($21,000 par due 11/2018) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (25)
and OSYS Holdings, LL( pharmacie:
Limited liability company 11/21/201: 1,00( 1,00((2)
membership interest (1.57%
interest)
22,00( 22,00(
PerfectServe, Inc. Communications softwa  First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 12/26/201: 3,46t 3,50(
platform provider for ($3,500 par due 4/2017)
hospitals and physician
practices
Warrants to purchase up 12/26/201. — 50
34,113 units of Series C
preferred stocl
3,46t 3,55(
PG Mergersub, Inc. and PGA Provider of patient Second lien senior secured loan 8.25% 4/19/201. 2,43¢ 2,37¢€(25)
Holdings, Inc. surveys, management (%$2,368 par due 10/2018) (Libor + 7.00%/Q)
reports and national
databases for the
integrated healthcare
delivery systen
Second lien senior secured loan 8.25% 4/19/201: 21,31¢ 21,38((2)
($21,316 par due 10/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (25)
Preferred stock (333 share 3/12/200¢ 12t 16(2)
Common stock (16,667 shart 3/12/200i 167 825(2)
24,047 24,597
Physiotherapy Associates Outpatient rehabilitation  Class A common stock 12/13/201: 3,09( 3,09(
Holdings, Inc. physical therapy provide (100,000 share:
POS I Corp. (fka Vantage Radiation oncology care Common stock (62,157 shares) 2/3/201: 4,67( 1,3752)
Oncology, Inc.) provider
RCHP, Inc. Operator of general acur  First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 11/4/201: 14,88¢ 14,6642)
care hospital ($14,887 par due 11/201 (Libor + 5.75%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 11/4/201: 60,49¢ 59,61:(3)
($60,518 par due 11/201 (Libor + 5.75%/Q) (25)
Second lien senior secured Ic 11.50% 11/4/201: 85,00( 85,00((2)
($85,000 par due 5/201 (Libor + 10.00%/Q; (25)
160,38- 159,27!
F-9
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Reed Group, Ltd. Medical disability Equity interests 4/1/201( — —(2)
management services
provider
Respicardia, Inc. Developer of implantabl¢  First lien senior secured loan 11.00% 6/28/201: 3,781 3,80((2)
therapies to improve ($3,800 par due 7/2015)
cardiovascular healt
Warrants to purchase up 6/26/201: 38 29(2)
99,094 shares of Series C
preferred stocl
3,82t 3,82¢
Sage Products Holdings Ill, LLC  Patient infectmomtrol Second lien senior secured loan 9.25% 12/13/201: 75,00( 75,00((2)
and preventive care ($75,000 par due 6/2020) (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (25)
solutions provide
Sorbent Therapeutics, Inc. Orally-administered dru¢  First lien senior secured loan 10.25% 4/23/201. 6,50( 6,50((2)
developel ($6,500 par due 9/201
Warrant to purchase up 4/23/201: — 25(2)
727,272 shares of Series C
preferred stoc!
6,50( 6,52¢
Soteria Imaging Services, LLC( Outpatient medical Preferred member units 4/1/201( — —

imaging providel

(1,823,179 units



SurgiQuest, Inc. Medical device compan)

U.S. Anesthesia Partners, Inc. Anesthesiologyiceer

provider
Young Innovations, Inc. Dental supplies and
equipment manufactur

First lien senior secured loan
($6,281 par due 10/201

First lien senior secured loan
($2,000 par due 10/201
Warrants to purchase up
54,672 shares of Series D-4
convertible preferred stoc

First lien senior secured loan
($30,000 par due 12/201

First lien senior secured loan
($9,697 par due 1/201

First lien senior secured loan
($32 par due 1/201¢

First lien senior secured loan
($13,304 par due 1/201

First lien senior secured loan
($44 par due 1/201¢

F-10

10.00%

10.69%

6.00%
(Libor + 5.00%/Q)

5.75%
(Libor + 4.50%/Q)
6.75% (Base
Rate + 3.50%/Q
5.75%
(Libor + 4.50%/Q)
6.75% (Base
Rate + 3.50%/Q

9/28/201:

9/28/201:

9/28/201:

12/31/201:

1/31/201:

1/31/201:

1/31/201:

1/31/201:

6,13 6,2812)
1,95: 2,00((2)
= —(2)
8,08¢ 8,281
30,00 30,00((2)
(25)
9,697 9,697(3)
(25)
32 32(3)
(25)
13,30: 13,3044)
(25)
44 44(4)
(25)
23,07, 23,07,
1163,14 1,172,78

23.91%



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Business Service
2329497 Ontario Inc.(8) Provider of outsourced Second lien senior secured loan 10.50% 12/13/201: 43,55 43,60%(25)
data center infrastructure ($42,333 par due 6/2019) (Libor + 9.25%/M)
and related service
Access CIG, LLC Records and informatior  First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 10/5/201. 992 992(2)
management services ($992 par due 10/2017) (Libor + 5.75%/M) (25)
provider
BluePay Processing, Inc. Technology-enabled  First lien senior secured loan 5.00% 8/30/201: 6,00( 6,00((2)
payment processing ($6,000 par due 8/2019) (Libor + 4.00%/Q) (25)
solutions provide
Cast & Crew Payroll, LLC and  Payroll and accounting First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 12/24/201: 18,10° 18,107(2)
Centerstage Co-Investors, L.L.. services provider to the  ($18,107 par due 12/2017) (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (18)
(6) entertainment industr (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 12/24/201; 45,26 45,267(3)
($45,267 par due 12/2017) (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (28)
(25)
Class A membership units 12/24/201. 2,50( 4,0212)
(2,500,000 units
Class B membership units 12/24/201. 2,50( 4,0212)
(2,500,000 units
68,37+ 71,41¢
CIBT Investment Holdings, LLC Expedited travel Class A shares (2,500 shares) 12/15/201. 2,50( 3,65¢(2)
document processing
services
CitiPostal Inc.(7) Document storage and First lien senior secured 6.50% 4/1/201( 3,50( 3,50((2)
management services revolving loan ($3,500 par du (Libor + 4.50%/M) (25)
12/2014)
First lien senior secured loan 4/1/201( 53,73 41,50%(2)
($53,731 par due 12/201 (24)
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 13,03¢ —(2)
($20,193 par due 12/201 (24)
Common stock (37,024 shar¢ 4/1/201( — —
70,26¢ 45,00:
Command Alkon, Inc. Software solutions Second lien senior secured loan 8.75% 9/28/201. 10,00( 10,00((2)
provider to the ready-mix ($10,000 par due 3/2018) (Libor + 7.50%/M) (25)
concrete industr
Second lien senior secured loan 8.75% 9/28/201. 34,00( 34,00((2)
($34,000 par due 5/201 (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (25)
44,00( 44,00(
F-11
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Coverall North America, Inc. Commercial janitorial Letter of credit facility 1/17/201: — —(2)
services provide (29)
eCommerce Industries, Inc. Business critical First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 12/13/201. 19,93¢ 20,217(22)
enterprise resource ($19,936 par due 10/2016) (Libor + 6.75%/Q) (25)
planning software
provider
GHS Interactive Security, LLC  Originates residential First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 12/13/201: 2,15:% 2,15425)
and LG Security Holdings, LLt  security alarm contrac ($2,091 par due 5/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q)
Class A membership units 12/13/201: 1,607 1,601
(2,560,000 units
3,76( 3,76(
HCPro, Inc. and HCP Acquisitic Healthcare compliance  Senior subordinated loan 3/5/201: 2,692 —(2)
Holdings, LLC(7) advisory service ($9,004 par due 8/201. (24)
Class A units (14,293,110 uni 6/26/200i 12,79: —(2)
15,48¢ —
IfByPhone Inc. Voice-based marketing  First lien senior secured loan 11.00% 10/15/201: 1,49( 1,53%2)
automation software ($1,533 par due 11/2015)
provider
First lien senior secured loan 11.00% 10/15/201: 838 83%(2)
($833 par due 1/201!
Warrant to purchase up 10/15/201: 88 64(2)

124,300 shares of Series C
preferred stocl




2,411 2,43(

Investor Group Services, LLC(6) Business consglfor Limited liability company 6/22/2001 — 63<
private equity and membership interest (8.5%
corporate client interest)
IronPlanet, Inc. Online auction platform  First lien senior secured 8.00% 9/24/201. 5,00( 5,00((2)
provider for used heavy revolving loan ($5,000 par du
equipmen 9/2015)
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% 9/24/201: 7,15t 7,27%(2)
($7,500 par due 7/201
Warrant to purchase to up 9/24/201: 214 24€(2)

133,333 shares of Series C
preferred stocl

12,36¢ 12,52:
Itel Laboratories, Inc. Data services provider foPreferred units (1,798,391 6/29/201. 1,00( 995(2)
building materials to units)
property insurance
industry
Keynote Systems, Inc. and Web and mobile clou First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 8/22/201: 164,58 164,58(2)
Hawaii Ultimate Parent performance testing and  ($164,587 par due 2/2020) (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (25)
Corp., Inc. monitoring services
provider
Class A common stock (2,97( 8/22/201: 2,97( 3,42¢2)
shares
Class B common stock 8/22/201: 30 35(2)
(1,956,522 share:
167,58 168,05:
F-12
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Market Track Holdings, LLC Business media consulti  Preferred stock (1,500 shares) 12/13/201: 1,98: 1,982
services compan
Common stock (15,000 shar¢ 12/13/201: 1,98: 1,982
3,96¢ 3,96¢
MSC.Software Corporation anc  Provider of software First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 12/13/201: 44,01t 44,03{(21)
Maximus Holdings, LLC simulation tools and ($42,750 par due 11/2017) (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (25)
related service
Warrants to purchase up 12/13/201: 424 424
1,050,013 shares of common
stock
44,43¢ 44,45]
Multi-Ad Services, Inc.(6) Marketing services and Preferred units (1,725,280 4/1/201( 78¢ 1,75¢
software provide units)
Common units (1,725,280 4/1/201( — —
units)
78¢ 1,75¢
MVL Group, Inc.(7) Marketing research Junior subordinated loan ($1¢ 4/1/201( — —(2)
provider par due 7/2012 (24)
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 30,26¢ 2,48%(2)
($33,337 par due 7/201 (24)
Common stock (560,716 4/1/201( — —(2)
shares’
30,26¢ 2,48t
NComputing, Inc Desktop virtualization First lien senior secured loan 10.50% 3/20/201: 6,50( 6,695(2)
hardware and software  ($6,500 par due 7/2016)
technology service
provider
Warrant to purchase up 3/20/201: — 5€(2)
462,726 shares of Series C
preferred stocl
6,50( 6,751
Pillar Processing LLC, PHL Mortgage services First lien senior secured loan 7/31/200: 3,982 3,321(2)
Investors, Inc., and PHL (%4,658 par due 11/2018) (24)
Holding Co.(6)
First lien senior secured loan 11/20/200° 5,86: —(2)
($7,375 par due 5/201' (24)
Class A common stock (576 7/31/201. 3,76¢ —(2)
shares
13,61: 3,321
Platform Acquisition, Inc. Data center and marthge Common stock (48,604 shares) 12/13/201. 7,53¢ 7,53¢

cloud services provide



Powersport Auctioneer
Holdings, LLC

PSSI Holdings, LLC

Powersport vehicle Common units (1,972 units)
auction operatc

Provider of mission- First lien senior secured loan
critical outsourced ($1,000 par due 6/2018)

cleaning and sanitation
services to the food
processing industr

F-13

6.00%
(Libor + 5.00%/Q)

3/2/201:

8/7/201:

1,00¢

1,00¢

87¢(2)

1,00((2)
(25)



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
R2 Acquisition Corp. Marketing services Common stock (250,000 5/29/200° 25C 154(2)
shares
Rainstor, Inc. Database solutions First lien senior secured loan 11.25% 3/28/201. 2,73¢ 2,80((2)
provider ($2,800 par due 4/201
Warrant to purchase up 3/28/201: 88 70(2)
142,210 shares of Series C
preferred stocl
2,82t 2,87(
Summit Business Media Paren Business media consulti Limited liability company 5/20/201: — 1,45¢2)
Holding Company LLC services membership interest (45.98%
interest)
TOA Technologies, Inc. Cloud based, mobile First lien senior secured loan 10.25% 10/31/201; 12,12 12,567(2)
workforce management  ($12,567 par due 11/2016)
applications provide
Warrant to purchase up 10/31/201: 60t 1,201(2)
2,509,770 shares of Series D
preferred stocl
12,72¢ 13,76¢
Tripwire, Inc. IT security software First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 5/23/201: 74,68 74,6842)
provider ($74,684 par due 5/201 (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 5/23/201: 10,26¢ 10,26¢2)
($10,266 par due 5/201 (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 5/23/201.: 49,87 49,87%3)
($49,875 par due 5/201 (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 5/23/201: 9,97¢ 9,975(4)
($9,975 par due 5/201 (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (25)
Class B common stock 5/23/201: 3C 84(2)
(2,655,638 share:
Class A common stock (2,97( 5/23/201.: 2,97( 8,3152)
shares
147,801 153,19¢
Venturehouse-Cibernet Financial settlement Equity interest 4/1/201( — —(2)
Investors, LLC services for intercarrier
wireless roaming
VSS-Tranzact Holdings, LLC(6 Management consulting Common membership interes 10/26/200¢ 10,20 5,23¢
services (5.98% interest
VTE Holdings Corp. Hosted enterprise resou  Common units (1,500,000 12/13/201. 3,86: 3,862
planning application units)
management services
provider
Worldpay (UK) Limited, Payment processing First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 12/13/201: 5,43: 5,39(25)
Worldpay ECommerce Limitec  company ($5,341 par due 10/2017) (Libor + 4.75%/Q)
Ship US Bidco, Inc., Ship
Investor & Cy S.C.A.(8
Common stock (936,693 12/13/201: 2,69¢ 2,732
shares’
8,12¢ 8,12¢
F-14
Percentagt
Acquisition ~ Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
X Plus Two Solutions, Inc. and  Provider of open and First lien senior secured 8.50% 4/1/201: 8,60( 8,60((2)
Plus One Solutions, Inc. integrated software for revolving loan ($8,600 par due
digital marketing 9/2014)
optimization
First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 4/1/201: 6,64¢ 6,86((2)
($7,000 par due 3/201
Warrant to purchase up 4/1/201 284 29<(2)
999,167 shares of Series C
preferred stocl
15,52¢ 15,75¢
768,66! 699,85t 14.27%
Education
American Academy Provider of education, First lien senior secured 6.00% 3/18/201: 2,25( 2,25((2)
Holdings, LLC training, certification, revolving loan ($2,250 par du (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (25)

networking, and
consulting services to

3/2019)



medical coders and othe
healthcare professione

First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 3/18/201: 56,23¢ 56,23¢(3)
($56,236 par due 3/201 (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 3/18/201: 4,651 4,651(4)
(%$4,651 par due 3/201 (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (25)
63,13° 63,137
Campus Management Corp. and Education software Preferred stock (485,159 2/8/200¢ 10,52( 3,331(2)
Campus Management Acquisiti  developer shares)
Corp.(6)
Community Education Offender re-entry and in  First lien senior secured loan 6.25% 12/10/2011 14,28¢ 14,28¢(2)
Centers, Inc. prison treatment service  ($14,286 par due 12/2014) (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (15)
provider (25)
Second lien senior secured Ic 15.24% 12/10/2011 35,28! 34,2252)
($35,283 par due 12/2015) (Libor + 10.00% Casl
5.00% PIK/Q)
Second lien senior secured Ic 15.26% 12/10/201¢ 10,64¢ 10,33((2)
($10,649 par due 12/2015) (Libor + 10.00% Cas|
5.00% PIK/Q)
Warrants to purchase up 12/10/2011 — 97<(2)
654,618 share
60,21¢ 59,82(
ELC Acquisition Corp., ELC Developer, manufacturer Preferred stock (99,492 shares) 12.00% PIK 8/1/201: 10,28¢ 10,28¢(2)
Holdings Corporation, and and retailer of education
Excelligence Learning products
Corporation(6,
Common stock (50,800 shar¢ 8/1/201: — 1,345(2)
10,28¢ 11,63:
F-15
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Infilaw Holding, LLC Operator of for-profit lan  First lien senior secured 8/25/201. — —(2)
schools revolving loan (27)
First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 8/25/201. 1 1(2)
($1 par due 8/201¢ (Libor + 8.50%/Q); (25)
First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 8/25/201.: 14,36: 14,3643)
($14,362 par due 8/201 (Libor + 8.50%/Q), (25)
Series A preferred units 9.50% 8/25/201. 124,89( 124,89((2)
(124,890 units (Libor + 8.50%/Q), (25)
Series B preferred units (3.91 10/19/201: 9,24t 11,06((2)
units)
148,49¢ 150,31«
Instituto de Banca y Private school operator First lien senior seddoan 4/24/201. 39,38t 35,5143)
Comercio, Inc. & Leeds IV ($39,459 par due 6/2015) (24)
Advisors, Inc.
First lien senior secured loan 4/24/201. 14,74¢ 13,29°(4)
($14,774 par due 6/201 (24)
Series B preferred stock 8/5/201( 5,00(¢ —(2)
(1,750,000 share:
Series C preferred stock 6/7/201( 68¢ —(2)
(2,512,586 share:
Common stock (20 share 6/7/201( — —(2)
59,82( 48,81
Lakeland Tours, LLC Educational travel First lien senior secured 10/4/201: — —(2)
provider revolving loan 27
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 10/4/201: 83,06 83,13:(2)
($83,140 par due 12/2016) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (14)
(25)
First lien senior secured loan 5.25% 10/4/201. 1,58¢ 1,585(2)
($1,585 par due 12/201 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 10/4/201. 40,277 40,36%(3)
($40,362 par due 12/2016) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (14)
(25)
First lien senior secured loan 5.25% 10/4/201.: 8,28( 8,291(3)
($8,297 par due 12/201 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (25)
Common stock (5,000 share 10/4/201. 5,00( 5,117(2)
138,20¢ 138,49:
PIH Corporation Franchisor of education- First lien senior secured 7.25% 12/13/201: 621 621(25)
based early childhood revolving loan ($621 par due (Libor + 6.25%/M)
centers 6/2016)
First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 12/13/201. 39,57( 39,59¢25)
($39,062 par due 6/201 (Libor + 6.25%/M)
40,19: 40,21¢



R3 Education, Inc. and EIC
Acquisitions Corp

Medical school operator

Preferred stock (8,800 shares 7/30/200¢
Common membership interes 9/21/200°
(26.27% interest

Warrants to purchase up 12/8/200!

27,890 share

F-16

2,20 1,93¢(2)

15,80( 29,5842)

= —(2
18,00( 31,52(



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
RuffaloCODY, LLC Provider of student First lien senior secured loan 6.50% (Base 5/29/201: 634 634(2)
fundraising and ($634 par due 5/2019) Rate + 3.25%/Q) (25)
enroliment management
services
First lien senior secured loan 5.50% 5/29/201. 24,99¢ 24,99¢(2)
($24,996 par due 5/201 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (25)
25,63( 25,63(
574,50! 572,90t 11.68%
Service—Other
Capital Investments and Ventur SCUBA diver training First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 8/9/201: 24,51: 24,5143)
Corp. and certification provide  ($24,512 par due 8/201 (Libor + 5.75%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 8/9/201: 8,71¢ 8,71¢(4)
($8,719 par due 8/201 (Libor + 5.75%/Q) (25)
33,23: 33,23
Competitor Group, Inc. and Endurance sports media First lien senior secured 10.00% (Base 11/30/201: 2,85( 2,50¢(2)
Calera XVI, LLC and event operator revolving loan ($2,850 par due Rate + 6.75%/Q) (25)
11/2018)
First lien senior secured 9.00% 11/30/201: 90C 79Z(2)
revolving loan ($900 par due (Libor + 7.75%/Q) (25)
11/2018)
First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 11/30/201; 24,38( 21,4542)
(%$24,380 par due 11/2018) (Libor + 7.75% Cash, (25)
1.00% PIK /Q)
First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 11/30/201; 29,85 26,274(3)
($29,853 par due 11/2018) (Libor + 7.75% Cash, (25)
1.00% PIK /Q)
Membership units (2,500,000 11/30/201: 2,51 17(2)
units) 9)
60,49¢ 51,04:
Fox Hill Holdings, Inc. Third party claims First lien senior secured loan 6.75% 10/31/201: 7,44: 7,44%42)
administrator on behalf ¢ ($7,442 par due 6/2018) (Libor + 5.75%/Q) (25)
insurance carrier
First lien senior secured loan 8.00% (Base 10/31/201: 3¢ 39(2)
($39 par due 6/201¢ Rate + 4.75%/Q (25)
7,481 7,481
ISS #2, LLC Provider of repairs, First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 6/5/201: 14,95( 14,95((2)
refurbishments and ($14,950 par due 6/2018) (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (25)
services to the broader
industrial end user
markets
First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 6/5/201: 4477 44,77%3)
($44,775 par due 6/201 (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (25)
59,72! 59,72t
Massage Envy, LLC Franchisor in the massa First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 9/27/201: 29,17: 29,17(2)
industry ($29,177 par due 9/201 (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 9/27/201. 49,29: 49,294(3)
($49,291 par due 9/201 (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (25)
Common stock (3,000,000 9/27/201: 3,00( 3,53%2)
shares
81,46¢ 82,00(
F-17
Percentagt
Acquisition ~ Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
McKenzie Sports Products, LLC Designer, manuf@tu  First lien senior secured loan 5.75% 3/30/201.: 8,14( 8,14((2)
and distributor of ($8,140 par due 3/2017) (Libor + 4.75%/M) (25)
taxidermy forms and
supplies
First lien senior secured loan 5.75% 3/30/201. 9,30z 9,30%(4)
($9,302 par due 3/201 (Libor + 4.75%/M) (25)
17,44: 17,44:
Spin HoldCo Inc. Laundry service and Second lien senior secured Ic 9.00% 5/14/201: 140,00( 140,00((2)
equipment provide ($140,000 par due 5/202 (Libor + 7.75%/Q) (25)
The Dwyer Group(6) Operator of multiple Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 1.50% 12/22/201 25,68¢ 25,68(2)
franchise concepts ($25,686 par due 6/2018) PIK
primarily related to home
maintenance or repai
Series A preferred units 8.00% PIK 12/22/2011 6,85¢ 18,65((2)

(13,292,377 units



32,54t 44,33t
Wash Multifamily Laundry Laundry service and Second lien senior secured Ic 9.75% 6/26/201: 78,00( 78,00((2)
Systems, LLC equipment provide ($78,000 par due 2/202 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (25)
510,38t 513,25 10.47%
Energy
Alphabet Energy, Inc. Technology developer to First lien senior secured loan 9.62% 12/16/201: 2,721 2,85((2)
convert waste-heat into  ($3,000 par due 7/2017)
electricity
Warrants to purchase up 12/16/201: 14€ 14€(2)
59,524 units of Series B
preferred stocl
2,861 2,99¢
Brush Power, LLC Gas turbine power First lien senior secured loan 6.25% 8/1/201: 89,89: 89,89:(2)
generation facilities ($89,892 par due 8/2020) (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (25)
operatol
Centinela Funding, LLC Solar power generation First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 11/14/201. 56,00( 56,00((2)
facility developer and ($56,000 par due 11/2020) (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (25)
operatol
Joule Unlimited Renewable fuel and First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 7/25/201: 7,43% 7,50((2)
Technologies, Inc. and Stichtini  chemical production ($7,500 par due 2/2017)
Joule Global Foundatic developel
Warrant to purchase up 7125/201: — 34(2)
32,051 shares of Series C-2 8)
preferred stocl
7,43 7,53¢
La Paloma Generating Natural gas fired Second lien senior secured loan 10.25% 8/9/201: 67,06( 67,32((2)
Company, LLC combined cycle plant ($68,000 par due 8/2018) (Libor + 8.75%/M) (25)
operatol
Panda Sherman Power, LLC Gas turbine power First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 9/14/201: 32,50( 32,50((2)
generation facilities ($32,500 par due 9/2018) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (25)
operatol
F-18
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Panda Temple Power II, LLC Gas turbine power First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 4/3/201 19,82( 20,00((2)
generation facilities ($20,000 par due 4/2019) (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (25)
operatol
Panda Temple Power, LLC Gas turbine power First lien senior secured loan 11.50% 7/17/201: 58,40: 60,00((2)
generation facilities ($60,000 par due 7/2018) (Libor + 10.00%/Q) (25)
operatol
Sunrun Solar Owner Holdco Residential solar energy First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 6/7/201: 59,74¢ 59,7442)
X, LLC provider ($59,749 par due 6/201 (Libor + 8.25%/Q) (25)
Sunrun Solar Owner Holdco Residential solar energy First lien senior secured loan  9.50% (Libor + 7.259  11/27/201. 19,07¢ 19,30((2)
Xlll, LLC provider ($19,300 par due 12/201 Cash, 1.00% PIK /C (25)
412,80: 415,29: 8.47%
Restaurants and Food Service
ADF Capital, Inc., ADF Restaurant owner and First lien senior secured loan 10.50% (Base 11/27/2001 33,58: 33,58:(2)
Restaurant Group, LLC, and operator ($33,581 par due 12/2018) Rate + 7.25%/Q) (20)
ARG Restaurant Holdings, In (25)
First lien senior secured loan 10.50% (Base 11/27/2001 10,92: 10,91¢3)
($10,919 par due 12/2018) Rate + 7.25%/Q) (20)
(25)
Promissory note ($16,558 par 13.00% PIK 11/27/2001 13,27 15,99(2)
due 12/2018
Warrants to purchase up 12/18/201. 24 —(2)
23,750 units of Series D
common stocl
57,80( 60,49°
Benihana, Inc. Restaurant owner and First lien senior secured loan 6.75% 8/21/201: 4,92t 4,925(4)
operatol ($4,925 par due 2/201 (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (25)
Garden Fresh Restaurant Corp. Restaurant owder an  First lien senior secured 10/3/201: — —(2)
operatol revolving loan 27)
First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 10/3/201: 43,75( 43,75((2)
($43,750 par due 7/201 (Libor + 8.50%/M) (25)
43,75( 43,75(



Hojeij Branded Foods, Inc.

Airport restaurant
operator

First lien senior secured
revolving loan ($450 par due
2/2017)

First lien senior secured loan
($12,500 par due 2/201

First lien senior secured loan
($15,000 par due 2/201
Warrants to purchase up
7.5% of membership intere
Warrants to purchase up to 3
shares of Class A common
stock
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9.00%
(Libor + 8.00%/Q)

9.00%
(Libor + 8.00%/Q)
9.00%
(Libor + 8.00%/Q)

2/15/201:

2/15/201:

2/15/201:

2/15/201:

2/15/201:

45¢ 450(2)
(25)
(28)

12,50( 12,50((2)
(25)

14,54 15,00((2)
(25)

— 29¢(2)

66¢ 4,307(2)

28,16. 32,55¢



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Orion Foods, LLC (fka Hot Stuff Convenience food service First lien senior secured 10.75% (Base 4/1/201( 9,50( 9,50((2)
Foods, LLC)(7) retailer revolving loan ($9,500 par due Rate + 7.50%/M) (25)
9/2014)
First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 4/1/201( 33,037 33,03(3)
($33,037 par due 9/201 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (25)
Second lien senior secured loan 4/1/201( 18,42 20,2052)
($37,552 par due 9/201 (24)
Preferred units (10,000 unit 10/28/2011 — —(2)
Class A common units (25,001 4/1/201( — —(2)
units)
Class B common units 4/1/201( — —(2)
(1,122,452 units
60,96( 62,74:
OTG Management, LLC Airport restaurant First lien senior secured loan 8.75% 12/11/201: 25,00( 25,00((2)
operatol ($25,000 par due 12/201 (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 8.75% 12/11/201. 7,07¢ 7,0752)
($7,075 par due 12/201 (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (25)
Common units (3,000,000 1/5/201: 3,00( 3,63§2)
units)
Warrants to purchase up 6/19/200i 10C 7,251(2)
7.73% of common unit
35,17¢ 42,97(
Performance Food Group, Inc.  Food service distributor Second lien senioussd loan 6.25% 5/14/201. 74,28: 74,85((2)
and Wellspring Distribution Cor ($74,625 par due 11/201 (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (25)
Class A non-voting common 5/3/200¢ 6,30 6,5242)
stock (1,366,120 share
80,58 81,37¢
PMI Holdings, Inc. Restaurant owner and Preferred stock (46,025 share 12/13/201: 687 687
operatol
Common stock (22,401 share 12/13/201: 37¢ 37¢
1,06¢ 1,06¢
Restaurant Holding Fast food restaurant First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 2/17/201: 59,30! 58,924(3)
Company, LLC operatol ($60,125 par due 2/201 (Libor + 7.50%/M) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 2/17/201. 9,12: 9,065(4)
($9,250 par due 2/201 (Libor + 7.50%/M) (25)
68,42t 67,98
S.B. Restaurant Company Restaurant owner and Preferred stock (46,690 share 4/1/201( — —(2)
operatol
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — —(2)
257,429 shares of common
stock
380,84! 397,87. 8.11%
Financial Services
AlIBridge Financial, LLC(7) Asset management Equity interests 4/1/201( 5,073 9,71¢
services
F-20
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Callidus Capital Corporation(7) Asset management Common stock (100 shares) 4/1/201( 3,00( 1,71
services
Ciena Capital LLC(7) Real estate and small  First lien senior secured 6.00% 11/29/2011 14,00( 14,00((2)
business loan servicer revolving loan ($14,000 par d
12/2014)
First lien senior secured loan 12.00% 11/29/201! 26,00( 26,00((2)
($26,000 par due 12/201
Equity interest: 11/29/2011 53,37« 10,92¢2)
93,37 50,92¢
Commercial Credit Group, Inc. Commercial equipment  Senior subordinated loan 12.75% 5/10/201: 28,00( 28,00((2)
finance and leasing ($28,000 par due 5/2018)
company
Cook Inlet Alternative Risk, LLC Risk management servic Senior subordinated loan 9.00% 9/30/201.: 1,75(C 1,75((2)
($1,750 par due 9/201
Gordian Acquisition Corg Financial services firr Common stock (526 share 11/30/201: — —(2)
Imperial Capital Group LLC Investment services 2006 Class B common units 5/10/200° 3 5(2)

(2,526 units’



2007 Class B common units 5/10/200° — 1(2)
(315 units)
Class A common units (7,710 5/10/200° 14,997 19,6742)
units)
15,00( 19,67¢
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.F  Asset management Member interest (100.00% 6/15/200! 170,96: 280,35:
(7)(9) services interest)
317,16: 392,13t 8.0(%
Consumer Product—Non-
durable
Gilchrist & Soames, Inc. Personal care First lien senior secured 6.25% 4/1/201( 8,70( 8,70((2)
manufacturer revolving loan ($8,700 par due  (Libor + 5.00%/M) (25)
12/2014)
First lien senior secured loan 13.44% Cash, 2.00% 4/1/201( 22,50¢ 21,83%(2)
($22,508 par due 12/201 PIK
31,20¢ 30,53
Implus Footcare, LLC Provider of footwear anc  Preferred stock (455 shares) 6.00% PIK 10/31/201 5,172 5,17%2)
other accessorie
Common stock (455 share 10/31/201 45E 17C(2)
5,621 5,34:
Insight Pharmaceuticals OTC drug products Second lien senior secured loan 13.25% 8/26/201. 19,16 19,31((2)
Corporation (6 manufactue ($19,310 par due 8/201 (Libor + 11.75%/Q; (25)
Class A common stock 8/26/201.: 6,03¢ 7,2342)
(155,000 share
Class B common stock 8/26/201.: 6,03¢ 7,23¢2)
(155,000 share
31,23t 33,77¢
F-21
Percentagt
Acquisition ~ Amortized
of Net
Company(1; Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Matrixx Initiatives, Inc. and Developer and marketer Warrants to purchase up 7/27/201: — 1,2142)
Wonder Holdings Acquisitio of over-the-counter 1,654,678 shares of common
Corp. healthcare produc stock
Warrants to purchase up 7127/201: — 1,1442)
1,489 shares of preferred stc
— 2,36:
Oak Parent, Inc. Manufacturer of athletic First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 4/2/201: 31,18¢ 31,2943)
appare ($31,295 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% (Base 4/2/201: 8t 86(3)
($86 par due 4/201¢ Rate + 6.00%/S (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 4/2/201: 8,81: 8,8444)
($8,844 par due 4/201: (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% (Base 4/2/201: 24 24(4)
($24 par due 4/201¢ Rate + 6.00%/S (25)
40,10t 40,24¢
PG-ACP Co-Invest, LLC Supplier of medical Class A membership units 8/29/201: 1,00( 1,52¢(2)
uniforms, specialized (2,000,0000 units)
medical footwear and
accessorie
The Step2 Company, LLC Toy manufacturer Sediemdsenior secured loan 10.00% 4/1/201( 25,08¢ 25,08¢(2)
($25,600 par due 4/201
Second lien senior secured loan 10.00% 4/1/201( 30,80: 26,2942)
($32,865 par due 4/201
Common units (1,116,879 4/1/201( 24 —
units)
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — —
3,157,895 unit:
55,91¢ 51,38(
The Thymes, LLC (7) Cosmetic products Preferred units (6,283 units) 8.00% PIK 6/21/200° 4,69¢ 4,221
manufacture
Common units (5,400 unit 6/21/200° — 6,687
4,69¢ 10,90¢
Woodstream Corporatic Pet products manufactur  First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 4/18/201: 8,46¢ 8,465(4)
($8,465 par due 8/201 (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (25)
Senior subordinated loan 11.50% 4/18/201: 77,41 80,00((2)
($80,000 par due 2/201
Common stock (4,254 share 1/22/201( 1,22: 2,685(2)
87,09¢ 91,15(
256,88 267,22t 5.45%




F-22



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Containers—Packaging
ICSH, Inc. Industrial container First lien senior secured 8/31/201: — —(2)
manufacturer, revolving loan (27)
reconditioner and servic
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 8/31/201.: 27,77 27,74((2)
($27,740 par due 8/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 8/31/201.: 61,51¢ 61,51¢3)
($61,518 par due 8/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 8/31/201: 14,71¢ 14,7144)
($14,718 par due 8/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (25)
104,01: 103,97!
Microstar Logistics LLC, Keg management Second lien senior secured loan 8.50% 12/14/201. 142,50( 142,50((2)
Microstar Global Asset solutions provider ($142,500 par due 12/2018) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (25)
Management LLC, and MStar
Holding Corporatior
Common stock (50,000 shar¢ 12/14/201. 5,00( 7,22%(2)
147,50( 149,72:
Pregis Corporation, Pregis Provider of highly- First lien senior secured loan 7.75% 4/25/201.: 97t 975(2)
Intellipack Corp., and Pregis customized, tailored ($975 par due 3/2017) (Libor + 6.25%/M) (25)
Innovative Packaging Inc. protective packaging
solutions
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% (Base 4/25/201.: 5 5(2)
(%5 par due 3/2017% Rate + 5.25%/Q (25)
98( 98(
252,49: 254,67! 5.19%
Manufacturing
Cambrios Technologies Nanotechnolog-based First lien senior secured loan 12.00% 8/7/201: 3,03( 3,03((2)
Corporation solutions for electronic ($3,030 par due 8/2015)
devices and compute
Warrants to purchase up 8/7/201: — 6(2)
400,000 shares of Series D-4
convertible preferred stoc
3,03( 3,03¢
Component Hardware Group, | Commercial equipment  First lien senior secured loan 5.50% 7/1/201< 23,70: 23,70(2)
($23,701 par due 7/201 (Libor + 4.50%/M) (25)
Lighting Science Group Advanced lighting Letter of credit facility 9/20/201. — —(2)
Corporation products (29)
Mac Lean-Fogg Company Provider of intelligent Senior subordinated loan 9.50% Cash, 1.50% 10/31/201: 100,25: 100,25:(2)
transportation systems  ($100,251 par due 10/2023) PIK
products in the traffic an
rail industries
F-23
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MWI Holdings, Inc. Provider of engineered  First lien senior secured loan 9.38% 6/15/201: 38,274 38,2742)
springs, fasteners, and  ($38,274 par due 3/2019) (Libor + 8.13%/Q) (25)
other precision
component:
First lien senior secured loan 9.38% 6/15/201.: 10,00( 10,00((4)
($10,000 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.13%/Q; (25)
48,27: 48,27
NetShape Technologies, Ir Metal precision First lien senior secured 7.50% 4/1/201( 53¢ 53¢&(2)
engineered components revolving loan ($538 par due (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (25)
12/2014)
Pelican Products, Inc. Flashlights First lienisr secured loan 6.25% 7/13/201. 2,317 2,317(4)
($2,317 par due 7/201 (Libor + 5.00%/Q; (25)
Second lien senior secured loan 11.50% 7/13/201. 32,00( 32,00((2)
($32,000 par due 6/201 (Libor + 10.00%/Q’ (25)
34,31° 34,317
Protective Industries, Inc. dba  Plastic protection produc First lien senior secured loan 6.75% 11/30/201: 997 997(2)
Caplugs ($997 par due 10/201! (Libor + 5.75%/Q; (25)
Preferred stock (2,379,361 5/23/201: 1,29¢ 4,831(2)
shares’
2,29t 5,83¢
Saw Mill PCG Partners LLC Metal precision Commuits (1,000 units) 1/30/200° 1,00( —(2)



SSH Environmental
Industries, Inc. and SSH Non-
Destructive Testing, Inc

TPTM Merger Corp.

Automotive Services
Driven Holdings, LLC

engineered componer

Magnetic sensors and
supporting sensor
products

Time temperature
indicator products

Automotive aftermarket
car care franchisc

First lien senior secured loan
($11,140 par due 12/2016)

First lien senior secured
revolving loan ($950 par due
9/2018)

First lien senior secured
revolving loan ($540 par due
9/2018)

First lien senior secured loan
($25,935 par due 9/201

Preferred stock (247,500 unit:

Common stock (25,000 unit
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9.00%
(Libor + 7.50%/Q)

6.25%
(Libor + 5.25%/Q)

7.50% (Base
Rate + 4.25%/Q)

6.25%
(Libor + 5.25%/Q;

3/23/201:

9/12/201:

9/12/201:

9/12/201:

12/16/201

12/16/201

10,99( 11,14((2)
(25)
95( 95((2)
(25)
54( 54((2)
(25)
25,93t 25,93(2)
(25)
27,42 27,42
251,82. 254,51
2,47 2,8542)
28 80£(2)
2,500 3,66(

5.1%



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Eckler Industries, Inc. Restoration parts and  First lien senior secured 8.25% (Base 7/12/201. 2,00 2,00((2)
accessories provider for  revolving loan ($2,000 par due  Rate + 5.00%/Q) (25)
classic automobile 7/2017)
First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 7/12/201.: 8,17: 8,174(2)
($8,172 par due 7/201 (Libor + 6.00%/M) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 7/12/201.: 30,60¢ 30,6043)
($30,609 par due 7/201 (Libor + 6.00%/M) (25)
Series A preferred stock (1,800 7/12/201. 1,80( 2,0312)
shares
Common stock (20,000 shar¢ 7/12/201. 20C 11€(2)
42,78 42,92¢
EcoMotors, Inc. Engine developer First lien senior secured loan 10.83% 12/28/201: 4,86¢ 5,00((2)
($5,000 par due 10/201
First lien senior secured loan 10.83% 12/28/201. 4,85¢ 5,00((2)
($5,000 par due 6/201
First lien senior secured loan 10.13% 12/28/201. 4,72¢ 4,83%(2)
($4,833 par due 7/201
Warrant to purchase up 12/28/201: — 43(2)
321,888 shares of Series C
preferred stocl
14,44¢ 14,87¢
Service King Paint & Body, LLC  Collision repaites First lien senior secured loan 4.00% 8/20/201. 7,617 7,61%(2)
operators ($7,617 par due 8/201 (Libor + 3.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 8/20/201.: 46,89¢ 46,89¢(2)
($46,898 par due 8/2017) (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (16)
(25)
First lien senior secured loan 4.00% 8/20/201. 6,39¢ 6,39¢(2)
($6,398 par due 8/201 (Libor + 3.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 8/20/201.: 72,13 72,1342)
($72,135 par due 8/2017) (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (16)
(25)
First lien senior secured loan 4.00% 8/20/201. 9,64¢ 9,64¢€(4)
($9,646 par due 8/201 (Libor + 3.00%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 8/20/201. 10,00( 10,00((3)
($72,135 par due 8/2017) (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (16)
(25)
Membership interes 8/20/201: 5,00( 6,94¢(2)
157,69: 159,64:
217,42: 221,10t 4.51%
Retail
Fulton Holdings Corp. (12) Airport restaurant First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 5/10/201: 43,00( 43,00((2)
operatol ($43,000 par due 5/201 (12)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 5/28/2011 40,00( 40,00((3)
($40,000 par due 5/201 (12)
Common stock (19,672 share 5/28/201( 1,461 2,08¢€(2)
84,46 85,08t
F-25
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1; Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Paper Source, Inc. and Pine Retailer of fine and First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 9/23/201. 18,95: 18,9542)
Holdings, Inc. artisanal papers, gifts, gift ($18,952 par due 9/2018) (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (25)
wrap, greeting cards and
envelope:
Class A common stock (36,364 9/23/201: 6,00( 6,66((2)
shares’
24,95; 25,61:
Things Remembered Inc. and Personalized gifts retaile  First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 5/24/201: 14,81% 14,81(4)
TRM Holdings Corporatiol ($14,813 par due 5/201 (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (25)
124,221 125,51 2.5¢%
Aerospace and Defens
Cadence Aerospace, LLC (fka  Aerospace precision First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 5/15/201: 4,42t 4,4544)
PRV Aerospace, LLC components manufactur  ($4,459 par due 5/201. (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% (Base 5/15/201: 6E 65(4)
($65 par due 5/201¢ Rate + 4.25%/Q (25)
Second lien senior secured loan 10.50% 5/10/201. 79,657 77,26(2)
($79,657 par due 5/201 (Libor + 9.25%/Q) (25)
84,14° 81,79:
ILC Industries, LLC Designer and First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 7/13/201. 18,88¢ 19,1944)



Wyle Laboratories, Inc. and Wy

Holdings, Inc.

Chemicals
Argotec, LLC

Emerald Performance
Materials, LLC

manufacturer of protecti
cases and technically
advanced lighting syster

Provider of specialized
engineering, scientific ar
technical service

Thermoplastic
polyurethane films

Polymers and
performance materials
manufacture

($19,192 par due 7/2018)

Senior preferred stock (775
shares)

Common stock (1,885,195
shares

First lien senior secured
revolving loan ($625 par due
5/2018)

First lien senior secured loan
($5,788 par due 5/201

First lien senior secured loan
($74 par due 5/201¢

First lien senior secured loan
($17,730 par due 5/2018)
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(Libor + 6.50%/Q)

8.00% PIK

7.00% (Base
Rate + 3.75%/M)

5.75%
(Libor + 4.75%/M)
7.00% (Base
Rate + 3.75%/Q

6.75%
(Libor + 5.50%/Q)

1/17/200¢

1/17/200:

5/31/201:

5/31/201:

5/31/201:

12/13/201:

(25)
111 111(2)
2,29 1,7242)
2,40. 1,83t
105,43 102,81 2.1(%
625 625(2)
(25)
5,78¢ 5,78(2)
(25)
74 74(2)
(25)
6,48" 6,48°
18,25t 18,26(25)



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
K2 Pure Solutions Nocal, L.P. Chemical producer First lien senior secured 8.13% 8/19/201: 2,25¢ 2,2112)
revolving loan ($2,256 par du (Libor + 7.13%/M) (25)
8/2019)
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 8/19/201. 41,50( 40,67((2)
($41,500 par due 8/201 (Libor + 6.00%/M) (25)
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 8/19/201. 40,00( 39,20((3)
($40,000 par due 8/201 (Libor + 6.00%/M) (25)
83,75¢ 82,08
108,49¢ 106,83( 2.1&%
Transportation
Eberle Design, Inc. Provider of intelligent First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 8/26/201: 30,35¢ 30,50((2)
transportation systems ($30,500 par due 8/2018) (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (25)
products in the traffic and
rail industries
PODS Funding Corp. Il Storage and warehousir  First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 12/19/201: 35,897 35,897(25)
($35,897 par due 12/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q)
United Road Towing, Inc. Towing company Warrants to purchase up to € 4/1/201( — —
shares
66,25¢ 66,39' 1.3%%
Printing, Publishing and Media
Batanga, Inc. Independent digital med  First lien senior secured 8.50% 10/31/201: 3,00( 3,00((2)
company revolving loan ($3,000 par du (23)
4/2014)
First lien senior secured loan 9.60% 10/31/201: 4,93¢ 5,03((2)
($4,936 par due 11/201 (23)
First lien senior secured loan 9.60% 10/31/201. 4,50( 4,50((2)
($4,500 par due 9/201 (23)
12,43¢ 12,53(
Earthcolor Group, LLC Printing management  Limited liability company 5/18/201. — —
services interests (9.30%
Encompass Digital Media, Inc.  Provider of outsourced First lien senior secured loan 6.75% 12/13/201: 20,23: 20,24:(25)
network origination and  ($19,651 par due 8/2017) (Libor + 5.50%/Q)
transmission services fo
media companie
The Teaching Company, LLC Education publications First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 9/29/2001 20,88¢ 20,4642)
and The Teaching Company provider ($20,886 par due 3/2017) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (25)
Holdings, Inc.
First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 9/29/2001 9,701 9,507(4)
($9,701 par due 3/201 (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (25)
Preferred stock (10,663 shar: 9/29/2001 1,06¢ 2,28%(2)
Common stock (15,393 shar¢ 9/29/2001 3 5(2)
31,65¢ 32,26
64,32t 65,03¢ 1.3%%
F-27
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Value Assets
Commercial Real Estate
Finance
10th Street, LLC(6) Real estate holding Senior subordinated loan 8.93% Cash, 4.07% 4/1/201( 26,25( 26,25((2)
company ($26,250 par due 11/201 PIK
Member interest (10.00% 4/1/201( 594 7,251
interest)
Option (25,000 units 4/1/201( 25 25
26,86 33,53:
American Commercial Real estate property Commercial mortgage loan 8.75% 4/1/201( 664 1,50((25)
Coatings, Inc (%$2,275 par due 12/202 (Libor + 7.50%/Q)
Cleveland East Equity, LL! Hotel operato Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( 1,02¢ 5,30¢
Commons -3, LLC Real estate develop Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( — —
Crescent Hotels & Resorts, LL( Hotel operator Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( — —(2)
and affiliates(7. (%$2,236 par due 9/201 (24)
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( — —(2)
($2,092 par due 6/201 (24)
Common equity intere: 4/1/201( — —




Hot Light Brands, Inc.(7)

NPH, Inc.

Oil and Gas
Geotrace Technologies, Inc.

Real estate holding
company

Hotel property

Reservoir procesasimy
developmen

First lien senior secured loan
($31,384 par due 2/201
Common stock (93,500 shar¢

Real estate equity intere:

Warrants to purchase up
69,978 shares of common stc
Warrants to purchase up
210,453 shares of preferred
stock
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4/1/201(

4/1/201(

4/1/201(

4/1/201(

4/1/201(

aC 255(2)
(24)

— —(2)
9C 252

5,291 5,53:

33,94( 46,12: 0.9%

8¢ —(2)

2,80¢ 635(2)

2,89: 63¢



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Value Assets
UL Holding Co., LLC and Petroleum product Second lien senior secured Ic 4/30/201: 9,51¢ 7,26((2)
Universal Lubricants, LLC(€ manufacture ($10,093 par due 12/201 (24)
Second lien senior secured Ic 4/30/201: 40,097 30,7942)
($42,812 par due 12/201 (24)
Second lien senior secured Ic 4/30/201.: 4,66¢ 3,5942)
($4,994 par due 12/201 (24)
Class A common units (151,2 6/17/201: 1,512 —(2)
units)
Class B-5 common units 4/25/200i 5,472 —(2)
(599,200 units
Class B-4 common units 6/17/201: 50C —(2)
(50,000 units.
Class C common units (758,5 4/25/200i — —(2)
units)
61,76¢ 41,64"
64,66 42,28! 0.86%
Health Clubs
Athletic Club Holdings, Inc. Premier health club First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 10/11/200 34,00( 34,00((2)
operator ($34,000 par due 3/2019) (Libor + 6.00%/M) (13)
(25)
CFW Co-Invest, L.P. and NCP  Health club franchisor Limited partnership interest 7/31/201. 4,15; 2,9152)
Curves, L.P (4,152,165 share:
Limited partnership interest 7/31/201. 2,21¢ 1,55¢(2)
(2,218,235 share:
6,37( 4,46¢
40,37( 38,46¢ 0.7¢%
Telecommunications
American Broadband Broadband Warrants to purchase up to 3 11/7/200° — 6,83
Communications, LLC, Americc communication services shares
Broadband Holding Company,
and Cameron Holdings of
NC, Inc.
Warrants to purchase up to 2 9/1/201( — 3,61¢
shares
0 10,44¢
EUNetworks Group Limited(8)  Broadband bandwidth First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 12/13/201: 21,19: 21,18%(25)
infrastructure provide (%$20,567 par due 5/201 (Libor + 6.50%/Q);
Quantance, Inc. Designer of First lien senior secured loan 10.25% 8/23/201. 3,40: 3,465(2)
semiconductor products  ($3,500 par due 9/2016)
the mobile wireless
market
Warrant to purchase up 8/23/201: 74 74(2)
130,432 shares of Series D
preferred stocl
3,47¢ 3,563¢
Startec Equity, LLC(7 Communication service ~ Member interes 4/1/201( — —
Wilcon Holdings LLC Communications Class A common stock 12/13/201: 1,82¢ 1,82¢
infrastructure provide (2,000,000 share:
26,49’ 37,00: 0.75%
F-29
Percentagt
Acquisition
Amortized Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Value Assets
Environmental Services
Genomatica, Inc. Developer of a First lien senior secured loan 9.26% 3/28/201. 1,43¢ 1,50((2)
biotechnology platform  ($1,500 par due 10/2016)
for the production of
chemical product
Warrant to purchase 322,4 3/28/201: — 6(2)
shares of Series D preferred
stock
1,43¢ 1,50¢
RE Community Holdings Operator of municipal Preferred stock (1,000 shares) 3/1/201: 8,83¢ 532(2)
I, Inc.and Pegasus Community recycling facilities
Energy, LLC.
Waste Pro USA, In Waste manageme Preferred Class A common 11/9/200t¢ 12,26 27,89¢(2)



services equity (611,615 share

22,54. 29,93¢ 0.61%

Food and Beverage
Apple & Eve, LLC and US Juice Juice manufacturer Senior units (50,000 units) 10/5/200° 5,00( 5,20¢
Partners, LLC(6

Charter Baking Company, Inc.  Baked goods Senior subordinated loan 17.50% PIK 2/6/200¢ 2,75( 2,75((2)
manufacture ($2,750 par due 6/201
Preferred stock (6,258 shar 9/1/200¢ 2,567 2,26((2)
5,317 5,01(
Distant Lands Trading Co. Coffee manufacturer las€ A common stock (1,294 4/1/201( 98C —(2)
shares
Class At common stock (2,1¢ 4/1/201( — —(2)
shares
98( —
11,29° 10,21¢ 0.21%

Wholesale Distribution

BECO Holding Company, Inc. ~ Wholesale distributor ¢ Common stock (25,000 share 7/30/201( 2,50( 3,10%(2)
first response fire
protection equipment an
related part:

2,50( 3,108 0.0€%
$ 7,537,40. $7,632,89 155.6%
(1) Other than the Company's investments listed imiatet 7 below (subject to the limitations set fdttarein), the Company does not "Control" any opitstfolio companies, for tt

purposes of the Investment Company Act of 194@nasnded (together with the rules and regulatioamplgated thereunder, the "Investment Company Abt'general, under
the Investment Company Act, the Company would "@dha portfolio company if the Company owned mtran 25% of its outstanding voting securities (securities with th
right to elect directors) and/or had the powentereise control over the management or policiesuch portfolio company. All of the Company's pditicompany investments,
which as of December 31, 2013 represented 156%eoCbmpany's net assets or 94% of the Companglsagrets, are subject to legal restrictions agssal

) These assets are pledged as collateral for thelReyCredit Facility and, as a result, are noedtly available to the creditors of the Compangatsfy any obligations of the
Company other than the Company's obligations utideRevolving Credit Facility (see Note 5 to theswlidated financial statements).

(3) These assets are owned by the Company's consdlisisitsidiary Ares Capital CP Funding LLC ("Ares GapCP"), are pledged as collateral for the ReimFunding Facility
and, as a result, are not directly available toctieglitors of the Company to satisfy any obligadiofthe Company other than Ares Capital CP's abibgs under the Revolving
Funding Facility (see Note 5 to the consolidatedfficial statements).

(4) These assets are owned by the Company's consdlisialteidiary Ares Capital JB Funding LLC ("ACJBA)e pledged as collateral for the SMBC FundingIfgend, as a
result, are not directly available to the creditoff¢he Company to satisfy any obligations of ttempany other than ACJB's obligations under the SNHBBding Facility (see
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements).

(5) Investments without an interest rate are non-incproducing.
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Net
Redemptions Capital realized Net
Purchases Sales Interest structuring Dividend Other gains unrealized

Company (cost) (cost) (cost) income service fee: income income (losses’  gains (losses
10th Street, LLC $ —$ —$ — $ 3361% — 9% — 9% —$ — $ 6,781
Apple &

Eve, LLC and

US Juice

Partners, LLC $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 3,807
Campus

Management

Corp. and

Campus

Management

Acquisition

Corp $ —$ —$ — 9% — 9% —$ —$ — 5 — $ (3,257
Cast & Crew

Payroll, LLC

and

Centerstage

Co-Investors,

L.L.C. $ — $ 6,62¢ $ 30,000 $ 6,177 $ — $ 126 ¢ 154 % — $ 3,04
CT Technologies

Intermediate

Holdings, Inc.

and CT

Technologies

Holdings, LLC $ — 3 16,19t $ —$ 87tE$ 39E$ 1,047 % 10 $ —$ 61¢
The Dwyer Grou $ — $ $ — $ 345t % — $ 5228 — ¢ — $ 4,16¢
ELC Acquisition

Corp. and ELC

Holdings

Corporatior ~ $ — 9 1,682 $ — 3 — 3 —$%$ 61218 — $ — $ (2,667)
Insight

Pharmaceutice

Corporatior ~ $ — $ —$ — $ 262' % — $ —3% — % — $ (2,114
Investor Group

Services, LLC $ — $ —$ — 9% — 9% — $ 17¢ 8 — $ 142 $ (78)
Multi-Ad

Services, Inc  $ — $ — $ — 3 — 3 — $ —$ — % — $ (287)
Pillar

Processing LL

and PHL

Holding Co. $ — $ 3527 $ — $ — $ — 9% —3$ — 9 46 $ (707)
Soteria Imaging

Services, LLC $ — $ 2,04¢ $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ (1,449 % 1,20¢
VSS-Tranzact

Holdings, LLC $ — $ — % — % — % — $ — $ — % — $ 1,58¢
UL

Holding Co., L $ —$ 29t $ — $ 3037 % — 8 — 8 49 $ 15 % (13,22%)

As defined in the Investment Company Act, the Comypa deemed to be both an "Affiliated Person” &dntrol" this portfolio company because it ownsrethan 25% of the
portfolio company's outstanding voting securitiest dias the power to exercise control over the agament or policies of such portfolio company (idéhg through a
management agreement). Transactions during thedofni the year ended December 31, 2013 in whieligbuer was both an Affiliated company and a pbeticompany that
the Company is deemed to Control are as follc

Net
Redemptions Capital realized Net
Sales Interest structuring Dividend Other gains unrealized

Company Purchases (cost) (cost) income service fee: income income (losses’  gains (losses
AllBridge

Financial, LLC $ — 3 59¢ ¢ — % — 3 —$ 86¢% — § —$ 2,508
AWTP, LLC $ — $ — $10,33:$ 1,231 $ — $ —$ 26¢%$ 8,74( $ (4,580
Callidus Capital

Corporation ~ $ — % — % — % — % — % — $ — $ — $ (6)
Ciena

Capital LLC  $ —$ 6,00C $ — $ 449 % — $ — $ — $ — $ (7,699
Citipostal, Inc.  $ 4,000 $ 4,73t $ —$ 547t $ — 3 —$ (32)% —$ (13,78)
Crescent Hotels

Resorts, LLC

and affiliates  $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 194 $ —
HCI Equity, LLC $ — $ 34C $ —$ —$ —$ — $ — % — $ 2217
HCP Acquisition

Holdings, LLC $ 6,69¢ $ — $ 355¢ % — $ — $ — $ — 3 (809 $ (3,13%)
Hot Light

Brands, Inc  $ — 3 157 — % — % — 3 —% — 8 — 3 69€
Ivy Hill Asset

Management, $ — $ — % — $ — $ — $ 72,40 $ — % — % (13,909
MVL Group, Inc. $ — $ 5,17¢ $ —$ 1% — % — % — $ — % 1,52t
Orion

Foods, LLC  $ 2,70C $ 6,71 $ —$ 428 % — $ —$ 80ES$ — $ 7,66¢
Senior Secured

Loan

Fund LLC* $ 652,45( $ 145,15 $ — $22486 $ 4311¢$ — $23,49. % 7,08Z $ 421



®)

©)

(10)

The
Thymes, LLC $ — % — % —$ —$ — % 41C $ — % — % 3,46(

* Together with GE Global Sponsor Finance LLC andesainElectric Capital Corporation (together, "GEHe Company co-invests through the Senior Secured
Loan Fund LLC d/b/a the "Senior Secured Loan Pmgrighe "SSLP"). The SSLP is capitalized as tratisas are completed and all portfolio decisions and
generally all other decisions in respect of the B&iust be approved by an investment committeeecoS8LP consisting of representatives of the Compand
GE (with approval from a representative of eacluiregl); therefore, although the Company owns mioa@ 25% of the voting securities of the SSLP, the
Company does not believe that it has control dverSSLP (for purposes of the Investment CompanyAotherwise) because, among other things, these
"voting securities" do not afford the Company tight to elect directors of the SSLP or any othexcsa rights (see Note 4 to the consolidated fire@nc
statements]

Non-U.S. company or principal place of businessidetthe U.S. and as a result is not a qualifyBggtiunder Section 55(a) of the Investment CompanyUnder the
Investment Company Act, the Company may not acquisenon-qualifying asset unless, at the time swcjuisition is made, qualifying assets represelgzast 70% of the
Company's total assets.

Excepted from the definition of investment companger Section 3(c) of the Investment Company Adt@sa result is not a qualifying asset under 8eé&b(a) of the
Investment Company Act. Under the Investment Comppest, the Company may not acquire any non-qualdyasset unless, at the time such acquisition @epgualifying
assets represent at least 70% of the Companylsasizts.

In the first quarter of 2011, the staff of the S@tes and Exchange Commission (the "Staff") infatip communicated to certain business developmempanies the Staff's
belief that certain entities, which would be cléissi as an "investment company" under the Invest@@mpany Act but for the exception from the defom of "investment
company" set forth in Rule 3a-7 promulgated untlerlhvestment Company Act, could not be treateeligible portfolio companies (as defined in Sectiga)(46) of the
Investment Company Act). Subsequently, in Augudti2ihe Securities and Exchange Commission isseedeept release (the "Concept Release") whichsstate "[a]s a
general matter, the Commission presently does el@ve that Rule 3a-7 issuers are the type of smedleloping and financially troubled businessestich Congress intended
BDCs primarily to invest" and requested commenivbether or not a 3a-7 issuer should be considerédlaible portfolio company". Ares Capital proeid a comment letter in
respect of the Concept Release and continuesivbahat the language of Section 2(a)(46) of theestment Company Act permits a business developooanpany to treat as
"eligible portfolio companies" entities that relp the 3-7 exception. However, given the current uncertaimthis area (including the language
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(11

(12)

(13)

14

(15)

(16)

an

(18)

19)

(20)

1

(22)

(23)

(24)
(25)
(26)

@7

(28)

(29)

the Concept Release) and subsequent discussidntheittaff, Ares Capital has, solely for purpasiesalculating the composition of its portfolio guant to Section 55(a) of the
Investment Company Act, identified these entitiethe Company's schedule of investments as "nolifgjng assets" should the Staff ultimately disagith Ares Capital's
position.

Variable rate loans to the Company's portfolio canies bear interest at a rate that may be detednhipeeference to either LIBOR or an alternate vase (commonly based on
the Federal Funds Rate or the Prime Rate), atdirewer's option, which reset annually (A), semivaally (S), quarterly (Q), bi-monthly (B), month{i) or daily (D). For each
such loan, the Company has provided the interéstimaeffect on the date presented.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour@.00% on $12 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertbolio company's senior term debt previously sygatiéd by the Company into "first out" and "last"dtainches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theadt out" tranche with respect to payments of ppaicinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour&.00% on $17 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's senior term debt previously sgatied by the Company into "first out” and "last'dténches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theadt out" tranche with respect to payments of ppaicinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amourg.85% on $60 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's senior term debt previously sgatied by the Company into "first out” and "last'dténches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theat out" tranche with respect to payments of ppialcinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amourit.©3% on $18 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertbolio company's senior term debt previously sygatiéd by the Company into "first out" and "last"dtainches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theat out" tranche with respect to payments of ppialcinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour.00% on $97 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's senior term debt previously sgatied by the Company into "first out" and "last'dténches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theadt out" tranche with respect to payments of ppaicinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amourg.©3% on $55 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's senior term debt previously sgatied by the Company into "first out” and "last'dténches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theadt out" tranche with respect to payments of ppaicinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour.00% on $27 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertpolio company's first lien senior secured loamkereby the “first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amourg.85% on $25 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loamkereby the “first out" tranche will have priorg to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour.00% on $23 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loankgereby the "first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour@t.85% on $45 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loankgereby the "first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amourg.85% on $36 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loamkereby the “first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

The Company is entitled to receive a fixed fee ufenoccurrence of certain events as defined icitbeit agreement governing the Company's debsinvent in the portfolio
company. The fair value of such fee is includethmfair value of the debt investment.

Loan was on non-accrual status as of December@3B. 2
Loan includes interest rate floor feature.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedstzontractual interest rate of this security,désificates entitle the holders thereof to reeevportion of the excess cash flow
from the SSLP's loan portfolio, which may resulaireturn to the Company greater than the contabstated interest rate.

As of December 31, 2013, no amounts were fundettiédyompany under this first lien senior securedléng loan; however, there were letters of crésued and outstanding
through a financial intermediary under the loare Sete 6 to the consolidated financial statemeott$uirther information on letters of credit comménts related to certain
portfolio companies.

As of December 31, 2013, in addition to the amotuntsled by the Company under this first lien sesirured revolving loan, there were also lettexsedlit issued and
outstanding through a financial intermediary urttherloan. See Note 6 to the consolidated finarst@ements for further information on letters afdit commitments related to
certain portfolio companies.

As of December 31, 2013, no amounts were fundettidfCompany under this letter of credit facilitpmever, there were letters of credit issued andtantling through a

financial intermediary under the letter of creditifity. See Note 6 to the consolidated financiatements for further information on letters ofditeommitments related to
certain portfolio companie
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2012

(dollar amounts in thousands)

Percentag:
Acquisition
Amortized of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Investment Funds and Vehicle:
AGILE Fund I, LLC(9) Investment partnership Meen interest (0.50% 4/1/201C  $ 124 $ 29(2)
interest)
CIC Flex, LP(9) Investment partnership Limited partnership units (0.9 9/7/200° 2,30z 3,57((2)
unit)
Covestia Capital Partners, LP(9) Investment gastmip Limited partnership interest 6/17/200: 1,05¢ 1,135(2)
(47.00% interest
Dynamic India Fund 1V, LLC(9) Investment company Member interest (5.44% 4/1/201( 4,82 3,104
interest)
HCI Equity, LLC(7)(8)(9) Investment company Mier interest (100.00% 4/1/201( 452 447
interest)
Imperial Capital Private Investment partnership Limited partnership interest 5/10/200° 6,051 8,341(2)
Opportunities, LP(9 (80.00% interest
Partnership Capital Growth Fund Investment partnership Limited partnershipriese 6/16/2001 1,59¢ 4,19%(2)
I, L.P.(9) (25.00% interest
Partnership Capital Growth Investment partnership Limited partnership interest 10/5/201: 1,96¢ 1,8142)
Fund IlI, L.P.(9) (2.50% interest
Piper Jaffray Merchant Banking Investment partnership Limited partnershipriese 8/16/201: 28¢€ 25¢(2)
Fund I, L.P.(9] (2.00% interest
Senior Secured Loan Fund LLC(  Co-investment vehicle Subordinated certificates 8.31% 10/30/200! 1,237,88 1,263,64
(10) ($1,244,969 par due 12/2022  (Libor + 8.00%/Q
(21)
Membership interest (87.50% 10/30/200! — —
interest)
1,237,88 1,263,64
VSC Investors LLC(9) Investment company Membgranterest (1.95% 1/24/200: 387 854(2)
interest)
1,256,93 1,287,39 32.2t%
Healthcare—Services
California Forensic Medical Grou Correctional facility First lien senior secured 10.25% (Base 11/16/201: 2,00( 2,00((2)
Incorporated healthcare operator revolving loan ($2,000 par du  Rate + 7.00%/Q} (20)
11/2018) (23)
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% 11/16/201: 54,18: 54,184(2)
($54,182 par due 11/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q (20)
56,18: 56,18:
CCS Group Holdings, LLC Correctional facility Class A units (601,937 units) 8/19/2011 60z 1,20%(2)
healthcare operat:
CT Technologies Intermediate Healthcare analysis servic  First lien senior secured loan 7.75% 3/15/201: 7,56t 7,26%2)
Holdings, Inc. and CT ($7,565 par due 3/2017) (Libor + 6.50%/Q (20)
Technologies Holdings LLC(¢
First lien senior secured loan 7.75% 3/15/201: 7,172 6,885(3)
($7,172 par due 3/201 (Libor + 6.50%/Q (20)
Class A common stock (9,67¢ 6/15/200° 4,00( 4,7742)
shares’
Class C common stock (1,54t 6/15/200° — 1,31€(2)
shares
18,731 20,23¢
INC Research, Inc. Pharmaceutical and Common stock (1,410,000 9/27/201( 1,51z 92<(2)
biotechnology consulting  shares)
services
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Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets




Intermedix Corporation Revenue cycle managem: Second lien senior secured Ic 10.25% 12/27/201: 112,00( 112,00((2)
provider to the emergency ($112,000 par due 6/2019) (Libor + 9.00%/Q); (20)
healthcare industr

Magnacare Holdings, Inc., Healthcare professional First lien senior secured loan 9.75% 9/15/201( 15,29¢ 15,2942)

Magnacare Administrative provider ($15,298 par due 3/2018) (Libor + 8.75%/Q; (20)

Services, LLC, and

Magnacare, LLC

First lien senior secured loan 9.75% 9/15/201( 42,84¢ 42,84¢(3)
($42,846 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.75%/Q; (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.75% 9/15/201( 4,86¢ 4,86¢(4)
(%$4,869 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.75%/Q; (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.75% 3/16/201: 55,30% 55,30%(2)
($55,307 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.75%/Q! (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.75% 3/16/201: 15,57¢ 15,5743)
($15,579 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.75%/Q; (20)
133,89¢ 133,89!
MW Dental Holding Corp. Dental services First lien senior secured 8.50% 4/12/201: 3,00( 3,00((2)
revolving loan ($3,000 par du  (Libor + 7.00%/M), (20)
4/2017)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 4/12/201: 55,03 55,03¢2)
($55,034 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 4/12/201: 49,25: 49,254(3)
($49,253 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M, (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 4/12/201: 9,90( 9,90((4)
($9,900 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M, (20)
117,18 117,18
Napa Management Servic Anesthesia management  First lien senior secured 7.50% 4/15/201.: 5,25( 5,25((2)
Corporation services provider revolving loan ($5,250 par due (Libor + 6.00%/M, (20)
4/2016)
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 4/15/201: 8,98¢ 9,064(2)
($9,062 par due 4/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q! (20)
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 4/15/201: 28,12t 28,1243)
($28,125 par due 4/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q; (20)
Common units (5,000 unit 4/15/201.: 5,00( 6,16¢(2)
47,35¢ 48,60t
Netsmart Technologies, Inc. a Healthcare technology First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 12/18/201: 40,09t 40,0942)
NS Holdings, Inc provider ($40,095 par due 12/2017) (Libor + 6.00%/Q; (17)
(20)
Common stock (2,500,000 6/21/201( 2,50( 2,612)
shares’
42,59t 42,70t

OnCURE Medical Corp. Radiation oncology care Common stock (857,143 8/18/200t 3,00( —(2)
provider shares’

Passport Health Healthcare technology Series A preferred stock 7/30/200¢ 11,15¢ 11,4442)

Communications, Inc., Passport  provider (1,594,457 shares)

Holding Corp. and Prism Holding

Corp.

Common stock (16,106 share 7/30/200¢ 10C —(2)
11,25¢ 11,44¢

PG Mergersub, Inc. and PGA Provider of patient surveys, Second lien senior secured loan 8.25% 4/19/201. 45,00( 45,00((2)

Holdings, Inc. management reports and  ($45,000 par due 10/2018) (Libor + 7.00%/Q); (20)
national databases for the
integrated healthcare
delivery systen

Preferred stock (333 share 3/12/200¢ 12t 14(2)
Common stock (16,667 shart 3/12/200¢ 167 697(2)
45,29: 45,71
F-34
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Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets

RCHP, Inc. Operator of general acute  Second lien senior secured Ic 11.50% 11/4/201: 15,00( 15,00((2)
care hospital ($15,000 par due 5/201 (Libor + 10.00%/S (20)

Second lien senior secured Ic 11.50% 11/4/201: 50,00( 50,00((3)
($50,000 par due 5/201 (Libor + 10.00%/S (20)
65,00( 65,00(

Reed Group, Ltd. Medical disability Equity interests 4/1/201( — 435(2)
management services
provider

Respicardia, Inc. Developer of implantable  First lien senior secured loan 11.00% 6/28/201: 5,96¢ 6,00((2)

therapies to improve

($6,000 par due 7/2015)



cardiovascular healf

Warrants to purchase up 6/28/201: 3¢ 29(2)
99,094 shares of Series C
preferred stocl
6,00¢ 6,02¢
Sage Products Holdings Ill, LLC  Patient infection control ai  Second lien senior secured loan 9.25% 12/13/201: 75,00( 75,00((2)
preventive care solutions  ($75,000 par due 6/2020) (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
provider
Soteria Imaging Services, LLC(6, Outpatient medical imagin  Second lien senior secured Ic 4/1/201( 2,05( 84%(2)
provider ($2,521 par due 11/201 (19)
Preferred member units 4/1/201( — —
(1,823,179 units
2,05( 843
SurgiQuest, Inc. Medical device First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 9/28/201. 6,80] 7,00((2)
manufacture ($7,000 par due 10/201
Warrants to purchase up 9/28/201: — —(2)
54,672 shares of Series D-4
convertible preferred stoc
6,80: 7,00(
U.S. Anesthesia Partners, Inc. Anesthesiology service First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 12/27/201. 15,00( 15,00((2)
provider ($15,000 par due 12/201 (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (20)
Vantage Oncology, Inc. Radiation oncology care Common stock (62,157 shares) 2/3/201: 4,67( 2,61€(2)
provider
764,141 762,03: 19.11%
Education
American Academy Holdings, LL  Provider of education, First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 3/18/201: 541 541(2)
training, certification, ($541 par due 3/2016) (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
networking, and consulting
services to medical coder:
and other healthcare
professional:
First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 3/18/201.: 10,357 10,357(2)
($10,357 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 3/18/201.: 60,90 60,904(3)
($60,904 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 3/18/201: 4,78 4,784(4)
(%4,782 par due 3/201 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
76,58¢ 76,58¢
Campus Management Corp. and  Education software Preferred stock (485,159 2/8/200¢ 10,52( 6,58¢(2)
Campus Management Acquisition developer shares)
Corp.(6)
F-35
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Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Community Education Centers, ||  Offender re-entry and in-  First lien senior secured loan 6.25% 12/10/2011 15,00( 15,00((2)
prison treatment services  ($15,000 par due 12/2014) (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (15)
provider (20)
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% (Base 12/10/201 714 714(2)
($714 par due 12/2014) Rate + 4.25%/Q) (15)
(20)
Second lien senior secured Ic 15.33% 12/10/2011 33,15( 29,83(2)
($33,150 par due 12/2015) (Libor + 8.50%
Cash, 6.50%
PIK/Q)
Second lien senior secured Ic 15.31% 12/10/201! 9,97¢ 8,98((2)
($9,978 par due 12/2015) (Libor + 8.50%
Cash, 6.50%
PIK/Q)
Warrants to purchase up 12/13/2011 — —(2)
654,618 share
58,84: 54,53:
elnstruction Corporation Developer, manufacturer Second lien senior secured loan 4/1/201( 15,257 —(2)
and retailer of educational ($17,000 par due 7/2014) (19)
products
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 24,15: —(2)
($31,997 par due 1/201 (19)
Common stock (2,406 share 4/1/201( 92€ —(2)
40,33¢ —
ELC Acquisition Corp., ELC Developer, manufacturer  Preferred stock (99,492 share 12.00% PIK 8/1/201: 10,49: 11,76¢2)

Holdings Corporation, and

and retailer of educational



Excelligence Learning Corporatic

(6)

products

Common stock (50,800 share 8/1/201: 51 2,78¢(2)
10,54 14,55
Infilaw Holding, LLC Operator of three for-profit First lien senior secured — 8/25/201. — —(22)
law schools revolving loan
First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 8/25/201. 1 1(2)
(%1 par due 8/201¢ (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.50% 8/25/201.: 19,157 19,15(3)
($19,157 par due 8/201 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
Series A preferred units 9.50% 8/25/201. 124,89( 124,89((2)
(124,890 units (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
Series B preferred stock (3.91 10/19/201. 9,24t 9,524(2)
units)
153,29: 153,57.
Instituto de Banca y Private school operator Series B preferred stock 8/5/201( 5,00( 7,14%2)
Comercio, Inc. & Leeds IV (2,750,000 shares)
Advisors, Inc.
Series C preferred stock 6/7/201( 68¢ 15¢(2)
(2,512,586 share:
Common stock (20 share 6/7/201( — —(2)
5,68¢ 7,30z
Lakeland Tours, LLC Educational travel provider First lien senior secured — 10/4/201: — —(22)
revolving loan
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% 10/4/201. 58,67( 58,82((14)
($58,826 par due 12/201 (Libor + 8.25%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 5.25% 10/4/201. 1,78¢ 1,79%2)
($1,793 par due 12/201 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% 10/4/201. 40,25¢ 40,364(3)
($40,362 par due 12/2016) (Libor + 8.25%/Q) (14)
(20)
First lien senior secured loan 5.25% 10/4/201. 8,94: 8,96(3)
($8,967 par due 12/201 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (20)
Common stock (5,000 share 10/4/201. 5,00( 4,555(2)
114,65 114,50:
F-36
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Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
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R3 Education, Inc. and EIC Medical school operator Preferred stock (8,800 shares 7/30/200¢ 2,20( 1,93¢€(2)
Acquisitions Corp
Common membership interes 9/21/200° 15,80( 29,82¢2)
(26.27% interest
Warrants to purchase up 12/8/200¢ — —(2)
27,890 share
18,00( 31,76t
488,46. 459,40: 11.52%
Financial Services
AllBridge Financial, LLC(7) Asset management servic  Equity interest: 4/1/201( 5,67¢ 7,81¢
Callidus Capital Corporation(’ Asset management servic Common stock (100 share 4/1/201( 3,00 1,71¢
Ciena Capital LLC(7) Real estate and small First lien senior secured 6.00% 11/29/201 14,00( 14,00((2)
business loan servicer revolving loan ($14,000 par d
12/2014)
First lien senior secured loan 12.00% 11/29/2011 32,000 32,00((2)
($32,000 par due 12/201
Equity interest: 11/29/201 53,374 18,61¢((2)
99,37 64,61¢
Commercial Credit Group, Inc. Commercial equipment Senior subordinated loan 12.75% 5/10/201: 28,00( 28,00((2)
finance and leasing ($28,000 par due 5/2018)
company
Cook Inlet Alternative Risk, LLC Risk managemsatvices Senior subordinated loan 9.00% 9/30/201.: 2,75( 2,75((2)
(%$2,750 par due 9/201
Financial Pacific Compar Commercial finance leasir Preferred stock (6,500 shar 8.00% PIK 10/13/2011 3,73¢ 13,68
Common stock (650,000 10/13/2011 — —
shares
3,73¢ 13,68
Gordian Acquisition Corporatio Financial services firr Common stock (526 share 11/30/201: — —
Imperial Capital Group LLC Investment services Class A common units (7,710 5/10/200° 14,997 18,9542)

units)



2006 Class B common units
(2,526 units’

2007 Class B common units
(315 units)

Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.P.(7) Asset management services = Member interestqQo®.
9) interest)

F-37

5/10/200°

5/10/200°

6/15/200!

3 4(2)
— 1(2)
15,00( 18,95¢
170,96 294,25t
328,49 431,80; 10.8%%




Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Restaurants and Food Service
ADF Capital, Inc. & ADF Restaurant owner and First lien senior secured 6.50% 11/27/2001 1,46¢ 1,46¢(2)
Restaurant Group, LLC operator revolving loan ($1,468 par du  (Libor + 3.50%/Q} (20)
11/2013)
First lien senior secured 6.50% (Base 11/27/2001 20C 20((2)
revolving loan ($200 par due Rate + 2.50%/Q) (20)
11/2013)
First lien senior secured loan 12.50% 11/27/2001 9,20( 9,20((2)
($9,200 par due 11/201 (Libor + 9.50%/Q), (20)
First lien senior secured loan 12.50% 11/27/2001 11,03% 11,0343)
($11,034 par due 11/201 (Libor + 9.50%/Q) (20)
Promissory note ($14,897,36! 12.00% PIK 11/27/2001 16,00: 18,7142)
par due 11/201€
Warrants to purchase up to 0 6/1/200¢ — 5,49¢(2)
shares
37,90¢ 46,11°
Benihana, Inc. Restaurant owner and First lien senior secured 9.25% 8/21/201: 431 431(2)
operator revolving loan ($431 par due  (Libor + 8.00%/M) (20)
8/2017)
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% 8/21/201. 21,76¢ 21,7642)
($21,769 par due 2/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q), (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% 8/21/201. 10,00( 10,00((4)
($10,000 par due 2/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q), (20)
32,20( 32,20(
Hojeij Branded Foods, Inc. Airport restaurant operato  First lien senior secured 9.00% 2/15/201: 1,90( 1,90((2)
revolving loan ($1,900 par du  (Libor + 8.00%/Q; (20)
2/2017) (23)
First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 2/15/201: 22,02t 22,60((2)
($22,600 par due 2/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
Warrants to purchase up 2/15/201: — 13%(2)
7.5% of membership intere
Warrants to purchase up to 3 2/15/201: 66¢ 1,89¢2)
shares of Class A common
stock
24,59¢ 26,53:
Orion Foods, LLC (fka Hot Stuff ~ Convenience food service First lien senior secured 10.75% (Base 4/1/201( 7,80( 7,80((2)
Foods, LLC)(7) retailer revolving loan ($7,800 par due Rate + 7.50%/M) (20)
9/2014)
First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 4/1/201( 33,47 33,47(3)
($33,477 par due 9/201 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
Second lien senior secured loan 4/1/201( 23,69t 17,80(2)
($37,552 par due 9/201 (19)
Preferred units (10,000 unit 10/28/2011 — —(2)
Class A common units (25,001 4/1/201( — —(2)
units)
Class B common units 4/1/201( — —(2)
(1,122,452 units
64,97: 59,08
OTG Management, LLC Airport restaurant operato  First lien senior secured loan 8.75% 12/11/201: 25,00( 25,00((2)
($25,000 par due 12/201 (Libor + 7.25%/Q), (20)
Common units (3,000,000 1/5/201: 3,00( 2,04%(2)
units)
Warrants to purchase up 6/19/200i 10C 4,334(2)
7.73% of common unit
28,10( 31,37¢
F-38
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Performance Food Group, Inc.  Food service distributor Second lien senioussd loan 11.00% 5/30/201: 50,00( 50,00((2)
and Wellspring Distribution Cor ($50,000 par due 5/201
Second lien senior secured loan 11.00% 5/23/200t¢ 49,52¢ 50,25((2)
($50,250 par due 5/201
Second lien senior secured loan 11.00% 5/23/200t¢ 49,70¢ 50,00((3)
($50,000 par due 5/201
Class A non-voting common 5/3/200¢ 7,50( 6,7342)
stock (1,366,120 share
156,73¢ 156,98:
Restaurant Holding Fast food restaurant First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 2/17/201: 60,28( 61,33{(3)
Company, LLC operatol ($61,333 par due 2/201 (Libor + 7.50%/M) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 2/17/201: 9,27: 9,43¢(4)



($9,436 par due 2/201 (Libor + 7.50%/M) (20)
69,55: 70,76¢
S.B. Restaurant Company Restaurant owner and Preferred stock (46,690 shares) 4/1/201( — —(2)
operatol
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — —(2)
257,429 shares of common
stock
414,05 423,05! 10.61%
Service—Other
Capital Investments and Ventur SCUBA diver training First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 8/9/201: 64,837 64,83(2)
Corp. and certification provide  ($64,837 par due 8/201 (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 8/9/201: 9,97t 9,9754)
($9,975 par due 8/201 (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (20)
74,81: 74,81
Competitor Group, Inc. and Endurance sports media First lien senior secured 10.00% (Base 11/30/201: 2,85( 2,85((2)
Calera XVI, LLC and event operator revolving loan ($2,850 par due Rate + 6.75%/Q) (20)
11/2018)
First lien senior secured 9.00% 11/30/201: 90C 90((2)
revolving loan ($900 par due (Libor + 7.75%/Q) (20)
11/2018)
First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 11/30/201; 54,50( 54,50((2)
($54,500 par due 11/201 (Libor + 7.75%/Q) (20)
Membership units (2,500,000 11/30/201: 2,50( 2,50((2)
units) 9)
60,75( 60,75(
Massage Envy, LLC Franchiser in the massa First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 9/27/201: 80,49 80,4942)
industry ($80,494 par due 9/201 (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (20)
Common stock (3,000,000 9/27/201: 3,00( 3,00((2)
shares
83,49 83,49:
F-39
Percentagt
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Company(1; Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
McKenzie Sports Products, LLC Designer, manuf@tu  First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 3/30/201. 11,83 11,8342)
and distributor of ($11,833 par due 3/2017) (Libor + 5.50%/M) (20)
taxidermy forms and
supplies
First lien senior secured loan 7.75% (Base 3/30/201: 28 28(2)
($28 par due 3/201 Rate + 4.50%/M (20)
First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 3/30/201. 9,90: 9,904(4)
($9,902 par due 3/201 (Libor + 5.50%/M) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 7.75% (Base 3/30/201: 23 23(4)
($23 par due 3/201 Rate + 4.50%/M (20)
21,78¢ 21,78t¢
The Dwyer Group(6) Operator of multiple Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 1.509  12/22/201f 25,40( 25,40((2)
franchise concepts ($25,400 par due 6/2018) PIK
primarily related to home
maintenance or repai
Series A preferred units 8.00% PIK 12/22/2011 6,331 13,9642)
(13,292,377 units
31,731 39,36:
Wash Multifamily Laundry Laundry service and First lien senior secured loan 7.00% (Base 6/26/201.: 27,09: 27,1742)
Systems, LLC (fka Web Services equipment provider ($27,172 par due 8/2014) Rate + 3.75%/Q) (20)
Company, LLC)
Second lien senior secured loan 10.88% 1/25/201: 40,00( 40,00((2)
($40,000 par due 8/201 (Libor + 9.38%/Q) (20)
Second lien senior secured loan 10.88% 1/25/201: 50,00( 50,00((3)
($50,000 par due 8/201 (Libor + 9.38%/Q) (20)
117,09: 117,17:
389,67! 397,37t 9.96%
Business Service
Access CIG, LLC Records and informatior First lien senior secured loan 7.00% 10/5/201: 1,00( 1,00((2)
management services ($1,000 par due 10/2017) (Libor + 5.75%/Q) (20)
provider
Cast & Crew Payroll, LLC and  Payroll and accounting First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 12/24/201. 100,001 100,00((2)
Centerstage Co-Investors, L.L.C. services provider to the  ($100,000 par due 12/2017) (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (20)
(6) entertainment industr
Class A membership units 12/24/201. 2,50( 2,50((2)

(2,500,000 units



Class B membership units 12/24/201. 2,50( 2,50((2)
(2,500,000 units

105,00( 105,00(
CIBT Investment Holdings, LLC Expedited travel Class A shares (2,500 shares 12/15/201 2,50( 3,54%(2)
document processing
services

F-40



Percentag:

Holding Co.(6)

($7,033 par due 11/201

(19)

Acquisition ~ Amortized
of Net

Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets

CitiPostal Inc.(7) Document storage and  First lien senior secured 6.75% (Base 4/1/201( 1,00( 1,00((2)
management services revolving loan ($1,000 par due Rate + 3.25%/Q) (20)

12/2013)

First lien senior secured loan 8.50% Cash, 5.50% 4/1/201( 52z 52%(2)

($523 par due 12/201: PIK

First lien senior secured loan 8.50% Cash, 5.50% 4/1/201( 53,56: 53,56:(3)

($53,561 par due 12/201 PIK

Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 13,03¢ 1,55€(2)

($17,224 par due 12/201 (19)

Common stock (37,024 shar¢ 4/1/201( — —
68,12: 56,64(

Command Alkon, Inc. Software solutions Second lien senior secured Ic 9.75% 9/28/201: 39,13( 39,13((2)
provider to the ready-mi:  ($39,130 par due 3/2018) (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
concrete industr

Cornerstone Records Physical records storage First lien senior secured loan 10.50% 8/12/201. 18,46( 17,724(2)

Management, LLC and management service ($18,460 par due 8/2016) (Libor + 9.00%/Q) (20)
provider

HCP Acquisition Holdings, LLC Healthcare compliance  Class A units (12,287,082 uni 6/26/200i 12,34° —(2)

(@) advisory service

IfByPhone Inc. Voice-based marketing  First lien senior secured loan 11.00% 10/15/201: 1,917 2,00((2)
automation software (%$2,000 par due 11/2015)
provider

First lien senior secured loan 11.00% 10/15/201; 1,00( 1,00((2)
($1,000 par due 1/201
Warrant to purchase up 10/15/201: 88 88(2)
124,300 shares of Series C
preferred stocl

3,00¢ 3,08¢

Impact Innovations Group, LLC IT consulting and Member interest (50.00% 4/1/201( — 20C
outsourcing service interest)

Investor Group Services, LLC(6)  Business consglfor Limited liability company 6/22/2001 — 711
private equity and membership interest (10.00%
corporate client interest)

Itel Laboratories, Inc. Data services provider ft  First lien senior secured loan 6.25% 6/29/201: 12,26 12,26%(2)
building materials to ($12,263 par due 6/2018) (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (20)
property insurance
industry

Preferred units (1,798,391 6/29/201: 1,00( 1,09%(2)
units)
13,26: 13,35¢

Multi-Ad Services, Inc.(6) Marketing services and Preferred units (1,725,280 4/1/201( 78¢ 2,037
software provide units)

Common units (1,725,280 4/1/201( — —
units)
78¢ 2,031
F-41
Percentagt
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Company(1; Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets

MVL Group, Inc.(7) Marketing research First lien senior secured 4.94% 6/28/201: 80€ 80€(2)
provider revolving loan ($806 par due (Libor + 4.50%/Q)

6/2012)

Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 34,63t 5,33((2)
($36,766 par due 7/201 (19)
Junior subordinated loan ($1¢ 4/1/201( — —(2)
par due 7/2012 (19)
Common stock (560,716 4/1/201( — —(2)
shares’

35,44 6,13¢€
Performant Financial Corporatic  Collections services Common stock (772,130 4/1/201( 1,191 7,7942)
shares’
Common stock (207,912 2/5/200¢ 241 2,10((2)
shares
1,43: 9,89¢
Pillar Processing LLC and PHL Mortgage services First lien senior secured loan 7/31/200¢ 6,70¢ 7,03%(2)



First lien senior secured loan 11/20/200¢ 6,661 522(2)
($7,375 par due 5/201 (19)
Class A common stock (576 7/31/201: 3,76¢ —(2)
shares

17,13¢ 7,55k

Powersport Auctioneer Powersport vehicle Common units (1,972 units) 3/2/201: 1,00( 73€(2)

Holdings, LLC auction operatc

Prommis Holdings, LLC Bankruptcy and Class B common units (1,727 6/12/201: — —(2)
foreclosure processing units)
services

Promo Works, LLC Marketing services First Imemior secured loan 4/1/201( 3,24¢ 2,04%(2)

($8,655 par due 12/201 (19)

R2 Acquisition Corp. Marketing services Common stock (250,000 5/29/200° 25C 137%(2)

shares’

Strident Holding, Inc. Recovery audit services First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 7126/201: 7,93¢ 7,9352)
provider to commercial ($7,935 par due 7/2018) (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (20)
and governmental
healthcare payol

First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 7/26/201. 9,97t 9,9754)
($9,975 par due 7/201: (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (20)
17,91( 17,91(
Summit Business Media Paren  Business media consulti  Limited liability company 5/20/201: — 873(2)
Holding Company LLC services membership interest (45.98%
interest)

TOA Technologies, Inc. Cloud based, mobile First lien senior secured loan 10.25% 10/31/201; 12,41¢ 12,48((2)
workforce management  ($13,000 par due 10/2016)
applications provide

Warrant to purchase up 10/31/201: 60¢ 617(2)
2,509,770 shares of Series D
preferred stocl
13,02( 13,09:
F-42
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net

Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets

Tradesmen International, Inc. Construction labor Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — 10,15(
support 771,036 share

Tripwire, Inc. IT security software First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 5/23/201. 50,00( 50,00((3)
provider ($50,000 par due 5/201 (Libor + 4.75%/Q) (20)

First lien senior secured loan 6.00% 5/23/201.: 10,00( 10,00((4)
($10,000 par due 5/201 (Libor + 4.75%/Q) (20)
Class A common stock (2,970 5/23/201.: 2,97( 6,941(2)
shares’
Class B common stock 5/23/201. 3C 70(2)
(2,655,638 share:

63,00( 67,01:

Venturehouse-Cibernet Financial settlement Equity interest 4/1/201( — —(2)

Investors, LLC services for intercarrier
wireless roaming

VSS-Tranzact Holdings, LLC(6) Management coneglti  Common membership interest 10/26/200° 10,20 3,652
services (5.98% interest

426,26 381,62! 9.51%

Containers—Packaging

ICSH, Inc. Industrial container First lien senior secured — 8/31/201: — —(22)
manufacturer, revolving loan
reconditioner and servic

First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 8/31/201.: 22,56¢ 22,5642)
($22,569 par due 8/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 9.25% (Base 8/31/201: 3,75( 3,75((2)
($3,750 par due 8/201 Rate + 6.00%/Q (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.04% 8/31/201: 24,21° 24,21°(2)
($24,217 par due 8/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.04% 8/31/201.: 67,96 67,96(3)
($67,961 par due 8/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 8/31/201: 35: 35%(3)
($353 par due 8/201( (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.04% 8/31/201: 14,79¢ 14,7944)
($14,795 par due 8/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 8/31/201: 77 77(4)



Microstar Logistics LLC,
Microstar Global Asset
Management LLC and MStar
Holding Corporatior

Keg management
solutions provider

($77 par due 8/201¢ (Libor + 7.00%/Q)

Second lien senior secured loan 8.50%
($165,000 par due 12/2018) (Libor + 7.50%/Q)

Common Stock (50,000 shart

F-43

(20)
133,72 133,72;
12/14/201; 165,001 165,00((2)
(20)
12/14/201; 5,00 5,00((2)
170,001 170,00(



Percentag:

Acquisition ~ Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Pregis Corporation, Pregis Provider of highly- First lien senior secured loan 8.50% (Base 4/25/201.: 3 3(2)
Intellipack Corp. and Pregis customized, tailored (%3 par due 3/2017) Rate + 5.25%/Q) (20)
Innovative Packaging Inc. protective packaging
solutions
First lien senior secured loan 7.75% 4/25/201: 997 992(2)
($992 par due 3/201° (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (20)
99t 99t
304,71 304,71 7.6%
Consumer Product—Non-
durable
Gilchrist & Soames, Inc. Personal care First lien senior secured 6.25% 4/1/201( 9,20( 9,20((2)
manufacturer revolving loan ($9,200 par due  (Libor + 5.00%/M) (20)
10/2013)
First lien senior secured loan 13.44% 4/1/201( 21,71( 20,847(2)
($21,941 par due 10/201
30,91( 30,04°
Implus Footcare, LLC Provider of footwear anc  Preferred stock (455 shares) 6.00% PIK 10/31/201 4,87: 4,8742)
other accessorie
Common stock (455 share 10/31/201 45E 19€(2)
5,32¢ 5,06¢
Insight Pharmaceuticals OTC drug products Second lien senior secured loan 13.25% 8/26/201. 19,13¢ 19,31((3)
Corporation(6 manufacture ($19,310 par due 8/201 (Libor + 11.75%/Q; (20)
Class A common stock 8/26/201.: 6,03t 8,271(2)
(155,000 share
Class B common stock 8/26/201.: 6,03t 8,271(2)
(155,000 share
31,20t 35,86«
Matrixx Initiatives, Inc. and Developer and marketer First lien senior secured 13.00% 6/30/201.: 9,50( 8,55((2)
Wonder Holdings Acquisitio of over-the-counter revolving loan ($9,500 par du  (Libor + 12.00%/M) (20)
Corp. healthcare produc 6/2016)
First lien senior secured loan 13.00% 6/30/201.: 38,58: 34,90%(3)
($38,781 par due 6/201 (Libor + 12.00%/Q! (20)
Warrants to purchase up 7127/201: — —(2)
1,654,678 shares of common
stock
Warrants to purchase up 7/127/201: — —(2)
1,489 shares of preferred stc
48,08: 43,45
Oak Parent, Inc. Manufacturer of athletic First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 4/2/201: 41,12 41,2942)
appare ($41,299 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 4/2/201: 9,38¢ 9,42¢(4)
($9,428 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
50,51 50,72’
PG-ACP Co-Invest, LLC Supplier of medical Class A membership units 8/29/201: 1,00( 1,29%(2)
uniforms, specialized (2,000,0000 units)
medical footwear and
accessorie
F-44
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
The Step2 Company, LLC Toy manufacturer Sedimmdsenior secured loan 10.00% 4/1/201( 26,09: 27,00((2)
($27,000 par due 4/201
Second lien senior secured loan 10.00% Cash, 4/1/201( 31,85¢ 28,87(2)
($32,814 par due 4/201 6.00% PIK
Common units (1,116,879 4/1/201( 24 94
units)
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — 26¢
3,157,895 unit:
57,97¢ 56,23¢
The Thymes, LLC(7) Cosmetic products Preferred units (6,283 units) 8.00% PIK 6/21/200° 5,631 5,24¢
manufacture
Common units (5,400 unit 6/21/200° — 3,13¢
5,631 8,38:
Woodstream Corporatic Pet products manufacturer First lien seniousst loan 6.50% 4/18/201: 3,00( 3,00((2)
($3,000 par due 8/201. (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 4/18/201.: 15,00( 15,00((4)
($15,000 par due 8/201 (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (20)



Senior subordinated loan 12.00% 1/22/2011 41,637 45,00((2)
($45,000 par due 2/201
Common stock (4,254 share 1/22/2011 1,22: 2,99¢(2)
60,85¢ 65,99¢
291,50: 297,07: 7.45%
Energy
Centinela Funding, LLC Solar power generation First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 11/14/201. 45,00( 45,00((2)
facility developer and ($45,000 par due 11/2020) (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
operatol
EquiPower Resources Gas-fired power generation Second lien senior secured loan 10.00% 6/27/201. 22,07: 22,50((2)
Holdings, LLC facilities operato ($22,500 par due 6/201 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
La Paloma Generating Natural gas fired, combine Second lien senior secured Ic 10.25% 8/9/201: 57,90¢ 56,64((2)
Company, LLC cycle plant operatc ($59,000 par due 8/201 (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
Panda Sherman Power, LLC Developer and operator o First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 9/14/201. 32,50( 32,50((2)
gas turbine power plai ($32,500 par due 9/201 (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)
Panda Temple Power, LLC Developer and operator o First lien senior secured loan 11.50% 7/17/201. 58,157 60,00((2)
gas turbine power plal ($60,000 par due 7/201 (Libor + 10.00%/Q (20)
215,63 216,641 5.42%
Automotive Services
Driven Holdings, LLC Automotive aftermarket car Preferred stock (247,500 units) 12/16/201 2,A47¢ 2,68¢2)
care franchiso
Common stock (25,000 unit 12/16/201 25 137(2)
2,50( 2,82t
F-45
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Eckler Industries, Inc. Restoration parts and First lien senior secured 8.25% (Base 7112/201: 1,30( 1,30((2)
accessories provider for revolving loan ($1,300 par du Rate + 5.00%/M) (20)
classic automobile 7/2017)
First lien senior secured loan 7.25% 7/12/201. 52,07: 52,07:(2)
($52,071 par due 7/201 (Libor + 6.00%/M) (20)
Series A preferred stock (1,8( 7112/201: 1,80( 1,871(2)
shares
Common stock (20,000 share 7/12/201: 20C 200(2)
55,37: 55,44
EcoMotors, Inc. Engine developer First lienisesecured loan 10.13% 12/28/201. 4,85( 5,00((2)
($5,000 par due 7/201
Warrant to purchase up 12/28/201. — 84(2)
321,888 shares of Series C
Preferred Stoc
4,85( 5,08¢
Service King Paint & Body, LLC  Collision repair site First lien senior secured loan 8.50% 8/20/201: 122,85( 122,85((2)
operators ($122,850 par due 8/2017) (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (16)
(20)
First lien senior secured loan 5.50% 8/20/201: 9,92t 9,925(2)
($9,925 par due 8/201 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (20)
Membership interes 8/20/201: 5,00( 6,684(2)
137,77! 139,45¢
200,49( 202,81( 5.09%
Manufacturing
Cambrios Technologies Nanotechnolog-based First lien senior secured loan 12.00% 8/7/201: 4,84¢ 4,84¢2)
Corporation solutions for electronic ($4,848 par due 8/2015)
devices and compute
Warrants to purchase up 8/2/201: — 8(2)
400,000 shares of Series D-4
convertible preferred stoc
4,84¢ 4,85¢
Component Hardware Group, Inc Commercial equipment Second lien senior secured Ic  7.00% Cash, 3.00 8/4/201( 3,20z 3,20%(2)
($3,202 par due 12/201 PIK
Senior subordinated loan 7.50% Cash, 5.00 4/1/201( 8,34 11,14%2)
($11,142 par due 12/201 PIK
Warrants to purchase up 8/4/201( — 7,32%(2)
1,462,500 shares of common
stock
11,54¢ 21,66¢
MWI Holdings, Inc. Provider of engineered First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 6/15/201. 38,274 38,2742)
springs, fasteners, and other($38,274 par due 6/2017) (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)



Lighting Science Group
Corporation

NetShape Technologies, Ir

Pelican Products, Inc.

precision componen

Advanced lighting product

Metal precision engineered
components

Flashlights

Letter of credit facility

First lien senior secured loan
($10,000 par due 6/201

First lien senior secured
revolving loan ($415 par due
2/2013)

First lien senior secured loan
($7,960 par due 7/201
Second lien senior secured Ic
($32,000 par due 6/201
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10.00%
(Libor + 8.00%/Q)

3.96%
(Libor + 3.75%/M)

7.00%
(Libor + 5.50%/Q)
11.50%
(Libor + 10.00%/Q

9/20/201.:

6/15/201.:

4/1/201(

7/13/201:

7/13/201:

— —(24)
10,00( 10,00((4)
(20)
48,27 48,27
41E 37%(2)
7,96( 7,96((4)
(20)
32,00 32,00((2)
(20)
39,06( 39,96(



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Protective Industries, Inc. dba Plastic protection products First lien seniecged 5.75% 5/23/201. 1,63 1,63%(2)
Caplugs revolving loan ($1,633 par due (Libor + 4.25%/M) (20)
5/2016) (23)
First lien senior secured loan 5.75% 11/30/201. 1,50( 1,50((2)
($1,500 par due 5/201 (Libor + 4.25%/M) (20)
Senior subordinated loan ($6958.00% Cash, 7.25 5/23/201: 695 695(2)
par due 5/201€ PIK
Preferred stock (2,379,361 5/23/201.: 2,307 4,644(2)
shares
6,13t 8,47:
Saw Mill PCG Partners LLC Metal precision engineere  Common units (1,000 units) 1/30/200° 1,00 —(2)
component:
Sigma International Group, Inc. Water treatment par Second lien senior secured loan 10.00% 7/8/201: 4,19t 4,195(2)
($4,195 par due 4/2014) (Libor + 5.00% (20)
Cash, 5.00%
PIK/Q)
SSH Environmental Industries, Ir  Magnetic sensors and First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 3/23/201: 11,42« 11,6242)
and SSH Non-Destructive supporting sensor product  ($11,625 par due 12/2016) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)
Testing, Inc
127,79t 139,42 3.5(%
Aerospace and Defens
ILC Industries, LLC Designer and manufacturer First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 7/13/201: 4,83¢ 4,9252)
of protective cases and (%$4,925 par due 7/2018) (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (20)
technically advanced
lighting system:
First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 7/13/201.: 19,57¢ 19,95((4)
($19,950 par due 7/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (20)
24,41: 24,87¢
PRV Aerospace, LLC Aerospace precision First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 5/15/201: 1,13C 1,136(2)
components manufactur ($1,136 par due 5/201. (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (20)
First lien senior secured loan 6.50% 5/15/201: 8,38t 8,46((4)
($8,460 par due 5/201 (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (20)
Second lien senior secured Ic 10.50% 5/10/201: 80,00( 80,00((2)
($80,000 par due 5/201 (Libor + 9.25%/Q) (20)
89,51! 89,59¢
Wyle Laboratories, Inc. and Wy Provider of specialized Senior preferred stock (775 8.00% PIK 1/17/200: 10s 10%(2)
Holdings, Inc. engineering, scientific and shares)
technical service
Common stock (1,885,195 1/17/200i 2,291 2,34¢(2)
shares
2,394 2,44¢
116,31! 116,92( 2.9%%
F-47
Percentag:
Acquisition ~ Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Telecommunications
American Broadband Broadband communicatiol  First lien senior secured loan 7.50% 9/1/201( 7,66¢ 7,66¢€(2)
Communications, LLC, American services ($7,666 par due 9/2013) (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (20)
Broadband Holding Company,
Cameron Holdings of NC, Inc., al
Dialog Telecom LLC
First lien senior secured loan 12.00% 6/20/201: 16,47¢ 16,47¢2)
($16,476 par due 12/201 (Libor + 11.50%/Q (20)
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 9/1/201( 10,74: 10,3142)
($10,741 par due 11/201 2.00% PIK
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 11/7/200° 34,10« 32,74((3)
($34,104 par due 11/201 2.00% PIK
Senior subordinated loan 10.00% Cash, 11/7/200° 23,51¢ 22,5742)
($23,513 par due 11/201 4.00% PIK
Warrants to purchase up to 3 11/7/200° — 2,53
shares
Warrants to purchase up to 2 9/1/201( — 1,34((2)
shares
92,50( 93,64
Startec Equity, LLC(7 Communication service Member interes 4/1/201( — —
92,50( 93,64 2.35%




Consumer Product—Durable
Bushnell Inc.

QOil and Gas
Geotrace Technologies, Inc.
developmen

Sports optics manufacture

Reservoir procesasiny

Second lien senior secured Ic 9.00%
($48,825 par due 2/201 (Libor + 7.50%/Q)
Second lien senior secured Ic 9.50%
($43,675 par due 2/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q)

Warrants to purchase up
69,978 shares of common stc
Warrants to purchase up
210,453 shares of preferred
stock
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4/1/201(

4/30/201:

4/1/201(

4/1/201(

44,00( 48,3342)
(20)
43,67 43,6742)
(20)
87,67 92,01 2.31%
8¢ —(2)
2,80¢ 1,7512)
2,89 1,75




Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
UL Holding Co., LLC and Petroleum product Second lien senior secured Ic 9.19% 4/30/201: 4,93t 4,935(2)
Universal Lubricants, LLC(6) manufacturer (%$4,935 par due 12/2014) (Libor + 7.19%
Cash, 2.00%
PIK/Q)
Second lien senior secured Ic 9.19% 4/30/201: 25,41 25,41%3)
($25,413 par due 12/2014) (Libor + 7.19%
Cash, 2.00%
PIK/Q)
Second lien senior secured Ic 12.00% Cash, 4/30/201: 4,92( 4,92((2)
(%$4,920 par due 12/201 2.00% PIK
Second lien senior secured Ic 12.00% Cash, 4/30/201: 5,07¢ 5,07¢2)
($5,078 par due 12/201 3.00% PIK
Second lien senior secured Ic 12.00% Cash, 4/30/201: 18,61 18,6143)
($18,614 par due 12/201 2.00% PIK
Class A common units (151,2 6/17/201: 1,517 57(2)
units)
Class B-5 common units 4/25/200t 5,47 22€(2)
(599,200 units
Class B-4 common units 6/17/201: 50C 19(2)
(50,000 units
Class C common units (758, 4/25/200! — 287(2)
units)
66,44+ 59,54¢
69,33" 61,30¢ 1.5/%
Retall
Fulton Holdings Corp. Airport retail operator irdE lien senior secured loan 12.50% 5/28/201( 40,00( 40,00((3)
($40,000 par due 5/201 (12)
Common stock (19,672 share 5/28/201( 1,967 1,87:
41,96° 41,87¢
Things Remembered Inc. and TF  Personalized gifts retailer  First lien senior secured loan 8.00% 5/24/201: 14,96: 14,96:(4)
Holdings Corporatiol ($14,962 par due 5/201 (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (20)
56,92¢ 56,83¢ 1.4%%
Printing, Publishing and Media
Batanga, Inc. Independent digital media First lien senior secured loan 9.60% 10/31/201: 5,50( 5,5942)
company ($5,500 par due 10/201 (18)
Earthcolor Group, LLC Printing management Limited liability company 5/18/201: — —
services interests (9.30%
National Print Group, Inc Printing management First lien senior secured 9.00% 3/2/200¢ 91z 895(2)
services revolving loan ($913 par due  (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (20)
10/2013) (23)
First lien senior secured 9.00% (Base 3/2/200¢ 1,03¢ 1,01%(2)
revolving loan ($1,038 par due Rate + 5.00%/M) (20)
10/2013)
First lien senior secured loan 10.00% 3/2/200¢ 6,631 6,834(2)
($6,903 par due 10/2013) (Libor + 9.00% (20)
Cash, 1.00%
PIK/Q)
First lien senior secured loan 10.00% (Base 3/2/200¢ 31¢ 327(2)
($331 par due 10/2013) Rate + 9.00% Cas (20)
1.00% PIK/Q)
Preferred stock (9,344 shares) 3/2/200¢ 2,00( —(2)
(20)
10,90( 9,07:
F-49
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
The Teaching Company, LLC an  Education publications First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 9/29/2001 21,31¢ 21,3142)
The Teaching Company provider ($21,319 par due 3/2017) (Libor + 7.50%/Q, (20)
Holdings, Inc.
First lien senior secured loan 9.00% 9/29/200( 9,90z 9,90%4)
($9,902 par due 3/201 (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)
Preferred stock (10,663 shar: 9/29/200! 1,06¢ 3,2252)
Common stock (15,393 shar¢ 9/29/200¢ 3 8(2)
32,29( 34,45¢
48,69( 49,12: 1.22%
Environmental Services
AWTP, LLC(7) Water treatment servict Second lien senior secured loan 10.00% 4/18/201: 4,21% 4,2142)
($4,212 par due 6/201
Second lien senior secured loan 15.00% PI 4/18/201: 6,121 6,121(2)



($6,121 par due 6/201

Membership interests (90% 4/18/201: — 4,58((2)
interest)
10,33¢ 14,91:
RE Community Holdings Il, Inc. Operator of municipal Preferred stock (1,000 shares 3/1/201: 8,83¢ 1,481(2)
and Pegasus Community recycling facilities
Energy, LLC.
Waste Pro USA, In Waste management servii  Preferred Class A common 11/9/2001 12,26 24,2142)
equity (611,615 share
31,43¢ 40,61¢ 1.02%
Transportation
PODS Funding Corp. Storage and warehousing  Junior subordinated loan 12.75% Cash, 11/29/201. 40,22¢ 40,2242)
($40,228 par due 5/201 2.75% PIK
United Road Towing, Inc. Towing company Warrants to purchase up to € 4/1/201( — —
shares
40,22¢ 40,22¢ 1.01%
Commercial Real Estate Finance
10th Street, LLC(6) Real estate holding Senior subordinated loan 8.93% Cash, 4.07 4/1/201( 25,20¢ 25,2042)
company ($25,208 par due 11/201 PIK
Member interest (10.00% 4/1/201( 594 —
interest)
Option (25,000 units 4/1/201( 25 501
25,821 25,70¢
American Commercial Real estate property Commercial mortgage loan 4/1/201( 92€ 2,061(19)
Coatings, Inc (%$2,505 par due 12/202
Cleveland East Equity, LL! Hotel operato Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( 1,02¢ 3,63¢
Commons -3, LLC Real estate develop Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( — —
Crescent Hotels & Resorts, LLC ~ Hotel operator Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( — —(2)
and affiliates(7. (%$2,236 par due 9/201 (29)
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( — —(2)
($2,092 par due 6/201 (19)
Common equity intere: 4/1/201( — —
Limited liability company 6/19/201: — —(2)
membership interest (100%
interest)
F-50
Percentag:
Acquisition
Amortized of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Hot Light Brands, Inc.(7) Real estate holding First lien senior secured loan 4/1/201( 1,66¢ 1,12¢(2)
company ($32,957 par due 2/201 (19)
Common stock (93,500 shart 4/1/201( — —(2)
1,66¢ 1,12¢
NPH, Inc. Hotel property Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( 5,291 6,12%
34,73¢ 38,66( 0.97%
Health Clubs
Athletic Club Holdings, Inc. Premier health club opera  First lien senior secured loan 4.71% 10/11/200° 11,50( 11,50((2)
($11,500 par due 10/201 (Libor + 4.50%/M; (13)
CFW Co-Invest, L.P. and NCP Health club franchisor Limited partnership interest 7/31/201: 4,15 4,15%(2)
Curves, L.P (4,152,165 share:
Limited partnership interest 7/31/201: 1,84¢ 1,84¢(2)
(1,847,835 share:
6,00( 6,00(
17,50( 17,50( 0.43%
Food and Beverage
Apple & Eve, LLC and US Juice  Juice manufacturer Senior units (50,000 units) 10/5/200° 5,00( 1,39¢
Partners, LLC(6
Charter Baking Company, Inc. Baked goods manufacture Senior subordinated loan 16.00% PIK 2/6/200¢ 8,88t 8,88%(2)
($8,885 par due 2/201.
Preferred stock (6,258 shar 9/1/200¢ 2,56¢ 1,61(2)
11,45: 10,50:
Distant Lands Trading Co. Coffee manufacturer las€ A common stock (1,294 4/1/201( 98( —(2)

shares



Class At common stock (2,1! 4/1/201( — —(2)

shares
98( —
17,43¢ 11,90( 0.2¢%
Wholesale Distribution
BECO Holding Company, Inc. Wholesale distributor ¢ Common stock (25,000 share 7/30/201( 2,50( 2,457(2)
first response fire protectic
equipment and related pa
2,50( 2,451 0.05%
$5,82345 $5,924,55 148.5%%

)

@

©)

4)

Other than the Company's investments listed imfatet 7 below (subject to the limitations set fditarein), the Company does not "Control" any opitstfolio companies, for tt
purposes of the Investment Company Act of 194@nasnded (together with the rules and regulatioamplgated thereunder, the "Investment Company Abt'general, under
the Investment Company Act, the Company would "@sta portfolio company if the Company owned mtran 25% of its outstanding voting securities (securities with th
right to elect directors) and/or had the powentereise control over the management or policiesueh portfolio company. All of the Company's pditicompany investments,
which as of December 31, 2012 represented 149%eofbmpany's net assets or 93% of the Companglsagrets, are subject to legal restrictions agssal

These assets are pledged as collateral for theNReyCredit Facility and, as a result, are noedity available to the creditors of the Compangatisfy any obligations of the
Company other than the Company's obligations utideRevolving Credit Facility (see Note 5 to th@sadlidated financial statements).

These assets are owned by the Company's consdlisisitsidiary Ares Capital CP Funding LLC ("Ares GapCP"), are pledged as collateral for the Reim\Funding Facility
and, as a result, are not directly available toctieelitors of the Company to satisfy any obligatiofthe Company other than Ares Capital CP's abligs under the Revolving
Funding Facility (see Note 5 to the consolidatedificial statements).

These assets are owned by the Company's consdlisiaibsidiary Ares Capital JB Funding LLC ("ACJBH)e pledged as collateral for the SMBC FundingIfgeind, as a

result, are not directly available to the creditoff¢he Company to satisfy any obligations of ttempany other than ACJB's obligations under the SNHBBding Facility (see
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statemel
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Net
Capital Net realizec unrealized
Purchase: Redemption: Interest structuring Dividend
Sales Other gains gains

Company (cost) (cost) (cost) income service fee income income (losses’ (losses’
10th Street, LLC $ —$ —$ —$3221% —$ —$ —95 — 3 (54)
Apple &

Eve, LLC and

US Juice

Partners, LLC $ 50C $ 32,34+ —$339$ — $ —$ 443 —$ (1,929
Campus

Management

Corp. and

Campus

Management

Acquisition

Corp $ —$ —$ —3 —3 —$ —$ —95 — $ (4,509
Cast & Crew

Payroll, LLC

and

Centerstage

Co-Investors,

L.L.C. $ 105,00( $ —$% —$% 167$ 2,78 $ 36$ 2$ — $ —
CT Technologies

Intermediate

Holdings, Inc.

and CT

Technologies

Holdings, LLC $ = 18¢$ —$ 1,16¢$ —$ —$ —95 —$ (3,89
Direct Buy

Holdings, Inc.

and Direct Buy

Investors, LF $ — 3 —$1092°% — $ — 3 —$ —$ (10,92)% 10,92
The Dwyer Grou $ — 3 —$ —$295% 162$ 78:$ 85$ —$ 5,027
ELC Acquisition

Corp. and ELC

Holdings

Corporation  $ — $ —% —3% —3 — $ 34%% 6% — $ 5,05¢
Firstlight

Financial

Corporation ~ $ — 3 28,89($84,15:$ 1,77: $ —$ —$ 20C$ (25,959% 43,32
Insight

Pharmaceutice

Corporation  $ — $ 5,63¢$ —$324: % — $ —$ 171 % 54 % (1,649
Investor Group

Services, LLC $ — 3 —$ —3% —3 —$ 16C$ 15% — % (14¢)
Multi-Ad

Services, Inc $ — % —3% —3$ —3 — $ —$ — 3% — $ 20¢
Pillar

Processing LL

and PHL

Holding Co. $ — 3 547¢¢ —% — % — 3 —$ 9% 2% 1,11
Soteria Imaging

Services, LLC $ — 3 4418 —% — % — $ —$ —9 64 $ (584)
VSS-Tranzact

Holdings, LLC $ — $ —$ 8671 —$ — $ —3% — % —$ 345
UL

Holding Co., L $ 44,53. $ 13,76¢$ —$ 58371 % 732 $ —$ 197% — $ (6,959

As defined in the Investment Company Act, the Comypa deemed to be both an "Affiliated Person" &dntrol" this portfolio company because it ownsrenthan 25% of the
portfolio company's outstanding voting securitiest dias the power to exercise control over the agament or policies of such portfolio company (idihg through a
management agreement). Transactions during theeyeld December 31, 2012 in which the issuer wisdrAffiliated company and a portfolio compangttthe Company is
deemed to Control are as follows:

Net
Capital realized
Redemptions structuring Dividend Net
Sales Interest Other gains unrealized

Company Purchase: (cost) (cost) income service fee income income (losses’ gains (losses
AGILE Fund

I, LLC $ —$ 98 —8 — 9% — 9% 13 —$ —$ (29)
Allied Capital

REIT, Inc. $ — ¢ —$ 37t$ — $ —$ 41 —$ 147 % (319
AllBridge

Financial, LLC $ — 3 —$ —3 —$ —$ —$ —3% —9 1,801
Aviation

Properties

Corporation ~ $ — ¢ —$ —3 —$ —3$ —$ —% 291% —
AWTP, LLC $ —$ —$ —% 129%% — 9% —$ 5C$ —$ 6,22¢
BenefitMall

Holdings, Inc. $ — $ 40,32¢$53,51($ 2,44( $ —$ —$ 167$12,54¢ $ (6,479

Callidus Capita



Corporation $ — 3 —% —% —$ —$ —% —3% —3 94z

Ciena

Capital LLC  $ — ¢ —$ —% 4,75¢% —$ —$ —93 — $ (1,43¢)
Citipostal, Inc.  $ — % 2,71 —$ 7,71t $ — 3 —$ 112% — 3 (19
Crescent Hotels

Resorts, LLC

and affiliates  $ — $ —$ 2,84:% 20% —$ —$ —$(5479)% 5,59¢
HCI Equity, LLC $ — 9 —3 $ —$ —$ —% —3% —3 (10¢)
HCP Acquisition

Holdings, LLC $ 1,25¢ $ —$ —3 —$ —$ —$ —3 — $ (6,177)
Hot Light

Brands, Inc  $ — 3 2,28:$ —¢% — 3 — 3 —3 —3 —$ (282)
Huddle

House Inc $ — % 20,80:%$ —¢% 67¢ $ —$ —$ 187% (2,29)% 1,701
Ivy Hill Asset

Management, $ 58,08 $ —3$ —% —$ —$ 1993 —$ —$ 41,57¢
Ivy Hill Middle

Market Credit

Fund, Ltd. $ — % 25,000$30,51t$ 3,94: % —$ —$ —$ 1,65t % 1,51t
LVCG

Holdings, LLC $ —$ —$6605 —$% —$ —$ —3$(6,590% 6,60(
Making

Memories

Wholesale, Inc $ —$ 2,22¢¢  —¢% — 3 —$ —$ —9$(12,28)% 12,47¢
MVL Group, Inc. $ 2,54( $ 2560018 —$ 439.% —3 —3 —3 —$ (27,86)
Orion

Foods, LLC $ 6,50( $ 514:$ —$ 7,20($ —$ —$ 80€$ — $ (20,260
Senior Secured

loan

Fund LLC* $ 269,96 $ 66,33¢$ —$184,70: $ 40,34t $ —$17,86t$ 3,641 $ 83¢
Stag-

Parkway, Inc  $ — % 34,50($ 3,09($ 4,21¢ $ —$ 73:$ 251%$29,99¢ $ (16,639
The

Thymes, LLC $ — % 56C$ —$% — 3% —$ 481% —$ — 3 1,68
* Together with GE Global Sponsor Finance LLC andésarElectric Capital Corporation (together, "GENe Company c@avests through the Seni

Secured Loan Fund LLC d/b/a the "Senior SecuredilRragram” (the "SSLP"). The SSLP is capitalizettrassactions are completed and all
portfolio decisions and generally all other deaisiin respect of the SSLP must be approved bywesiment committee of the SSLP consisting of
representatives of the Company and GE (with appfoma a representative of each required); theeefalthough the Company owns more than 25%
of the voting securities of the SSLP, the Compamgsdhot believe that it has control over the SSbPgurposes of the Investment Company Act or
otherwise) because, among other things, thesentysgcurities" do not afford the Company the rightlect directors of the SSLP or any other sp
rights (see Note 4 to the consolidated financiteshents)

(8) Non-U.S. company or principal place of businessidetthe U.S. and as a result is not a qualifyBggtiunder Section 55(a) of the Investment CompanyUnder the
Investment Company Act, the Company may not acquisenon-qualifying asset unless, at the time swcjuisition is made, qualifying assets represelzast 70% of the
Company's total assets.
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(10)

(11

(12)

(13

(14)

(15)

(16)

an

(18)

19)
(20)
(21)

(22)

(23)

24

Excepted from the definition of investment companger Section 3(c) of the Investment Company Adtaa result is not a qualifying asset under 8e&b(a) of the
Investment Company Act. Under the Investment Compent, the Company may not acquire any non-qualdyasset unless, at the time such acquisition dengualifying
assets represent at least 70% of the Companylsassigts.

In the first quarter of 2011, the staff of the Sées and Exchange Commission (the "Staff") infaftyp communicated to certain business developmempanies the Staff's
belief that certain entities, which would be cléissi as an "investment company" under the Invest@@mpany Act but for the exception from the defom of "investment
company" set forth in Rule 3a-7 promulgated untlerlhvestment Company Act, could not be treateeligible portfolio companies (as defined in Sectiga)(46) of the
Investment Company Act). Subsequently, in Augudti2the Securities and Exchange Commission isswedeept release (the "Concept Release") whichsstas "[a]s a
general matter, the Commission presently does el@ve that Rule 3a-7 issuers are the type of smelleloping and financially troubled businessestich Congress intended
BDCs primarily to invest" and requested commenibether or not a 3a-7 issuer should be considerédlaible portfolio company". The Company provide comment letter
in respect of the Concept Release and continuesliieve that the language of Section 2(a)(46) efltivestment Company Act permits a business dereapcompany to treat
as "eligible portfolio companies" entities thatyreh the 3a-7 exception. However, given the curoeertainty in this area (including the languagthie Concept Release) and
subsequent discussions with the Staff, the Compasysolely for purposes of calculating the comjmsbf its portfolio pursuant to Section 55(a)tieé Investment Company
Act, identified these entities in the Company'sesithie of investments as "non-qualifying assetstikhthe Staff ultimately disagree with the Comparmgsition.

Variable rate loans to the Company's portfolio cames bear interest at a rate that may be detednbipneeference to either LIBOR or an alternate iase (commonly based on
the Federal Funds Rate or the Prime Rate), atdirewer's option, which reset annually (A), semivaally (S), quarterly (Q), bi-monthly (B), monthiy) or daily (D). For each
such loan, the Company has provided the interestmeeffect on the date presented.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amouri.00% on $16 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loankgereby the "first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedsiaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour2.60% on $12 million aggregz
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loamkereby the “first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedsiaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnitled to receive an additional interest amount.00% on $65 million aggregz
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loamkereby the “first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amourit.©3% on $19 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loankgereby the "first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour.00% on $73 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loamkereby the “first out" tranche will have priorig to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedsiaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnitled to receive an additional interest amour8.23% on $56 million aggregz
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's first lien senior secured loamkereby the “first out" tranche will have priorg to the "last out" tranche with
respect to payments of principal, interest andathgr amounts due thereunder.

The Company is entitled to receive a fixed fee ufhenoccurrence of certain events as defined icitbeit agreement governing the Company's debsinvent in the portfolio
company. The fair value of such fee is includethmfair value of the debt investment.

Loan was on non-accrual status as of December(3®, 2
Loan includes interest rate floor feature.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedtontractual interest rate of this security,dbsificates entitle the holders thereof to reeevportion of the excess cash flow
from the SSLP's loan portfolio, which may resulaireturn to the Company greater than the contabstated interest rate.

As of December 31, 2012, no amounts were fundettidCompany under this first lien senior securedlkéng loan; however, there were standby lettérsredit issued and
outstanding through a financial intermediary urttherloan. See Note 6 to the consolidated finarst@kements for further information on standby tstte credit commitments
related to certain portfolio companies.

As of December 31, 2012, in addition to the amotuntsled by the Company under this first lien sesi&rured revolving loan, there were also standigréeof credit issued and
outstanding through a financial intermediary urttierloan. See Note 6 to the consolidated finarsté&iements for further information on standby rsttef credit commitments
related to certain portfolio companies.

As of December 31, 2012, no amounts were fundettiédyompany under this letter of credit facilitpwever, there were standby letters of credit isaretloutstanding through

a financial intermediary under the letter of crdddility. See Note 6 to the consolidated finanstatements for further information on standbyeletiof credit commitments
related to certain portfolio companies.
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Balance at
December 31
2010
Shares issuec

in
connection
with
dividend
reinvestmer
plan

Issuances of
the
Convertible
Unsecured
Notes (See
Note 5)

Net increase i
stockholder
equity
resulting
from
operations

Dividends
declared an
payable
($1.41 per
share)

Tax
reclassifical
of
stockholder
equity in
accordance
with
generally
accepted
accounting
principles

Balance at
December 31
2011

Issuances of
common
stock in
add-on
offerings
(net of
offering anc
underwriting
costs)

Shares issuec
in
connection
with
dividend
reinvestmer
plan

Issuances of
the
Convertible
Unsecured
Notes (See
Note 5)

Net increase i
stockholder
equity
resulting
from
operations

Dividends
declared an

ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated Net
Realized Loss
on Investments,

Accumulated Foreign Currency Net
Common Stock Overdistributed Transactions, Unrealized Total
—— Capitalin Extinguishment of Gain (Loss)  Stockholders'
Excess of Net Investment Debt and Other on
Shares Amount Par Value Income Assets Investments Equity
204,41¢ $ 204 $3,20532 $ (11,33¢) $ (169,69 $ 26,03t $ 3,050,53
711 1 11,55: — — — 11,55:
— — 54,71¢ — — — 54,71¢
— — — 282,40: 77,24: (40,197) 319,45!
— — — (288,99() — — (288,99()
— — 118,76( 7,47¢ (126,23, — —
205,13( $ 205 $3,390,35 $ (10,449 $ (218,68 $ (14,157 $ 3,147,26!
42,297 43 679,93t — — — 679,98:
1,22¢ 1 20,44¢ — — — 20,44¢
— — 9,967 — — — 9,967
— — — 348,86: 44,05¢ 115,26: 508,17¢



payable ($1.6

per share — — — (377,49 — — (377,499
Tax

reclassifical

of

stockholder

equity in

accordance

with

generally

accepted

accounting

principles — — 16,81( 11,17: (27,987) — —
Balance at

December 31

2012 248,65. $ 24¢ $4,11751 $ (27,910 $ (202,61) $ 101,10 $ 3,988,34

Issuances of

common

stock in

add-on

offerings

(net of

offering anc

underwriting

costs) 48,24 48 833,42¢ — — — 833,47t
Shares issuec

in

connection

with

dividend

reinvestmer

plan 1,07¢ 1 18,90¢ — — — 18,90¢
Issuance of tF

Convertible

Unsecured

Notes (See

Note 5) — — 582 — — — 582
Net increase i

stockholder

equity

resulting

from

operations — — — 430,40t 63,72¢ (5,610 488,52:
Dividends

declared an

payable

($1.57 per

share) — — — (425,38) — — (425,38)
Tax

reclassifical

of

stockholder

equity in

accordance

with

generally

accepted

accounting

principles — — 12,04¢ 14,10¢ (26,157) — —

Balance at

December 31
2013 297,97 $ 298¢ $4,98247 $ (8,78%) $ (165,04() $ 9549: $ 4,904,444

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in stockholders' equity resulting fr
operations
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in
stockholders' equity resulting from operatia
Realized loss on extinguishment of d
Net realized gains on investme
Net unrealized (gains) losses on investm
Net accretion of discount on investme
Increase in payme-in-kind interest and dividenc
Collections of payment-in-kind interest and
dividends
Amortization of debt issuance co:
Accretion of discount on notes paya
Depreciatior
Proceeds from sales and repayments of investi
Purchases of investmer
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Interest receivabl
Other asset
Management and incentive fees pay:
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Interest and facility fees payat
Net cash used in operating activit
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from issuances of common s
Borrowings on dek
Repayments and repurchases of
Debt issuance cos
Dividends paic
Net cash provided by financing activiti
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING
OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF
PERIOD

Supplemental Informatiot
Interest paid during the peri
Taxes, including excise tax, paid during the pe
Dividends declared and payable during the pe

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.

For the Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
$ 48852 $ 508,17t $ 31945
— 2,67¢ 19,31¢
(63,725 (46,739 (96,56()
5,61( (115,26.) 40,19:
(4,697) (13,747 (15,89
(18,89 (25,03¢) (30,070)
29,53 21,46¢ 55,81
13,23( 13,14( 13,14:
13,80¢ 11,31( 11,05°
802 82¢ 87¢€
1,722,67.  2,494,06.  2,516,09
(3,494,76)  (3,160,02)  (3,263,62)
(14,98%) (9,920 (26,53()
(8,339 19,04: 2,44(
7,62: 39,08¢ 40,09¢
13,77: 5,774 12,66:
12,22t 4,22 4,62
(1,297,60) _ (250,93) (396,91,
833,47 679,98 —
6,431,17°  3,212,45  2,458,06
(5,654,00) (3,091,53) (1,738,63)
(21,019 (44,387 (25,347)
(41145)  (357,33) (277,150
1,178,18 399,19: 416,94«
(119,419 148,26 20,03(
269,04 120,78: 100,75:
$ 149,62¢ $ 269,04 $ 120,78
$ 12440 $ 108,76. $ 87,42
$ 13900 $  10,14¢ $ 9,11z
$ 42538 $ 377,49: $ 288,99
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2013
(in thousands, except per share data, percentagesdas otherwise indicated;
for example, with the words "million," "billion" or  otherwise)

1. ORGANIZATION

Ares Capital Corporation (the "Company™ARCC") is a specialty finance company that is@seld-end, non-diversified management
investment company incorporated in Maryland. Thenfany has elected to be regulated as a busines®gewent company under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (togethk the rules and regulations promulgated thedeu, the "Investment Company
Act"). The Company has elected to be treated aguaated investment company, or a "RIC", undetiternal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Code") and operates in a manner ocpslify for the tax treatment applicable to RIC

The Company's investment objective is toegate both current income and capital apprecidatioough debt and equity investments.
Company invests primarily in first lien senior sesiloans (including "unitranche” loans, which la@ns that combine both senior and
mezzanine debt, generally in a first lien positj@8cond lien senior secured loans and mezzanbtewleich in some cases includes an eg
component. To a lesser extent, the Company alsesneaduity investments.

The Company is externally managed by Aragial Management LLC ("Ares Capital Managementther Company's "investment
adviser"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Managat LLC ("Ares Management"), a global alternatagset manager and a Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") registered investmdwisar. Ares Operations LLC ("Ares Operations"lee Company's "administrator"), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Management, progitlee administrative services necessary for thegaomto operate.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financigkstents have been prepared on the accrual baacsofinting in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles or ("GAARNd include the accounts of the Company ancbitsolidated subsidiaries. The
consolidated financial statements reflect all atipgnts and reclassifications that, in the opinibmanagement, are necessary for the fair
presentation of the results of the operations arahtial condition as of and for the periods présénAll significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include funda fime to time deposited with financial institutand short-term, liquid investments in a
money market fund. Cash and cash equivalents atie¢at cost which approximates fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company places its cash and cash dgaigawith financial institutions and, at timesskdeld in money market accounts may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatsuréa limit.
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Investments

Investment transactions are recorded otr#itee date. Realized gains or losses are meabyriég difference between the net proceeds
from the repayment or sale and the amortized asshof the investment without regard to unrealigaiths or losses previously recognized,
and include investments charged off during theqakmet of recoveries. Unrealized gains or lossiesapily reflect the change in investment
values, including the reversal of previously reeafdinrealized gains or losses when gains or I@gsealized.

Investments for which market quotationsrawaily available are typically valued at such kefiquotations. In order to validate market
guotations, the Company looks at a number of fadimdetermine if the quotations are representatiair value, including the source and
nature of the quotations. Debt and equity secsritiat are not publicly traded or whose marketgzr@re not readily available
(i.e., substantially all of the Company's investtsgare valued at fair value as determined in dadt by the Company's board of directors,
based on, among other things, the input of the @myip investment adviser, audit committee and ieddpnt third-party valuation firms that
have been engaged at the direction of the Comphogisl of directors to assist in the valuationaxfreportfolio investment without a readily
available market quotation at least once duringiéirig 12-month period (with certain de minimisceptions) and under a valuation policy
and a consistently applied valuation process. Higation process is conducted at the end of eachlfguarter, and a minimum of 50% of
Company's portfolio at fair value is subject toiesw by an independent valuation firm each quatteaddition, the Company's independent
registered public accounting firm obtains an un@eding of, and performs select procedures relatinthe Company's investment valuation
process within the context of performing the ingtgd audit.

As part of the valuation process, the Comypaay take into account the following types oftdas, if relevant, in determining the fair
value of the Company's investments: the enterpasige of a portfolio company (the entire valuets# portfolio company to a market
participant, including the sum of the values oftdatid equity securities used to capitalize therpnige at a point in time), the nature and
realizable value of any collateral, the portfolangpany's ability to make payments and its earnamgsdiscounted cash flow, the markets in
which the portfolio company does business, a commpainf the portfolio company's securities to aimyilar publicly traded securities,
changes in the interest rate environment and #hditamarkets generally that may affect the pricelich similar investments would trade in
their principal markets and other relevant factévfien an external event such as a purchase traorsgatiblic offering or subsequent equity
sale occurs, the Company considers the pricingatdd by the external event to corroborate itsatan.

Because there is not a readily availableketavalue for most of the investments in its palitf, the Company values substantially all of
its portfolio investments at fair value as detemiin good faith by its board of directors, as déscl herein. Due to the inherent uncertainty
of determining the fair value of investments thatnit have a readily available market value, tirevi@ue of the Company's investments may
fluctuate from period to period. Additionally, tfedr value of the Company's investments may di§ignificantly from the values that would
have been used had a ready market existed forisuestments and may differ materially from the esluhat the Company may ultimately
realize. Further, such investments are generabljestito legal and other restrictions on resaletberwise are less liquid than publicly traded
securities. If the Company was required to liquédafportfolio investment in a forced or liquidatisale, the Company could realize
significantly less than the value at which the Camphas recorded it.

In addition, changes in the market envirentrand other events that may occur over the fita@investments may cause the gains or
losses ultimately realized on these investmenkbetdifferent than the unrealized gains or lossisated in the valuations currently assigned.
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The Company's board of directors undertakesilti-step valuation process each quarter, seriteed below:

. The Company's quarterly valuation process begitts @dch portfolio company or investment being atliyi valued by the
investment professionals responsible for the plotiavestment in conjunction with the Company'stfidio management
team.

. Preliminary valuations are reviewed and discdssh the Company's investment adviser's managearehinvestment

professionals, and then valuation recommendationpr@sented to the Company's board of directors.

. The audit committee of the Company's board of timscreviews these valuations, as well as the iopthird parties, includin
independent third-party valuation firms, with resp® the valuations of a minimum of 50% of the Quamy's portfolio at fair
value.

. The Company's board of directors discusses tiahmand ultimately determines the fair value afleinvestment in the

Company's portfolio without a readily available ketrquotation in good faith based on, among othiaigs, the input of the
Company's investment adviser, audit committee ahére applicable, independent third-party valuafions.

See Note 7 for more information on the Camyps valuation process.
Interest and Dividend Income Recognition

Interest income is recorded on an accrasisband includes the accretion of discounts aratt@ration of premiums. Discounts from and
premiums to par value on securities purchasedamei@d/amortized into interest income over the dif the respective security using the
effective yield method. The amortized cost of irtm@nts represents the original cost adjusted ®atttretion of discounts and amortization
of premiums, if any.

Loans are generally placed on non-acctia&lis when principal or interest payments are @ast30 days or more or when there is
reasonable doubt that principal or interest wilicbdlected in full. Accrued and unpaid interesgénerally reversed when a loan is placed on
non-accrual status. Interest payments receivecoraacrual loans may be recognized as income dieap principal depending upon
management's judgment regarding collectability. fdoorual loans are restored to accrual status whenhdue principal and interest is paid
and, in management's judgment, are likely to reroaiment. The Company may make exceptions to thieiloan has sufficient collateral
value and is in the process of collection.

Dividend income on preferred equity sedesiis recorded as dividend income on an accrussta the extent that such amounts are
payable by the portfolio company and are expeaidzbtcollected. Dividend income on common equitusiéies is recorded on the record
date for private portfolio companies or on the @xebnd date for publicly traded portfolio compasie

Payment-in-Kind Interest

The Company has loans in its portfolio tt@ttain payment-in-kind ("PI1K") provisions. ThekPihterest, computed at the contractual
rate specified in each loan agreement, is add#uktprincipal balance of the loan and recordedhisést income. To maintain the Company's
status as a RIC, this non-cash source of incomé Ibeugaid out to stockholders in the form of divids, even though the Company has not
yet collected the cas
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Capital Structuring Service Fees and Other Incor

The Company's investment adviser seeksaige assistance to its portfolio companies angiorn the Company may receive fees for
capital structuring services. These fees are gyperay available to the Company as a result & @ompany's underlying investments, are
normally paid at the closing of the investments, gegnerally non-recurring and are recognized aswa when earned upon closing of the
investment. The services that the Company's invagtiedviser provides vary by investment, but gdheireclude reviewing existing credit
facilities, arranging bank financing, arranging iggtinancing, structuring financing from multiplenders, structuring financing from multi
equity investors, restructuring existing loanssiraj equity and debt capital, and providing gentnaincial advice, which concludes upon
closing of the investment. Any services of the abpature subsequent to the closing would genegalterate a separate fee payable to the
Company. In certain instances where the Compamyited to participate as a co-lender in a trarisacind does not provide significant
services in connection with the investment, a partf loan fees paid to the Company in such sinativill be deferred and amortized over
the estimated life of the loan. The Company's imesit adviser may also take a seat on the boaddexftors of a portfolio company, or
observe the meetings of the board of directorsawitliaking a formal seat.

Other income includes fees for managemeditcansulting services, loan guarantees, commisnantendments and other services
rendered by the Company to portfolio companieshSees are recognized as income when earned sethizes are rendered.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's books and records are maadan U.S. dollars. Any foreign currency amountsteanslated into U.S. dollars on the
following basis:

(1) Fair value of investment securities, otheetsand liabilities—at the exchange rates prevag#inthe end of the period.

(2) Purchases and sales of investment secuiitiegsme and expenses—at the exchange rates prevailithe respective dates of
such transactions, income or expenses.

Results of operations based on changewxé@igih exchange rates are separately disclosér istatement of operations, if any. Foreign
security and currency translations may involveaiartonsiderations and risks not typically assedatith investing in U.S. companies and
U.S. government securities. These risks includeakainot limited to, currency fluctuations andalenations and future adverse political,
social and economic developments, which could cansstments in foreign markets to be less liquid prices more volatile than those of
comparable U.S. companies or U.S. government sexsuri

Equity Offering Expenses
The Company's offering costs, excludingamditers' fees, are charged against the proceedsdquity offerings when received.
Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are amortized ovelifthef the related debt instrument using the giialine method, which closely approximates
the effective yield method.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be treatedRi€ ainder the Code and operates in a manner soqgtify for the tax treatment applicable
to RICs. To qualify as a RIC, the Company must, mgnather things, meet certain sourcerafeme and asset diversification requirements
timely distribute to its stockholders at least 96#4ts investment company taxable income, as ddflmethe Code, for each year. The
Company, among other things, has made and intenctsntinue to make the requisite distributiong$astockholders, which will generally
relieve the Company from U.S. federal corporatelévcome taxes.
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Depending on the level of taxable incommed in a tax year, the Company may choose to darward taxable income in excess of
current year dividend distributions from such cotrgear taxable income into the next tax year amdg4% excise tax on such income, as
required. To the extent that the Company deterntimtsits estimated current year annual taxablermewill be in excess of estimated cur
year dividend distributions, the Company accruassextax, if any, on estimated excess taxable ircassuch taxable income is earr

Certain of the Company's consolidated sliases are subject to U.S. federal and state catpdevel income taxes.
Dividends to Common Stockholders

Dividends and distributions to common staulklers are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Tieuat to be paid out as a dividend is
determined by the Company's board of directors gaeiter and is generally based upon the earnstgaaed by management. Net realized
capital gains, if any, are generally distributedth@gh the Company may decide to retain such abg#ins for investment.

The Company has adopted a dividend reimest plan that provides for reinvestment of anyritiistions the Company declares in cash
on behalf of its stockholders, unless a stockhaddierts to receive cash. As a result, if the Comisdvoard of directors authorizes, and the
Company declares, a cash dividend, then the Congatockholders who have not "opted out" of the any's dividend reinvestment plan
will have their cash dividends automatically reistesl in additional shares of the Company's comntmrk srather than receiving the cash
dividend. The Company intends to use primarily neis$ued shares to implement the dividend reinvestmlan (so long as the Company is
trading at a premium to net asset value). If then@any's shares are trading at a significant endisgtount to net asset value and the
Company is otherwise permitted under applicabletapurchase such shares, the Company intends¢base shares in the open market in
connection with the Company's obligations underdir@lend reinvestment plan. However, the Compasgrves the right to issue new sh
of the Company's common stock in connection with@mpany's obligations under the dividend reinaest plan even if the Company's
shares are trading below net asset value.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financialé&@ements

The preparation of financial statementsanformity with GAAP requires management to makéretes and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of actual and contingent asselttiahilities at the date of the financial statetsesind the reported amounts of income or
loss and expenses during the reporting period.&ctsults could differ from those estimates. Sigant estimates include the valuation of
investments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2013, the Financial Accounting 8tads Board issued Accounting Standards Update"A3013-08, Financial Services—
Investment Companies (Topic 946): Amendments tdSitepe, Measurement, and Disclosure Requiremeh& ['2013-08"). ASU 2013-08
amends the criteria that define an investment compaarifies the measurement guidance and requedain additional disclosures. Public
companies are required to apply ASU 2013-08 prdspy for interim and annual reporting periods lmetng after December 15, 2013. The
Company has evaluated the impact of the adopti@xSaf 2013-08 on its financial statements and dsales and determined the adoption of
ASU 2013-08 did not have a material effect on tlken@any's financial condition and results of operati
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3. AGREEMENTS
Investment Advisory and Management Agreement

The Company is party to an investment amyiand management agreement (the "investment@ghdsd management agreement")
with Ares Capital Management. Subject to the ovexgbervision of the Company's board of directérgs Capital Management provides
investment advisory and management services tGdomepany. For providing these services, Ares Caplebagement receives a fee from
Company consisting of two components—a base managiiee and an incentive fee.

The base management fee is calculated anamal rate of 1.5% based on the average valtred@ompany's total assets (other than
or cash equivalents but including assets purchastbcborrowed funds) at the end of the two mosergly completed calendar quarters. The
base management fee is payable quarterly in arrears

The incentive fee has two parts. The fiest is calculated and payable quarterly in arrbased on the Company's pre-incentive fee net
investment income for the quarter. Pre-incentiwerfet investment income means interest incomegl@in income and any other income
(including any other fees such as commitment, p&on, structuring, diligence and consulting feesther fees that the Company receives
from portfolio companies but excluding fees foryiding managerial assistance) accrued during tlendar quarter, minus operating
expenses for the quarter (including the base managefee, any expenses payable under the admtiostegreement, and any interest
expense and dividends paid on any outstanding mpeeffstock, but excluding the incentive fee). Preentive fee net investment income
includes, in the case of investments with a defeimeerest feature such as market discount, dehtiments with PIK interest, preferred stock
with PIK dividends and zero coupon securities, aedrincome that the Company has not yet receivedsh. The Company's investment
adviser is not under any obligation to reimburse@ompany for any part of the incentive fees ieneed that was based on accrued interest
that the Company never actually received.

Preincentive fee net investment income does not ireladly realized capital gains, realized capitaldessnrealized capital appreciati
unrealized capital depreciation or income tax espaelated to realized gains. Because of the sitricf the incentive fee, it is possible that
the Company may pay an incentive fee in a quarteararithe Company incurs a loss. For example, iCthimpany receives pre-incentive fee
net investment income in excess of the hurdle(egalefined below) for a quarter, the Company paly the applicable incentive fee even if
the Company has incurred a loss in that quartetalovealized and/or unrealized capital losses.

Pre-incentive fee net investment incomeressed as a rate of return on the value of thep@ay's net assets (defined as total assets les
indebtedness and before taking into account argniine fees payable during the period) at the éndleoimmediately preceding calendar
quarter, is compared to a fixed "hurdle rate" @b6% per quarter. If market credit spreads rise dbmpany may be able to invest its funds in
debt instruments that provide for a higher retuwrhich may increase the Company's pre-incentivengénvestment income and make it
easier for the Company's investment adviser toasmgrfhe fixed hurdle rate and receive an incefdiedased on such net investment income.
To the extent the Company has retained pre-inceriéig net investment income that has been useasidolate this part of the incentive fee, it
is also included in the amount of the Companyal @assets (other than cash and cash equivalentsdhuding assets purchased with borro
funds) used to calculate the 1.5% base management f

The Company pays its investment advisanaentive fee with respect to the Company's prestige fee net investment income in each
calendar quarter as follows:

. no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in Whtte Company's pre-incentive fee net investmergrire does not exceed the
hurdle rate;
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. 100% of the Company's pre-incentive fee net investrincome with respect to that portion of suchipoentive fee net
investment income, if any, that exceeds the huwtke but is less than 2.1875% in any calendar guarhe Company refers to
this portion of its pre-incentive fee net investmimeome (which exceeds the hurdle rate but istlegs 2.1875%) as the
"catch-up" provision. The "catch-up" is meant toypde the Company's investment adviser with 20%efpre-incentive fee
net investment income as if a hurdle rate did ppi\aif this net investment income exceeded 2.18T%%ny calendar quarter;
and

. 20% of the amount of the Company's pre-incerfidenet investment income, if any, that exceetl875% in any calendar
quarter.

These calculations are adjusted for anyesisauances or repurchases during the quarter.

The second part of the incentive fee (thagital Gains Fee"), is determined and payablergass as of the end of each calendar yea
upon termination of the investment advisory and agament agreement, as of the termination datejsacalculated at the end of each
applicable year by subtracting (a) the sum of thenany's cumulative aggregate realized capitabbasd aggregate unrealized capital
depreciation from (b) the Company's cumulative aggte realized capital gains, in each case caétlfedom October 8, 2004 (the date the
Company completed its initial public offering). Riead capital gains and losses include gains asske® on investments and foreign
currencies, as well as gains and losses on exshgént of debt and other assets. If such amouynusisive at the end of such year, then the
Capital Gains Fee for such year is equal to 20%uoh amount, less the aggregate amount of Capatias@ees paid in all prior years. If such
amount is negative, then there is no Capital Gaeesfor such year.

The cumulative aggregate realized capaaigare calculated as the sum of the differeritpssitive, between (a) the net sales price of
each investment in the Company's portfolio whed sold (b) the accreted or amortized cost basis@f ;ivestment.

The cumulative aggregate realized capitsdés are calculated as the sum of the amountsioh &) the net sales price of each
investment in the Company's portfolio when solttss than (b) the accreted or amortized cost lodsigch investment.

The aggregate unrealized capital depreciasi calculated as the sum of the differencasedfative, between (a) the valuation of each
investment in the Company's portfolio as of theliapple Capital Gains Fee calculation date andh(®)accreted or amortized cost basis of
such investment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, as a restitn amendment to the capital gains portion ofileentive fee under the investment advisory
and management agreement that was adopted on JR@#16 if the Company is required by GAAP to recan investment at its fair value as
of the time of acquisition instead of at the actrabunt paid for such investment by the Comparglyding, for example, as a result of the
application of the acquisition method of accounyjrigen solely for the purposes of calculating @@pital Gains Fee, the "accreted or
amortized cost basis" of an investment shall baraaunt (the "Contractual Cost Basis") equal to(X)1the actual amount paid by the
Company for such investment plus (y) any amourdsrded in the Company's financial statements asinegjby GAAP that are attributable
to the accretion of such investment plus (z) afmgoadjustments made to the cost basis includ#tkiCompany's financial statements,
including PIK interest or additional amounts fundedt of repayments) minus (2) any amounts reconmé¢ite Company's financial stateme
as required by GAAP that are attributable to therixation of such investment, whether such catedl&Contractual Cost Basis is higher or
lower than the fair value of such investment (aereined in accordance with GAAP) at the time afusition.
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The Company defers cash payment of anynihaefee otherwise earned by the Company's investradviser if during the most recent
four full calendar quarter period ending on or ptimthe date such payment is to be made the su@aj tfie aggregate distributions to the
Company's stockholders and (b) the change in set@agdefined as total assets less indebtednedseéor taking into account any incentive
fees payable during the period) is less than 7.0#%eCompany's net assets (defined as total desstindebtedness) at the beginning of ¢
period. Any deferred incentive fees are carried doepayment in subsequent calculation periodhiéoextent such payment is payable under
the investment advisory and management agreement.

The Capital Gains Fee payable to the Coryipamvestment adviser as calculated under thestnvent advisory and management
agreement (as described above) for the year endedriber 31, 2013 and 2012 was $17,425 and $1IéstB:ctively. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, there was no Capital Gains paegble under the investment advisory and managesgeeement. In accordance with
GAAP, the Company had cumulatively accrued a chgéms incentive fee of $80,937 as of December2813, of which $63,512 is not
currently due under the investment advisory andagament agreement. GAAP requires that the camtakgncentive fee accrual consider
the cumulative aggregate unrealized capital apgtieci in the calculation, as a capital gains ineenee would be payable if such unrealized
capital appreciation were realized, even though suncealized capital appreciation is not permittee considered in calculating the fee
actually payable under the investment advisoryraadagement agreement. This GAAP accrual is catulilaging the aggregate cumulative
realized capital gains and losses and aggregatelative unrealized capital depreciation includedhia calculation of the Capital Gains Fee
plus the aggregate cumulative unrealized capitateagiation. If such amount is positive at the ehd period, then GAAP requires the
Company to record a capital gains fee equal to @D%tich cumulative amount, less the aggregate anodattual Capital Gains Fees paid or
capital gains incentive fees accrued under GAA#8lliprior periods. As of December 31, 2013, the @any has paid Capital Gains Fees
since inception totaling $15,986, of which $11,%&8s paid in the first quarter of 2013. The resgltétcrual for any capital gains incentive
fee under GAAP in a given period may result in dditional expense if such cumulative amount is gnetinan in the prior period or a reve
of previously recorded expense if such cumulativeant is less than in the prior period. If such olative amount is negative, then there is
no accrual. There can be no assurance that suehlired capital appreciation will be realized in foture.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, iasmagement fees were $104,857, incentive feegdelatpre-incentive fee net investment
income were $110,511 and incentive fees relatedpital gains calculated in accordance with GAARen&11,640. As of December 31,
2013, $139,208 was included in "management andhtiveefees payable” in the accompanying consoldiatdance sheet, of which $75,696
is currently payable to the Company's investmenisad under the investment advisory and manageageement.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, asagement fees were $86,228, incentive fees defatere-incentive fee net investment
income were $95,182 and incentive fees relatedpital gains accrued in accordance with GAAP w&® 863. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, base management fees were $7Ih6entive fees related to pre-incentive feeimetstment income were $79,029 and
incentive fees related to capital gains accrualceordance with GAAP were $33,348.

Administration Agreement

The Company is party to an administratigreament, referred to herein as the "administraagmeement", with its administrator, Ares
Operations. Pursuant to the administration agregmeas Operations furnishes the Company with efeiquipment and clerical, bookkeef
and record keeping services at the Company's dticiéities. Under the administration agreemeng®Operations also performs, or oversees
the performance of, the Company's required admétigé services, which include, among other thipgeyiding assistance in accounting,
legal, compliance, operations, investor relatiams #echnology being responsible for the finanaalords that the Company is required to
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maintain and preparing reports to its stockhol@es reports filed with the SEC. In addition, Arege@ations assists the Company in
determining and publishing its net asset valugsesthe Company in providing managerial assistandes portfolio companies, oversees the
preparation and filing of the Company's tax retuand the printing and dissemination of reportdgsiockholders, and generally oversees the
payment of its expenses and the performance ofrasimative and professional services renderedeédtmpany by others. Payments under
the Company's administration agreement are equail @mount based upon its allocable portion of Apsrations' overhead and other
expenses (including travel expenses) incurred s A¥perations in performing its obligations undher administration agreement, including
the Company's allocable portion of the compensaifarertain of its officers (including the Companyghief compliance officer, chief

financial officer, chief accounting officer, genkcaunsel, treasurer and assistant treasurer)raidrespective staffs. The administration
agreement may be terminated by either party witpeuglty upon 60 days' written notice to the othaaty.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2011, the Company incurred $12,317, $9,3228r%63, respectively, in
administrative fees. As of December 31, 2013, $3afthese fees were unpaid and included in "adsopeyable and other liabilities" in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

4. INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Cayipanvestments consisted of the following:

As of December 31
2013 2012
Amortized Cost(1) Fair Value Amortized Cost(1) Fair Value
First lien senior secured loa  $ 3,461,59 $ 3,433,60! $ 2,329,84. $ 2,321,27.
Second lien senior secured

loans 1,335,76: 1,319,19: 1,257,92 1,233,87,
Subordinated certificates of tr

SSLP(2) 1,745,19; 1,771,36! 1,237,88 1,263,64-
Senior subordinated de 308,09 267,17 321,33: 259,82(
Preferred equity securitit 226,04 229,00t 238,83 250,11¢
Other equity securitie 453,73. 600,21 430,38 584,00!
Commercial real esta 6,98¢ 12,33¢ 7,24¢ 11,82«

Total $ 7,537,40. $ 7,632,89 $ 5,823,45 $ 5,924,55!

(1) The amortized cost represents the original costsaelfl for the accretion of discounts and amorbmatif premiums, if
any.

(2) The proceeds from these certificates wereiegpd co-investments with GE Global Sponsor FiralncC and General
Electric Capital Corporation to fund first lien $ensecured loans to 47 and 36 different borrovasref December 31,
2013 and 2012, respective
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The industrial and geographic compositiohthe Company's portfolio at fair value at Decentkik, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

As of
December 31
2013 2012

Industry

Investment Funds and Vehicles 23.€% 21.7%
Healthcare Service 15.4 12.¢€
Business Service 9.2 6.4
Education 7.5 7.8
Other Service: 6.7 6.7
Energy 54 3.7
Restaurants and Food Servi 5.2 7.1
Financial Service 5.1 7.3
Consumer Produc 3.k 6.€
Containers and Packagi 3.3 5.1
Manufacturing 3.2 2.4
Automotive Service 2.C 3.4
Retail 1.€ 0.1
Chemicals 1.4 —
Aerospace and Defen 1.4 2.C
Other 4.5 6.8

Total 100.(% 100.(%

(1) Includes the Company's investment in the SSttich had made first lien senior secured loangrtand 36
different borrowers as of December 31, 2013 an®2fispectively. The portfolio companies in the BSire in
industries similar to the companies in the Compapgttfolio.

As of
December 31,
2013 2012

Geographic Region
West(1) 50.% 49.1%
Mid Atlantic 15.¢ 12.€
Midwest 15.€ 19.2
Southeas 13.€ 14.7
Internationa 3.7 1.¢
Northeas 1.C 2.3

Total 100.% 100.(%

(1) Includes the Company's investment in the SStich represented 23.2% and 21.3% of the totadstment
portfolio at fair value as of December 31, 2013 aad2, respectively

As of December 31, 2013, 3.1% of total stweents at amortized cost (or 2.1% of total invesits at fair value) were on non-accrual
status. As of December 31, 2012, 2.3% of totalstments at amortized cost (or 0.6% of total investis at fair value) were on non-accrual
status.
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Senior Secured Loan Prograr

The Company cimvests in first lien senior secured loans of midiaiiarket companies with GE Global Sponsor Finarnge and Genere
Electric Capital Corporation (together, "GE") thgiuan unconsolidated Delaware limited liability quany, the Senior Secured Loan
Fund LLC (d/b/a the "Senior Secured Loan Prograon'the "SSLP". The SSLP is capitalized as transastare completed and all portfolio
decisions and generally all other decisions ineespf the SSLP must be approved by an investnwntrittee of the SSLP consisting of
representatives of the Company and GE (with apprfoman a representative of each required). The Camypprovides capital to the SSLP in
the form of subordinated certificates (the "SSLPtifieates").

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the S&idPavailable capital of $11.0 billion and $9.0idil, respectively, of which approximately
$8.7 billion and $6.3 billion in aggregate prindipanount, respectively, was funded. As of Decen®igr2013 and 2012, the Company had
agreed to make available to the SSLP approxim&2I$ billion and $1.8 bhillion, respectively, of whiapproximately $1.7 billion and
$1.2 billion in aggregate principal amount, respety, was funded. Investment of any unfunded anoust be approved by the investment
committee of the SSLP described above.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the S&idPtotal assets of $8.7 billion and $6.3 billimspectively. As of December 31, 2013 and
2012, GE's investment in the SSLP consisted obsentes of $6.7 billion and $4.8 billion, respeety, and SSLP Certificates of
$249.3 million and $177.9 million, respectively.eTBSLP Certificates are junior in right of paymenthe senior notes held by GE. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company and GEb8h&% and 12.5%, respectively, of the outstan&@i8gP Certificates.

The SSLP's portfolio consisted of firshligenior secured loans to 47 and 36 different baers as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012pthtfolio was comprised of all first lien seni@csired loans to U.S. middle-market
companies. As of December 31, 2013, one loan wamniaccrual status, representing 1.0% of the totald@drprincipal amount in the SSI
As of December 31, 2012, no loans were on non-atetatus. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, tiges$h loan to a single borrower in the
SSLP's portfolio in aggregate principal amount $@21.7 million and $330.0 million, respectivelydathe five largest loans to borrowers in
the SSLP totaled $1.5 hillion and $1.4 billion,pestively. The portfolio companies in the SSLPiarmdustries similar to the companies in
the Company's portfolio. Additionally, as of Decesni31, 2013 and 2012, the SSLP had commitmentsim ¥arious delayed draw
investments to certain of its portfolio compani€$910.4 million and $157.4 million, respectivelyhich had been approved by the SSLP
investment committee. As of December 31, 2013 &1 2the Company had commitments to co-investeénBLP for its portion of the
SSLP's commitments to fund such delayed draw invessts of up to $85.1 million and $26.4 million, pestively.

The amortized cost and fair value of th& B&ertificates held by the Company was $1.7 billamd $1.8 billion, respectively, as of
December 31, 2013, and $1.2 billion and $1.3 hilli@spectively, as of December 31, 2012. The SS¢fficates pay a weighted average
coupon of approximately LIBOR plus 8.0% and alsttlerthe holders thereof to receive a portiontef excess cash flow from the loan
portfolio, which may result in a return to the hedsl of the SSLP Certificates that is greater thancbntractual coupon. The Company's yield
on its investment in the SSLP at fair value wag8%tand 15.4% as of December 31, 2013 and 2012%c¢teply. For the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company eartezest income of $224.9 million, $184.7 milliand $118.4 million, respectively,
from its investment in the SSLP Certificates. Th@pany is also entitled to certain fees in conoectiith the SSLP.

Effective March 30, 2012, Ares Capital Mgement assumed from the Company the role of co-gaarad the SSLP. However, this
change did not impact the Company's economicssipe of its participation in the SSLP and Aresi@hpManagement does not receive any
remuneration in respect of its co-manager role.
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Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.F

Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.P. ("IHAM") en asset management services company, which besa®EC-registered investment
adviser effective March 30, 2012. The Company hadarinvestments in IHAM, its wholly owned portfotompany and previously made
investments in certain vehicles managed by IHAMoABecember 31, 2013 IHAM had assets under manage(iHAM AUM") (1) of
approximately $2.8 billion and managed 13 vehieled served as the sub-manager/sub-servicer far tiher vehicles (these vehicles
managed or sub-managed/séviced by IHAM are collectively referred to as thHHAM Vehicles"). IHAM earns fee income from mayiag
the IHAM Vehicles and has also invested in certdithese vehicles as part of its business stratégwyf December 31, 2013 and 2012,
IHAM had total investments of $170 million and $20@lion, respectively. For the years ended Decande 2013, 2012 and 2011, IHAM
had management fee income of $21 million, $22 aniliand $22 million, respectively, and other investirrelated income of $91 million,
$40 million and $37 million, respectively.

The amortized cost and fair value of thenpany's investment in IHAM was $171.0 million arB®.4 million, respectively, as of
December 31, 2013, and $171.0 million and $2941Bamj respectively, as of December 31, 2012. Reryears ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, the Company received distributiamsisting entirely of dividend income from IHAM 8¥72.4 million, $19.9 million and
$19.0 million, respectively. The dividend income floe year ended December 31, 2013 included additdividends of $32.4 million in
addition to the quarterly dividends generally paydlHAM. IHAM paid the additional dividends out atcumulated earnings that had
previously been retained by IHAM.

From time to time, IHAM or certain IHAM Védles may purchase investments from, or sell inmests to, the Company. For any such
sales or purchases by the IHAM Vehicles to or ftbemCompany, the IHAM Vehicles must obtain apprdvain third parties unaffiliated
with the Company or IHAM, as applicable. IHAM ontan of the IHAM Vehicles purchased investmentsrirthe Company totaling
$442.3 million and $256.9 million, during the yearsded December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively Ciimpany purchased investments
from certain of the IHAM Vehicles totaling $156.0lion during the year ended December 31, 2013. Chmpany did not purchase any
investments from IHAM Vehicles during the year emid@Ecember 31, 2012. A net realized loss of $0llianiwas recorded by the Company
on these transactions for the year ended Decenlh@033. A net realized gain of $2.3 million wasaeled by the Company on these
transactions for the year ended December 31, 2012.

In October 2012, the Company contributetH@&M its entire investment in FLFC, LLC (f/k/a BitLight Financial Corporation)
("FLFC") at a price equal to the fair value at timee of the contribution of $58.1 million ($51.8lfi@n for its senior subordinated loan
position and $6.3 million for its equity positios a result of the contribution, the Company fidkited its investment in FLFC, which
reduced its investment commitments by $84.2 miJlemmd recognized a net loss of $26.1 million. Pr@osuch contribution, IHAM served a:
sub-adviser to FirstLight Funding I, Ltd., a whollwned subsidiary of FLFC ("FirstLight Funding"pl®wing such contribution, FirstLight
Funding distributed to FLFC substantially all af &ssets (in the form of cash and investmentsiurig FLFC repaid in full the total
outstanding amount of its senior subordinated Idamtsuding the portion held by IHAM following theontribution transaction) and made a
distribution to its stockholders (including IHAMIfowing the contribution transaction). In conneatiwith the foregoing, IHAM ceased to be
a sub-adviser to FirstLight Funding and IHAM becaime collateral manager to FLFC.

Q) IHAM AUM refers to the assets of the vehicles madgub-managed and sub-serviced by IHAM. It inetudrawn and undrawn
amounts, including amounts that are subject tauerestrictions. IHAM AUM amounts are as of DecemB1, 2013 and are
unaudited. Certain amounts are preliminary and meswbject to change, and differences may arisea@uvoeunding.
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IHAM is party to an administration agreemeaferred to herein as the "IHAM administratiagreement,” with Ares Operations.
Pursuant to the IHAM administration agreement, Abgerations provides IHAM with, among other thingHice facilities, equipment,
clerical, bookkeeping and record keeping servisesiices relating to the marketing and sale of@sis in vehicles managed by IHAM,
services of, and oversight of, custodians, depos#paccountants, attorneys, underwriters and stiddr persons in any other capacity
deemed to be necessary. Under the IHAM administtagreement, IHAM reimburses Ares Operations flasfahe actual costs associated
with such services, including Ares Operations'alie portion of overhead and the cost of its efic employees and respective staff in
performing its obligations under the IHAM adminétion agreement.

5. DEBT

In accordance with the Investment Compaaty #ith certain limited exceptions, the Companygiidy allowed to borrow amounts such
that its asset coverage, calculated pursuant tntlestment Company Act, is at least 200% aftehdarrowing. As of December 31, 2013
the Company's asset coverage was 264%.

The Company's outstanding debt obligatemesf December 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

As of December 31

2013 2012
Total Total
Aggregate Aggregate
Principal Principal
Amount Principal Amount Principal
Committed/ Amount Carrying Committed/ Amount Carrying
(in millions) Qutstanding(1) QOutstanding Value Qutstanding(1) Qutstanding Value
Revolving
Credit
Facility $ 1,060,00(2)$ — % — $ 900,000 $ — 3 —
Revolving
Funding
Facility 620,00((3)  185,00( 185,00( 620,00( 300,00( 300,00(
SMBC
Funding
Facility 400,00( — — 400,00( — —
February
2016
Converti
Notes 575,00( 575,00( 556,45((4) 575,00( 575,00( 548,52:(4)
June 2016
Converti
Notes 230,00( 230,00( 221,78{(4) 230,00( 230,00( 218,76:(4)
2017
Convertil
Notes 162,50( 162,50  159,22(4) 162,50 162,50(  158,31/(4)
2018
Converti
Notes 270,00( 270,00( 264,09'(4) 270,00( 270,00( 262,82¢4)
2019
Convertil
Notes 300,00( 300,00( 295,27¢4(4) — — —
2018 Note: 600,00( 600,00( 596,75¢(5) — — —
February
2022
Notes 143,75( 143,75( 143,75( 143,75( 143,75( 143,75(
October
2022
Notes 182,50( 182,50( 182,50( 182,50( 182,50( 182,50(
2040 Note: 200,00( 200,00( 200,00( 200,00( 200,00( 200,00(
2047 Note: 230,00( 230,00( 181,4246) 230,00( 230,00( 181,1946)

Total $ 4,973,75 $ 3,078,751 $2,986,27! $ 3,913,75 $ 2,293,751 $2,195,87.

(1) Subject to borrowing base and leverage restrictiBepresents the total aggregate amount committedtetanding, as
applicable, under such instrument.

(2) Provides for a feature that allows the Compamgler certain circumstances, to increase theafittee Revolving Credit
Facility to a maximum of $1,400,000.

3 Provides for a feature that allows the Company/med Capital CP, under certain circumstances,drease the size



the Revolving Funding Facility to a maximum of $88H0.
4) Represents the aggregate principal amountamdisg of the Convertible Unsecured Notes (amnéefbelow) less the

unaccreted discount initially recorded upon isseawicthe Convertible Unsecured Notes. The totatareded discount
for the February 2016 Convertible Notes, the JUWESZ onvertible Notes, the 20
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Convertible Notes, the 2018 Convertible Notes d&@d2019 Convertible Notes was $18,544, $8,212 8683,$85,903 and
$4,721 respectively, as of December 31, 2013. dta tinaccreted discount for the February 2016 €dible Notes,
the June 2016 Convertible Notes, the 2017 Converllotes and the 2018 Convertible Notes was $26 879,239,
$4,188 and $7,171 respectively, as of Decembe2@12.

(5) Represents the aggregate principal amountamdihg less the unaccreted discount initially rded upon the issuance
of the 2018 Notes. The total unaccreted discounthi® 2018 Notes was $3,244 as of December 31,.2013

(6) Represents the aggregate principal amount outstghel$s the unaccreted purchased discount disadtially recorded
as a part of the Allied Acquisition (as defineddwe). The total unaccreted purchased discount 2047 Notes was
$48,571 and $48,801 as of December 31, 2013 ari?, 284dpectively

The weighted average stated interest radengighted average maturity, both on aggregatejpal amount, of all the Company's
outstanding debt as of December 31, 2013 were ar3d4/.9 years, respectively, and as of Decembe2®IL, were 5.5% and 9.8 years,
respectively.

Revolving Credit Facility

The Company is party to a senior securedlveng credit facility (as amended and restatbd, tRevolving Credit Facility"), which
allows the Company to borrow up to $1,060,000 gtare time outstanding. The end of the revolvinggueand the stated maturity date for
the Revolving Credit Facility are May 4, 2017 andyi4, 2018, respectively. The Revolving Credit Fgcalso includes a feature that allov
under certain circumstances, for an increase isiteeof the facility to a maximum of $1,400,00GieTRevolving Credit Facility generally
requires payments of interest at the end of eaBIOR interest period, but no less frequently thaartprly, on LIBOR based loans, and
monthly payments of interest on other loans. Frioeneind of the revolving period to the stated mgtuatate, the Company is required to re
outstanding principal amounts under the Revolvingd@ Facility on a monthly basis in an amount éqad/12™" of the outstanding
principal amount at the end of the revolving period

Under the Revolving Credit Facility, ther@gany is required to comply with various covenargpprting requirements and other
customary requirements for similar revolving crdddilities, including, without limitation, coventarelated to: (a) limitations on the
incurrence of additional indebtedness and liengljifiitations on certain investments, (c) limitatgoon certain restricted payments,

(d) maintaining a certain minimum stockholders'iBgie) maintaining a ratio of total assets (lessl liabilities other than indebtedness) to
total indebtedness of the Company and its condeliisubsidiaries of not less than 2.0:1.0, (f) t&tidons on pledging certain unencumbered
assets, and (g) limitations on the creation orterize of agreements that prohibit liens on cepadperties of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries. These covenants are subject to impditnitations and exceptions that are describatié documents governing the Revolving
Credit Facility. Borrowings under the Revolving @itd-acility (and the incurrence of certain othermitted debt) are also subject to
compliance with a borrowing base that applies diffé advance rates to different types of assetseiiCompany's portfolio that are pledgec
collateral. As of December 31, 2013, the Company iwaompliance in all material respects with therts of the Revolving Credit Facility.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, thereewseramounts outstanding under the Revolving Craatitlity. The Revolving Credit
Facility also provides for a sub-limit for the issice of letters of credit for up to an aggregatewamhof $125,000. As of December 31, 2013
and 2012, the Company had $47,898 and $43,667cteply, in letters of credit issued through trevBving Credit Facility. The amount
available for borrowing under the Revolving Crdetitcility is reduced by any letters of credit issuls of December 31, 2013, there was
$1,012,102 available for borrowing (net of lettefsredit issued) under the Revolving Credit Fagili
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Since May 2, 2013, subject to certain ekoep, the interest rate charged on the Revolviregd{€ Facility is based on LIBOR plus an
applicable spread of 2.00% or a "base rate" (dsekin the agreements governing the Revolving iCFetility) plus an applicable spread of
1.00%. From May 5, 2012 through May 1, 2013, therst rate charged on the Revolving Credit Faailids based on LIBOR plus an
applicable spread of 2.25% or a "base rate" pluspguticable spread of 1.25%. Prior to and includvtay 4, 2012, the interest rate chargec
the Revolving Credit Facility was based on LIBORg&n applicable spread of between 2.50% and 4d@% a "base rate" plus an
applicable spread of between 1.50% and 3.00%,dh ease, based on a pricing grid depending upo@dmepany's credit ratings. As of
December 31, 2013, the one, two, three and six ImoBOR was 0.17%, 0.21%, 0.25% and 0.35%, respelgti As of December 31, 2012,
the one, two, three and six month LIBOR was 0.20%5%, 0.31% and 0.51%, respectively. In additmthe stated interest expense on the
Revolving Credit Facility, since May 4, 2012, therfipany is required to pay a commitment fee of (28 'er annum on any unused portion
of the Revolving Credit Facility. Prior to and inding May 4, 2012, the commitment fee was 0.50%c&May 2, 2013, the Company is also
required to pay a letter of credit fee of 2.25% gnum on letters of credit issued. From May 5,2itough May 1, 2013, the letter of credit
fee was 2.50% and prior to and including May 4,2Qfe letter of credit fee was 3.25%.

The Revolving Credit Facility is securedd®rtain assets in the Company's portfolio andugbed investments held by Ares Capital CP
under the Revolving Funding Facility and those HBIdACJIB under the SMBC Funding Facility, each isswssed below, and certain other
investments.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, a0d2011, the components of interest and credilitiafees expense, cash paid for interest
expense, average interest rates (i.e., rate istgffas the spread) and average outstanding baldacéhe Revolving Credit Facility were as
follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Stated interest expen $ 325( $ 352 $§ 5,541
Facility fees 4,04 4,26( 3,86¢
Amortization of debt issuance co: 2,74¢€ 4,207 6,51(
Total interest and credit facility fees

expense $ 10,04C $ 11,99 $ 15,91t
Cash paid for interest exper $ 325 $ 4,128 $§ 5,27¢
Average stated interest re 2.24% 2.82% 3.4(%
Average outstanding balan $ 144,99' $ 124,85 $ 163,21f

Revolving Funding Facility

The Company's consolidated subsidiary, Aragital CP Funding LLC ("Ares Capital CP"), istyaio a revolving funding facility (as
amended, the "Revolving Funding Facility"), whidloas Ares Capital CP to borrow up to $620,000rat ane time outstanding. The
Revolving Funding Facility is secured by all of t&sets held by, and the membership interest s Bapital CP. The end of the
reinvestment period and the stated maturity datéhi®Revolving Funding Facility are April 18, 2046d April 18, 2017, respectively. The
Revolving Funding Facility also includes a feattirat allows, under certain circumstances, for angase in the Revolving Funding Facility
to a maximum of $865,000.

Amounts available to borrow under the Rewg Funding Facility are subject to a borrowingéahat applies different advance rates to
different types of assets held by Ares Capital &fes Capital CP is also subject to limitations wiéspect to the loans securing the Revolving
Funding Facility, including restrictions on sectmncentrations, loan size, payment frequency aatdstcollateral interests, loans with fixed
rates and loans with certain investment ratingsyelsas restrictions on
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portfolio company leverage, which may also afféet borrowing base and therefore amounts availatidetrow. The Company and Ares
Capital CP are also required to comply with varioagenants, reporting requirements and other custpnequirements for similar facilities.
These covenants are subject to important limitatamd exceptions that are described in the agrdsergemerning the Revolving Funding
Facility. As of December 31, 2013, the Company Arek Capital CP were in compliance in all matergéspects with the terms of the
Revolving Funding Facility.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, there$488,000 and $300,000 outstanding, respectivaelgeuthe Revolving Funding Facility.
Since January 25, 2013, the interest charged oRélelving Funding Facility is based on applicadpeeads ranging from 2.25% to 2.50%
over LIBOR and ranging from 1.25% to 1.50% overstbaate" (as defined in the agreements governm@révolving Funding Facility) in
each case, determined monthly based on the conguositthe borrowing base relative to outstandiogtwings under the Revolving
Funding Facility. From January 18, 2012 throughuday 24, 2013, the interest rate charged on th@Ri&g Funding Facility was based on
LIBOR plus an applicable spread of 2.50% or onastbrate" plus an applicable spread of 1.50%. Ryidanuary 18, 2012, the interest rate
charged on the Revolving Funding Facility was based IBOR plus an applicable spread of between®.28d 3.75% or on a "base rate"
plus an applicable spread of between 1.25% to 2, b%ach case, based on a pricing grid depending the Company's credit ratings. As
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the interest ratef@ctavas based on one month LIBOR, which was 0.4R#0.21%, respectively. Ares
Capital CP is also required to pay a commitmenbfdeetween 0.50% and 1.75% per annum dependirieosize of the unused portion of
the Revolving Funding Facility.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, a0d2011, the components of interest and credilitiafees expense, cash paid for interest
expense, average stated interest rates (i.einraféect plus the spread) and average outstartthitences for the Revolving Funding Facility
were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Stated interest expen $ 596¢ $ 10557 $ 7,38(
Facility fees 3,70z 1,20¢ 2,22¢
Amortization of debt issuance co: 2,01t 1,772 2,22¢
Total interest and credit facility fees

expense $ 11,68t $ 13,53t $§ 11,83
Cash paid for interest exper $ 6,478 $ 1197¢ $ 6,281
Average stated interest re 2.47% 2.8(% 3.02%
Average outstanding balan $ 241,247 $ 377,09¢ $ 243,63

SMBC Funding Facility

The Company's consolidated subsidiary, Aragital JB Funding LLC ("ACJB"), is party to a mdving funding facility (as amended, t
"SMBC Funding Facility") with ACJB, as the borrow&umitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation ("SMBC"), e administrative agent,
collateral agent, and lender, which allows ACJBdorow up to $400,000 at any one time outstandihg. SMBC Funding Facility is secured
by all of the assets held by ACJB. The end of #hevestment period and the stated maturity dateh®®SMBC Funding Facility are
September 14, 2016 and September 14, 2021, regggcilhe reinvestment period and the stated nigtdete are both subject to two one-
year extensions by mutual agreem:

Amounts available to borrow under the SMB@ding Facility are subject to a borrowing bas# Hpplies an advance rate to assets helc
by ACJB. The Company and ACJB are also requirembtoply with various covenants, reporting requiretaemd other customary
requirements for similar facilities. These covesaare subject to important limitations and exceystithat are described in the documents
governing the SMBC Funding Facility. As of DecemBgr 2013, the Company and ACJB were in compliamed! material respects with the
terms of the SMBC Funding Facility.
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As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, thereeweramounts outstanding under the SMBC Fundingifya&ince December 19, 2013,
subject to certain exceptions, the interest rasegdd on the SMBC Funding Facility is based onmpath LIBOR plus an applicable spread
of 2.00% or a "base rate" (as defined in the agesgsngoverning the SMBC Funding Facility) plus aplacable spread of 1.00%. Prior to ¢
including December 19, 2013, subject to certaireptions, the interest rate charged on the SMBC iRgrigacility was based on one month
LIBOR plus an applicable spread of 2.125% or aébase" (as defined in the agreements governin@MBC Funding Facility) plus an
applicable spread of 1.125%. As of December 313201 2012, one-month LIBOR was 0.17% and 